
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
June 14, 2022 AT 6:30 PM 

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B 
 

AGENDA 

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 
Full Planning Commission agendas and packets are available online at www.cityofcordova.net. 

 
 

    
   
    

 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. ROLL CALL 

Chair Nancy Bird, Commissioners Tom McGann, Chris Bolin, Trae Lohse, Mark 
Hall, Sarah Trumblee, and Tania Harrison 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

a. Record excused absence for Chris Bolin and Trae Lohse from the May 10, 2022 Regular meeting 
5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
6. CORRESPONDENCE 
7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

a. Guest Speakers 
b. Audience comments regarding agenda items (3 minutes per speaker) 

8. PLANNER’S REPORT…………………………………………………………………………….......Page 1 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Resolution 22-04 Title 16 Building Code Update and Associated Title 18 Updates……………….. Page 2 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Conditional Use Permit & Variance - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6 Eyak Acres …………….Page 180 
11. AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
12. COMMISSION COMMENTS 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

You may submit written public comments via email to planning@cityofcordova.net, mail comments to City of 
Cordova, PO Box 1210, Cordova, AK 99574, or delivered to City Hall directly. Written public comments must be 

received by 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting 

Chair 
Nancy Bird 
 

Vice Chair 
Mark Hall 
 

Commissioners 
Tom McGann 
Chris Bolin 
Trae Lohse 
Sarah Trumblee 
Tania Harrison 
 

City Planner 
Kevin Johnson 



Planner’s Report 
 
To:  Planning and Zoning Commission 
From:  Kevin Johnson, City planner 
Date:  6/14/22 
Re:  Recent Activities and Updates 
  

• Staff has submitted the application for the Port Infrastructure Development Program (PIDP), the 
City should be notified in September if we are awarded the grant. 

• Staff received the finalized data back regarding the addressing update. Data is being reviewed and 
will be merged with the city’s tax and mapping systems after this year’s tax bills are created and 
mailed to avoid issues with the tax billing process that is underway. Staff expects to have the 
addresses integrated with our systems by the end of June. Letters to the public regarding addresses 
will follow shortly after. 

• Staff met with FEMA’s floodplain administrator to do a regular review of city’s floodplain 
regulations. The review determined that existing code is mostly inline with FEMA requirements 
for the floodplain insurance program. Minor amendments to the code will be required. Staff plans 
to begin those updates in the coming months and will be bring them to Planning Commission for 
review and recommendation to City Council. 

• FEMA staff from their tsunami hazard mitigation department came to town to present updated 
tsunami inundation maps and studies. City staff will be working with FEMA over the next year to 
update the city’s tsunami inundation and evacuation maps. As a part of this staff will be pursuing a 
grant to get additional tsunami sirens for New England Cannery Road and out at 6.5 mile. 

• Staff has continued to work with NVE and Eyak Corp. to investigate partnership possibilities to 
increase housing stock. Staff has identified potential city owned properties for development sites. 
These properties are located on Center Dr. Staff expects to present housing project proposal to the 
Planning Commission at the July 12th meeting. The project includes pursuing grant money from 
AHFC that supports construction of housing that is earmarked for hospital workers, teachers, and 
other public safety employees.  

• State DOT held the second Copper River Highway Transportation Master Plan stakeholders 
meeting. At this meeting the group discussed the plan vision statement and reviewed project 
review criteria. The group will be presented with projects suggested by the community and other 
stakeholders and each project will be scored. The top scoring projects will be put at the top of the 
list and a preliminary feasibility study will be done on each to be included in the final plan. 

• Staff is working on a Request for Proposals (RFP) from firms to undertake a facilities condition 
assessment of City owned buildings. This assessment will include inspecting and reporting on the 
condition of City facilities, forecasting maintenance needs, and cost estimation for repairs and 
ongoing maintenance. In addition to identifying current deficiencies and deferred maintenance 
needs the City intends for this assessment to aid in forecasting future needs.   
 

 

1



Resolution 22-04 Title 16 Building Code Update and Associated Title 18 Updates  
Page 1 of 2  

 
  

 
  
  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM # 9a 

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 6/14/2022 
 

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
                      
 
FROM:   Kevin Johnson, City Planner 
 
DATE:   6/14/22 
 
ITEM:    Resolution 22-04 Title 16 Building Code Update and Associated Title 18 Updates 
   
NEXT STEP:  Make a Recommendation to City Council on the Proposed Code Update 
                      
 
 _____ INFORMATION 
 _____ MOTION 
 __X__    RESOLUTION    
                      
                                                                                                     
I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

 
It is requested that the Planning and Zoning Commission pass a resolution recommending that the City 
Council amends Title 16, and associated references, of the Cordova Municipal Code to update and clarify the 
code. 
 
II.  RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: 
 
Recommended Motion: “I move to approve Resolution 22-04 updating Title 16 and associated title 18 
updates” 

 
III. FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Legal review time 
  
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

2



Resolution 22-04 Title 16 Building Code Update and Associated Title 18 Updates  
Page 2 of 2  

  
This is the continuation of the Title 16 Building Code rewrite that has been in discussion since 2016. The 
purpose of this update is to bring the city into alignment with the construction codes adopted by the State and 
the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation. The Changes are also intended to simply the code for both the 
public and staffs use and enforcement.  
 
As of 2021, the following has occurred: 
 
The Commission was presented with the draft ordinance that had been created based on the past discussions 
(~2016 to 2021) at the 12/14/21 meeting and requested additional time to review the material and continue 
the discussion at the January 2022 meeting.  
 
At the 1/11/22 meeting it was determined that changes needed to the draft ordinance included limiting the 
scope to when a permit is required, clarifying some language, removing references to the building code in the 
zoning code (Title 18), and other minor edits. 
 
At the 2/8/22 meeting, the Planning Commission approved resolution 22-01 recommending that city council 
pass an ordinance updating Title 16 and Title 18 as it was presented. Following that meeting staff and the 
city’s legal counsel began preparing the ordinance for city council review and approval. During that review, 
the city’s legal counsel determined that there were additional minor changes to Title 18 that should be 
handled, mainly updating some definitions, and clarifying language. In addition to the minor language 
updates, there was a larger item updated related to site plan review. 
 
The existing Title 16 includes an administrative site plan review process. As this is a zoning review this was 
remove from Title 16. There was not a clean way to put this site plan review into Title 18, so staff worked 
with legal to create the proposed chapter CMC 18.42 – Site Plan Review. This section creates standards for 
administrative vs commission review processes as well as submittal and review requirements. 
 
Staff intends to begin discussing Title 18 updates later in 2022. At that time there would be the ability to 
review and modify Title 18 in its entirety including this new site plan review section. 
 
V. LEGAL ISSUES: 
  
City’s legal counsel has reviewed the attached ordinance and determined that this is the minimal changes 
needing to occur at this time to allow for the updates to be lawful. 
  
VI.   CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
  
N/A 
 
VII.  ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Resolution 22-04 
B. Draft Ordinance 1201 
C. Existing Title 16 & Title 18 

3



CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION 22-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, 
ALASKA, RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, 

ALASKA TO AMEND CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 16 BUILDING CODES AND 
ASSOCIATED REFERENCES IN ORDER TO UPDATE AND CLARIFY THE CODE. 

  
WHEREAS, the 1997 codes currently referenced in Title 16 were repealed September 15, 2001 by 

the State of Alaska for all lands within the State and replaced by the International Codes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Title 16 has not been updated since the repeal by the State in 1997, and as such refers 
to code that is now more than 20 years out of date; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the International Codes are a consensus type code that gets updated every three years; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, by changing the code to the state adopted codes, the City ensures that its own laws are 
automatically updated when the state legislature makes changes and adopts the newest International codes 
through the public legislative process; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the adoption of local amendments permits the City to tailor the International Code to 
the unique environment in Cordova; and 
 
 WHEREAS, revisions to Title 16 also required changes to Title 18 to ensure consistent site plan 
review procedures and land use and construction regulations; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it serves the City’s best interest to update the definitions and requirements in both 
Title 16 and Title 18 while implementing the adoption of the building codes, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska hereby recommend to the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska to amend Cordova 
Municipal Code Title 16 Building Codes and associated references in order to update and clarify the code. 

  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 14TH DAY OF JUNE, 2022 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Nancy Bird, Chair    
           

ATTEST: 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Kevin Johnson, City Planner 

4



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 1 of 36 

 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE 1201 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA  

REPEALING CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 16 “BUILDING CODES” AND 
ENACTING TITLE 16 “BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION” TO ADOPT THE BUILDING 

CODES ADOPTED BY THE STATE OF ALASKA AND LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THOSE 
BUILDING CODES TAILORED TO CORDOVA; AMEND CMC 1.28.085 TO UPDATE THE 

FINE SCHEDULE TO REFLECT CHANGES IN TITLE 16; AMEND CMC 1.04.025, 18.08.010, 
18.17.100, 18.18.010, 18.26.040, 18.32.055, 18.33.010, 18.33.030, 18.33.050, 18.33.060, 18.33.080, 
18.33.100; 18.33.110, 18.33.130, 18.34.070, 18.34.080, 18.34.100, 18.38.050-18.38.100, 18.39.100, 

18.39.130, 18.44.010-18.44.030, 18.46.030 TO REFLECT REVISIONS TO TITLE 16; REPEALING 
AND REENACTING CMC CHAPTER 18.42 “SITE PLAN REVIEW” TO STREAMLINE THE 
SITE PLAN REVIEW PROCESS AND PROVIDE A HEARING AND REVIEW PROCESS FOR 

SUSPENDED OR REVOKED SITE PLAN APPROVAL; REPEALING 18.33.070 “LOT 
COVERAGE,” 18.76.070 “BUILDING PERMIT”, AND 18.80.020 “BUILDING PERMIT-SCOPE 

AND VALIDITY.” 
 

 WHEREAS, the 1997 codes currently referenced in Title 16 were repealed September 15, 2001 by 
the State of Alaska for all lands within the State and replaced by the International Codes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Title 16 has not been updated since the repeal by the State in 1997, and as such refers 
to code that is now more than 20 years out of date; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the International Codes are a consensus type code that gets updated every three years; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, by changing the code to the state adopted codes, the City ensures that its own laws are 
automatically updated when the state legislature makes changes and adopts the newest International codes 
through the public legislative process; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the adoption of local amendments permits the City to tailor the International Code to 
the unique environment in Cordova; and 
 
 WHEREAS, revisions to Title 16 also required changes to Title 18 to ensure consistent site plan 
review procedures and land use and construction regulations; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it serves the City’s best interest to update the definitions and requirements in both 
Title 16 and Title 18 while implementing the adoption of the building codes, 

   
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Cordova, that: 
 

Section 1.  Cordova Municipal Code 1.04.025, “Business days”, is enacted to read as follows:  
 
1.04.025- Business days 
 
"Business days" means days during which the City Clerk's office is open and excludes City holidays 
and weekends. “Working days” has the same meaning as business days. 
 
Section 2. Cordova Municipal Code 1.28.070, “License revocation procedures”, is hereby repealed. 
 

5



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 2 of 36 

 

Section 3. Cordova Municipal Code 1.28.085(C), “Minor offense fine schedule”, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
C.  The following violations of this code are amenable to disposition without court appearance upon 
payment of a fine in the amount listed below: 

… 
 
16.15.020 A. Engaging in business in the city as a contractor without having first complied 
with the appropriate provisions of Alaska Statutes as well as City licensing requirements.  
$300.00 
16.15.025 Failure to obey or comply with the adopted building codes. $300.00 
16.15.025 Failure to obtain permit from building official. $300.00  
16.15.025 E Changing plans and specification after they have been approved by the building 
official. $300.00 
16.15.055 Violation of a stop-work order. $300.00 
16.15.055 A. Failure to perform required conditions of stop work order $300.00 

 
Section 4.  Title 16 of the Cordova Municipal Code, “Building Codes”, is repealed and reenacted as Title 
16, “Buildings and Construction”, to read as follows:  
 
Title 16 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 
 
Chapter 16.10 Building Code Administration 
Chapter 16.20 Cordova Building Code Local Amendments  
Chapter 16.30 Building Permits 
Chapter 16.75 Housing and Urban Development 
Chapter 16.80 Mobile Home Parks 
Chapter 16.90 Trailers and Trailer Camps 
 
Chapter 16.10 - BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION 
   

16.10.010-Definitions. 
16.10.020-Adoption of Cordova Building Codes. 
16.10.030-Copies on file. 
16.10.040-Building Official-Authority. 

 
16.10.010-Definitions. 
 
For purposes of this chapter, the following terms shall be defined as follows: 
 
“Accessory uses and structures” means uses and structures necessary or desirable adjuncts to permitted 
principal uses and structures, where such necessary uses and structures are under the management or control 
of the owner responsible for the permitted principal use or structure. 
 
"Automobile trailer" means any vehicle used for sleeping or living quarters and propelled either by its own 
power or by other power-driven vehicles to which it may be attached. This includes travel trailers, 
recreational vehicles, camper units on pickups. 
 

6



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 3 of 36 

 

"Automobile trailer camp" means any lot or parcel of ground arranged for the parking of automobile trailers, 
referred to in this chapter as "camp." Automobile trailer camps are primarily for recreational vehicles whose 
stay will be short term or seasonal. 
 
"Building code" means the building code and/or other building regulations applicable to the city. 
 
"Building, existing" means a building erected prior to the adoption of the ordinance codified in this chapter 
or one for which a legal building permit has been issued. 
 
“Contractor” means a person or entity that enters into a contract or agreement to construct a building or to 
provide or install specialized portions of the construction.  
 
"Person" means any natural person, sole proprietorship, organization, partnership, corporation or other form 
of business entity. 
 
“Structurally modify” means to change the structural elements of an existing building, including but not 
limited to changes to the footprint or height of a structure.  
 
“Structurally improve” means to construct improvements on an existing building or structure that change 
the structural elements of that building or structure.  
 
16.10.020 - Adoption of Cordova Building Codes. 
 
A. Except as otherwise provided in this title, the City, as authorized by Section 2-15 of its Home Rule 
Charter, adopts by reference the following codes for the regulation of buildings and structures which are 
constructed, improved or modified within the City as defined in this title: 
 

1. International Mechanical Code, as adopted by 13 AAC 50.023; 
 
2. International Building Code, as adopted by 13 AAC 50.020; 
 
3. Uniform Plumbing Code, as adopted by 08 AAC 63.010;  
 
4. National Electrical Code, as adopted by 08 AAC 70.025; 
 
5. International Fire Code, as adopted by 13 AAC 50.025;  
 
6. International Fuel and Gas Code, as adopted by 13 AAC 50.024; 
 
7. The current International Residential Code adopted by the Alaska Housing Finance 

Corporation Alaska including their specific amendments or current adopted Alaska Finance House 
Corporation code for residential structures containing three or fewer dwellings and townhouses not more 
than three stories above grade plane and their accessory structures. 
 
 8.  1997 Uniform Code for Abatement of Dangerous Buildings. 
 
B. The codes adopted by this section are amended by the local amendments set forth in Chapter 16.20 
of this Code.   
 
C. The codes adopted by reference in this Section may be referred to as the “Cordova Building Codes.” 
 

7



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 4 of 36 

 

D. Where the codes adopted in this section conflict with the Cordova Municipal Code or Charter, the 
Code and Charter provisions shall preempt application of such codes. 
 
16.10.020-Copies on file. 
 
 An electronic copy of the codes referenced in this Section shall be retained by the City and available 
for review at City Hall.  
 
16.10.030 - Building Official-Authority. 
 
  The Building Official shall administer and enforce this Title. The Planning Director shall act as the 
Building Official unless the City Manager otherwise designates. 
 
Chapter 16.20 – CORDOVA BUILDING CODE LOCAL AMENDMENTS  
 
Sections 

16.20.010 Local amendments adopted. 
 16.20.020 Local amendments to International Building Code. 
 16.20.030 Local amendments to International Residential Code.  
 
16.20.010 Local amendments adopted. 

 
 The local amendments in this chapter amend the Cordova Building Codes adopted in Chapter 16.10 
of this Code.   
 
16.20.020 Local amendments to International Building Code. 
 
A. The International Building Code, 2012 Edition shall be amended as follows when applicable to 
construction, modification or improvement of a building or structure within the City:  
 

1. Section 1609.3 of the International Building Code, 2012 edition, Basic wind speed, is 
amended by adding the following requirement: 

 
The basic wind speed in MPH, for the determination of the wind loads shall be 110 MPH. 

 
16.20.030 Local amendments to International Residential Code.  
 
A. The International Residential Code, 2018 Edition shall be amended as provided in this section when 
applicable to construction, modification or improvement of a building or structure within the City.  In this 
section, the section number and title provided in each subsection identify the section and title in the 
International Residential Code, 2018 edition.  

 
1. R101.1, Title, is amended to read as follows: 

 
This code shall be known as the 2018 International Residential Code (IRC) with amendments and shall be 
cited as such.  It is referred to herein as 'the code'. 

 
2. R101.2, Scope, is amended to read as follows: 

 

8



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 5 of 36 

 

The 2018 IRC with Amendments shall be the referenced code for residential structures containing three or 
fewer dwellings and townhouses not more than three stories above grade plane in height and their accessory 
structures. 

 
3. Part 2, Administration and Enforcement, is deleted. 

 
4. Table R301.2(1), Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria, is amended to read as follows: 

GROUND SNOW LOAD 100 lbs. per sq. foot 

WIND DESIGN Speed (mph) 110 miles per hour 
Topographic Effects No 

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY D2 

SUBJECT TO DAMAGE FROM 
Weathering Severe 
Frost Line Depth 24” 
Termite No 

WINTER DESIGN TEMP 1° F 
ICE BARRIER UNDERLAYMENT REQUIRED Yes 
FLOOD HAZARDS 2015 FIRM and FIS 
AIR FREEZING INDEX 2500 
MEAN ANNUAL TEMP  

 
5. R302.2, Townhouses, is amended in the exception, to add at the beginning of the paragraph: 

 
If the building is not constructed utilizing a fire-suppression system, a common 2 hour fire-resistance-rated 
wall shall be used. If it is constructed with an approved fire-suppression system… 

 
6. R303.3, Bathrooms, is amended to read as follows, with the exception deleted: 

 
Bathrooms, water closet compartments and other similar rooms shall be provided with exhaust ventilation 
in accordance with the requirements of ANSI/ASHRAE 62.2-2010 as amended in R403.5 of the 2012 
Building Energy Efficiency Standard and per manufacturer requirements. 

 
7. R303.4, Mechanical ventilation, is amended to read as follows:  

 
Whole-house and spot ventilation shall be installed per the requirements of ANSI/ASHRAE 62.2-2010 as 
amended in R403.5 of the 2012 Building Energy Efficiency Standard (chapter 11 of the code with Alaska-
specific amendments). 
 

8. R303.5.1. Intake openings, is amended to: 
 
a. Add to the last sentence of the first paragraph: “… and 3 feet horizontally from the contaminant 

source.” 
 
b. Delete the second paragraph and replace it with the following: 
 

All mechanical ventilation shall be in accordance with ANSI/ASHRAE 62.2-2010 as amended in R403.5 
of the 2012 Building Energy Efficiency Standard (chapter 11 of the code with Alaska-specific 
Amendments). 

 
9. R309.5, Fire sprinklers, is amended so the first sentence reads as follows: 

9



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 6 of 36 

 

 
Private garages shall be protected by fire sprinklers where required by the Department of Public Safety 
and/or where the garage wall has been designed based on Table R302.1(2) Footnote a. 

 
10. R310.2.2, Window well drainage, is amended to add the following sentence before the 

exception:  
 

Window wells shall be designed to minimize the potential of the well becoming filled with snow and/or 
standing water which impedes operation of the egress fenestration. 

 
11. R313, Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems, is amended to read as follows: 

 
R313.1 Townhouse automatic fire sprinkler systems. If installed, automatic residential fire sprinkler 
systems for townhouses shall be designed and installed in accordance with Section P2904 or NFPA 13D. 
R313.2 One- and two-family dwellings automatic fire sprinkler systems. If installed, automatic residential 
fire sprinkler systems for one- and two-family dwelling units shall be designed and installed in accordance 
with Section P2904 or NFPA 13D. 

 
12. R317.1, Location required, is amended to delete words “naturally durable wood or” from the 

first sentence. 
 

13. R501.3, Fire protection of floors, is added to read as follows: 
 

Floor assemblies located directly over a crawl space containing a direct-vent, sealed combustion appliance 
with forced draft exhaust; combustion air intake must terminate to the building exterior. Application of this 
exception requires installation of a smoke alarm in the crawl space in accordance with the requirements of 
Section R314 Smoke Alarms, with the exception of R314.3 Location, and a carbon monoxide alarm in 
accordance with the requirements of Section R315 Carbon Monoxide Alarms. 

 
14. R703.3.3, Panel siding, is added to read to read as follows: 

 
Exterior type plywood siding with a grooved pattern shall not be installed horizontally and used as the 
weather resistant siding. 

 
15. R806.1, Ventilation required, is amended to add the following words to the beginning of the 

first sentence “When located outside of the building thermal envelope…” and to delete the 
exception. 

 
16. Table R806.5, Insulation for Condensation Control, is replaced with the following table: 

  
Table R-A806.5 
Insulation for Condensation Control 

Air-Permeable Insulation R-Value  Minimum Air-Impermeable Insulation R-Valuea 

R-15 R-30 
R-19 R-38 
R-21 R-42 
R-25 R-50 
R-30 R-60 
R-38 R-76 

10



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 7 of 36 

 

R-N 2*(R-N)b 
*Installed on the warm-in-winter side *Installed on the cold-in-winter side 

a. Contributes to but doesn’t not superseded the requirements in Section N1102. 
b. Air-Impermeable Insulation R-Value shall equal, at minimum, twice the R-value of 

the Air Permeable insulation. 
 

17. R807.1, Attic access, is amended to add the following to the end of the paragraph: 
 

Attic access shall not be located in a room containing one or more fixtures in the Bathroom Group. Access 
may be located in closets with minimum depth of 23 inches and minimum width of 48 inches. 

 
18. Chapter 11, Energy Efficiency, is deleted and replaced with the following: 

 
Energy Efficiency as required by the most currently adopted Alaska Housing Finance Corporation 
minimum standards. 

 
19. Chapter 12, Mechanical Administration, is deleted. 

 
20. M1301.2, Identification, is deleted and replaced with the following: 

 
Each length of uncut pipe and tubing, and each pipe fitting utilized in a mechanical system shall bear 
the identification of the manufacturer. 

 
21. M1501.1, Outdoor discharge, is amended to delete the exception. 

 
22. M1502.4.2, Duct installation, is amended as follows: 

 
a. In the first sentence, '12' is deleted and replaced with '10' to conform with section R1604.1.3, 
Support. 
 
b. The following words from the third sentence are removed: “…and shall be mechanically 
fastened…” and replaced with the words: “…except where in conflict with the requirements of 
M1502.” 
 
c. The following shall be added after last sentence:  
 

Dryer exhaust ducts shall not be joined with screws or similar fasteners that protrude into the duct. 
 

23. M1504.3, Exhaust openings, is amended to: 
 

a. Add the following requirement to those listed: 
 

…Not less than 3 feet (914 mm) horizontally from the air intake. 
 
b. Add the following exception:  
 

Exhaust and intake openings that are part of a system engineered to prevent entrainment of exhaust air are 
exempt; the exemption applies only to the exhaust and intake that is part of the engineered system only, 
adjacent exhaust and inlet openings are not exempt. 

 
c. Add the following exception:  

11



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 8 of 36 

 

 
A ventilation system’s supply and exhaust vents on the exterior of a building may be separated less than 10 
feet as long as they are separated a minimum of 6 feet horizontally. (to conform with Alaska-specific 
amendments to ANSI/ASHRAE 62.2-2010) 

 
24. M1505, Mechanical ventilation is replaced with the following: 

 
Mechanical Ventilation shall be installed per the requirements of ANSI/ASHRAE 62.2-2010 as amended 
in R403.5 of the 2012 Building Energy Efficiency Standard and per manufacturer requirements. 
 

25. M1602.1, Return air, is amended to add to the end of the second sentence: 
 

only if an exhaust fan is installed with automated control such that a positive pressure is not exerted on the 
structure while the furnace supply air handler is operating. Supply only systems and/or systems designed to 
induce a positive pressure inside the dwelling with reference to the outdoors are not permitted in Alaska. 

 
26. M1602.2, Prohibited sources, is amended to add to the end of 1 “…and at least 3' horizontally 

from the air intake.” 
 

27. Chapter 23, Solar Energy Systems, is deleted and replaced with the following: 
 

Per AS 18.60.705 (a)(1): the 1997 edition of the Uniform Solar Energy Code published by the International 
Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials and adopted at the 67th annual conference, September 
1996, excluding pages 1-7 of Part I, Administration. 

 
28. G2412.9, Identification, is deleted and replaced with the following: 

 
Each uncut length of pipe and tubing and each pipe fitting, utilized in a fuel gas system, shall bear the 
identification of the manufacturer. 

 
CHAPTER 16.30 BUILDING PERMITS 
 
16.30.010-Building permit required. 
16.30.020-Building permit fees. 
16.30.020-Exemptions. 
16.30.040-Appeals. 
16.30.050-Enforcement. 
16.30.060-Stop work order-Authority. 
16.30.070-Violations. 
 
16.30.010 - Building permit required.  
 
A. Buildings and structures may not be constructed, structurally improved, structurally modified, or 
enlarged within the City unless a building permit has been issued by the City Planner approving the 
construction, improvement or modification.    
 
B. Application for a building permit shall be filed with the Building Official on the application form 
created by the Planning Department.  Application forms shall be available at the Planning Department and 
the office of the City Clerk.  If the application meets the requirements of this Chapter, the Building Official 
shall issue a building permit. 
 

12



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 9 of 36 

 

C. No building permit shall be issued by the Building Official unless and until: 
 
 1. The State of Alaska Fire Marshall has provided any approval by the Fire Marshall required 
under state or local law. 
 
 2. A final decision has been issued on any variance, conditional use permit or site plan review 
permit required for the permit site under this Code and a final decision has been issued on any appeal or the 
time period for an appeal has expired. 
 
 3. The City Planner has reviewed the application and found that the construction, modification 
or improvement complies with this Code, including Title 18. Any permit issued in conflict with the zoning 
title shall be null and void. 
 
D. The building permit or copy of it shall be displayed at the work site until completion of the 
construction, modification or improvement approved by the permit.  
 
E.  It shall be the duty and responsibility of every person who performs work for the construction, 
modification or improvement of a building or structure within the City to comply with this Title and all 
federal, state, and local laws.  
 
F. Approval of a building permit shall not be used as permission to or defense against the violation of 
this Code, federal or state law. A building permit may be revoked by the Building Official if necessary to 
comply with local, federal or state law.  Revocation or an appeal of a revocation of a building permit shall 
comply with Section 1.28.070 of this Code.  
 
16.30.020 – Building permit fees. 
 
A. There shall be a fee for the permit application process. Fees shall be established by resolution of the 
City Council and shall be due at the time a permit application is filed with the Building Official.  A building 
permit application will not be accepted by the Planning Department without payment. 
 
B. A late fee shall be charged for building permit applications submitted after the start of work as that 
term is defined in this Chapter. 
 
16.30.030 - Exemptions. 
 
A. Permits shall not be required for one-story detached accessory structures so long as the floor area 
does not exceed 200 square feet and 12 feet in height. 
 
B. An exemption under this section is not an exemption of any other requirements under this code. 
 
16.30.0040 - Appeals. 
 
A.  An applicant may appeal a decision by the Building Official regarding a building permit as 
authorized in this Chapter to the Planning Commission as set forth in Section 18.64.040 of this Code.   
 
B.  An applicant or aggrieved party may appeal a decision by the Planning Commission approving a 
building permit, denying it or approving it with conditions in the manner set forth in Section 18.64.030 of 
this Code. 
 
16.30.050 – Enforcement. 

13



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 10 of 36 

 

 
A.  The Building Official shall have authority to enforce the provisions of this Title.  
 
B.  When the Building Official determines it is necessary to inspect a work site or property to enforce 
the provisions of this Title, or when the Building Official has reasonable cause to believe that a condition 
on the property or work site is a violation of this Title or makes the building or premises unsafe, dangerous, 
or hazardous, the Building Official may enter onto the property and into the building or premises at 
reasonable times to inspect or investigate compliance with this Title.   
 
C.  Before entering a premises or building under this Section, the Building Official shall locate the 
owner or the owner’s agent with authority to grant access onto the premises and request permission to enter 
onto the property or work site and into any building or premises on the property for investigation.   
 
D.  If a person fails to grant a right of entry and inspection under this Section, the City may seek an 
order from the superior court compelling the person to submit to entry and inspection.   
 
16.30.060 - Stop work order-Authority. 
 
A. If the Building Official determines work on a building or structure is being performed in violation 
of this Code or in an unsafe or dangerous manner, the Building Official may order the owner or the owner’s 
agent to immediately stop all work on the property, including any and all construction, modifications, and 
improvements on the property.  An order issued under this Section must be issued in writing and must 
clearly state the conditions under which work will be permitted to resume. 
 
B. Any person who continues any work in or on the building or structure in violation of a stop work 
order issued under this Section shall be in violation of this Chapter and shall be liable for penalties arising 
and resulting from the violation. 
 
16.30.070 – Violations. 
 
A.  Failure to comply with any provision of this Title or any rule, order or regulation issued under this 
Title is a violation.  
 
B. Each day a violation occurs is a separate violation.  The minimum penalty for a single violation of 
this Chapter is specified in Chapter 1.28 of this Code.   
 
Chapter 16.75 - HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
 
16.75.010 - Powers—Adopted. 
16.75.020 - Powers—Limitations. 
16.75.030 - Contract and implementation authority. 
 
16.75.010 - Powers—Adopted. 
 
Housing and urban development powers are adopted and assumed by the city. 
 
16.75.020 - Powers—Limitations. 
 
Housing and urban development powers are limited to development of a senior citizens housing project. 
 
16.75.030 - Contract and implementation authority. 

14



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 11 of 36 

 

 
The cCity mManager of the cCity is authorized to enter into such contracts and agreements necessary to 
implement and carry out the powers assumed in Sections 16.75.010 and 16.75.020 above. 
 
Chapter 16.80 - MOBILE HOME PARKS 
 
16.80.010 - Definitions. 
16.80.020 - License—Required—Term—Transferability. 
16.80.030 - License—Applications fees—Site plan. 
16.80.040 - License—Denial—Fees—Revocation—Reinstatement. 
16.80.045 - License—Renewals. 
16.80.050 - Conditional use permit. 
16.80.055 - Inspections—Changed conditions. 
16.80.060 - Specifications. 
16.80.065 - Temporary placement of travel trailers. 
16.80.070 - Supervision. 
16.80.080 - Accessory structures. 
16.80.090 - Certain violations designated. 
16.80.100 - Fine—Liability for violations. 
 
16.80.010 - Definitions. 
 
For the purposes of this chapter, the following terms shall be defined as follows: 
 
A.  "Lean to" means a portable, demountable, or permanent room enclosure adjoining a mobile home 
and used for human occupancy, storage, or entryway. 
 
B.  "Mobile home" means a detached residential dwelling unit designed for transportation after 
fabrication on streets or highways on its own wheels or on flatbed or other trailers, and arriving at the site 
where it is to be occupied as a dwelling complete and ready for occupancy except for minor and incidental 
unpacking and assembly operations, location on jacks, or other temporary or permanent foundation, 
connection to utilities, and the like. 
 
 1. "Single-wide mobile home" means a transportable single-family dwelling which may be 
towed on its own running gear, and which may be temporarily or permanently affixed to real estate, used 
for nontransient residential purposes and constructed with the same or similar electrical, plumbing, and 
sanitary facilities as immobile housing. 
 
 2. "Double-wide mobile home" means two portable units designed and built to be towed on 
their own separate chassis and permanently combined on-site to form a single immobile dwelling unit. 
 
C. "Mobile home park" means a parcel of land under single ownership which has been planned and 
improved for the placement of two or more mobile homes for nontransient use. 
 
D. "Habitable room" means a room or enclosed floor space arranged for living, eating, food 
preparation, or sleeping purposes that does not include bathrooms, toilet compartments, laundries, pantries, 
artic entries, foyers, hallways, and other accessory floor space. 
 
E. "Rafted roof" means any freestanding roof or shade structure, installed or erected above a mobile 
home or any portion thereof. 

15



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 12 of 36 

 

 
F. "Trailer" means a mobile home. 
 
G. "Building board" means the building board created pursuant to Section 16.10.010. 
 
16.80.020 - License—Required—Term—Transferability. 
 
It is unlawful for any person, persons, firm or corporation to establish, operate, manage or maintain or begin 
the operation of any mobile home park within the city without first having obtained an annual license 
therefor from the city building inspector authorizing the operation of such mobile home park. A mobile 
home park license shall cover the period from January 1st to December 31st. Such annual license shall not 
be transferable. 
 
16.80.030 - License—Applications fees—Site plan. 
 
Each application for a mobile home park license shall be submitted to the city building inspector on a form 
provided by the city and containing such information as is requested on the form, and shall be accompanied 
by (1) a nonrefundable fee of thirty-five dollars or three dollars per space in the mobile home park, 
whichever is greater, and (2) a plan drawn to scale showing the external boundaries of the park, the size and 
locations of all mobile home spaces, buildings and structures, sewer lines and their connections, electric 
lines and their connections, water lines and their connections, power poles and meter locations. All water 
and sewer lines must also have complete engineered drawings. All electrical services supplying mobile 
homes shall be maintained in a serviceable condition and conform to the provisions of the National 
Electrical Code under which they were installed. Any electrical services that are replaced or newly installed 
shall conform to the edition of the National Electrical Code in effect at the time of replacement or 
installation. Each mobile home space shall be given a number on the plan. 
 
16.80.040 - License—Denial—Fees—Revocation—Reinstatement. 
 
A. The city building inspector may deny a license for good cause. Denial of a license may be appealed 
to the building board. 
 
B. The city council may revoke a license issued under this chapter or Chapter 18.60 upon a 
determination of the city building inspector that a violation or violations of this chapter have occurred in 
connection with the licensee's mobile home park and such violations have not been cured within thirty days 
after the licensee receives notice thereof, including the payment of fines for such violations. Revocation of 
a license shall not be appealable, but a revoked license may be reinstated in accordance with subsection C 
of this section. Upon revocation, in addition to any other remedy or penalty provided by this chapter, the 
city may seek injunctive relief to restrain the operation, management or maintenance of the mobile home 
park in violation of this chapter. Upon application for injunctive relief and a finding that a person, persons, 
firm or corporation is operating, managing, or maintaining a mobile home park in violation of this chapter, 
the superior court shall grant injunctive relief to restrain the violation or violations. 
 
C. The city building inspector may reinstate a license revoked under subsection B upon receiving (1) 
a written request for reinstatement, (2) satisfactory evidence that the violation or violations upon which the 
license revocation was based have been cured, and the licensee and the mobile home park are otherwise in 
full compliance with the provisions of this chapter, and (3) full payment of any outstanding and unpaid 
fines, and payment of a reinstatement fee. A reinstated license shall expire on the license's original 
expiration date. Denial of a request for reinstatement of a revoked license may be appealed to the building 
board. 

16



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 13 of 36 

 

 
16.80.045 - License—Renewals. 
 
The city building inspector may renew a license issued under this chapter, or a renewal thereof, for an 
additional one-year period upon the expiration of such license or renewal period upon (1) receiving a written 
request for renewal from the licensee not less than thirty days prior to the expiration of the license or renewal 
period, accompanied by payment of a nonrefundable renewal fee of thirty-five dollars or three dollars per 
space in the mobile home park, whichever is greater, and (2) determining that the mobile home park is being 
operated, managed and maintained in full compliance with the provisions of this chapter, and that there are 
no outstanding and unpaid fines or fees. A decision not to renew a license or renewal may be appealed to 
the building board. 
 
16.80.050 - Conditional use permit. 
 
Mobile home parks may be permitted in any zoning district as a conditional use. Conditional use permits 
must be obtained as required in Chapter 18.60 of this code. 
 
16.80.055 - Inspections—Changed conditions. 
 
A. Mobile home parks may be inspected by the city building inspector or his designee periodically for 
compliance with this chapter. 
 
B. Changes in the boundaries or design of, or the addition of a mobile home or homes to, a mobile 
home park shall not be performed without the licensee first submitting to and having approved by the city 
building inspector or his designee a revised site plan specifying the changes or additions. The city building 
inspector or his designee shall approve or disapprove any proposed changes or additions within thirty days 
of receiving the revised site plan. A decision not to approve of a change or addition may be appealed to the 
building board. 
 
16.80.060 - Specifications. 
 
A. The management of every mobile home park shall maintain in good repair and appearance all 
sanitary facilities, utilities, and appliances which are owned and operated by the park owners. Supervision 
and equipment sufficient to prevent littering of the premises with rubbish, garbage, or other refuse shall be 
provided and maintained at all times. 
 
B. Each mobile home park shall provide not less than one thousand nine hundred fifty square feet of 
space (sixty-five feet by thirty feet minimum) for each mobile home space. Except as specified in Section 
16.80.060(M), there shall be a five-foot setback from all exterior park boundaries or property lines. Any 
portion of the mobile home (excluding the tongue), lean-to or rafted roof shall not be located closer than 
ten feet side-to-side, ten feet end-to- side, or ten feet end-to-end horizontally from any other trailer, lean-to 
or rafted roof unless the exposed composite walls and roofs of both structures are without openings and 
constructed of materials that will provide a one-hour fire rating or the structures are separated by a one-
hour fire-rated barrier. At no time shall the distance be less than six feet. The distance shall be measured 
wall-to-wall; eaves shall not extend into the setback more than sixteen inches. 
 
C. Mobile home parks shall establish and maintain a fire apparatus access roadway not less than twenty 
feet wide and an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than fifteen feet between rows of mobile homes 
that are not situated end-to-end. Roadways shall be well maintained in summer and winter and shall remain 
free and clear of all obstacles including parked vehicles at all times. Roadways and mobile home spaces 

17



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 14 of 36 

 

shall be well marked in daylight and well lighted at night so that space numbers and addresses can be easily 
read from the road and walking along road and pathways is not hazardous. 
 
D. Mobile home parks shall be well drained and free from insect breeding places. Fires in parks shall 
be made only in stoves or other equipment provided for that purpose, and open, unattended fire shall not be 
permitted. 
 
E. An adequate supply of safe water for drinking and domestic purposes shall be provided. The water 
supply shall be easily obtainable from a pipe distribution system. Individual water distribution pipes shall 
be conveniently located on each mobile home space. Effective with the passage of the ordinance codified 
in this chapter the following shall also apply: 
  
 1. Individual water shutoff valves shall be provided and conveniently located on each mobile 
home space in all new installations; 
 
 2. Private water systems must be DEC approved; and3.The water system must be connected to 
the public water system when the public water system is within one hundred fifty feet of the exterior 
property on any side of the mobile trailer park. 
 
F. All mobile homes shall be connected to a private or public sewer system and all sewage shall be 
disposed of through same. Effective with the passage of the ordinance codified in this chapter the following 
shall also apply: 
 
 1. Where the public sewer system is within one hundred fifty feet of the exterior property line 
on any side of the mobile home park, the park shall be connected to the public sewer system and all sewage 
shall be disposed of through same; and 
 
 2. Private sewer systems must be DEC approved. 
 
G. Wastewater from sinks, showers, toilets, and other plumbing fixtures in the mobile home park shall 
not be deposited on the surface of the ground and all fixtures shall be connected to the private or public 
sewer system in an approved manner. 
 
H. The park manager shall provide or require that park residents provide garbage containers with close-
fitting covers in convenient locations and ample numbers. The containers shall not be permitted to become 
foul smelling, unsightly, or breeding places for flies. All garbage, trash, and rubbish shall be disposed of in 
such manner as is provided by ordinances of the city. 
 
I. Each mobile home space shall have an individual electrical hookup installed by a registered 
electrician and inspected by the city building inspector before a mobile home is connected to the hookup. 
No mobile home shall be connected to the electric system of the mobile home park if the building inspector 
finds the hookup to be hazardous. In the event a mobile home is removed and replaced with another, the 
replacement mobile home shall not be connected to an existing hookup until it is reinspected by the city 
building inspector. 
 
J. Mobile home parks shall have adequate fire protection. No mobile home shall be more than five 
hundred feet from the nearest fire hydrant and hydrant spacing shall not exceed eight hundred feet between 
hydrants. In closely built areas these requirements may be tightened if that is determined to be necessary 
by the fire chief to ensure the public safety. 
 

18



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 15 of 36 

 

K. Mobile home parks shall provide adequate snow dumps or otherwise provide for the adequate 
disposal of snow. 
 
L. Each mobile home, except any located in temporary spaces as provided in Section 16.80.065, placed 
in a mobile home subsequent to the passage of the ordinance codified in this chapter must be certified as a 
manufactured mobile home. 
 
M. All mobile homes placed in a mobile home park subsequent to the passage of the ordinance codified 
in this chapter shall be required to maintain a minimum setback of twenty feet from any part of the mobile 
home and/or lean-to from any lake, stream waters or wetlands. Any additional requirements of the Cordova 
coastal management plan shall also apply. 
 
N. A site development permit must be issued by the city prior to the placement or replacement of any 
mobile home. 
 
16.80.065 - Temporary placement of travel trailers. 
 
Travel trailers that are not classified as manufactured mobile homes as defined in Section 16.80.010 (B) 
may be temporarily placed in a mobile home park between April 1st and October 31st. All specifications 
as given in Section 16.80.060 shall apply. 
 
16.80.070 - Supervision. 
 
Each mobile home park, while occupied, shall be under the supervision and control of a responsible 
attendant or caretaker who shall be responsible, together with the licensee, for full compliance with the 
provisions of this chapter. 
 
16.80.080 - Accessory structures. 
 
Lean-tos and rafted roofs must be designed to meet the minimum wind and snow loads. Lean-tos, rafted 
roofs and outbuildings may be constructed only after obtaining a building permit from the city building 
inspector, and then only in accordance with the city's construction rules relating to temporary structures. 
 
A. Lean-tos. Every habitable room in a lean-to shall have access to at least one exterior opening suitable 
for exiting directly to the outside without passing through the trailer. Where a lean-to encloses two doors 
of a trailer or an emergency exit window, an additional exterior door shall be installed. This exterior door 
shall not be less than twenty-eight inches in width and six feet two inches in height. All lean-tos shall be of 
finished construction and if sealed, sheetrock or other fire resistant material shall be used. 
 
B. Rafted Roofs. A rafted roof may exceed the height and extend over the mobile home to which it is 
attached provided that the roof free-spans the mobile home over which it is constructed. 
 
C. Outbuildings. Any building not directly attached to the mobile home is considered an "outbuilding." 
There shall be a setback of five feet from the exterior property line for all outbuildings. Outbuildings 
constructed entirely of materials that do not support combustion shall not be placed closer than five feet to 
a mobile home and/or lean-to. Outbuildings constructed of combustible materials shall not be placed closer 
than ten feet to a mobile home and/or lean-to. 
 
16.80.090 - Certain violations designated. 

19



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 16 of 36 

 

A. Failure to operate, manage or maintain a mobile home park in accordance with this chapter or in 
compliance with provisions, terms, conditions, and specifications of an application or site plan approved, 
or a license issued, under this chapter shall be a violation of this chapter. 
 
16.80.100 - Fine—Liability for violations. 
 
A. There shall be a fine of one hundred dollars per day for each violation of this chapter after notice 
thereof. 
 
B. The mobile home park owner shall be liable, individually and jointly with any other responsible 
person or entity, for any violation of this chapter associated with the owner's mobile home park, whether 
such violation occurs on or off the mobile home park premises, and for payment of the fines for such 
violation or violations. For the purposes of this chapter, "other responsible person or entity" includes, 
without limitation, a park manager, caretaker, attendant, supervisor, mobile home owner, mobile home 
renter, or park resident, whether residing within or outside the authorized park boundaries, who the city 
building inspector determines was responsible for or substantially contributed to a violation of this chapter. 
 
Chapter 16.90 - TRAILERS AND TRAILER CAMPS 
 
16.90.010 - Definitions. 
16.90.020 - License—Required—Term—Transferability. 
16.90.030 - License—Applications. 
16.90.040 - License—Fees—Revocation. 
16.90.050 - Conditional use permit. 
16.90.060 - Specifications. 
16.90.070 - Supervision. 
16.90.080 - Violations designated. 
 
16.90.010 - Definitions. 
 
For the purposes of this chapter, the following terms shall be defined as follows: 
 
A. "Automobile trailer" means any vehicle used for sleeping or living quarters and propelled either by 
its own power or by other power-driven vehicles to which it may be attached. This includes travel trailers, 
recreational vehicles, camper units on pickups, and the like. 
 
B. "Automobile trailer camp" means any lot or parcel of ground arranged for the parking of automobile 
trailers, referred to in this chapter as "camp." Automobile trailer camps are primarily for recreational 
vehicles whose stay will be short term or seasonal. 
 
16.90.020 - License—Required—Term—Transferability. 
 
It is unlawful for any person, persons, firm or corporation to establish, operate, manage, or maintain or 
begin the operation of any automobile trailer camp within the city without first having obtained a license 
therefor from the city building inspector authorizing the operation of such automobile trailer camp. An 
automobile trailer camp license shall cover the period from January 1st to December 31st. Such automobile 
trailer camp license shall not be transferable. 
 
16.90.030 - License—Applications. 
 

20



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 17 of 36 

 

Each application for a trailer camp license shall be accompanied by a plan drawn to scale showing the 
external boundaries of the camp, the size and location of all trailer spaces, buildings and structures, sewer 
lines and their connections, electric lines and their connections, water lines and their connections, power 
poles and meter locations. The clearance of all electric connections must conform to city codes and the 
latest edition of the National Electrical Code. Each trailer space shall be given a number on the plan. 
 
16.90.040 - License—Fees—Revocation. 
 
The fee to be paid for a license for an automobile trailer camp shall be a minimum fee of thirty-five dollars 
per year or three dollars per space per year, whichever is greater. Any failure on the part of management to 
maintain the automobile trailer camp in an orderly, safe, and sanitary condition shall be grounds for 
revocation of the license by the city council. 
 
16.90.050 - Conditional use permit. 
 
Automobile trailer camps may be permitted in any zoning district as a conditional use. Conditional use 
permits must be obtained as required in Chapter 18.60 of this code. 
 
16.90.060 - Specifications. 
 
A. The management of every automobile trailer camp shall maintain in good repair and appearance all 
sanitary facilities and appliances. Supervision and equipment sufficient to prevent littering of the premises 
with rubbish, garbage, or other refuse shall be provided and maintained at all times. 
 
B. No trailer shall be placed closer than ten feet to the next adjoining trailer on the side and ten feet on 
the end. There shall be a fifteen-foot setback from all exterior camp boundaries or property lines. This 
setback cannot be used as a roadway. A minimum of ten percent of the total camp area shall be provided as 
an open green area for recreation, picnics and other activities. The exterior boundary setback may be used 
to fulfill this requirement. Camps shall have roadways at least twenty feet wide between rows of shall have 
roadways at least twenty feet wide between rows of trailers. Roadways shall be well maintained. Roadways 
and trailer spaces shall be well marked in day-light and well lighted at night. 
 
C. Automobile trailer camp areas shall be well drained and free from insect breeding places. Fires in 
such areas shall be made only in stoves, fireplaces, or pits provided for that purposes, and open, unattended 
fire shall not be permitted. 
 
D. An adequate supply of safe water for drinking and domestic purposes shall be provided. The water 
supply shall be easily obtainable from a pipe distribution system. Water faucets shall not be more than 
seventy-five feet from any trailer space. 
 
E. The premises occupied by the trailer camp shall be connected with the public sewer in an approved 
manner and all sewage shall be discharged through the same. In limited cases, other disposal systems may 
be acceptable if they are approved by the city and the Department of Environmental Conservation. 
 
F. Wastewater from sinks, showers, toilets, and other plumbing fixtures in the automobile trailer shall 
be deposited in a plumbing fixture connected to the public sewer system and not on the surface of the 
ground. 
 
G. The trailer camp manager shall provide garbage containers with close-fitting covers in convenient 
locations and in ample numbers. The containers shall not be permitted to become foul smelling, unsightly, 

21



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 18 of 36 

 

or breeding places for flies. All garbage, rubbish, and trash shall be disposed of in such manner as is 
provided by ordinances of the city. 
 
H. No trailer shall be connected to the electric system of the city if the building inspector finds the 
wiring of any such trailer to be hazardous. 
 
16.90.070 - Supervision. 
 
Each trailer camp, while occupied, shall be under the supervision and control of a responsible attendant or 
caretaker who shall be responsible, together with the licensee, for full compliance with the provisions of 
this chapter. 
 
16.90.080 - Violations designated. 
 
A. There shall be a fine of one hundred dollars for each violation of this chapter. 
 
B. It is unlawful for any person to own or maintain any automobile trailer when it is being used as a 
dwelling place at any place other than the licensed trailer camp. Automobile trailers operated by tourists or 
visitors who are visiting Cordova or Cordova residents, are staying less than thirty days, and are parked on 
private land or another lawful location, are exempt. Exceptions to this section may be made on a case by 
case basis for people using auto-mobile trailers as a primary residence for a period longer than thirty days 
provided that: 
 
 1. A permit to camp outside of a trailer camp has been obtained from the city. The fee for such 
permit shall be thirty-five dollars per month and permits shall be is-sued for the duration of the stay. Permits 
for camping outside of automobile trailer camps shall be issued for the period April 1st through October 
31st; 
 
 2. The trailer is parked on private land with the permission of the landowner. Landowners may 
not charge a fee for this service nor operate a trailer camp without obtaining a license to do so from the city. 
Automobile trailers shall be limited to one per lot in residential areas; 
 
 3. The camp situation is not an unreasonable in-convenience or nuisance to neighboring 
landowners; 
 
 4. Adequate arrangements have been made for garbage and sewage disposal; 
 
 5. The trailer has access to an adequate supply of safe drinking water; 
 
 6. The trailer is not parked on the right-of-way of any city street or alley, on public lands such 
as parks unless otherwise authorized, on unoccupied city-owned commercial or industrial lands, or any 
other areas which are inappropriate for this use as determined by the planning commission; 
 
 7. Adequate off-street parking must be provided for the automobile trailer. The space provided 
shall be in addition to the spaces required in Chapter 18.48 of this code. The parking of trailers shall not 
result in the displacement of other vehicles such that they must then park in the street. 
 
C. The administration of this section shall be determined by the city manager. These permitting 
provisions may be revoked by ordinance if the council finds that to be in the best interest of the city. 
 

22



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 19 of 36 

 

D. It is unlawful for any person to remove the wheels or other transportation device from any 
automobile trailer or otherwise affix said trailer permanently to the ground so as to prevent ready removal, 
unless a permit to do so is obtained as required for the construction of a new building. Any alterations of 
an automobile trailer which converts the same into a permanent dwelling shall be subject to the requirements 
of the building code and zoning ordinances of the city. 
 
E. It is unlawful to occupy for sleeping or other residence purposes any automobile trailer which has 
been rendered immobile by the removal of the wheels or placing the same on foundations or the ground 
unless such trailer is connected to water, electric, and sewer facilities above mentioned, and the construction 
and location of the same complies with the ordinances applicable to single-family dwellings. 
 
F. The building board may grand an exception from subsections A, B and C of this section for up to 
twelve months to allow a lot owner to place temporary living quarters on a lot provided that: 
  
 1. A building permit has been issued; 
 
 2. Water, sewer, and electric utilities have been installed; 
 
 3. A foundation has been constructed and approved; 
 
 4. Only the lot owner may be allowed to occupy the temporary residence, and that such 
temporary residence may not be inhabited by other than the lot owner's immediate family; 
 
 5. The temporary living quarters must be removed from the lot or vacated prior to the issuance 
of a certificate of occupancy for the residence or at the end of the twelve-month period. 

… 
 

Section 5. Cordova Municipal Code 18.08.010, “Definitions”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.08.010 - Definitions. 
 
For the purpose of this Ttitle, the words and terms set forth in this Cchapter shall have the following 
meanings: 
 
"Alley" means a public way designed and intended to provide only a secondary means of access to any 
property abutting that public waythereon. 
 
"Alteration" means any change, addition or modification in the construction, location or use classification. 
 
"Amateur radio antenna" means a structure or device designed to collect or radiate electromagnetic waves 
for noncommercial amateur radio equipment including without limitation ham, citizen band radio, VHF and 
single side-band antennas. 
 
"Antenna" means a structure or device designed to collect or radiate electromagnetic waves, including, 
without limitation, directional antennas such as panels, microwave dishes, satellite dishes; and omni-
directional antennas such as whip antennas. 
 
"Automobile wrecking" means the dismantling of used motor vehicles or trailers or the storage or sale of 
parts from dismantled or partially dismantled, obsolete or wrecked vehicles. 
 

23



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 20 of 36 

 

"Boardinghouse" means a building other than a hotel with not more than five sleeping rooms where lodging, 
with or without meals, is provided for compensation for three or more persons, but not exceeding 15fifteen 
persons, on other than day-to-day basis and which is not open to transient guests. 
 
"Building" means any structure built for the support, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, chattels or 
property of any kind. 
 
"Building, accessory" or “accessory building” means a detached building, the use of which is appropriate, 
subordinate and customarily incidental to that of the main building or to the main use of the land and which 
is located on the same lot as the main building or use. An accessory building shall be considered to be a 
part of the main building when joined to the main building by a common wall not less than four feet long 
or when any accessory building and the main building are connected by a breezeway which shall not be 
less than eight feet in width. 
 
"Building, agricultural" or “agricultural building” means a building located in the unclassified district 
and used to shelter farm implements, hay, grain, poultry, livestock or other farm produce, in which there is 
no human habitation and which is not used by the public. 
 
"Building area" means the total of areas taken on a horizontal plane at the main grade level of the principal 
building and all accessory buildings, exclusive of steps. 
 
"Building code" means the building code and/or other building regulations applicable to the city Cordova 
Building Codes as adopted by reference in Title 16 of this Code. 
 
"Building, existing" or “existing building” means a building erected prior to the adoption of the ordinance 
codified in this chapter or one for which a legal building permit has been issued. 
 
"Building height" means the vertical distance from the grade to the highest point of the roof. 
 
"Building Oofficial" means the officer charged with the administration and enforcement of this title. The 
City Plannerpublic works director shall act as the Bbuilding Oofficial unless otherwise designated by 
the City Manager.until the city council otherwise designates. 
 
"Building, principal," “principal building” or "main building" means a building in which is conducted the 
principal or main use of the lot on which said building is situated. 
 
"Children's nursery" means any home or institution used and maintained to provide day care for more than 
four children not more than seven years of age. 
 
"Collocation" means the use of a telecommunication tower by more than one provider of telecommunication 
service. 
 
"Coverage" means that percentage of the total lot area covered by the building area. 
 
"Cultural center" means a building used for the promotion of culture, arts, science, education, and/or 
research. 
 
"Dwelling" means a building or any portion thereof designed or used exclusively for residential occupancy 
including one-family, two-family and multiple-family dwellings, but not including any other building 
wherein human beings may be housed. 
 
"Dwelling, multiple-family" means any building containing three or more dwelling units. 
 
"Dwelling, one-family" means any detached building containing only one dwelling unit. 

24



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 21 of 36 

 

 
"Dwelling, two-family" means any building containing only two dwelling units. 
 
"Dwelling unit" means one or more rooms and a single kitchen in a dwelling designed as a unit for 
occupancy by not more than one family for living or sleeping purposes, and in which not more than two 
persons are lodged for hire. 
 
"Family" means any number of individuals related by blood or marriage or an unrelated group of not more 
than five persons living together as a single housekeeping unit in a dwelling unit. 
 
"Fence height" means the vertical distance between the ground, either natural or filled, directly under the 
fence and the highest point of the fence. 
 
"Floor area" means the total of each floor of a building within the surrounding outer walls but excluding 
vent shafts and courts. 
 
"Frontage" means all the property fronting on one side a street between intersecting streets or between a 
street and right-of-way, end of street or city boundary. 
 
"Garage, private" means an accessory building or any portion of a main building used in connection with 
residential purposes for the storage of passenger motor vehicles. 
 
"Garage, public" or “public garage” means any garage, other than a private garage, available to the public, 
operated for gain, and which is used for storage, repair, rental, greasing, washing, servicing, or adjusting or 
equipping of automobiles or other vehicles. 
 
"Garage, storage" or “storage garage” means any building or portion thereof a building, other than a 
private garage, used for the storage of motor vehicles and the incidental service of vehicles stored therein. 
 
"Grade" or "ground level" means the average level of the finished ground at the center of all walls to a 
building. In case walls are parallel to and within five feet of a public sidewalk, the ground level shall be 
measured at the sidewalk. 
 
"Guest room" means any room in a hotel, dormitory, boarding house or lodging house used and maintained 
to provide sleeping accommodations for not more than two persons. Each one hundred square feet or 
fraction thereof of floor area used for sleeping purposes shall be considered to be a separate guest room. 
 
"Home occupation" means an accessory use of a service character customarily conducted within a dwelling 
by the residents thereof, which is clearly secondary to the use of the dwelling for living purposes and does 
not change the character thereof and does not involve more than one paid assistant. 
 
"Hotel" means any building or group of buildings in which there are rooms used, designed or intended to 
be used for the purpose of offering to the general public food or lodging, or both, on a day-to-day basis. 
 
"Junkyard" means any space one hundred square feet or more of any lot or parcel of land used for the 
storage, keeping or abandonment of junk or waste material including scrap metals or other scrap materials, 
or for the dismantling, demolition or abandonment of automobiles, other vehicles, machinery or any parts 
thereof. 
 
"Loading space" means an off-street space or berth on the same lot within a building or structure to be used 
for the temporary parking of commercial vehicles while loading or unloading merchandise or materials. 
 

25



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 22 of 36 

 

"Lot" means a parcel of land occupied or to be occupied by a use, building or unit group of buildings, and 
accessory buildings and uses, together with such yards, open spaces, lot widths and lot area as are required 
by this title and having frontage on a public street. 
 
"Lot, corner" or “corner lot” means a lot situated at the junction of, and bordering on, two intersecting 
streets. 
 
"Lot depth" means the horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines measured in the mean 
direction of the side lot lines. 
 
"Lot line, corner lot front" or “corner lot front lot line” means the shortest street line of a corner lot. 
 
"Lot line, interior lot front"  or “interior lot front lot line” means a line separating the lot from the street. 
 
"Lot line, rear" or “rear lot line” means the line that is opposite and most distant from the front lot line, 
and in the case of irregular, triangular or gore-shaped lot, a line not less than ten feet in length, within a lot, 
parallel to and at the maximum distance from the front lot line. 
 
"Lot line, side" or “side lot line” means any lot boundary line not a front lot line or a rear lot line. 
 
"Lot width" means the mean horizontal distance separating the side lines of a lot and at right angles to its 
depth. 
 
"Mobile home, double-wide" or “double-wide mobile home” means two portable units designed and built 
to be towed on their own separate chassis and permanently combined on-site to form a single immobile 
dwelling unit. 
 
"Mobile home, single-wide" or “single-wide mobile home” means a transportable single-family dwelling 
which may be towed on its own running gear, and which may be temporarily or permanently affixed to real 
estate, used for non-transient residential purposes and constructed with the same or similar electrical, 
plumbing and sanitary facilities as immobile housing. 
 
"Mobile home park" means a parcel of land under single ownership which has been planned and improved 
for the placement of two or more mobile homes for non-transient use. 
 
"Mobile home subdivision" means a parcel of land planned and improved for the placement of two or more 
mobile homes on individually owned lots. 
 
"Modular home" means a factory-built dwelling unit designed to be transported from factory to the site and 
set on a permanent foundation. The complete unit meets all the requirements of the Uniform Building Code 
as adopted by the city and is eligible for conventional bank financing. 
 
"Monopole" means a support structure constructed of a single, self-supporting hollow metal tube securely 
anchored to a foundation. 
 
"Person" means any natural person, sole proprietorship, organization, partnership, corporation or 
other entity. a natural person, his heirs, executors, administrators or assigns, and also including firm, 
partnership or corporation, it's or their successors or assigns, or the agent of any of the aforesaid.  
 
"Private parking space" means any automobile parking space not less than ten feet wide and 20twenty feet 
long. 
 

26



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 23 of 36 

 

"Public parking space" means an area of not less than two hundred fifty square feet inclusive of drives or 
aisles giving access thereof, accessible from streets and alleys or from private driveways leading to streets 
and alleys and being designed and arranged so as to be usable, practicable and safe for the storage of 
passenger motor vehicles operated by individual drivers. 
 
"Service station" means any building, structure, premises or other space used primarily for the retail sale 
and dispensing of motor fuels, tires, batteries and other small accessories; the installation and servicing of 
such lubricants, tires, batteries and other small accessories, and such other services which do not 
customarily or usually require the services of a qualified automotive mechanic. When the retail sale and 
dispensing of motor fuels, lubricants and accessories is incidental to the conduct of a public garage, the 
premises shall be classified as a public garage. 
 
"Services, business" or “business services” means services that support a business or commercial 
enterprise, including but not limited to accounting, consulting, legal, and management services. 
 
"Services, retail" or “retail services” means the selling of goods, wares, or merchandise directly to the 
consumer or persons without a resale license. 
 
"Sign" means any words, letters, parts of letters, figures, numerals, phrases, sentences, emblems, devices, 
trade names or trademarks by which anything is made known, such as are used to designate an individual, 
a firm, an association, a corporation, a profession, a business or a commodity or product, which are visible 
from any public street or highway and used to attract attention. 
 
"State highway" means a right-of-way classified by the state as a primary, secondary A or secondary B 
highway. 
 
"Street" means a public right-of-way used as a thoroughfare and which is designed and intended to provide 
the primary means of access to property abutting thereon. 
 
"Street line" means the line of demarcation between a street and the lot or land abutting thereon. 
 
"Structure" means that which is built or constructed, an edifice or building of any kind, or any piece of work 
artificially built up or composed of parts joined together in some definite manner. 
 
"Telecommunication" means the transmission and reception of messages, impressions, pictures, and signals 
by means of electricity, electromagnetic waves, and any other kind of energy, force variations, or impulses 
whether conveyed by cable, wire, radiated through space, or transmitted through other media within a 
specified area or between designated points. 
 
"Telecommunication antenna" means an antenna used in telecommunication, and whose operation is subject 
to licensing by the Federal Communications Commission. 
 
"Telecommunication tower" means a structure intended to support equipment used to transmit and/or 
receive telecommunication signals including monopoles, guyed and lattice steel structures. This definition 
does not include a tower that supports only one or more amateur radio antennas. 
 
"Tower height" means the vertical distance from the grade to the top of the telecommunication tower, 
including any antenna or other equipment thereon. 
 

27



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 24 of 36 

 

"Trailer" means any vehicle used or intended to be used as living or sleeping quarters for humans and which 
may be driven, towed or propelled from one location to another without change in structure or design, 
whether or not the same is supported by wheels and including trailers, trailer coaches and house cars. 
 
"Trailer camp," "trailer park" or "trailer lot" means any area or premises where space for two or more trailers 
is rented, held out for rent or for which free occupancy or camping for such number is permitted to trailers 
or users for the purpose of securing their trade, herein referred to as a trailer camp but not including 
automobile or trailer sales lots on which unoccupied house trailers are parked for inspection and sales. 
 
"Use" means the purpose for which land or building is arranged, designed or intended, or for which either 
land or building is or may be occupied or maintained. 
 
"Use, accessory" or “accessory use” means a use customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal 
use of the land, building or structures and located on the same lot or parcel of land. 
 
"Watchman or caretaker dwelling" means an accessory dwelling located within a commercial or industrial 
building for the purpose of housing a watchman or caretaker employed on the premises or the owner 
operator in conjunction with a permitted principal use. The maximum size of a watchman's dwelling shall 
be up to 20%twenty percent of the total square footage of the building not to exceed seven hundred fifty 
square750 square feet. Watchman's quarters will not be considered a residential use. 
 
"Yard" means an open unoccupied space, other than a court, unobstructed from the ground to the sky, except 
where specifically provided by this title, on the same lot on which a building is situated. 
 
"Yard, front" or “front yard” means a yard extending across the full width of a lot measured between the 
front lot line of the lot or a future street width line and the nearest exterior wall of the building, front of a 
bay window or the front of a covered porch or other similar projection, whichever is the nearest to the front 
lot line. 
 
"Yard, rear" or “rear yard” means a yard extending across the full width of the lot between the most rear 
main building and the rear lot line. The depth of the required rear yard shall be measured horizontally from 
the nearest part of a main building toward the nearest point of the rear lot lines. 
 
"Yard, side" or “side yard” means a yard on each side of a main building and extending from the front 
yard, or front lot line where no front yard is required, to the rear yard. The width of the required side yard 
shall be measured horizontally from the nearest point of a side lot line to the nearest part of the main 
building. 
 
Section 6. Cordova Municipal Code 18.17.100, “Special provisions”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.17.100 - Special provisions. 
 
The following special provisions apply to all land uses within the parks and open space district: 
 
A. Access from a public street to properties in this district shall be so located as to minimize traffic 
congestion; 
 
B. Any use is prohibited which causes or may reasonably be expected to cause excessive noise, 
vibration, odor, smoke, dust, or other particulate matter, humidity, heat or glare at or beyond any lot line of 
the lot on which it is located. "Excessive" is defined for these purposes as a degree exceeding that generated 

28



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 25 of 36 

 

by uses permitted in the district in their customary manner of operation, or to a degree injurious to the public 
health, safety, welfare, or convenience; 
 
C. The storage of commercial quantities of flammable materials, hazardous materials, or toxic 
materials on-site shall be prohibited. Smaller quantities of these materials needed for maintenance and 
operation of permitted facilities may be stored only in strict compliance with the Uniform Fire Code, and 
other applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations; 
 
D. Materials shall be stored and grounds shall be maintained in a manner such as will assure access by 
fire equipment; and 
 
E. Materials shall be stored and grounds shall be maintained in a manner which will not; attract or aid 
the propagation of insects or rodents, attract bears or other scavengers, or otherwise create a health hazard. 
 
Section 7. Cordova Municipal Code 18.18.010, “Permitted uses”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.18.010 – Permitted uses. 
 
A. Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, any legal use of property is permitted in the The 
Uunrestricted Ddistrict is intended to allow any legal use of property.  
 
B. Before construction or use is initiated in the UR District, Construction will require compliance 
with all permitting requirements in Title 16 of this Code must be met and an administrative site plan 
must be filed, reviewed, and approved under Section 18.42.010 of this Code. provisions of Chapter 
16.30, Site Development Permit Procedures. 
 
Section 8. Cordova Municipal Code 18.26.040, “Site plan review”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.26.040 – Commission sSite plan review- Required. 
 
A mobile home park site plan shall be submitted, and no building permit shall be issued until the city council 
has approved the site plan is approved by the Planning Commission under Section 18.42.020.after a 
recommendation from the planning commission. 
 
Section 9. Cordova Municipal Code 18.32.100, “Rear and side yard requirements”, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
18.32.055 - Rear and side yard requirements. 
 
There are no rear or side yard requirements in the I DistrictNone, except as necessary to comply with 
other provisions of this Code, including compliance with provide required off-street parking and loading  
requirementsas per under Chapter 18.48 of this Titlecode. 
 
Section 10. Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.010, “Purpose”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.33.010 - Purpose. 
 
The following statement of intent and use regulations shall apply in the WI district: 
 
A. The Wwaterfront Industrial Ddistrict is intended to includebe applied to land with direct access or 
close proximity to navigable tidal waters within the Ccity. Uses within the waterfront industrialthis district 

29



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 26 of 36 

 

are intended to be marine-dependent or marine-oriented, and primarily those uses which are particularly 
related to location or commercial enterprises that derive an economic benefit from a waterfront location. 
 
B. The Waterfront Industruct District may also be referred to as the WI District in this Code. 
 
Section 11. Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.030, “Permitted accessory uses and structures”, is amended to 
read as follows: 
 
18.33.030 - Permitted accessory uses and structures. 
 
A. The following accessory uses and structures are permitted in the WI District: 
 
A1. Bunkhouses used in conjunction with permitted principal uses; 
B2. Residential dwelling for watch personman or caretaker employed on the premises, or owner-
operator and members of the owner-operator’shis family, used in conjunction with permitted principal 
uses; 
 
C3. Retail business when use is accessory to a permitted principal use. 
 
Section 12. Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.050, “Prohibited uses and structures”, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
18.33.050 - Prohibited uses and structures. 
 
Any use or structure that is not a permitted use, accessory use or conditional use under this Chapter is 
prohibited in the WI District. not of a character as indicated under permitted uses, accessory uses, or 
conditional uses 
 
Section 13. Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.060, “Setbacks”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.33.060 - Setbacks. 
 
A.  The mMinimum sSetbacks in the WI District are as follows:. 

 
1. Front yard-Twenty20 Ffeet. 
 
2. Side yard and rear yard: None.subject to Uniform Building Code regarding fire walls and 
separation of buildings. 
 

Section 14. Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.080, “Height”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.33.080 - Height. 
U TheA. Mmaximum height of buildings and structures in the WI District is: subject to Uniform 
Building Code regarding building heights.three stories or 50 Feet. 
 
Section 15. Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.100, “Minimum lot requirements”, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
18.33.100 - Minimum lot requirements. 
 
A. The Mminimum lLot rRequirements in the WI District are as follows:. 

30



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 27 of 36 

 

 
1. Lot width: 100 Ffeet. 
 
2. Lot size: 10,000 Ffeet. 

 
Section 16. Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.110, “Signs”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.33.110 - Signs. 
 
 A. Signs. Signs may be allowed in the waterfront industrial district subject to the supplementary 
district regulations, the Uniform Sign Code, as set forth in requirements in Chapter 18.44 of this Ccode. 
 
Section 17. Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.130, “Site plan review”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.33.130 – Commission sSite plan review-Required. 
 
A. Prior to the issuance of a building for construction within the waterfront industrial district, the planning 
commission shall approve the development plan for the project. The site plan review shall be conducted in 
accordance with Chapter 18.42 of this code. Any construction, modification or improvement in the 
Waterfront Industrial District shall be subject to a site plan review by the Planning Commission 
under Section 18.42. 020 of this Code.  
 
B. No site plan shall be approved for the Waterfront Industrial District unless any exterior siding or 
roof on any building or structure is finished in earthtone colors as those colors are identified by the 
Planning Director.  The exterior siding and roof shall be finished in earthtone colors. 
 
Section 18. Cordova Municipal Code 18.34.070, “Minimum setback requirements”, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
18.34.070 - Minimum setback requirements. 
The following are the minimum setback requirements in the WHD:. 
 
A. Front yard, side yard, and rear yard setbacks: None. subject to Uniform Building Code requirements 
regarding building construction type, occupancy, separation distance between buildings, access and egress. 
Zero lot line construction is not expressly prohibited. 
 
Section 19. Cordova Municipal Code 18.34.080, “Maximum heights of buildings and structures”, is 
amended to read as follows: 
 
The following are the maximum heights of buildings and structures in the WHD:. 

 
A. Principal buildings and structures: Seventy-five (75) f 75 Feet. 

B. Accessory buildings and structures: Fifty (50) f 50 Feet. 

C. The planning and zoning c Planning Commission may grant conditional use permits for 
taller buildings that exceed the maximum heights imposed in this Section subject to requirements 
Chapter 18.60 of this Title.of the uniform building code and applicablethe policies in the Cordova coastal 
management plan regarding the maintenance of visual access to coastal waters. 
 

31



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 28 of 36 

 

Section 20. Cordova Municipal Code 18.34.100, “Signs”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.34.100 - Signs. 
 
Signs are permitted in the WHD subject to the Uniform Sign Code and Chapter 18.44 of this Titletitle. 
 
Section 21. Cordova Municipal Code 18.38.050, “Prohibited uses and structures”, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
18.38.050 - Prohibited uses and structures. 
 
 Any use or structure not of a character that is a permitted use under this Chapter is prohibited 
in the PLI District, except uses or structures that have been approved by a conditional use permit in 
compliance with Section 18.38.040 of this Chapter.  indicated under permitted uses and structures or 
permitted as a conditional use if prohibited. 
 
Section 22. Cordova Municipal Code 18.38.060, “Minimum lot requirements”, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
18.38.060 - Minimum lot requirements. 
 
The following are the minimum lot requirements in the PLI District: 
 
A. Lot width: 100 Feet.Lot width, one hundred feet; 
 
B. Lot area: 15,000 Square Feet, fifteen thousand square feet. 
 
Section 23. Cordova Municipal Code 18.38.070, “Minimum yard requirements”, is amended to read as 
follows: 
 
18.38.070 - Minimum yard requirements. 
 
The following are the minimum yard requirements in the PLI District: 
 
A. Front yard, twenty-five feet; 
 
B. Side yard, ten feet; 
 
C. Rear yard, fifteen feet. 
 
Section 24. Cordova Municipal Code 18.38.080, “Maximum lot coverage”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.38.080 - Maximum lot coverage. 
 
The maximum lot coverage by all buildings permitted in the PLI District is 50 : fifty percent. 
 
Section 25. Cordova Municipal Code 18.38.090, “Special provisions”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.38.090 - Maximum height of structures. 
 

32



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 29 of 36 

 

 The maximum height of a building or structures in the PLI Districtis unrestricted, except that 
buildings and structures in this district shall not interfere with Federal Aviation Administration 
Regulationson airport approaches. and conform with the Uniform Building Code. 
 
Section 26. Cordova Municipal Code 18.38.100, “Signs”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.38.100 - Signs. 
 
 Signs may be allowed in connection with any permitted use, subject to the supplementary district 
regulations and Chapter 18.44 of this Title. the Uniform Sign Code. 
 
Section 27. Cordova Municipal Code 18.39.100, “Signs”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.39.100 - Signs. 
 
 Signs are permitted in the WCP District  subject to Chapter 18.44 of this Ttitle. 
 
Section 28. Cordova Municipal Code 18.39.130, “Site plan review”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.39.130 – Commission sSite plan review-Required. 
 
The development plan of any proposed development in the WCP Ddistrict shall be subject to a site plan 
review and approval under Section 18.42.020 conducted in accordance with Chapter 18.42. 
 
Section 29. Cordova Municipal Code Chapter 18.42, “Site Plan Review”, is repealed and reenacted to read 
as follows: 
 
Chapter 18.42 - SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
18.42.010-Administrative site plan review and approval. 
18.42.020-Site plan review and approval-Planning Commission. 
18.42.030-Site plan-Residential-level. 
18.42.040-Site plan-Commercial-level. 
18.42.050-Other land use applications and permits. 
18.42.060-Modifications. 
18.42.070-Suspension and revocation of permits. 
18.42.080-Permit expiration. 
18.42.090-Site plan approval-transferable. 
 
18.42.010-Administrative site plan review and approval.  
 
A.    When an administrative site plan review is required under this Title, the application for site plan 
approval shall be reviewed and approved as follows: 

 
1.     All plans and specifications for site plan approval shall be submitted by the applicant on an 

administrative site plan application form provided by and available from the Planning Department.  
 
2. Upon the filing of a completed application, the City Planner shall have 30 business days to 

process the application and either approve the site plan, deny it or approve it with conditions or 
modifications. The City Planner shall notify an applicant in writing no more than 10 days after receiving 

33



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 30 of 36 

 

the application and, if additional documents or information is needed to complete the application and permit 
the City Planner to make a determination, the City Planner shall notify the applicant at the address specified 
in the application of the information or documentation needed. 

 
3. The City Planner shall review the site plan and determine if it complies with this Code, the 

City Comprehensive Plan, and any applicable local laws and regulations.   
 
4. The City Planner shall issue a written decision approving the application, denying it or 

approving it with conditions or modifications.  The written decision shall state the reasons underlying the 
decision and notice of the right to appeal the Planning Director’s decision as provided in this Section. 

 
5. The Planning Director shall supplement any pending building permit application on the same 

property with a copy of the City Planner’s written decision under this Section. 
 
B. An applicant may appeal the denial of a site plan under this Section to the Planning Commission as 
provided in Section 18.64.040.  
 
18.42.020- Site plan review and approval-Planning Commission. 
  
 When a site plan review is required under this Title and the review is not expressly identified as 
administrative, the application for site plan approval shall be reviewed and approved as follows:  
 
A. The owner or the owner’s designated agent shall submit a comprehensive site plan and a completed 
comprehensive site plan application to the Planning Department.  Once the Planning Director determines 
that a complete site plan and application has been submitted, the Planning Director will schedule a public 
hearing before the Planning Commission.  A completed application shall be submitted to the Planning 
Commission for consideration no more than 45 business days after it is filed with the Planning Department.   
 
B. The Commission must hold a hearing on the site plan at its next regularly scheduled meeting unless 
that meeting is less than five business days from the date a completed application has been filed.  If the 
complete application is filed less than 15 business days before the next Planning Commission meeting, the 
application shall be considered no more than 45 days after it has been filed. The Planning Commission shall 
determine, after reviewing the application and any statements of support or opposition regarding the site 
plan, if the proposed plan complies with this Code, the City Comprehensive Plan, and any applicable local 
laws and regulations. The Commission shall provide the applicant, the Planning Director, and members of 
the public an opportunity to be heard regarding the site plan.   
 
C. The Commission shall issue a written decision approving the site plan, denying it or approving it 
subject to conditions or modifications no more than 30 days after the public hearing on the site plan. The 
written decision shall state the reasons underlying the decision and notice of the right to appeal the decision 
as provided in this Section.  
 
D. An applicant may appeal the denial of a site plan under this Section to City Council sitting as the 
Board of Adjustment as provided in Section 18.64.030.  
 
18.42.030 Site plan –Residential-level. 
 
A. When a residential-level site plan is required, the site plan shall show on a survey, map or plan of 
the subject property, drawn to a scale of not less than one-inch equals 20 feet, all of the following: 
 

34



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 31 of 36 

 

1. The precise location of the lot boundaries and all setbacks and easements; 
 

2. The precise location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, including any proposed 
changes to the exterior dimensions of existing structures; 

 
3. Elevation drawings and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, including any proposed 

changes to exterior dimensions of existing structures; 
 
4. Existing site features and conditions, including topography, drainage, streams, water bodies, 

wetlands, lines of mean high tide, storm berms, areas prone to erosion, and the general location of 
vegetation; 

 
5. The precise dimensions of all existing and proposed structures in relation to existing and proposed 

property lines, streets and other rights-of-way; 
 
6. Access, including proposed driveway and curb cuts, with arrows indicating vehicular traffic patterns 

into and out of the site and to and from all parking areas; 
 
7. On-site traffic and pedestrian circulation systems, and a detailed parking plan; 

 
8. Pedestrian access to adjacent public lands, waters, walkways and trails. Where practical, safe, and 

where other means of access have not been provided, access easements may be required; 
 
9. A grading and drainage plan indicating all cuts, fills and areas of disturbance. The plan shall display 

elevation changes and cut and fill quantities; and 
 
10.  The location of the site in relation to other existing uses on neighboring properties. 

 
B. When site plan approval is required under this Title but the level of site plan has not been expressly 
identified, the site plan shall comply with this Section. 
 
18.42.040 Site plan – Commercial-level. 
 
 When a commercial-level site plan is required, the site plan shall show on a survey, map or plan of 
the subject property, drawn to a scale of not less than one-inch equals 20 feet, all of the following: 
 

1.  All information required in residential site plans; 
 

2. Access, including proposed driveway and curb cuts, with arrows indicating vehicular traffic patterns 
into and out of all loading berths or areas; 

 
3. Turning radius for vehicles; 
 
4. The location and proposed screening of open storage areas; 
 
5. Basic floor plans and location of all existing and proposed structures; 
 
6. Location of utilities; 
 
7. Proposed signs and lighting; 
 

35



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 32 of 36 

 

8. The location of the site in relation to residential uses and other existing industrial uses on adjacent 
properties; and 

 
9.  Location of snow storage. 

 
18.42.050-Other land use applications and permits. 
 
 Nothing in this Chapter shall relieve the applicant of the obligation to obtain a conditional use 
permit, building permit, variance, or other permit or approval required by this Code, federal or state law.  
 
18.42.060- Modifications. 

 
A. Once a site plan is approved, minor modifications to the plan may be approved by the City Planner 
if the City Planner determines that the modifications would not substantially change the character of the 
site plan or the basis for approval of that plan. 
 
B. Substantial modifications to a site plan after approval require submission and approval of an 
application for substantial modification.  An application of substantial modification shall be considered in 
the same manner as the original application for site plan approval required under this Chapter.  An applicant 
may request expedited consideration of an application for modifications to a site plan which the City Planner 
may grant if the City Planner finds good cause for expediting the application. 
 
18.42.070 - Suspension and revocation of permits. 
 
A. Permit suspension.  

 
1. Upon violation of this Chapter or the conditions of approval of a site plan, the City Planner 

may suspend approval of that site plan pending corrective action by the applicant.  
 
2. At least ten days before suspension of a site plan approval becomes effective, the City 

Planner must provide written notice of the suspension to the applicant at the address identified in the site 
plan application.  The notice must identify the period of suspension, the reasons for suspension, and what 
action is necessary to remove the suspension.   

 
B. Permit revocation.   

 
1. Upon violation of this Chapter or the conditions of approval of a site plan, and a 

determination by the City Planner that corrective action is not possible, practicable or in the public interest, 
the City Planner may recommend revocation of the site plan approval to the Planning Commission.  The 
City Planner shall provide the applicant with notice of potential revocation.  This notice shall provide the 
reasons for recommending revocation of the site plan approval, the reasons corrective action is not possible, 
practicable or in the public interest, the date of the hearing before the Planning Commission, and the 
applicant’s right to attend and participate in that hearing.  

 
2. Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, the Planning Commission may not revoke a 

site plan approval without a determination by the Commission at a public hearing that the applicant, 
property owner or an agent or representative of the applicant or owner fundamentally misrepresented the 
character of the development and/or use of the site, that the misrepresentation resulted in a failure to comply 
with the provisions of this Code or applicable federal or state law, and that corrective action is not possible, 
practicable or does not serve the public interest. 

 

36



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 33 of 36 

 

C. Notice of suspension or recommended revocation of a site plan approval shall require all work under 
the site plan approval to stop unless the City Planner or the Planning Commission issues written approval 
permitting development to continue during the appeal period.  Any site improvements made while 
suspension is in effect shall be a violation of this Title. 

 
D.  Appeal. 

 
1. The applicant may appeal suspension of site plan approval by the City Planner under this 

Section to the Planning Commission. The Commission shall hold a public hearing within 40 days of filing 
of the notice. If the Commission determines that the suspension of the site plan was warranted, the 
Commission may affirm the suspension and either affirm the corrective actions imposed by the City Planner 
or modify the required corrective action. In the event the Commission determines that suspension or 
corrective action is not warranted, the Commission may dismiss the suspension and reinstate the site plan 
approval or modify the corrective action required for reinstatement.   

 
2. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, the applicant may appeal revocation of a site 

plan approval by the Planning Commission under this Section to City Council sitting as the Board of 
Adjustment as provided in Section 18.64.030.  City Council shall take such action as may be necessary to 
ensure compliance with this Title.  City Council shall hold a public hearing regarding a revocation of a site 
plan approval at its next regularly scheduled meeting or within 15 business days after receiving the notice 
of appeal, whichever date is sooner.  

 
18.42.080-Permit expiration. 
 
A. Unless a longer time shall be specifically established as a condition of approval, a site plan approval 
shall expire 18 months following the date on which such approval becomes effective if the work depicted 
in the site plan has not begun. 
 
B. A site plan approval may be renewed by the City Planner for an additional period of one year so 
long as a written request for an extension is filed with the Planning Department before the date of expiration.   

 
18.42.090 – Site plan approval-transferable. 

 
 Site plan approval pursuant to this Chapter shall continue to be valid upon a change of ownership 
of the site or structure which was the subject of the application so long as the character of the development 
or use of the property does not change from the use and development depicted on the approved site plan. 
 
Section 30. Cordova Municipal Code 18.44.010, “Definitions”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.44.010 - Definitions. 
 
For the purposes of this chapter, certain terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall be construed as 
specified in the applicable Cordova Building Codes as adopted in Chapter 16 of this Code.either 
Chapter 2 of the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition, or the Uniform Building Code. Further, "sign" shall be 
construed as defined under Section 18.08.520 of this title.  
 
Section 31. Cordova Municipal Code 18.44.020, “General Provisions”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.44.020 - General provisions. 
 

37



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 34 of 36 

 

All signs shall conform in design and construction to the applicable Cordova Building Codes adopted 
by reference in Chapter 16 of this Code.Chapter 4 of the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition. Further, any 
sign, whether attached to a structure or freestanding, shall be so located as to conform to minimum yard 
requirements and maximum height requirements of the district in which the sign is located. 
 
Section 32. Cordova Municipal Code 18.44.030, “Permit required”, is amended to read as follows: 
 
18.44.030 - Permit required. 
 
A permit shall be obtained from the Bbuilding Oofficial prior to the installation of any sign in any zoning 
district, except for those signs exempted from the permit requirement under this Chapter. those signs 
exempted from the permit requirement by the terms of the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition, or those signs 
exempted from the permit requirement by the terms of this chapter. The procedure for obtaining a sign 
permit shall be as set forth in Chapter 3 of the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition. 
 
Section 33. Cordova Municipal Code 18.46.030, “Design and construction requirements”, is amended to 
read as follows: 
 
18.46.030 - Design and construction requirements. 
 
A. A wind energy system shall conform to the requirements in this Section and any and all 
applicable code requirements in the Cordova Building Codes.  
 
B. The foundation for a ground-supported wind energy system shall be designed for the installation 
site by a professional engineer registered in Alaska, and the building permit application required under 
Title 16 of this Code shall require, for the wind energy system, shall include plans for the foundation 
stamped by the engineer. The building permit application for a roof-mounted wind energy system shall 
include a certification by a professional engineer registered in Alaska that the roof structure will support 
the wind energy system. 
 
C. The building permit application [for] a wind energy system shall include documentation that the 
wind energy system meets the requirements of this cChapter and Chapter 16 of this Code, or an approved 
conditional use permit authorizing any deviations from theose requirements of this Chapter has been 
approved. In addition to review under Title 16 of this Code, the building permit application shall be 
reviewed by the Planning Department for compliance with the requirements of this chapter and any 
approved conditional use permit. Before a permit is issued it must be signed by the Pplanning Ddepartment. 
 
D. Each wind turbine that is a component of a wind energy system must be approved by the Small 
Wind Certification Program recognized by the American Wind Energy Association (AWEA) or another 
accredited organization such as the Small Wind Certification Council, National Wind Technology 
Certification Center, or the U.S. Department of Energy, National Renewable Energy Laboratory, or must 
be certified by a professional mechanical engineer registered in Alaska as a system that meets or exceeds 
industry safety standards for wind energy systems. 
 
E. No wind energy system may be installed until the owner of the lot where the wind energy system 
will be installed submits to the planning department the written approval from the Cordova Electric 
Cooperative of the wind energy system as an interconnected customer-owned generator, or certifies in 

38



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 35 of 36 

 

writing that the wind energy system will not be interconnected with Cordova Electric Cooperative 
transmission or distribution system. 
 
F. No wind energy system may be installed in a manner that allows less than fifteen feet of vertical 
distance from the grade to any moving wind turbine component at the lowest point in the course of its 
movement. 
 
G. All exposed surfaces of a wind energy system shall be a nonreflective, neutral, unobtrusive color 
approved by the city planner, and shall be maintained throughout the life of the wind energy system in 
accordance with Small Wind Certification Program recognized by the American Wind Energy Association 
(AWEA) or another accredited organization such as the Small Wind Certification Council, National Wind 
Technology Certification Center, or the U.S. Department of Energy, National Renewable Energy 
Laboratory, or must be certified by a professional mechanical engineer registered in Alaska as a system that 
meets or exceeds industry performance standards for wind energy systems. The turbines shall be maintained 
as per the manufacturer's requirements. 
 
H. No sign, flag or pennant may be attached to a wind energy system, except to identify the 
manufacturer or the installer of the wind energy system, or to warn of danger. 
 
I. No wind energy system may be artificially illuminated except as required by law or a state or federal 
agency. 
 
J. A wind energy system that is not roof-mounted shall be designed and constructed so no part that is 
less than fifteen feet above the grade can be climbed, or completely enclosed by a fence that is not less than 
six feet high. 
 
K. All electric transmission wires connected to a wind energy system must be underground, or within 
the building on which the wind energy system is mounted, except near substations or points of 
interconnection to the electric grid. 
 
L. A wind energy system shall be designed, installed and operated so that the noise generated by the 
wind energy system does not exceed fifty decibels, measured five feet above the grade at the property line 
closest to the wind energy system, except during short-term events such as utility outages and severe 
windstorms. 
 
Section 34. Cordova Municipal Code 18.33.070, “Lot coverage”, is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 35. Cordova Municipal Code 18.76.070, “Building permit”, is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 36. Cordova Municipal Code 18.80.020, “Building permit-Scope and validity”, is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 37.  This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its passage and publication. This 
ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 
within ten (10) days after its passage.  
 
1st reading: June 15, 2022 
2nd reading and public hearing:  _____________, 2022 

39



 

New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 
Ordinance 1201 
Page 36 of 36 

 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF __________________, 2022. 

 
        
        __________________________________ 
        David Allison, Mayor  
 
      ATTEST: 
        __________________________________ 
        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

 

40



 

 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 1 of 139 

CURRENT 

Title 16 – BUILDING CODES 

 

Chapter 16.05 - BUILDING REGULATION 

Chapter 16.10 - BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION 

Chapter 16.15 - LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM BUILDING CODE, 1985 

EDITION 

Chapter 16.17 - SITE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PROCEDURES 

Chapter 16.20 - LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM MECHANICAL CODE 

1985 EDITION 

16.20.010 - Local amendments to the Uniform Mechanical Code, 1985 Edition. 

16.20.203 - Board of appeals. 

16.20.204 - Violation. 

16.20.304(a) - Permit fee. 

16.20.404 - B definitions and abbreviations. 

16.20.704 - Prohibited installations. 

16.20.1404(5) - Exception 1. 

Chapter 16.25 - LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM PLUMBING CODE, 1979 

EDITION 

16.25.010 - Local amendments to the Uniform Plumbing Code, 1979 Edition. 

16.25.20.3 - Violations and penalties. 

16.25.20.7 - Cost of permit—Schedule of fees. 

16.25.20.14 - Board of plumber examiners. 

16.25.203(d) - Use of copper tubing. 

16.25. Table A. - Table A—Plumbing material standards. 

16.25.401(a) - Materials. 

16.25.612(h) - Chemical wastes. 

16.25.612(i) - Chemical wastes. 

16.25.1003(k) - Water-cooled compressors, degreasers of any other water-cooled 

equipment. 

16.25.1004(a) - Materials. 

16.25.1309 - Prohibited locations. 

41



 

 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 2 of 139 

16.25.1326 - Check valves. 

16.25 - App.D. Rainwater systems. 

Chapter 16.30 - LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE, 

1984 EDITION 

I. - ADMINISTRATION 

16.30.010 - Prohibited acts. 

16.30.015 - Permits—Required—Exceptions. 

16.30.020 - Permit—Application—Plans to accompany issuance. 

16.30.025 - Permits—Approval or rejection—Keeping on job—Deviations. 

16.30.030 - Permit—Fees—When paid. 

16.30.035 - Inspections—Notices—Time. 

16.30.040 - Inspections—Installation authorization. 

16.30.045 - Inspections—Defects found—Notice—Correction—Time. 

16.30.050 - Suspension of work—Notice—Causes—Continuing after building. 

16.30 055 - Permit—Expiration when work not commenced or abandoned—New permit. 

16.30.060 - Temporary installations—Permit—Time—Cancellation. 

16.30.065 - Fee designated. 

II. - LOCAL AMENDMENTS 

16.30.070 - Local amendments to the National Electrical Code, 1984 Edition. 

16.30.210-5 - Color code for branch circuits. 

16.30.210-19 - Conductors—Minimum ampacity and size. 

16.30.210-23 - Permissible loads. 

16.30.210-52(a) - Dwelling unit. 

16.30.210-70 - Lighting outlets required. 

16.30.220-3 - Branch circuits required. 

16.30.230-28 - Service masts as supports. 

l6.30.230-4l - Sizing and rating. 

16.30.230-70(a) - Service equipment—Disconnecting means location. 

16.30.310-2(b) - Conductor material. 

16.30.336-3(c) - Uses permitted or not permitted. 

16.30.700(12)(f) - Unit equipment. 

42



 

 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 3 of 139 

Chapter 16.40 - LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM SIGN CODE, 1985 

EDITION 

16.40.010 - Local amendments to the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition. 

16.40.103(d) - Violations. 

16.40.301 - Permits required. 

16.40.302 - Application for permit. 

16.40.303 - Exemptions. 

Chapter 16.45 - LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM FIRE CODE, 1985 

EDITION 

16.45.010 - Local amendments to the Uniform Fire Code, 1985 Edition. 

16.45.2.201 - Inspections and unsafe buildings. 

16.45.2.302 - Board of appeals. 

16.45.10.206 - Obstruction of fire-protection equipment. 

16.45.10.207(f) - Vertical clearance. 

16.45.10.207(I) - Signs. 

16.45.10.307(a). 

Chapter 16.50 - PRIVATE FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS 

16.50.010 - Connection to municipal circuit—Permit required. 

16.50.020 - Permit—Standards. 

16.50.030 - Permit—Restriction. 

16.50.040 - Permit—Revocation. 

16.50.050 - Radio fire alarm box—Payment of costs—Maintenance of system. 

16.50.060 - Unauthorized connection or disconnection unlawful. 

16.50.070 - Connection, inspection and permit fees. 

16.50.080 - Prohibited acts. 

Chapter 16.70 - LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM HOUSING CODE, 1979 

EDITION 

16.70.010 - Local amendments to the Uniform Housing Code, 1979 Edition. 

16.70.202 - Section 202 deleted. 

16.70.203 - Housing advisory and appeals board. 

16.70.801 - Exits. 

Chapter 16.75 - HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

43



 

 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 4 of 139 

16.75.010 - Powers—Adopted. 

16.75.020 - Powers—Limitations. 

16.75.030 - Contract and implementation authority. 

Chapter 16.80 - MOBILE HOME PARKS 

16.80.010 - Definitions. 

16.80.020 - License—Required—Term—Transferability. 

16.80.030 - License—Applications fees—Site plan. 

16.80.040 - License—Denial—Fees—Revocation—Reinstatement. 

16.80.045 - License—Renewals. 

16.80.050 - Conditional use permit. 

16.80.055 - Inspections—Changed conditions. 

16.80.060 - Specifications. 

16.80.065 - Temporary placement of travel trailers. 

16.80.070 - Supervision. 

16.80.080 - Accessory structures. 

16.80.090 - Certain violations designated. 

16.80.100 - Fine—Liability for violations. 

Chapter 16.90 - TRAILERS AND TRAILER CAMPS 

16.90.010 - Definitions. 

16.90.020 - License—Required—Term—Transferability. 

16.90.030 - License—Applications. 

16.90.040 - License—Fees—Revocation. 

16.90.050 - Conditional use permit. 

16.90.060 - Specifications. 

16.90.070 - Supervision. 

16.90.080 - Violations designated. 

 

Chapter 16.05 BUILDING REGULATION 

44



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 5 of 139 

16.05.010 Adoption of codes. 

The city, pursuant to Section 2-15 of its Home Rule Charter, adopts by reference the following codes of 
technical regulation:  

A. Uniform Building Code, current adopted state code;  

B. Uniform Mechanical Code, current adopted state code;  

C. Uniform Plumbing Code, current adopted state code;  

D. National Electrical Code, current adopted state code;  

E. Uniform Sign Code, current adopted state code;  

F. Uniform Fire Code, current adopted state code.  

G. 1997 Uniform Code for Abatement of Dangerous Buildings.  

(Ord. 804 § 1, 1998: Ord. 608 (part), 1986; Ord. 606 (part), 1986; Ord. 604 (part), 1985; Ord. 600 (part), 1985; Ord. 
532 § 1(part), 1982). 

(Ord. No. 1107, § 7, 3-20-2013) 

16.05.020 Copies on file. 

At least one copy of each code of technical regulation adopted by reference in Section 16.05.010 shall be 
kept in the office of the clerk.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

Chapter 16.10 BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION 

16.10.010 Board of building regulations, mechanical, plumbing, electrical and fire examiners 

and appeals board designated. 

A. The seven member planning commission shall act as the building board and are to pass on matters 
pertaining to building construction.  

B. Four members of the building board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business. For any 
affirmative action on quasi-judicial matters by the building board, there must be a concurring vote of four 
members.  

C. The board shall hear and decide appeals from the actions of administrative officials relating to building, 
mechanical, plumbing, electrical and fire regulations under Title 16. The board may determine the suitability 
of alternative materials and methods of construction, mechanical, plumbing, electrical and fire codes, and 
may recommend to the council legislation as is consistent therewith.  

D. The board shall also determine and recommend such amendments to Title 16 and to all building regulations 
as may be deemed necessary.  

E. The board shall meet as frequently as necessary, and shall follow the rules and regulations as defined in 
Chapter 3.40 of the Cordova Municipal Code.  

45



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 6 of 139 

F. The building board is the final appellate board of the city for matters heard by it.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.10.015 State license required. 

A. It is unlawful to engage in business in the city as a building contractor without having first complied with the 
provisions of AS 08.18.011, and it is unlawful to engage in business in the city as an electrical contractor 
without having first obtained a license and certificate of fitness as required by AS 08.18.026, AS 08.40.090 
and AS 18.62.010.  

B. Any person doing business as a subcontractor to any building or electrical contractor shall be construed as 
engaged in the business being a building or electrical contractor, for which a license is required by this code.  

C. The term "building contractor" as used in this section means and includes anyone engaged in the business of 
cement or concrete contracting, either flat, form or wallwork, or as a masonry contractor; or as a carpenter 
contractor; or as a general building contractor; and any person engaged in the construction, alteration or 
repair of buildings or other structures, or sidewalk or street pavements.  

The term "electrical contractor" as used in this section means and includes any person, firm or corporation 
engaged in the business of installing or altering equipment for the utilization of electricity supplied by light, heat, 
or power, not including radio apparatus or equipment for wireless reception or sounds and signals, and not 
installed by or for public utilities, including common carriers.  

D. City building officials shall be given free access during reasonable working hours to any premises where 
building, contracting, or electrical contracting work, subject to the licensing requirements of AS 08.18.011, 
AS 08.18.026, AS 08.40.090 and AS 18.62.010 is being performed. It shall be the duty of the licensee or the 
person in charge of the premises to be inspected to admit thereto for the purpose of making the inspection, 
the building official who is authorized or directed to make such inspection, and to present to the building 
official upon request of the official, evidence of compliance with the provisions of this code.  

(Ord. 564, 1983). 

16.10.020 Violation. 

Failure to obey or comply with any provision of this chapter or any rule, order or regulation issued 
thereunder is a violation. The minimum penalty upon conviction of a single violation of this chapter shall be a fine 
of three hundred dollars.  

(Ord. 688 § 26, 1991). 

Chapter 16.15 LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM BUILDING CODE, 1985 

EDITION 

16.15.010 Local amendments to the Uniform Building Code, 1985 Edition. 

The amendments to the 1985 edition of the Uniform Building Code are listed hereafter by section. The last 
digits of the section number (after the title and chapter digits) are the section of the Uniform Building Code to 
which the amendment refers i.e., 16.15.104(e) refers to amendments to Section 104(e) of the Uniform Building 
Code, 1985 Edition.  

46



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 7 of 139 

(Ord. 604 (part), 1985; Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15.204 Board of appeals. 

Amend this section to read as follows:  

For the purpose of this section, the building board as designated in Section 16.10.010 of this title shall be 
constituted as and shall serve as the Board of Appeals.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15.301(b) Exempted work. 

Amend by adding paragraphs 12, 13 and 14 as follows:  

 12. Permits will not be required for ordinary maintenance on a building or structure in Groups R-3 and M 
occupancies. Ordinary maintenance of a building or structure shall not include the cutting away or addition 
of any wall, petition or portion thereof, the removal of any structural beam or bearing support, or the 
removal or change of any required means of egress, or rearrangement of parts of a structure; nor shall 
ordinary maintenance include addition to, alteration of, replacement or relocation of any standpipe, water 
supply, sewer, drainage, drain leader, gas, soil, waste vent or similar piping, electrical wiring, mechanical or 
other work affecting public health or safety. All ordinary maintenance shall be made only in accordance with 
the applicable provisions of the building code and other construction or safety codes of the City. No permit 
will be required for workup to and including $100.00 total valuation.  

 13. Permits shall not be required for direct replacement work of value of one thousand dollars or less.  

 14. Permits shall not be required for new construction in the UR zoning district. Building in the UR District 
will require compliance with provisions of Chapter 16.17, Site Development Permit Procedures.  

(Ord. 755 § 1, 1995; Ord. 604 (part), 1985; Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15.302(b) Plans and specifications. 

Add the following:  

 (b) Plans and Specifications. With each application for a building permit, for new construction or substantial 
changes to an existing structure, there shall be submitted the following documents with the application.  

 1. Two complete sets of construction drawings for all Group R-3 and M Occupancies.  

 A. Three complete sets of construction drawings for R-1 Occupancies of not more than four units.  

 B. Three complete sets of construction drawings prepared and signed by an architect and/or applicable 
engineers by discipline registered in the State of Alaska, are required for all other building occupancies.  

 C. Plot or site plans for all Group R-3 and M Occupancies shall indicate proposed or existing upper floor 
building projections and roof overhangs and shall indicate proposed finished grades at building corners, lot 
corners and final drainage patterns.  

 D. Plot or site plans for all other occupancies shall indicate, in addition to the requirements of Group R-3 
and M Occupancies, all off-site easements and overhead utility lines adjacent to the property.  

 2. When required by the Building Official for the enforcement of any provision of this code, the following 
additional information shall be submitted.  

47



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 8 of 139 

 A. Lot survey prepared and signed by a land surveyor registered in the State of Alaska. The lot survey shall 
be legible scale with drawing scale and north arrow indicated, and shall include dimensions and bearings of 
the property lines, adjacent streets or rights-of-way, on-site easements and overhead utility lines, existing 
and proposed structures with overall dimensions and setbacks, and the existing grade elevations at lot 
corners, existing buildings corners, and within five feet of proposed building corners and other locations to 
adequately determine the lot drainage.  

 B. In the field, the land surveyor of record shall accurately place or locate survey field markers at the 
property rods by 30-inches long, or two-inch square by 18-inch long wooden stakes, driven full depth into 
the ground.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part),1982). 

16.15.304(b) Plan review fees. 

Amend the last sentence in paragraph one to read as follows:  

Said plan review fee shall be 25% of the Building permit fee as shown in Table 3-A for Group R—3 
Occupancies and 50% for all other occupancies.  

Amend by adding a third paragraph as follows:  

A plan review fee for identical plans submitted simultaneously for structures within a design subdivision or 
planned unit development shall be charged full fee for one original set and thirty (30%) percent of the full fee 
for all additional plans.  

Exception: When it is determined by the building official that the submitted plans need to be reviewed by 
another agency or organization to determine compliance with the building, electrical, plumbing and 
mechanical codes, the plan review fee collected by the city shall reflect the actual cost incurred by the city to 
have the plans reviewed.  

(Ord. 591, 1985; Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15 Table 3-A Building permit fees. 

Delete Table 3-A and insert as follows:  

TABLE 3-A BUILDING PERMIT FEES  

1. New Construction and Additions  

Occupancy Class  Fee Per Square Foot (S/F)*   
A  Under 2,000 sq. ft. 2,001 s/f to 5,000 s/f 

5,001 s/f and over  
$0.05 s/f 0.07 ″ 0.09 ″  

B  Under 2,000 sq. ft. 2,001 s/f to 5,000 s/f 
5,001 s/f and over  

$0.07 s/f 0.09 ″ 0.12 ″  

E   $0.09 s/f  
H   $0.12 s/f  
I   $0.09 s/f  
M  Under 2,000 sq.ft. 2,001 and over  $0.05 s/f 0.07 ″  
R  Under 200 sq.ft. 201 s/f to 2,500 s/f 

2,501 and over  
$0.05 s/f 0.07 ″ 0.09 ″  

 

48



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 9 of 139 

* Square footage for new construction shall be determined from the outside dimensions of all portions of a 
structure encompassing the occupancy determination. In the case of multiple occupancy, the fee shall be the sum 
of applicable occupancy fees for the structure. The total square footage is the sum of all floors; including finished 
basements and attics in Residential Occupancies.  

2. Alterations, Repairs or Replacements. (Including wood stoves, interior repairs, new furnaces, etc.). The 
fee for permits for this class of work shall be calculated as follows:  

Total Valuation of Work to be Done/Fee  

$1.00 to $500.00  $5.00  
$501.00 to $2000.00  $5.00 for the first $500.00 plus $1.00 for each additional 

$100.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $2000.00.  
$2001.00 to $25,000.00  $20.00 for the first $2000.00 plus $3.00 for each 

additional thousand or fraction thereof, to and including 
$25,000.00.  

$25,001.00 to $50,000.00  $89.00 for the first $25,000.00 plus $2.50 for each 
additional thousand or fraction thereof to and including 
$50,000.00.  

$50,001.00 to $100,000.00  $151.50 for the first $50,000.00 plus $1.50 for each 
additional thousand or fraction thereof, to and including 
$100,000.00.  

$100,001.00 and up  $226.50 for the first $100,000.00 plus $1.00 for each 
additional thousand or fraction thereof.  

 

3. The minimum building permit fee shall be five dollars.  

(Ord. 604 (part), 1985; Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15.402 A definitions and abbreviations. 

Delete the definition of "alley" and insert the following:  

  ALLEY. An alley is a public space or thoroughfare, 20 feet or less, but not less than 10 feet in width, which 
has been dedicated for public use.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15.403 B definitions and abbreviations. 

Add the following definition:  

  BUILDING, PUBLIC. Shall be any structure which is other than Group R-3 Occupancy or Group M-l 
Occupancy.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.15.408 G definitions and abbreviations. 

Amend to read is follows:  

  GRADE. (Adjacent ground elevation) is the finished ground elevation at any point immediately adjacent to 
the exterior wall of a building. In case walls are parallel to and within five feet of a public sidewalk, alley or 

49



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 10 of 139 

other public way, the finished ground elevation at any point shall be considered to be the elevation of the 
sidewalk, alley or public way.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15.413 L definitions and abbreviations. 

Add the following definition:  

  LEANTO. Leanto is any addition to the exterior of a mobile home which exceeds 48 square feet in floor 
area.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.15.417 P definitions and abbreviations. 

Add the following definition:  

  PORCH. A porch is an addition to the exterior of a building which is less than 48 square feet of floor area 
and is used solely as a protection for the entry way and not used for storage. A porch may not project 
beyond the exterior of a mobile home in excess of six feet.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.15.1204 Exit facilities. 

Amend the third paragraph, fourth sentence to read as follows:  

 Where windows are provided as a means of egress or rescue, they shall have a finished sill height not more 
than 48 inches above the floor.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.15.1707(e) Vapor barriers. 

Add paragraph (d) as follows:  

  (d) Vapor Barriers. All exterior wall, ceiling, roof and floor assemblies which enclose heated spaces and 
which are exposed to outdoor ambient temperatures shall be protected against water vapor transmission. 
Assemblies not otherwise of impermeable construction shall have installed, on the heated side of insulation 
or air spaces, vapor barriers having a perm rating of 0.08° minimum. Vapor barriers shall be metal foil, 
polyethylene sheeting or other material approved by the Building Official.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.15.2305(d) Snow loads. 

The minimum snow load shall be one hundred pounds per square foot ground snow load.  

(Ord. 828 (part), 1999; Ord. 577, 1984: Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

(Ord. No. 1095, § 1, 7-5-2012; Ord. No. 1131, § 1, 7-1-2015) 

50



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 11 of 139 

16.15.2311(a) General. 

Delete the second sentence and substitute the following:  

 In the wind pressure Table 23-F, the basic 25 psf column shall be used.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15.2311(b) Basic wind speed. 

Add to the end of paragraph:  

 Wind pressure as set forth in Table 23-F for a basic wind speed of 100 mph shall be used.  

(Ord. 604 (part), 1985). 

16.15.2312(c) Symbols and notations. 

Amend the exception to read as follows:  

  Exception: "W" shall be equal to the total dead load plus 25% of the floor live load for storage and 
warehouse occupancies and shall be equal to the total dead load plus 25% of the snow load for all roofs.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15.2907(a) General. 

Be amended to read as follows:  

  Section 2907(a) General. Footings and foundations, unless otherwise specifically provided, shall be 
constructed of masonry, concrete or treated wood in conformance with UBC Standard No. 29-3 and in all 
cases shall extend a minimum of 24 inches below grade. Footings of concrete and masonry shall be of solid 
material. Foundations supporting wood shall extend at least six (6) inches above the adjacent finish grade. 
Footings shall be of, at least, minimum construction as specified in Table No. 29-A except as follows:  

 Exception: The Building Official may upon presentation of a footing design prepared and signed by an 
engineer licensed to practice in the State of Alaska waiver or modify the 24 inches minimum footing depth 
design criteria.  

(Ord. 575, 1984: Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15.2907(b) Bearing walls. 

Amend Exception 1 to read as follows:  

  EXCEPTIONS: 1. A one-story wood or metal frame building not used for human occupancy and not over 
1,000 sq. ft. in floor area may be constructed on grade on a wood or concrete foundation when approved by 
the Building Official.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

51



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 12 of 139 

16.15.4507 Doors. 

Delete and substitute the following:  

 Doors, either fully opened or when opening, shall not project beyond the property line. No operating sash 
or windows eight feet or less above the sidewalk shall be allowed to project over public property.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.15 App. 12 Requirements for Group R, Division 3, Occupancies. 

Delete in entirety.  

(Ord. 604 (part), 1985). 

16.15 App. 70 Table 70-A Grading Plan Review Fees. 

Delete Table 70-A and insert the following in lieu thereof:  

Table 70-A GRADING PLAN REVIEW FEES  

50 cubic yards or less  No fee  
51 to 100 cubic yards  $ 5.00  
101 to 1000 cubic yards  $ 7.50  
1001 to 10,000 cubic yards  $10.00  
10,001 to 100,000 cubic yards — $10.00 for the first 10,000 cubic yards, plus $5.00 for each additional 10,000 
cubic yards or fraction thereof.  
100,001 to 200,000 cubic yards — $55.00 for the first 100,000 cubic yards, plus $3.00 for each additional 10,000 
cubic yards or fraction thereof.  
200,001 cubic yards or more - $85.00 for the first 200,000 cubic yards, plus $1.00 for each additional 10,000 cubic 
yards or fraction thereof.  
OTHER FEES:  
Additional plan review required by changes, additions or revisions to approve plans  $30.00/hour1 
(minimum charge — one—half hour)   
Or the total hourly cost to the jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest. This cost shall include supervision, overhead, 
equipment, hourly wages and fringe benefits of the employees involved.  

 

(Ord. 604 (part), 1985). 

16.15 App. 70 Table 70-B Grading Permit Fees. 

Delete Table 70-B and insert the following in lieu thereof:  

 

1 The fee for a grading permit authorizing additional work to that under a valid permit shall be the difference 
between the fee paid for the original permit and the fee shown for the entire project.  

52



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 13 of 139 

TABLE NO. 70-B GRADING PERMIT FEES2 

50 cubic yards or less  $5.00  
51 to 100 cubic yards  $7.50  
101 to 1000 cubic yards—$7.50 for the first 100 cubic yards plus $3.50 for each additional 100 cubic yards or 
fraction thereof.  
1001 to 10,000 cubic yards—$39.00 for the first 1000 cubic yards, plus $3.00 for each additional 1,000 cubic yards 
or fraction thereof.  
10,001 to 100,000 cubic yards—$66.00 for the first 10,000 cubic yards plus $13.50 for each additional 10,000 cubic 
yards or fraction thereof.  
100,001 cubic yards or more—$187.50 for the first 100,000 cubic yards, plus $7.50 for each additional 10,000 cubic 
yards or fraction thereof.  
OTHER INSPECTION AND FEES:   
1. Inspections outside of normal business 
hours(minimum charge — 2 hours)  

$30.00/hr2  

2. Reinspection fees assessed under provisions of Section 
305(g)  

$30.00/hr2  

3. Inspections for which no fee is specifically 
indicated(minimum charge, one-half hour)  

$30.00/hr2  

 

(Ord. 604 (part), 1985). 

Chapter 16.17 SITE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PROCEDURES 

16.17.010 Administration. 

The city planning department shall be responsible for the administration of the site development procedure, 
under the authority of the planning commission.  

(Ord. 755 § 2(part), 1995). 

16.17.020 Application and fee. 

Application for site plan review shall be filed with the city planning department. The application shall include 
the following, on a form provided by the planning department:  

A. Name and address of owner and applicant;  

B. Address and legal description of property;  

C. If the applicant is not the legal owner of the property, a statement that the applicant is the authorized 
agent of the owner;  

 

2The fee for a grading permit authorizing additional work to that under a valid permit shall be the difference 
between the fee paid for the original permit and the fee shown for the entire project.  

Or the total hourly cost to the jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest. This cost shall include supervision, overhead, 
equipment, hourly wages and fringe benefits of the employees involved.  

53



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 14 of 139 

D. A brief description of the proposed use, including information pertinent to Chapter 18.18, UR district 
regulations;  

E. Identification of present zoning district;  

F. A site plan, drawn to scale and sufficiently dimensioned as required to show the following:  

1. The date, scale, north arrow, title, name of owner and name of person preparing the site plan; 
need not be an engineer, architect or other professional,  

2. The location and dimensions of boundary lines, easements and required yards and setbacks 
identified in Chapter 18.18,  

3. The location, height and intended use of existing and proposed buildings or structures on the 
site,  

4. Location of existing and/or proposed sewage disposal system and potable water supply;  

G. Notwithstanding other fee schedules, a nonrefundable site development permit fee of twenty-five 
dollars shall be required.  

(Ord. 755 § 2(part), 1995). 

16.17.030 Standards for evaluating the application. 

A. The planning department shall review and evaluate the site plan permit application based on the following 
criteria:  

A. Conformance with the "UR Unrestricted District" regulations;  

B. Compatibility with adjacent sites, in terms of setbacks, open spaces, drainage, site development and access 
and circulation features.  

(Ord. 755 § 2(part), 1995). 

16.17.040 Action on application. 

A. Within ten days of receipt of the application, the planning department shall act upon the application. Action 
may be to approve, to approve subject to modification, or to disapprove the site plan.  

B. If approved, the permit will be issued.  

C. If approved subject to modifications, the applicant shall be notified in writing and by telephone, when 
possible, of the modifications required. The permit shall be issued after the applicant has agreed, in writing, 
to the modifications.  

D. If denied, the applicant shall be notified in writing and by telephone, when possible, of the denial and the 
reasons thereof.  

E. If denied, the applicant may appeal pursuant to the provisions of Section 16.17.070.  

(Ord. 758, 1995; Ord. 755 § 2(part), 1995). 

16.17.050 Modifications. 

A. Once the site plan is approved, no modifications may take place without written consent of the planning 
department. The applicant shall submit an application for modification of the approved site plan. Minor 

54



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 15 of 139 

revisions or modifications may be approved by the planning director if it is determined that the 
circumstances or conditions applicable at the time of the original approval remain valid, and the changes 
would not affect the findings described in Section 16.17.030.  

B. Major modifications will require the filing of an additional application, and will be subject to the process 
outlines in Chapter 16.17.  

(Ord. 755 § 2(part), 1995). 

16.17.060 Lapse of permit. 

A. Unless a longer time shall be specifically established as a condition of approval, a site plan approval shall 
lapse and shall become void eighteen months following the date on which such approval becomes effective.  

B. A site plan approval subject to lapse may be renewed by the planning director for an additional period of one 
year; provided, that prior to the expiration date, a written request for renewal is filed with the planning 
department by the applicant.  

(Ord. 755 § 2(part), 1995). 

16.17.070 Suspension and revocation of permits. 

A. Upon violation of any applicable provisions of this title, or if granted subject to conditions, upon failure to 
comply with the conditions, the site plan approval shall be suspended.  

B. The applicant may appeal the decision to suspend site plan approval to the planning and zoning commission. 
The planning and zoning commission shall hold a public hearing within forty days of filing of the notice. If not 
satisfied that the provisions of the approval of this title are being complied with by the applicant, the 
planning and zoning commission may revoke the site plan approval or take such action as may be necessary 
to ensure compliance with this title.  

C. The applicant may appeal the decision of the planning and zoning commission to the city council. The city 
council shall hold a public hearing within forty days of the filing of the public notice. The city council shall 
take such action as may be necessary to ensure compliance with this title. The city council decision is final, 
and shall take effect immediately.  

D. Suspension of site plan approval shall remain in effect during the appeal process. Any site improvements 
made while suspension is in effect shall be subject to the penalties set forth in Section 16.10.020.  

(Ord. 755 § 2(part), 1995). 

16.17.080 Approval to run with land. 

Site plan approval pursuant to these provisions shall run with the land and shall continue to be valid upon a 
change of ownership of the site or structure which was the subject of the application.  

(Ord. 755 § 2(part), 1995). 

Chapter 16.20 LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM MECHANICAL CODE 

1985 EDITION 

55



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:11 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 16 of 139 

16.20.010 Local amendments to the Uniform Mechanical Code, 1985 Edition. 

The amendments to the 1985 edition of the Uniform Mechanical Code are listed hereafter by section. The 
last digits of the section number (after the title and chapter digits) are the section of the Uniform Mechanical Code 
to which the amendment refers, i.e., 16.20.202 refers to amendments to Section 202 of the Uniform Mechanical 
Code, 1985 edition.  

(Ord. 608 (part), 1986). 

16.20.203 Board of appeals. 

Amend by adding the following:  

 For the purposes of this section, the Building Board designated by Section 16.10.010 of the title shall be 
constituted as, and shall serve as, the Board of Appeals.  

(Ord. 608 (part), 1986). 

16.20.204 Violation. 

Failure to obey or comply with any provision of this chapter or any rule, order or regulation issued 
thereunder is a violation. The minimum penalty upon conviction of a single violation of this chapter shall be a fine 
of three hundred dollars.  

(Ord. 688 § 27, 1991). 

16.20.304(a) Permit fee. 

Delete and replace with the following:  

 The fee for any work covered by this code shall be included within the fee as set forth in Table 3-A of the 
Uniform Building Code.  

(Ord. 608 (part), 1986). 

16.20.404 B definitions and abbreviations. 

Amend by inserting after the definition of "building official" the following definition:  

  BUILDING PUBLIC shall be any structure which is other than Group R-3 occupancy or Group M occupancy, 
as defined in the current Uniform Building Code.  

(Ord. 608 (part), 1986). 

16.20.704 Prohibited installations. 

Amend by adding the following:  

8. Under stairways, landings or egress passageways  

Exception: Where one-hour fire resistive construction is used.  

(Ord. 608 (part), 1986). 

56



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 17 of 139 

16.20.1404(5) Exception 1. 

Amend to read as follows:  

 Boilers, central heating plants or hot—water supply boilers where the combined pieces of fuel equipment 
do not exceed 400,000 Btu per hour input.  

(Ord. 608 (part), 1986). 

Chapter 16.25 LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM PLUMBING CODE, 1979 

EDITION 

16.25.010 Local amendments to the Uniform Plumbing Code, 1979 Edition. 

Amendments to the 1979 Uniform Plumbing Code are listed hereafter by section. The last digits after the 
title and chapter digits of the section number are the section number of the Uniform Plumbing Code to which use 
amendment refers, i.e., 16.25.409(a) refers to Section 409(a) of the Uniform Plumbing Code.  

(Ord. 532 § 1 (part), 1982). 

16.25.20.3 Violations and penalties. 

Delete in its entirety and substitute 16.10.020.  

(Ord. 532 § 1 (part), 1982). 

16.25.20.7 Cost of permit—Schedule of fees. 

Amend Schedule of Fees as follows:  

 The fee for any work covered by this code shall be included within the fee as set in Table 3-A as amended.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25.20.14 Board of plumber examiners. 

Amend to read as follows:  

 For the purpose of this section, the Board of Plumber Examiners as designated by Section 16.25.010 of this 
title shall be constituted as and shall serve as the Board of Appeals.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25.203(d) Use of copper tubing. 

Amend to delete the words "or underground outside of structures."  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

57



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 18 of 139 

16.25. Table A. Table A—Plumbing material standards. 

Delete from Table A, page 23, the following:  

"Homogenous bituminized fiber drain and sewer pipe."  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25.401(a) Materials. 

Add the following exception:  

(3) That no ABS or PVC pipe shall be used underground without prior approval of the Building Official.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25.612(h) Chemical wastes. 

Amend paragraph (h) by adding a clause to the last sentence as follows:  

 (h)... except that copper piping material for drainage shall be prohibited to the point of dilution.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25.612(i) Chemical wastes. 

Add paragraph (i) as follows:  

 (i) Vacuum dental systems may be installed with schedule 40 PVC pipe and fittings, above grade. 
Protection of this piping shall conform to City code.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25.1003(k) Water-cooled compressors, degreasers of any other water-cooled equipment. 

Amend by adding a third paragraph before the exception to read as follows:  

 Installation, operation or use of air conditioning or cooling unit employing water or other fluids as a cooling 
agent without a recovery and recirculation unit is prohibited.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25.1004(a) Materials. 

Amend by deleting the second sentence.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25.1309 Prohibited locations. 

Delete exception and last sentence. Add a sentence as follows:  

58



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 19 of 139 

 Fuel-burning appliances shall not be allowed under a stairway, landing or egress passageway.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25.1326 Check valves. 

Amend Chapter 13 by adding Section 1326 to read as follows:  

 Check valves shall not be installed on any domestic water heater installation on the cold water supply 
branch, unless approved by the administrative authority.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.25 App.D. Rainwater systems. 

Amend Appendix D, Part A. DI,O. Materials, subsection (c) by deleting the subsection and inserting as 
follows:  

(c) Rainwater piping located underground within a building shall be of service weight cast iron soil pipe, 
type DVW copper tube or other approved materials.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

Chapter 16.30 LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE, 1984 

EDITION 

I. ADMINISTRATION 

16.30.010 Prohibited acts. 

A. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, association or corporation to install, alter, modify, repair or maintain 
electrical equipment within or on any building, structure or premises, whether publicly or privately owned, 
except in compliance with the provisions of this title and the 1984 edition of the National Electrical Code, 
adopted by reference in this title.  

B. Any person, firm, association or corporation who violates this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and 
shall be subject to the penalties and remedies set forth in Section 16.10.020 of this title.  

(Ord. 600 (part), 1985; Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.015 Permits—Required—Exceptions. 

No electrical equipment shall be installed within or on any building, structure, premises, publicly or privately 
nor shall any alteration or addition be made in any such existing equipment without a permit therefor first being 
secured from the building official.  

Exceptions.  

A. Minor repair work, the replacement of lamps or the connection of portable electrical equipment to 
suitable permanent installed receptacles;  

59



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 20 of 139 

B. The installation, alteration, or repair of electrical equipment for the operation of signals or electrical 
transmission under the exclusive control of public utilities;  

C. The installation, alteration or repair of electrical equipment installed by or for an electricity supply 
agency for the use of such agency in the generation, transmission, distribution or metering of 
electricity;  

D. Any work involved in the manufacturing, testing, servicing, altering or repairing of electrical equipment 
or apparatus, except that this exemption shall not include any permanent wiring other than that 
required for testing purposes.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982), 

16.30.020 Permit—Application—Plans to accompany issuance. 

Applications for such permit, describing the work to be done, shall be made in writing to the building official 
by the person installing the work. The application shall be accompanied by two sets of plans, specifications and 
schedules as may be necessary to determine whether the installation as described will be in conformity with the 
requirements of this chapter. If it is found that the installation as described will conform with all legal 
requirements, and if the applicant has complied with all provisions of this chapter, a permit for such installation 
shall be issued.  

(Ord. 532 § 1 (part), 1982). 

16.30.025 Permits—Approval or rejection—Keeping on job—Deviations. 

A. As soon as reasonably possible after the submission of the plans and specifications, the building official shall 
approve or reject them in accordance with the standards herein set forth. If approved, the plans and 
specifications shall be stamped "approved" and dated and initialed by the building official who shall file one 
copy. It shall thereafter be unlawful to change the plans and specifications. If the plans and specifications are 
rejected, the building official shall give the applicant a concise statement in writing, including reference to 
paragraphs or sections of the national code involved, of his reason for rejecting the same. No plans and 
specifications shall be approved following rejection thereof until the necessary changes have been made 
therein. All approved plans and specifications shall be kept on the job by the applicant during the period of 
installation and shall be available to the building official at all times.  

B. No deviation may be made from the installation described in the permit without the written approval of the 
building official.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.030 Permit—Fees—When paid. 

Before any permit is granted for the installation or alteration of electrical equipment, the person making 
application for such permit shall pay to the building official a fee in such amount as is prescribed by ordinance and 
set out in the schedule of fees contained in Chapter 16.15 of this title.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

60



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 21 of 139 

16.30.035 Inspections—Notices—Time. 

Upon completion of the work which has been authorized by the issuance of any permit, it shall be the duty of 
the permittee installing the same to notify the building official who shall inspect installations as soon thereafter as 
is practicable, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  

(Ord. 532 § 1 (part), 1982). 

16.30.040 Inspections—Installation authorization. 

Where the building official finds installations to be in conformity with this title, he shall authorize the use of 
the installations and connections to the source of supply and shall send notice of such authorization to the 
electrical utility furnishing the electrical service.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.045 Inspections—Defects found—Notice—Correction—Time. 

Any electrical system deemed unsafe by the building official because of wear, damage, neglect, defects or 
hazardous location shall upon written notice from the building official be repaired, replaced or altered in 
accordance with this chapter upon receipt of said notice.  

(Ord. 600 (part), 1985). 

16.30.050 Suspension of work—Notice—Causes—Continuing after building. 

The building official shall have authority to order the immediate suspension of all or any portion of the work 
of installing, altering, repairing or removing of electrical equipment, by attaching notice to that effect on the 
premises wherever it is found by him that such work is being performed without a lawful permit or that the 
drawing or specifications bearing the approval stamp of his office is not on the premises and available for 
examination, or that the work is not being installed as per plans and specifications, or that the materials and 
workmanship are not in compliance with the provisions of this chapter or that they are not in compliance with the 
permit, or that such suspension is necessary for the proper inspection of work previously performed. It is unlawful 
for any person to continue the work of installing, altering, repairing or removing such electrical equipment after 
the suspension of the work has been ordered herein provided.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30 055 Permit—Expiration when work not commenced or abandoned—New permit. 

Unless otherwise particularly stated in this code, every permit issued by the building official under the 
provisions of this code shall expire by limitation and become null and void if the work authorized by such permit is 
not commenced within ninety days from date of such permit, or if the work authorized by such permit is 
suspended or abandoned at any time after the work is commenced for a period of one hundred eighty days. 
Before such work is recommenced, a new permit shall be first obtained, and the fee shall be one-half the amount 
required for the initial permit.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

61



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 22 of 139 

16.30.060 Temporary installations—Permit—Time—Cancellation. 

If the building official finds that the safety of life and property will not be jeopardized, he shall issue permits 
for temporary electrical installations for use during the construction of buildings or for carnivals, conventions, 
festivals, fairs, holding of religious services, temporary lighting of streets and events of a similar nature. Permission 
to use such temporary installation shall not be granted for a greater length of time than thirty days, except that a 
permit for a temporary installation to be used for the construction of a building may be issued for the period of 
construction. Should such temporary lighting be over the street area, the proper authority for such use of the 
street must first be obtained. All such temporary installations shall be made in a manner as nearly as practicable in 
conformance with the requirements of this code for permanent work, provided that the building official may 
permit deviations which will not permit hazards to life and property, and provided whenever such hazards are 
deemed by the building official to exist, he may at once cancel the permit covering such installation and 
disconnect, or order the disconnection of, all energy to such equipment.  

(Ord. 532 § 1 (part), 1982). 

16.30.065 Fee designated. 

Any person desiring an electrical permit required by Sections 16.30.015 through 16.30.060, at the time of 
filing the application for such permit, shall pay to the building official the amount prescribed in the fee schedule 
listed in Chapter 16.15.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

II. LOCAL AMENDMENTS 

16.30.070 Local amendments to the National Electrical Code, 1984 Edition. 

The amendments to the 1984 edition to the National Electrical Code are listed hereafter by section. The last 
digits of the section number (following the title and chapter digits) are the section of the National Electrical Code 
to which the amendment refers, i.e., Section 16.30.210-5 refers to Section 210-5 of the National Electrical Code, 
1984 Edition.  

(Ord. 600 (part), 1985; Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.210-5 Color code for branch circuits. 

Amend by addition of a new subsection (c) to read as follows:  

(c) Ungrounded Conductor. Where installed in raceways, as open work or as concealed knob-and-tube 
work, the unground conductor shall be identified by any color other than as specified in (a) and (b) 
above. Unground conductors of a 3-phase, 4-wire 120/208 system shall be colored black, red, blue. 
Ungrounded conductors of a 3-phase, 4-wire 277/480 system shall be yellow, brown, orange.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.210-19 Conductors—Minimum ampacity and size. 

Add the following subsections (d) and (e):  

62



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 23 of 139 

(d) Storage-type Electric Water Heaters. For each storage—type electric water heater, a minimum of No. 
10 copper conductors shall be provided.  

(e) Minimum Conductor. No conductor less than No. 14 copper shall be used on control circuits carrying 
line voltage.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.210-23 Permissible loads. 

Add the following subsection (d):  

(d) Outlets Per Circuits. No more than eight duplex outlets are allowed on one branch circuit. Appliance 
branch circuits are limited to four duplex outlets.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.210-52(a) Dwelling unit. 

Add the following subparagraphs to Section 210-52(a):  

(1) There shall be one outlet in each hallway of 10 or more lineal feet.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.210-70 Lighting outlets required. 

Add the following subsection (c):  

(c) Basements or Attics for Occupancy. All basements or attics suitable for occupancy and with unfinished 
partitions installed shall be wired completely.  

(Ord. 637 (part), 1988; Ord. 600 (part), 1985; Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.30.220-3 Branch circuits required. 

Add the following subsections (e) and (f) to read as follows:  

(e) Dishwashers. A separate 20-ampere circuits shall be installed for each dishwasher.  

(f) Central Heating System Appliances. All central heating systems appliances using electrical controls shall 
be permanently connected into a separate circuit(s) for the heating system only.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.30.230-28 Service masts as supports. 

Add the following subsections (a) through (d):  

(a) Service Mast—When Required. When it is necessary to locate a meter loop on the low side of a 
structure with a pitched roof, a service mast shall be installed to protect the wiring from ice and snow. 
Only rigid street conduit shall be used for service masts.  

63



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 24 of 139 

(b) Conduit Size. Rigid conduit used for penscope shall be a minimum size of two inches and must extend 
at least three feet above the surface of the roof. An extension higher than three feet must be braced or 
guyed.  

(c) Protection for Meter. If a meter is subject to damage from rain, ice or snow, it shall be protected.  

(d) Location of Meter. Subject to utility approval.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

l6.30.230-4l Sizing and rating. 

Add subsection (d) to read:  

(d) Service Entrance. The service entrance shall be sized not less than 200 amperes for duplexes.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.230-70(a) Service equipment—Disconnecting means location. 

Add subsection (a) as follows:  

(a) All service equipment main disconnects for all occupancies other than single family dwelling, duplex, 
triplex and private garages which are not readily accessible on the ground floor of a structure or 
building shall have either the main disconnect or a shunt-trip device located in the exterior of the 
structure a minimum of eight (8) feet and a maximum of ten (10) feet above the ground. The location 
of the main disconnect or shunt-trip device for all occupancies other than R-3 and M shall be approved 
by the Building Official.  

(Ord. 600 (part), 1985). 

16.30.310-2(b) Conductor material. 

Amend by adding the following paragraph:  

 Aluminum and copper clad aluminum conductors shall not be used in any structure beyond the service 
entrance equipment.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.30.336-3(c) Uses permitted or not permitted. 

Amend subsection (c) by the addition of subparagraph (9) as follows:  

 (9) Exposed work in habitable areas.  

16.30.700(12)(f) Unit equipment. 

Amend by adding the following sentence to the second paragraph:  

 Receptacle outlets for emergency illumination equipment shall not be readily accessible to the general 
public.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

64



Title 16 - BUILDING CODES 
Chapter 16.40 LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM SIGN CODE, 1985 EDITION 

 

 

 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 25 of 139 

Chapter 16.40 LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM SIGN CODE, 1985 

EDITION 

16.40.010 Local amendments to the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition. 

The amendments to the 1985 edition of the Uniform Sign Code are listed hereafter by section. The last digits 
of the section number (after the title and chapter digits) are the section of the Uniform Sign Code to which the 
amendment refers, i.e., 16.40.103(d) refers to amendment to Section 103(d) of the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 
Edition.  

(Ord. 606 (part), 1986; Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.40.103(d) Violations. 

Amend by deleting the second paragraph and substitution as follows:  

 Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this code shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor, and each such person shall be deemed guilty of a separate offense for each and every day or 
portion thereof during which any violation of any of the provisions of this code is committed, continued or 
permitted, and shall be subject to the penalties and remedies provided in Section 15.10.020 of this title.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.40.301 Permits required. 

Amend by adding the following:  

 No permit for the erection of a permanent sign shall be issued unless the proposed sign fully conforms to all 
requirements of the zoning ordinance.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.40.302 Application for permit. 

Amend by adding the following paragraph:  

 Submission Requirements. Any application for a sign permit must contain the following material:  

 1. A drawing to scale showing design of the sign including dimensions, sign size, method of attachment, 
structural specifications, source of illumination and showing the relationship to any building or structure to 
which it is or is proposed to be installed or affixed or to which it relates.  

 2. A plot plan to scale indicating the location of the sign relative to property lines, streets and sidewalks, 
buildings and other signs or structures.  

 3. A photograph showing the proposed location of the sign.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

65



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 26 of 139 

16.40.303 Exemptions. 

Amend by adding the following:  

 4. Building construction signs. One (1) on-site building construction sign on each construction site in any 
zoning district provided that:  

 A. Maximum display surface area:  

8 square feet in all R Districts  

32 square feet in all other Districts,  

 5. Real estate signs,  

 6. Memorial signs or tablets, names of buildings and date of erection when cut into any masonry surface or 
when constructed of bronze or other non-combustible material,  

 7. Municipal signs, as approved by the Planning Commission,  

 8. Signs, painted on, or affixed to glass surfaces of windows or doors and pertaining to the lawful business 
conducted therein, and  

 9. All signs located within a building that are not visible to the public outside said building.  

(Ord. 606 (part), 1986). 

Chapter 16.45 LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM FIRE CODE, 1985 

EDITION 

16.45.010 Local amendments to the Uniform Fire Code, 1985 Edition. 

The amendments to the 1985 edition of the Uniform Fire Code are listed hereafter by section. The last digits 
of the section number (after the title and chapter digits) are the section of the Uniform Fire Code to which the 
amendment refers, i.e. Section 16.45.2.201 refers to § 2.201 of the Uniform Fire Code, 1985 Edition.  

(Ord. 635 (part), 1988). 

16.45.2.201 Inspections and unsafe buildings. 

Amend by adding a subsection (c) to read as follows:  

 (c) The chief or his authorized representative may issue a closure and vacate order without prior notice or 
hearing where there is imminent danger to life from faulty equipment and appliances, blocked or inadequate 
exits, disaster damage or extremely hazardous, solid and liquid materials.  

(Ord. 635 (part), 1988). 

16.45.2.302 Board of appeals. 

Amend the first sentence by substituting "seven" for "five" members. Add a second paragraph as follows:  

 For the purpose of this section, the Building Board created under § 16.10.010 of this title shall be 
constituted as and shall serve as the Board of Appeals.  

66



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 27 of 139 

(Ord. 635 (part), 1988). 

16.45.10.206 Obstruction of fire-protection equipment. 

Amend to read as follows:  

 No vehicle shall be parked within 15 feet of the front and 10 feet of the sides of a fire hydrant, Fire 
Department connection or fire protection control valve on private or public property. Fire Department 
connections and fire protection system control valves will be posted with an approved City "no parking" sign. 
The cost of such signs shall be borne by the property owner.  

(Ord. 635 (part), 1988). 

16.45.10.207(f) Vertical clearance. 

Amended to read as follows:  

 All fire apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 14 feet.  

(Ord. 635 (part), 1988). 

16.45.10.207(I) Signs. 

Amend by adding the following sentence:  

 "No Parking" signs shall be City approved signs and the cost of such signs shall be borne by the property 
owner.  

(Ord. 635 (part), 1988). 

16.45.10.307(a). 

Delete the first paragraph (a) and insert the following:  

 (a) Every apartment house and every hotel shall have installed therein an approved automatic or manually 
operated fire alarm system designed to warn the occupants of the building in the event of fire. Such fire 
alarm system shall be so designed that all occupants of the building may be warned simultaneously. The 
alarm system shall include provisions for smoke detection and manual operation in interior corridors and 
automatic detection in storage rooms, laundry rooms, furnace rooms and similar common areas.  

(Ord. 635 (part), 1988). 

Chapter 16.50 PRIVATE FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS 

16.50.010 Connection to municipal circuit—Permit required. 

A person having a private fire alarm system may connect the system to the city fire alarm circuit or directly 
connect the system to the fire alarm headquarters, after obtaining a permit for the connection from the fire chief.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

67



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:12 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 28 of 139 

16.50.020 Permit—Standards. 

The fire chief shall issue a permit for the connection if the fire chief finds that the connection:  

A. Will be compatible with the city fire alarm circuit or system;  

B. Will connect an adequate, properly installed and maintained private alarm system; and  

C. Will substantially benefit the city fire prevention system.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.50.030 Permit—Restriction. 

The permit required by Section 16.50.010 will be issued subject to the fire department rules and regulations 
and shall be conditioned upon such reasonable requirements, terms and conditions as the fire chief may require.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.50.040 Permit—Revocation. 

A permit may be revoked by the fire chief for noncompliance with the permit standards, rules, regulations, 
conditions or restrictions. The permit may be revoked by the fire chief if the chief, in his discretion, finds that the 
disconnection of the private alarm system is in the best interests of the city. The permit holder may appeal a 
decision to revoke a permit to the city manager, who shall conduct an administrative hearing pursuant to Chapter 
3.60 of this code within fifteen days to review the wisdom, legality and appropriateness of that decision. The prior 
granting of a permit or the expenditure of moneys by the permit holder will not create any vested right in the 
permit holder or act to estop the city from taking any action authorized by law to enforce the provisions of this 
chapter.  

(Ord. 532 § 1 (part), 1982). 

16.50.050 Radio fire alarm box—Payment of costs—Maintenance of system. 

The permit holder shall pay the city for the cost of a radio fire alarm box or for the converting of the initial 
hookup. The permit holder shall pay the cost of providing, installing and maintaining the private system up to the 
radio fire alarm box. The maintenance of the private system must be by a qualified person engaged in the business 
of installing and maintaining a supervisory fire alarm system, who shall use the insurance services office's and 
National Fire Protection Association's standards that are approved by the fire chief. After the private alarm system 
is properly connected, it shall be deemed part of the city fire alarm system.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.50.060 Unauthorized connection or disconnection unlawful. 

It is unlawful for a person not authorized by the fire chief to connect or disconnect, temporarily or otherwise, 
a private fire alarm system, or other wires or conduits leading to a city fire alarm circuit or city fire system. The fire 
chief shall authorize specific connection or disconnection by written permit.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

68



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 29 of 139 

16.50.070 Connection, inspection and permit fees. 

The permit holder shall pay the following fees for the connection of the private fire alarm system to the city 
fire system:  

A. Permit fee;  

B. Initial connection fee;  

C. Cost to convert existing radio alarm box to accept private fire alarm system;  

D. New radio alarm box;  

E. Monthly inspection fee.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.50.080 Prohibited acts. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, association or corporation to do any act required under this chapter 
or to fail to do any act required under this chapter. Any person, firm, association or corporation who violates this 
section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be subject to the penalties and remedies set forth in Section 
16.10.020 of this title.  

(Ord. 532 § 1 (part), 1982). 

Chapter 16.70 LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM HOUSING CODE, 1979 

EDITION 

16.70.010 Local amendments to the Uniform Housing Code, 1979 Edition. 

The amendments to the 1979 edition of the Uniform Housing Code are listed hereafter by section. The last 
digits of the section number (after the title and chapter digits) are the section of the Uniform Housing Code to 
which the amendment refers, i.e. 16.70.202 refers to amendments to Section 202 of the Uniform Housing Code, 
1979 Edition. (Chapter 10 through 16 not adopted by this chapter.)  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.70.202 Section 202 deleted. 

Delete in entirety.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.70.203 Housing advisory and appeals board. 

Amend to read as follows:  

 Section 203. For the purpose of this section, the Building Board designated in Section 10.10.010 of this title 
shall be constituted as and shall serve as the Housing Advisory and Board of Appeals.  

69



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 30 of 139 

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

16.70.801 Exits. 

Amend the third paragraph, fourth sentence to read as follows:  

 Where windows are provided as a means of egress or rescue, they shall have a finished sill height not more 
than forty-eight inches above the floor.  

(Ord. 532 § l(part), 1982). 

Chapter 16.75 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

16.75.010 Powers—Adopted. 

Housing and urban development powers are adopted and assumed by the city.  

(Ord. 32 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.75.020 Powers—Limitations. 

Housing and urban development powers are limited to development of a senior citizens housing project.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

16.75.030 Contract and implementation authority. 

The city manager of the city is authorized to enter into such contracts and agreements necessary to 
implement and carry out the powers assumed in Sections 16.75.010 and 16.75.020 above.  

(Ord. 532 § 1(part), 1982). 

Chapter 16.80 MOBILE HOME PARKS 

16.80.010 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following terms shall be defined as follows:  

A. "Lean to" means a portable, demountable, or permanent room enclosure adjoining a mobile home and 
used for human occupancy, storage or entryway.  

B. "Mobile home" means a detached residential dwelling unit designed for transportation after 
fabrication on streets or highways on its own wheels or on flatbed or other trailers, and arriving at the 
site where it is to be occupied as a dwelling complete and ready for occupancy except for minor and 
incidental unpacking and assembly operations, location on jacks, or other temporary or permanent 
foundation, connection to utilities, and the like.  

1. "Single-wide mobile home" means a transportable single-family dwelling which may be towed on 
its own running gear, and which may be temporarily or permanently affixed to real estate, used 

70



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 31 of 139 

for nontransient residential purposes and constructed with the same or similar electrical, 
plumbing, and sanitary facilities as immobile housing.  

2. "Double-wide mobile home" means two portable units designed and built to be towed on their 
own separate chassis and permanently combined on-site to form a single immobile dwelling unit.  

C. "Mobile home park" means a parcel of land under single ownership which has been planned and 
improved for the placement of two or more mobile homes for nontransient use.  

D. "Habitable room" means a room or enclosed floor space arranged for living, eating, food preparation, 
or sleeping purposes that does not include bathrooms, toilet compartments, laundries, pantries, artic 
entries, foyers, hallways, and other accessory floor space.  

E. "Rafted roof" means any freestanding roof or shade structure, installed or erected above a mobile 
home or any portion thereof.  

F. "Trailer" means a mobile home.  

G. "Building board" means the building board created pursuant to Section 16.10.010.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000: Ord. 680 § 1(part), 1991). 

16.80.020 License—Required—Term—Transferability. 

It is unlawful for any person, persons, firm or corporation to establish, operate, manage or maintain or begin 
the operation of any mobile home park within the city without first having obtained an annual license therefor 
from the city building inspector authorizing the operation of such mobile home park. A mobile home park license 
shall cover the period from January 1st to December 31st. Such annual license shall not be transferable.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000: Ord. 680 § 1(part), 1991). 

16.80.030 License—Applications fees—Site plan. 

Each application for a mobile home park license shall be submitted to the city building inspector on a form 
provided by the city and containing such information as is requested on the form, and shall be accompanied by (1) 
a nonrefundable fee of thirty-five dollars or three dollars per space in the mobile home park, whichever is greater, 
and (2) a plan drawn to scale showing the external boundaries of the park, the size and locations of all mobile 
home spaces, buildings and structures, sewer lines and their connections, electric lines and their connections, 
water lines and their connections, power poles and meter locations. All water and sewer lines must also have 
complete engineered drawings. All electrical services supplying mobile homes shall be maintained in a serviceable 
condition and conform to the provisions of the National Electrical Code under which they were installed. Any 
electrical services that are replaced or newly installed shall conform to the edition of the National Electrical Code 
in effect at the time of replacement or installation. Each mobile home space shall be given a number on the plan.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000: Ord. 680 § 1(part), 1991). 

16.80.040 License—Denial—Fees—Revocation—Reinstatement. 

A. The city building inspector may deny a license for good cause. Denial of a license may be appealed to the 
building board.  

B. The city council may revoke a license issued under this chapter or Chapter 18.60 upon a determination of the 
city building inspector that a violation or violations of this chapter have occurred in connection with the 
licensee's mobile home park and such violations have not been cured within thirty days after the licensee 

71



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 32 of 139 

receives notice thereof, including the payment of fines for such violations. Revocation of a license shall not 
be appealable, but a revoked license may be reinstated in accordance with subsection C of this section. Upon 
revocation, in addition to any other remedy or penalty provided by this chapter, the city may seek injunctive 
relief to restrain the operation, management or maintenance of the mobile home park in violation of this 
chapter. Upon application for injunctive relief and a finding that a person, persons, firm or corporation is 
operating, managing, or maintaining a mobile home park in violation of this chapter, the superior court shall 
grant injunctive relief to restrain the violation or violations.  

C. The city building inspector may reinstate a license revoked under subsection B upon receiving (1) a written 
request for reinstatement, (2) satisfactory evidence that the violation or violations upon which the license 
revocation was based have been cured, and the licensee and the mobile home park are otherwise in full 
compliance with the provisions of this chapter, and (3) full payment of any outstanding and unpaid fines, and 
payment of a reinstatement fee. A reinstated license shall expire on the license's original expiration date. 
Denial of a request for reinstatement of a revoked license may be appealed to the building board.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000: Ord. 680 § 1(part), 1991). 

16.80.045 License—Renewals. 

The city building inspector may renew a license issued under this chapter, or a renewal thereof, for an 
additional one-year period upon the expiration of such license or renewal period upon (1) receiving a written 
request for renewal from the licensee not less than thirty days prior to the expiration of the license or renewal 
period, accompanied by payment of a nonrefundable renewal fee of thirty-five dollars or three dollars per space in 
the mobile home park, whichever is greater, and (2) determining that the mobile home park is being operated, 
managed and maintained in full compliance with the provisions of this chapter, and that there are no outstanding 
and unpaid fines or fees. A decision not to renew a license or renewal may be appealed to the building board.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000). 

16.80.050 Conditional use permit. 

Mobile home parks may be permitted in any zoning district as a conditional use. Conditional use permits 
must be obtained as required in Chapter 18.60 of this code.  

(Ord. 680 § 1(part), 1991). 

16.80.055 Inspections—Changed conditions. 

A. Mobile home parks may be inspected by the city building inspector or his designee periodically for 
compliance with this chapter.  

B. Changes in the boundaries or design of, or the addition of a mobile home or homes to, a mobile home park 
shall not be performed without the licensee first submitting to and having approved by the city building 
inspector or his designee a revised site plan specifying the changes or additions. The city building inspector 
or his designee shall approve or disapprove any proposed changes or additions within thirty days of receiving 
the revised site plan. A decision not to approve of a change or addition may be appealed to the building 
board.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000). 

72



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 33 of 139 

16.80.060 Specifications. 

A. The management of every mobile home park shall maintain in good repair and appearance all sanitary 
facilities, utilities, and appliances which are owned and operated by the park owners. Supervision and 
equipment sufficient to prevent littering of the premises with rubbish, garbage, or other refuse shall be 
provided and maintained at all times.  

B. Each mobile home park shall provide not less than one thousand nine hundred fifty square feet of space 
(sixty-five feet by thirty feet minimum) for each mobile home space. Except as specified in Section 
16.80.060(M), there shall be a five-foot setback from all exterior park boundaries or property lines. Any 
portion of the mobile home (excluding the tongue), lean-to or rafted roof shall not be located closer than ten 
feet side-to-side, ten feet end-to- side, or ten feet end-to-end horizontally from any other trailer, lean-to or 
rafted roof unless the exposed composite walls and roofs of both structures are without openings and 
constructed of materials that will provide a one-hour fire rating or the structures are separated by a one-
hour fire-rated barrier. At no time shall the distance be less than six feet. The distance shall be measured 
wall-to-wall; eaves shall not extend into the setback more than sixteen inches.  

C. Mobile home parks shall establish and maintain a fire apparatus access roadway not less than twenty feet 
wide and an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than fifteen feet between rows of mobile homes that 
are not situated end-to-end. Roadways shall be well maintained in summer and winter, and shall remain free 
and clear of all obstacles including parked vehicles at all times. Roadways and mobile home spaces shall be 
well marked in daylight and well lighted at night so that space numbers and addresses can be easily read 
from the road, and walking along road and pathways is not hazardous.  

D. Mobile home parks shall be well drained and free from insect breeding places. Fires in parks shall be made 
only in stoves or other equipment provided for that purpose, and open, unattended fire shall not be 
permitted.  

E. An adequate supply of safe water for drinking and domestic purposes shall be provided. The water supply 
shall be easily obtainable from a pipe distribution system. Individual water distribution pipes shall be 
conveniently located on each mobile home space. Effective with the passage of the ordinance codified in this 
chapter the following shall also apply:  

1. Individual water shutoff valves shall be provided and conveniently located on each mobile home space 
in all new installations;  

2. Private water systems must be DEC approved; and  

3. The water system must be connected to the public water system when the public water system is 
within one hundred fifty feet of the exterior property on any side of the mobile trailer park.  

F. All mobile homes shall be connected to a private or public sewer system and all sewage shall be disposed of 
through same. Effective with the passage of the ordinance codified in this chapter the following shall also 
apply:  

1. Where the public sewer system is within one hundred fifty feet of the exterior property line on any side 
of the mobile home park, the park shall be connected to the public sewer system and all sewage shall 
be disposed of through same; and  

2. Private sewer systems must be DEC approved.  

G. Wastewater from sinks, showers, toilets, and other plumbing fixtures in the mobile home park shall not be 
deposited on the surface of the ground and all fixtures shall be connected to the private or public sewer 
system in an approved manner.  

73



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 34 of 139 

H. The park manager shall provide or require that park residents provide garbage containers with close-fitting 
covers in convenient locations and ample numbers. The containers shall not be permitted to become foul 
smelling, unsightly, or breeding places for flies. All garbage, trash, and rubbish shall be disposed of in such 
manner as is provided by ordinances of the city.  

I. Each mobile home space shall have an individual electrical hookup installed by a registered electrician and 
inspected by the city building inspector before a mobile home is connected to the hookup. No mobile home 
shall be connected to the electric system of the mobile home park if the building inspector finds the hookup 
to be hazardous. In the event a mobile home is removed and replaced with another, the replacement mobile 
home shall not be connected to an existing hookup until it is reinspected by the city building inspector.  

J. Mobile home parks shall have adequate fire protection. No mobile home shall be more than five hundred 
feet from the nearest fire hydrant and hydrant spacing shall not exceed eight hundred feet between 
hydrants. In closely built areas these requirements may be tightened if that is determined to be necessary by 
the fire chief to ensure the public safety.  

K. Mobile home parks shall provide adequate snow dumps or otherwise provide for the adequate disposal of 
snow.  

L. Each mobile home, except any located in temporary spaces as provided in Section 16.80.065, placed in a 
mobile home subsequent to the passage of the ordinance codified in this chapter must be certified as a 
manufactured mobile home.  

M. All mobile homes placed in a mobile home park subsequent to the passage of the ordinance codified in this 
chapter shall be required to maintain a minimum setback of twenty feet from any part of the mobile home 
and/or lean-to from any lake, stream waters or wetlands. Any additional requirements of the Cordova 
coastal management plan shall also apply.  

N. A site development permit must be issued by the city prior to the placement or replacement of any mobile 
home.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000: Ord. 680 § 1(part), 1991). 

16.80.065 Temporary placement of travel trailers. 

Travel trailers that are not classified as manufactured mobile homes as defined in Section 16.80.010 (B) may 
be temporarily placed in a mobile home park between April 1st and October 31st. All specifications as given in 
Section 16.80.060 shall apply.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000). 

16.80.070 Supervision. 

Each mobile home park, while occupied, shall be under the supervision and control of a responsible 
attendant or caretaker who shall be responsible, together with the licensee, for full compliance with the provisions 
of this chapter.  

(Ord. 680 § 1(part), 1991). 

74



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 35 of 139 

16.80.080 Accessory structures. 

Lean-tos and rafted roofs must be designed to meet the minimum wind and snow loads. Lean-tos, rafted 
roofs and outbuildings may be constructed only after obtaining a building permit from the city building inspector, 
and then only in accordance with the city's construction rules relating to temporary structures.  

A. Lean-tos. Every habitable room in a lean-to shall have access to at least one exterior opening suitable 
for exiting directly to the outside without passing through the trailer. Where a lean-to encloses two 
doors of a trailer or an emergency exit window, an additional exterior door shall be installed. This 
exterior door shall not be less than twenty-eight inches in width and six feet two inches in height. All 
lean-tos shall be of finished construction and if sealed, sheetrock or other fire resistant material shall 
be used.  

B. Rafted Roofs. A rafted roof may exceed the height and extend over the mobile home to which it is 
attached provided that the roof free-spans the mobile home over which it is constructed.  

C. Outbuildings. Any building not directly attached to the mobile home is considered an "outbuilding." 
There shall be a setback of five feet from the exterior property line for all outbuildings. Outbuildings 
constructed entirely of materials that do not support combustion shall not be placed closer than five 
feet to a mobile home and/or lean-to. Outbuildings constructed of combustible materials shall not be 
placed closer than ten feet to a mobile home and/or lean-to.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000: Ord. 680 § 1(part), 1991). 

16.80.090 Certain violations designated. 

A. Failure to operate, manage or maintain a mobile home park in accordance with this chapter or in compliance 
with provisions, terms, conditions, and specifications of an application or site plan approved, or a license 
issued, under this chapter shall be a violation of this chapter.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000: Ord. 680 § 1(part), 1991). 

16.80.100 Fine—Liability for violations. 

A. There shall be a fine of one hundred dollars per day for each violation of this chapter after notice thereof.  

B. The mobile home park owner shall be liable, individually and jointly with any other responsible person or 
entity, for any violation of this chapter associated with the owner's mobile home park, whether such 
violation occurs on or off the mobile home park premises, and for payment of the fines for such violation or 
violations. For the purposes of this chapter, "other responsible person or entity" includes, without limitation, 
a park manager, caretaker, attendant, supervisor, mobile home owner, mobile home renter, or park 
resident, whether residing within or outside the authorized park boundaries, who the city building inspector 
determines was responsible for or substantially contributed to a violation of this chapter.  

(Ord. 869 (part), 2000). 

Chapter 16.90 TRAILERS AND TRAILER CAMPS 

16.90.010 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following terms shall be defined as follows:  

75



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 36 of 139 

A. "Automobile trailer" means any vehicle used for sleeping or living quarters and propelled either by its 
own power or by other power-driven vehicles to which it may be attached. This includes travel trailers, 
recreational vehicles, camper units on pickups, and the like.  

B. "Automobile trailer camp" means any lot or parcel of ground arranged for the parking of automobile 
trailers, referred to in this chapter as "camp." Automobile trailer camps are primarily for recreational 
vehicles whose stay will be short term or seasonal.  

(Ord. 681 (part), 1991). 

16.90.020 License—Required—Term—Transferability. 

It is unlawful for any person, persons, firm or corporation to establish, operate, manage, or maintain or begin 
the operation of any automobile trailer camp within the city without first having obtained a license therefor from 
the city building inspector authorizing the operation of such automobile trailer camp. An automobile trailer camp 
license shall cover the period from January 1st to December 31st. Such automobile trailer camp license shall not be 
transferable.  

(Ord. 681 (part), 1991). 

16.90.030 License—Applications. 

Each application for a trailer camp license shall be accompanied by a plan drawn to scale showing the 
external boundaries of the camp, the size and location of all trailer spaces, buildings and structures, sewer lines 
and their connections, electric lines and their connections, water lines and their connections, power poles and 
meter locations. The clearance of all electric connections must conform to city codes and the latest edition of the 
National Electrical Code. Each trailer space shall be given a number on the plan.  

(Ord. 681 (part), 1991). 

16.90.040 License—Fees—Revocation. 

The fee to be paid for a license for an automobile trailer camp shall be a minimum fee of thirty-five dollars 
per year or three dollars per space per year, whichever is greater. Any failure on the part of management to 
maintain the automobile trailer camp in an orderly, safe, and sanitary condition shall be grounds for revocation of 
the license by the city council.  

(Ord. 681 (part), 1991). 

16.90.050 Conditional use permit. 

Automobile trailer camps may be permitted in any zoning district as a conditional use. Conditional use 
permits must be obtained as required in Chapter 18.60 of this code.  

(Ord. 681 (part), 1991). 

16.90.060 Specifications. 

A. The management of every automobile trailer camp shall maintain in good repair and appearance all sanitary 
facilities and appliances. Supervision and equipment sufficient to prevent littering of the premises with 
rubbish, garbage, or other refuse shall be provided and maintained at all times.  

76



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 37 of 139 

B. No trailer shall be placed closer than ten feet to the next adjoining trailer on the side and ten feet on the 
end. There shall be a fifteen-foot setback from all exterior camp boundaries or property lines. This setback 
cannot be used as a roadway. A minimum of ten percent of the total camp area shall be provided as an open 
green area for recreation, picnics and other activities. The exterior boundary setback may be used to fulfill 
this requirement. Camps shall have roadways at least twenty feet wide between rows of shall have roadways 
at least twenty feet wide between rows of trailers. Roadways shall be well maintained. Roadways and trailer 
spaces shall be well marked in day-light and well lighted at night.  

C. Automobile trailer camp areas shall be well drained and free from insect breeding places. Fires in such areas 
shall be made only in stoves, fireplaces, or pits provided for that purposes, and open, unattended fire shall 
not be permitted.  

D. An adequate supply of safe water for drinking and domestic purposes shall be provided. The water supply 
shall be easily obtainable from a pipe distribution system. Water faucets shall not be more than seventy-five 
feet from any trailer space.  

E. The premises occupied by the trailer camp shall be connected with the public sewer in an approved manner 
and all sewage shall be discharged through the same. In limited cases, other disposal systems may be 
acceptable if they are approved by the city and the Department of Environmental Conservation.  

F. Wastewater from sinks, showers, toilets, and other plumbing fixtures in the automobile trailer shall be 
deposited in a plumbing fixture connected to the public sewer system and not on the surface of the ground.  

G. The trailer camp manager shall provide garbage containers with close-fitting covers in convenient locations 
and in ample numbers. The containers shall not be permitted to become foul smelling, unsightly, or breeding 
places for flies. All garbage, rubbish, and trash shall be disposed of in such manner as is provided by 
ordinances of the city.  

H. No trailer shall be connected to the electric system of the city if the building inspector finds the wiring of any 
such trailer to be hazardous.  

(Ord. 681 (part), 1991). 

16.90.070 Supervision. 

Each trailer camp, while occupied, shall be under the supervision and control of a responsible attendant or 
caretaker who shall be responsible, together with the licensee, for full compliance with the provisions of this 
chapter.  

(Ord. 681 (part) , 1991). 

16.90.080 Violations designated. 

A. There shall be a fine of one hundred dollars for each violation of this chapter.  

B. It is unlawful for any person to own or maintain any automobile trailer when it is being used as a dwelling 
place at any place other than the licensed trailer camp. Automobile trailers operated by tourists or visitors 
who are visiting Cordova or Cordova residents, are staying less than thirty days, and are parked on private 
land or another lawful location, are exempt. Exceptions to this section may be made on a case by case basis 
for people using auto-mobile trailers as a primary residence for a period longer than thirty days provided 
that:  

1. A permit to camp outside of a trailer camp has been obtained from the city. The fee for such permit 
shall be thirty-five dollars per month and permits shall be is-sued for the duration of the stay. Permits 

77



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 38 of 139 

for camping outside of automobile trailer camps shall be issued for the period April 1st through 
October 31st;  

2. The trailer is parked on private land with the permission of the landowner. Landowners may not charge 
a fee for this service nor operate a trailer camp without obtaining a license to do so from the city. 
Automobile trailers shall be limited to one per lot in residential areas;  

3. The camp situation is not an unreasonable in-convenience or nuisance to neighboring landowners;  

4. Adequate arrangements have been made for garbage and sewage disposal;  

5. The trailer has access to an adequate supply of safe drinking water;  

6. The trailer is not parked on the right-of-way of any city street or alley, on public lands such as parks 
unless otherwise authorized, on unoccupied city-owned commercial or industrial lands, or any other 
areas which are inappropriate for this use as determined by the planning commission;  

7. Adequate off-street parking must be provided for the automobile trailer. The space provided shall be in 
addition to the spaces required in Chapter 18.48 of this code. The parking of trailers shall not result in 
the displacement of other vehicles such that they must then park in the street.  

C. The administration of this section shall be determined by the city manager. These permitting provisions may 
be revoked by ordinance if the council finds that to be in the best interest of the city.  

D. It is unlawful for any person to remove the wheels or other transportation device from any automobile 
trailer or otherwise affix said trailer permanently to the ground so as to prevent ready removal, unless a 
permit to do so is obtained as required for the construction of a new building. Any alterations of an 
automobile trailer which converts the same into a permanent dwelling shall be subject to the requirements 
of the building code and zoning ordinances of the city.  

E. It is unlawful to occupy for sleeping or other residence purposes any automobile trailer which has been 
rendered immobile by the removal of the wheels or placing the same on foundations or the ground unless 
such trailer is connected to water, electric, and sewer facilities above mentioned, and the construction and 
location of the same complies with the ordinances applicable to single-family dwellings.  

F. The building board may grand an exception from subsections A, B and C of this section for up to twelve 
months to allow a lot owner to place temporary living quarters on a lot provided that:  

1. A building permit has been issued;  

2. Water, sewer, and electric utilities have been installed;  

3. A foundation has been constructed and approved;  

4. Only the lot owner may be allowed to occupy the temporary residence, and that such temporary 
residence may not be inhabited by other than the lot owner's immediate family;  

5. The temporary living quarters must be removed from the lot or vacated prior to the issuance of a 
certificate of occupancy for the residence or at the end of the twelve-month period.  

(Ord. 713, 1993; Ord. 681 (part), 1991). 

Title 18  

ZONING 

Chapter 18.04 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

78



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 39 of 139 

18.04.010 Purpose. 

The zones and regulations pertaining thereto as set forth in this title are made for the purpose of promoting 
health, safety, morals and general welfare of the community. They are designed to lessen congestion in streets, to 
secure safety from fire, panic and other dangers, to provide adequate light and air, to prevent overcrowding of 
land, to avoid undue concentration of population, to facilitate adequate provision of transportation, water, 
sewerage, schools, parks and other public requirements. They are made with reasonable consideration, among 
other things as to the character of each district and its peculiar suitability for particular uses, and with a view to 
conserving the value of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the city. This title 
is based on a comprehensive study of the area and becomes one part of the complementation of the general plan.  

(Prior code Ch. 15 Art. II(part)). 

18.04.020 Title—Term. 

A. The ordinance codified in this title may be cited as the "zoning ordinance of the city of Cordova, Alaska."  

B. This zoning ordinance shall remain in force until repealed.  

(Prior code Ch. 15 Art. II(part)). 

18.04.030 Application of regulations. 

The regulations set by this title within each district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply uniformly to 
each class or kind of structure or land and, particularly, except as hereinafter provided:  

A. No building or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or part thereof shall be erected, 
moved or altered unless in conformity with the regulations specified for the district in which it is 
located.  

B. No structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:  

1. To exceed the height;  

2. To accommodate or house a greater number of Families;  

3. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or  

4. To have narrower or smaller rear yard, front yard or side yard than is specified in this title for the 
district in which such building is located.  

C. No yard or other open space provided about any building for the purpose of complying with the 
provisions of this title shall be considered as providing a yard or open space for any other building, and 
no yard or open space on one lot shall be considered as providing a yard or open space on any other 
lot.  

(Prior code Ch. 15 Art. II(part)). 

18.04.040 Uses—Generally. 

A. The express enumeration and authorization of a particular class of building, structure, premise or use in a 
designated district shall be deemed a prohibition of such building, structure, premises or use in all other 
districts unless otherwise specified.  

79



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 40 of 139 

B. Uses other than those specifically permitted in each of the districts may be permitted therein; provided, that 
such uses are similar to those mentioned and are determined by the planning commission to be not more 
obnoxious or detrimental to the welfare of the community than the permitted uses.  

C. Uses other than those specifically excluded from each of the districts may be excluded therefrom; provided, 
that such uses are determined by the planning commission to be not less obnoxious or detrimental to the 
welfare of the community than those uses specifically excluded.  

D. The use of buildings and property publicly owned and engaged in the performance of a public function may 
be permitted in any district; provided, that such use is not, in the opinion of the planning commission, 
obnoxious or detrimental to the welfare of the community.  

(Prior code § 15.209(B)). 

18.04.050 Uses—Public. 

To insure that public uses and structures conform to the general community pattern and, insofar as practical, 
to regulations governing private uses and development, agencies of the Federal Government, the state and the 
borough should submit plans and receive approvals in conformance with the regulations outlined in this title.  

(Prior code § 15.211). 

18.04.060 Uses—Private. 

Whenever private use is made of any public land or public structures, such private use shall fully conform to 
the regulations set forth in this title.  

(Prior code § 15.212). 

Chapter 18.08 DEFINITIONS3 

18.08.010 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this title, the words and terms set forth in this chapter shall have the following meanings:  

"Alley" means a public way designed and intended to provide only a secondary means of access to any 
property abutting thereon.  

"Alteration" means any change, addition or modification in the construction, location or use classification.  

"Amateur radio antenna" means a structure or device designed to collect or radiate electromagnetic waves 
for noncommercial amateur radio equipment including without limitation ham, citizen band radio, VHF and single 
side-band antennas.  

 

3Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 1134, § 1, adopted October 7, 2015, repealed ch. 18.08, §§ 18.08.010—18.08.630, in its 
entirety; and enacted a new ch. 18.08 to read as set out herein. Former ch. 18.08 pertained to similar subject 
matter, and was derived from Prior code §§ 15.208(part), 15.208(A), 15.208(B); Ord. No. 585 (part), adopted 
1984; Ord. No. 695 § 1, adopted 1992; Ord. No. 805 § 1, adopted 1998; Ord. No. 1070, §§ 1—8, adopted July 
21, 2010 and Ord. No. 1073, adopted July 7, 2010.  

80



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 41 of 139 

"Antenna" means a structure or device designed to collect or radiate electromagnetic waves, including, 
without limitation, directional antennas such as panels, microwave dishes, satellite dishes; and omni-directional 
antennas such as whip antennas.  

"Automobile wrecking" means the dismantling of used motor vehicles or trailers or the storage or sale of 
parts from dismantled or partially dismantled, obsolete or wrecked vehicles.  

"Boardinghouse" means a building other than a hotel with not more than five sleeping rooms where lodging, 
with or without meals, is provided for compensation for three or more persons, but not exceeding fifteen persons, 
on other than day-to-day basis and which is not open to transient guests.  

"Building" means any structure built for the support, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, chattels or 
property of any kind.  

"Building, accessory" means a detached building, the use of which is appropriate, subordinate and 
customarily incidental to that of the main building or to the main use of the land and which is located on the same 
lot as the main building or use. An accessory building shall be considered to be a part of the main building when 
joined to the main building by a common wall not less than four feet long or when any accessory building and the 
main building are connected by a breezeway which shall not be less than eight feet in width.  

"Building, agricultural" means a building located in the unclassified district and used to shelter farm 
implements, hay, grain, poultry, livestock or other farm produce, in which there is no human habitation and which 
is not used by the public.  

"Building area" means the total of areas taken on a horizontal plane at the main grade level of the principal 
building and all accessory buildings, exclusive of steps.  

"Building code" means the building code and/or other building regulations applicable to the city.  

"Building, existing" means a building erected prior to the adoption of the ordinance codified in this chapter 
or one for which a legal building permit has been issued.  

"Building height" means the vertical distance from the grade to the highest point of the roof.  

"Building official" means the officer charged with the administration and enforcement of this title. The public 
works director shall act as building official until the city council otherwise designates.  

"Building, principal" or "main building" means a building in which is conducted the principal or main use of 
the lot on which said building is situated.  

"Children's nursery" means any home or institution used and maintained to provide day care for more than 
four children not more than seven years of age.  

"Collocation" means the use of a telecommunication tower by more than one provider of telecommunication 
service.  

"Coverage" means that percentage of the total lot area covered by the building area.  

"Cultural center" means a building used for the promotion of culture, arts, science, education, and/or 
research.  

"Dwelling" means a building or any portion thereof designed or used exclusively for residential occupancy 
including one-family, two-family and multiple-family dwellings, but not including any other building wherein 
human beings may be housed.  

"Dwelling, multiple-family" means any building containing three or more dwelling units.  

"Dwelling, one-family" means any detached building containing only one dwelling unit.  

"Dwelling, two-family" means any building containing only two dwelling units.  

81



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 42 of 139 

"Dwelling unit" means one or more rooms and a single kitchen in a dwelling designed as a unit for occupancy 
by not more than one family for living or sleeping purposes, and in which not more than two persons are lodged 
for hire.  

"Family" means any number of individuals related by blood or marriage or an unrelated group of not more 
than five persons living together as a single housekeeping unit in a dwelling unit.  

"Fence height" means the vertical distance between the ground, either natural or filled, directly under the 
fence and the highest point of the fence.  

"Floor area" means the total of each floor of a building within the surrounding outer walls but excluding vent 
shafts and courts.  

"Frontage" means all the property fronting on one side a street between intersecting streets or between a 
street and right-of-way, end of street or city boundary.  

"Garage, private" means an accessory building or any portion of a main building used in connection with 
residential purposes for the storage of passenger motor vehicles.  

"Garage, public" means any garage, other than a private garage, available to the public, operated for gain, 
and which is used for storage, repair, rental, greasing, washing, servicing, or adjusting or equipping of automobiles 
or other vehicles.  

"Garage, storage" means any building or portion thereof, other than a private garage, used for the storage of 
motor vehicles and the incidental service of vehicles stored therein.  

"Grade" or "ground level" means the average level of the finished ground at the center of all walls to a 
building. In case walls are parallel to and within five feet of a public sidewalk, the ground level shall be measured at 
the sidewalk.  

"Guest room" means any room in a hotel, dormitory, boarding house or lodging house used and maintained 
to provide sleeping accommodations for not more than two persons. Each one hundred square feet or fraction 
thereof of floor area used for sleeping purposes shall be considered to be a separate guest room.  

"Home occupation" means an accessory use of a service character customarily conducted within a dwelling 
by the residents thereof, which is clearly secondary to the use of the dwelling for living purposes and does not 
change the character thereof and does not involve more than one paid assistant.  

"Hotel" means any building or group of buildings in which there are rooms used, designed or intended to be 
used for the purpose of offering to the general public food or lodging, or both, on a day-to-day basis.  

"Junkyard" means any space one hundred square feet or more of any lot or parcel of land used for the 
storage, keeping or abandonment of junk or waste material including scrap metals or other scrap materials, or for 
the dismantling, demolition or abandonment of automobiles, other vehicles, machinery or any parts thereof.  

"Loading space" means an off-street space or berth on the same lot within a building or structure to be used 
for the temporary parking of commercial vehicles while loading or unloading merchandise or materials.  

"Lot" means a parcel of land occupied or to be occupied by a use, building or unit group of buildings, and 
accessory buildings and uses, together with such yards, open spaces, lot widths and lot area as are required by this 
title and having frontage on a public street.  

"Lot, corner" means a lot situated at the junction of, and bordering on, two intersecting streets.  

"Lot depth" means the horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines measured in the mean 
direction of the side lot lines.  

"Lot line, corner lot front" means the shortest street line of a corner lot.  

"Lot line, interior lot front" means a line separating the lot from the street.  

82



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 43 of 139 

"Lot line, rear" means the line that is opposite and most distant from the front lot line, and in the case of 
irregular, triangular or gore-shaped lot, a line not less than ten feet in length, within a lot, parallel to and at the 
maximum distance from the front lot line.  

"Lot line, side" means any lot boundary line not a front lot line or a rear lot line.  

"Lot width" means the mean horizontal distance separating the side lines of a lot and at right angles to its 
depth.  

"Mobile home, double-wide" means two portable units designed and built to be towed on their own 
separate chassis and permanently combined on-site to form a single immobile dwelling unit.  

"Mobile home, single-wide " means a transportable single-family dwelling which may be towed on its own 
running gear, and which may be temporarily or permanently affixed to real estate, used for nontransient 
residential purposes and constructed with the same or similar electrical, plumbing and sanitary facilities as 
immobile housing.  

"Mobile home park" means a parcel of land under single ownership which has been planned and improved 
for the placement of two or more mobile homes for nontransient use.  

"Mobile home subdivision" means a parcel of land planned and improved for the placement of two or more 
mobile homes on individually owned lots.  

"Modular home" means a factory-built dwelling unit designed to be transported from factory to the site and 
set on a permanent foundation. The complete unit meets all the requirements of the Uniform Building Code as 
adopted by the city and is eligible for conventional bank financing.  

"Monopole" means a support structure constructed of a single, self-supporting hollow metal tube securely 
anchored to a foundation.  

"Person" means a natural person, his heirs, executors, administrators or assigns, and also including firm, 
partnership or corporation, it's or their successors or assigns, or the agent of any of the aforesaid.  

"Private parking space" means any automobile parking space not less than ten feet wide and twenty feet 
long.  

"Public parking space" means an area of not less than two hundred fifty square feet inclusive of drives or 
aisles giving access thereof, accessible from streets and alleys or from private driveways leading to streets and 
alleys and being designed and arranged so as to be usable, practicable and safe for the storage of passenger motor 
vehicles operated by individual drivers.  

"Service station" means any building, structure, premises or other space used primarily for the retail sale and 
dispensing of motor fuels, tires, batteries and other small accessories; the installation and servicing of such 
lubricants, tires, batteries and other small accessories, and such other services which do not customarily or usually 
require the services of a qualified automotive mechanic. When the retail sale and dispensing of motor fuels, 
lubricants and accessories is incidental to the conduct of a public garage, the premises shall be classified as a public 
garage.  

"Services, business" means services that support a business or commercial enterprise, including but not 
limited to accounting, consulting, legal, and management services.  

"Services, retail" means the selling of goods, wares, or merchandise directly to the consumer or persons 
without a resale license.  

"Sign" means any words, letters, parts of letters, figures, numerals, phrases, sentences, emblems, devices, 
trade names or trademarks by which anything is made known, such as are used to designate an individual, a firm, 
an association, a corporation, a profession, a business or a commodity or product, which are visible from any 
public street or highway and used to attract attention.  

83



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 44 of 139 

"State highway" means a right-of-way classified by the state as a primary, secondary A or secondary B 
highway.  

"Street" means a public right-of-way used as a thoroughfare and which is designed and intended to provide 
the primary means of access to property abutting thereon.  

"Street line" means the line of demarcation between a street and the lot or land abutting thereon.  

"Structure" means that which is built or constructed, an edifice or building of any kind, or any piece of work 
artificially built up or composed of parts joined together in some definite manner.  

"Telecommunication" means the transmission and reception of messages, impressions, pictures, and signals 
by means of electricity, electromagnetic waves, and any other kind of energy, force variations, or impulses 
whether conveyed by cable, wire, radiated through space, or transmitted through other media within a specified 
area or between designated points.  

"Telecommunication antenna" means an antenna used in telecommunication, and whose operation is 
subject to licensing by the Federal Communications Commission.  

"Telecommunication tower" means a structure intended to support equipment used to transmit and/or 
receive telecommunication signals including monopoles, guyed and lattice steel structures. This definition does not 
include a tower that supports only one or more amateur radio antennas.  

"Tower height" means the vertical distance from the grade to the top of the telecommunication tower, 
including any antenna or other equipment thereon.  

"Trailer" means any vehicle used or intended to be used as living or sleeping quarters for humans and which 
may be driven, towed or propelled from one location to another without change in structure or design, whether or 
not the same is supported by wheels and including trailers, trailer coaches and house cars.  

"Trailer camp," "trailer park" or "trailer lot" means any area or premises where space for two or more trailers 
is rented, held out for rent or for which free occupancy or camping for such number is permitted to trailers or 
users for the purpose of securing their trade, herein referred to as a trailer camp but not including automobile or 
trailer sales lots on which unoccupied house trailers are parked for inspection and sales.  

"Use" means the purpose for which land or building is arranged, designed or intended, or for which either 
land or building is or may be occupied or maintained.  

"Use, accessory" means a use customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use of the land, 
building or structures and located on the same lot or parcel of land.  

"Watchman or caretaker dwelling" means an accessory dwelling located within a commercial or industrial 
building for the purpose of housing a watchman or caretaker employed on the premises or the owner operator in 
conjunction with a permitted principal use. The maximum size of a watchman's dwelling shall be up to twenty 
percent of the total square footage of the building not to exceed seven hundred fifty square feet. Watchman's 
quarters will not be considered a residential use.  

"Yard" means an open unoccupied space, other than a court, unobstructed from the ground to the sky, 
except where specifically provided by this title, on the same lot on which a building is situated.  

"Yard, front" means a yard extending across the full width of a lot measured between the front lot line of the 
lot or a future street width line and the nearest exterior wall of the building, front of a bay window or the front of a 
covered porch or other similar projection, whichever is the nearest to the front lot line.  

"Yard, rear" means a yard extending across the full width of the lot between the most rear main building and 
the rear lot line. The depth of the required rear yard shall be measured horizontally from the nearest part of a 
main building toward the nearest point of the rear lot lines.  

84



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 45 of 139 

"Yard, side" means a yard on each side of a main building and extending from the front yard, or front lot line 
where no front yard is required, to the rear yard. The width of the required side yard shall be measured 
horizontally from the nearest point of a side lot line to the nearest part of the main building.  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015; Ord. No. 1148, § 1, 12-7-2016) 

Chapter 18.12 DISTRICT ESTABLISHMENT—BOUNDARIES—ZONING MAP 

18.12.010 Districts—Established. 

The city is divided into the following use districts:  

Conservation (C districts)  

Residential (R-Low density districts)  

Residential (R-Medium density districts)  

Business (B districts)  

Industrial (I districts)  

Industrial Reserve (IR districts)  

(Prior code § 15.201(A)). 

18.12.020 Districts—Boundaries—Interpretation. 

Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of districts as shown on the official zoning map, the following 
rules shall apply:  

A. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the centerlines of streets, highways or alleys shall be 
construed to follow such lines.  

B. Boundaries indicated as approximately following platted lot lines shall be construed as following such 
lot lines.  

C. Boundaries indicated as approximately following city limits shall be construed as following city limits.  

D. Boundaries indicated as following shorelines shall be construed to follow such shorelines, and in the 
event of change in the shoreline shall be construed as moving with the actual shoreline. Boundaries 
indicated as approximately following the centerlines of streams, rivers, canals, lakes or other bodies of 
water shall be construed to follow such centerlines.  

E. Boundaries indicated as parallel to or extensions of features indicated in subsections A through D 
above shall be so construed. Distances not specifically indicated on the official zoning map shall be 
determined by the scale of the map.  

F. Where physical or cultural features existing on the ground are at variance with those shown on the 
official zoning map, or in other circumstances not covered by subsections A through E above, the 
planning commission shall interpret the district boundaries.  

(Prior code § 15.201(E)). 

85



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 46 of 139 

18.12.030 Districts—Boundaries—Determination. 

A. Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of districts as shown on the zoning map, the following rules 
shall apply:  

1. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the centerlines of streets, highways or alleys shall be 
construed to follow such centerlines;  

2. Boundaries indicated as approximately following platted lot lines shall be construed as following such 
lot lines;  

3. Boundaries indicated as approximately following section or section subdivision lines shall be construed 
as following such section or such section subdivision lines;  

4. Boundaries indicated as following shorelines or approximately following the centerlines of streams 
shall be construed to follow such shorelines or such centerlines of streams, and any such line shall be 
construed as moving with the actual shoreline or centerline of the stream;  

5. In unsubdivided property the location of any district boundary, unless the same is indicated by 
dimensions shown on same map, shall be determined by the use of the scale appearing thereon;  

6. Where physical or cultural features existing on the ground are at variance with those shown on the 
zoning map, or in other circumstances not covered by subdivisions 1 through 5 above, the board of 
adjustment shall interpret the district boundaries.  

B. Where any public street or alley is officially vacated or abandoned, the regulations applicable to each parcel 
abutting property shall apply to that portion of such street or alley added thereto by virtue of such vacation 
or abandonment.  

C. Any land included within the corporate boundaries of the city subsequent to the adoption of the ordinance 
codified in this title shall be classified by the planning commission.  

(Prior code § 15.201(A)). 

18.12.040 Map—Designated. 

A. The use districts are bounded and defined as shown on a map entitled " Zoning Map of the City of Cordova," 
a certified copy of which is on file in the office of the city clerk and which, with all explanatory matter 
thereon, is made a part of this title.  

B. The official zoning map of the city is amended to include zoning for certain areas included in the 1972 
annexation. The use districts are bounded and defined as shown on a map entitled "Zoning Map #2 of the 
City of Cordova," a certified copy of which is on file in the office of the city clerk and which, with all 
explanatory matter therein, is made a part of this title.  

(Prior code § 15.201(B)). 

18.12.050 Map—-Changes. 

A. No changes of any nature shall be made in the official zoning map or matter shown thereon except in 
conformity with the procedures set forth in this title. Any unauthorized change of whatever kind by any 
person or persons shall be considered a violation of this title and punishable as provided under Chapter 
18.80.  

86



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 47 of 139 

B. Regardless of the existence of purported copies of the official zoning map which may from time to time be 
made or published, the official zoning map which shall be located in the office of the city clerk shall be the 
final authority as the current zoning status of land and water areas, buildings and other structures in the city.  

(Prior code § 15.201(C)). 

18.12.060 Map—Replacement. 

In the event that the official zoning map becomes damaged, destroyed or difficult to interpret because of the 
nature or number of changes and additions, the city planning commission may by resolution adopt a new official 
zoning map which shall supersede the prior official zoning map. The new official zoning map may correct drafting 
or other errors or omissions in the prior official zoning map, but no such correction shall have the effect of 
amending the original zoning ordinance or any subsequent amendment thereof. The new official zoning map shall 
be identified by the signature of the mayor attested by the city clerk, and bearing the seal of the city under the 
following words: "This is to certify that this Official Zoning Map supersedes and replaces the Official Zoning Map 
adopted (date of adoption of map being replaced) as part of the Cordova City Code of the City of Cordova, Alaska."  

(Prior code § 15.201(D)). 

18.12.070 Coastal zone district and management classification. 

A. Coastal Zone Overlay. A coastal zone overlay to the official zoning map is authorized. Areas incorporated 
within this coastal zone are required to conform to the coastal management program including the list of 
proper and improper uses and activities and related policies.  

B. Management Districts. Districts shall be designated within the coastal zone. Different uses and activities shall 
be prescribed as proper or improper within each management district. Management districts shall be divided 
into the following classifications: preservation, conservation, development I and development II.  

C. Boundaries. The boundaries of the coastal zone and the management districts shall be shown on the zoning 
map of the city of Cordova, a certified copy of which is on file in the office of the city clerk, and which, with 
all explanatory matter thereon is made a part of this section.  

D. Cordova Coastal Management Program. A certified copy of the reprinted Cordova Coastal Management 
Program, with the significant amendments as approved by the Alaska Coastal Policy Council on May 22, 
1986, shall be kept on file in the office of the city clerk, and which, with all explanatory matters thereon, is 
made a part of this title.  

(Ord. 614, 1986; Ord. 530(part), 1981). 

Chapter 18.16 C CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

18.16.010 Permitted uses. 

The following uses are permitted in the C district:  

A. General gardening and farming, including all types of agriculture and horticulture, kennels, small 
animal farming, poultry raising and similar uses;  

B. Accessory buildings and uses;  

C. Private park or open—space recreation use;  

87



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 48 of 139 

D. Off-street parking;  

E. Churches; provided, that no part of any building is located nearer than fifty feet to any adjoining street 
or property line;  

F. The city planning commission may, after proper notice and public hearing, permit additional uses as 
exceptions in this district where such uses are deemed essential or desirable to the public convenience 
or welfare and are in harmony with the various elements or objectives of the comprehensive city plan 
and zoning ordinance.  

(Prior code § 15.203(A)). 

18.16.020 Building height limit. 

The maximum building height in the C district shall be two and one-half stories but shall not exceed thirty-
five feet; provided, that agricultural buildings may be erected to a height not to exceed fifty feet.  

(Prior code § 15.203(B)). 

18.16.030 Lot area. 

The minimum lot area in the C district for each one-family dwelling shall be forty thousand square feet and 
the minimum lot width shall be one hundred twenty feet.  

(Prior code § 15.203(C)). 

Chapter 18.17 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 

18.17.010 Purpose and intent. 

The parks and open space district is intended to provide for the preservation and protection of the 
community's scenic resources, parks, recreation, and subsistence activities.  

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

18.17.020 Permitted uses. 

In the parks and open space district, no building or structure or land shall be used, and no building or 
structure shall be erected which is arranged, intended, or designated to be used for other than one or more of the 
following uses:  

A. Recreational areas, ski areas, parks, playgrounds, wildlife preserves, hiking trails, golf courses, and such 
buildings and structures as are related thereto;  

B. Traditional subsistence uses, defined as the gathering of fish, shellfish, berries, roots, and other edible 
plant species;  

C. Temporary and casual recreation uses such as hiking, camping, picnicking, and sport fishing;  

D. Scenic, historical, or botanical areas;  

E. Agricultural and grazing uses;  

88



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 49 of 139 

F. Other similar uses not listed above which meet the "Purpose and intent" provisions of this section of 
the ordinance and would be no more objectionable than those uses listed above. The director of 
planning shall make an "administrative determination" in this matter subject to appeal to the planning 
commission.  

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

18.17.030 Permitted accessory uses and structures. 

Accessory uses and structures customarily incidental and subordinate to the location, function and operation 
of permitted uses and structures.  

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

18.17.040 Conditional uses and structures. 

The planning commission, on a case by case basis, subject to the procedures and conditions set by code, may 
grant a conditional use permit for the following uses:  

A. Cabins not exceeding seven hundred fifty square feet;  

B. A single caretaker's building of a permanent nature, not exceeding seven hundred fifty square feet;  

C. Water reservoirs;  

D. Water treatment facilities;  

E. Flood control and drainage structures;  

F. Snow and water gauging stations;  

G. Pumping facilities;  

H. Communications and electric power transmission poles and towers;  

I. Wind, solar or wave power generating facilities, and;  

J. Other similar uses not listed above may be permitted as conditional uses subject to the review and 
approval of the planning and zoning commission.  

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

18.17.045 Prohibited uses. 

Trapping, as defined in Section 8.04.010 of this code, is prohibited except within an enclosed structure, by, or 
with the permission of, a person who owns or is in lawful possession of the structure.  

(Ord. 1005 § 3, 2007). 

18.17.050 Minimum lot size. 

There shall be no minimum lot size.  

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

89



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 50 of 139 

18.17.060 Minimum lot width at front lot line. 

There shall be no minimum lot width at the front line.  

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

18.17.070 Minimum yard requirements. 

A. Front Yard. The minimum front yard requirement in this district is twenty-five feet.  

B. Side yard. The minimum side yard requirement in this district is fifteen feet, except where a property adjoins 
a residential district or a corner lot faces a right-of-way there shall be a twenty foot side yard.  

C. Rear Yard. The minimum rear yard requirement in this district is twenty-five feet.  

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

18.17.080 Maximum lot coverage by all buildings. 

The maximum lot coverage by all buildings in this district shall be ten percent.  

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

18.17.090 Maximum height of structures. 

The maximum building height in this district shall be twenty feet.  

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

18.17.100 Special provisions. 

The following special provisions apply to all land uses within the parks and open space district:  

A. Access from a public street to properties in this district shall be so located as to minimize traffic 
congestion;  

B. Any use is prohibited which causes or may reasonably be expected to cause excessive noise, vibration, 
odor, smoke, dust, or other particulate matter, humidity, heat or glare at or beyond any lot line of the 
lot on which it is located. "Excessive" is defined for these purposes as a degree exceeding that 
generated by uses permitted in the district in their customary manner of operation, or to a degree 
injurious to the public health, safety, welfare, or convenience;  

C. The storage of commercial quantities of flammable materials, hazardous materials, or toxic materials 
on-site shall be prohibited. Smaller quantities of these materials needed for maintenance and 
operation of permitted facilities may be stored only in strict compliance with the Uniform Fire Code, 
and other applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations;  

D. Materials shall be stored and grounds shall be maintained in a manner such as will assure access by fire 
equipment; and  

E. Materials shall be stored and grounds shall be maintained in a manner which will not; attract or aid the 
propagation of insects or rodents, attract bears or other scavengers, or otherwise create a health 
hazard.  

90



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 51 of 139 

(Ord. 832 (part), 1999). 

Chapter 18.18 UR UNRESTRICTED DISTRICT 

18.18.010 Permitted uses. 

The unrestricted district is intended to allow any legal use of property. Construction will require compliance 
with provisions of Chapter 16.17, Site Development Permit Procedures.  

(Ord. 753 (part), 1995). 

18.18.020 Building height limit. 

The maximum building height in the UR unrestricted district shall be two and one-half stories but shall not 
exceed thirty-five feet as measured at the eve line.  

(Ord. 753 (part), 1995). 

18.18.030 Lot area. 

A. Minimum lot size must meet the requirements of current state regulations.  

B. Density of residential, commercial and industrial development shall be governed by case-by-case 
determinations of the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation and the fire marshal, based upon 
their review of proposed site development plans for specific sites.  

(Ord. 753 (part), 1995). 

18.18.040 Front yard. 

There shall be a front yard in the UR unrestricted district of not less than ten feet from the property line.  

(Ord. 753 (part), 1995). 

18.18.050 Rear yard. 

There shall be a rear yard in the UR unrestricted district of not less five feet.  

(Ord. 753 (part), 1995). 

18.18.060 Side yard. 

There shall be a side yard in the UR unrestricted district of not less than five feet. The minimum side yard on 
the street side of a corner lot shall be five feet.  

(Ord. 753 (part), 1995). 

91



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 52 of 139 

18.18.070 Reserved. 

Editor's note(s)—Section 2 of Ord. No. 1055, adopted Sept. 2, 2009, repealed in its entirety § 18.18.070, animal 
control, which had derived from Ord. 753, adopted in 1995.  

18.18.080 Weapons. 

Properties in the UR unrestricted district will not be subject to the provisions of Chapter 9.36, except where 
required by state and/or federal law.  

(Ord. 753 (part), 1995). 

18.18.090 Temporary structures. 

Temporary structures, not attached to the land or connected to water, gas or sewage facilities, and any 
structure less than two hundred square feet shall be exempt from the site development permit process.  

(Ord. 753 (part), 1995). 

18.18.095 Mobile homes. 

A mobile home may be permitted with an approved site plan in the Unrestricted (UR) zone provided it bears 
the HUD plate with documentation that it was constructed since 1979 and is in compliance with HUD code. A 
mobile home without the appropriate insignia can only be moved to a mobile home park.  

(Ord. No. 1041, § 1, 3-4-2009) 

Chapter 18.20 R LOW DENSITY RESIDENCE DISTRICT 

18.20.010 Permitted uses. 

The following uses are permitted in the R low-density district:  

A. One-family, two-family and three-family dwellings;  

B. Boardinghouses;  

C. Truck gardening, the raising of bush and tree crops, flower gardening, and the use of greenhouses;  

D. Home occupations;  

E. Accessory buildings and uses not used or operated for gain and not including guest houses or accessory 
living quarters;  

F. Required off-street parking.  

(Prior code § 15.204.1(A)). 

92



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:14 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 53 of 139 

18.20.020 Building height limit. 

The maximum building height in the R low density district shall be two and one-half stories but shall not 
exceed thirty-five feet.  

(Prior code § 15.204.1(B)). 

18.20.030 Lot area. 

A. The minimum lot area in the R low-density district shall be four thousand square feet and the minimum lot 
width shall be forty feet.  

B. The minimum lot area in the R low density district for dwellings shall be:  

1. For a one—family dwelling, four thousand square feet per dwelling unit.  

2. For a two-family and three-family dwelling, two thousand square feet per dwelling unit.  

(Prior code § 15.204.1(C)). 

18.20.040 Front yard. 

There shall be a front yard in the R low density district of not less than ten feet from curb line.  

(Prior code § 15.204.1(D)). 

18.20.050 Rear yard. 

There shall be a rear yard in the R low density district of not less than twenty-five percent of the depth of the 
lot, but such yard need not exceed fifteen feet.  

(Prior code § 15.204.1(F)). 

18.20.060 Side yard. 

A. There shall be a side yard in the R low density district of not less than five feet. The minimum side yard on 
the street side of a corner lot shall be ten feet.  

B. The following additional requirements shall apply to two-family and three-family dwellings in the R low 
density district:  

In case the building is so located on the lot that the rear thereof abuts one side yard and front abuts the 
other, the side yard along the rear of the building shall have a minimum width of twelve feet and the side yard 
along the front of the building shall have a minimum width of eighteen feet.  

(Prior code § 15.201.1(L)). 

Chapter 18.21 RR3 RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 

93



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 54 of 139 

18.21.010 Purpose and intent. 

The RR3 rural residential three zoning district is established as a land use district for large lot, low-density 
residential purposes. For the rural residential three district, in promoting the general purposes of this title, the 
specific intentions of this chapter are:  

A. To encourage the continued use of land for low-density purposes;  

B. To prohibit commercial and industrial land uses;  

C. To encourage the discontinuance of existing uses that are not permitted under the provisions of this 
chapter; and  

D. To discourage land uses which, because of their character and size, would create unusual requirements 
and costs for public services.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

18.21.020 Permitted principal uses. 

The following principal uses are permitted in the RR3 rural residential district:  

A. No more than one single-family dwelling unit per lot.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

18.21.030 Permitted accessory uses. 

The following accessory uses are permitted in the RR3 rural residential district:  

A. Private garages and required off-street parking;  

B. Greenhouses and tool sheds;  

C. The noncommercial keeping of animals solely for the personal use of the owner or occupant of the lot. 
The raising, breeding or keeping of animals for commercial purposes is prohibited. A lot where animals 
are kept shall be maintained in a sanitary and inoffensive condition, with structures necessary to the 
proper housing of the animals and to the confinement of the animals within the boundaries of the lot;  

D. Other buildings and uses customarily accessory and clearly subordinate to the permitted principal use 
of the lot.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

18.21.040 Conditional uses. 

Subject to the requirements of the conditional use standards and procedures of this title, the following 
conditional uses may be permitted in the RR3 rural residential district:  

A. Public utility, police and fire protection facilities, parks, libraries, elementary and secondary schools;  

B. Home occupations.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

94



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 55 of 139 

18.21.050 Prohibited uses and structures. 

Prohibited uses and structures are as follows:  

A. Any use or structure not of a character indicated under permitted uses and structures or permitted as a 
conditional use;  

B. Storage or use of mobile homes;  

C. Residential use of any travel trailer, basement, tent, shack, garage, barn or other structure not 
designed or intended for permanent residential use.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

18.21.060 Development requirements for principal and accessory uses. 

Easements for installation and maintenance of utilities are as set out or reserved as shown on the recorded 
plat.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

18.21.070 Minimum lot requirements. 

Minimum lot requirements are as follows:  

A. The minimum lot area shall be three acres.  

B. Reserved.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

(Ord. No. 1130, § 1, 6-17-2015) 

18.21.080 Minimum yard requirements. 

Minimum yard requirements are as follows:  

A. Front yard: ten feet;  

B. Side yards: ten feet;  

C. Rear yard: twenty-five feet.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

(Ord. No. 1130, § 1, 6-17-2015) 

18.21.090 Maximum lot coverage by all buildings. 

Maximum lot coverage by all buildings shall be twenty-five percent.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

95



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 56 of 139 

18.21.100 Maximum height of structures. 

Maximum height of structures shall be two and one-half stories, but not exceeding thirty-five feet.  

(Ord. 974 (part), 2005). 

Chapter 18.24 R MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENCE DISTRICT 

18.24.010 Permitted uses. 

The following uses are permitted in the R medium density district:  

A. One-family, two-family and multiple-family dwellings;  

B. Boardinghouses;  

C. Accessory buildings and uses not used or operated for gain and not including guest houses or accessory 
living quarters;  

D. Require off-street parking.  

(Prior code § 15.204.2(A)). 

18.24.020 Building height limit. 

The maximum building height in the R medium density district shall be three and one-half stories but shall 
not exceed forty-five feet.  

(Prior code § 15.204.2(B)). 

18.24.030 Lot area. 

A. The minimum lot area in the R medium density district shall be four thousand square feet and the minimum 
lot width shall be forty feet.  

B. The minimum lot area for dwellings in the R medium density district shall be:  

1. For a one—family dwelling, four thousand square feet per dwelling unit;  

2. For a two-family and three-family dwelling, two thousand square feet per dwelling unit;  

3. For a multiple-family dwelling unit with four to seven dwelling units, one thousand six hundred square 
feet per dwelling unit;  

4. For a multiple-family dwelling with eight or more dwelling units, one thousand square feet per dwelling 
unit.  

(Prior code § 15.204.2(C)). 

18.24.040 Front yard. 

There shall be a front yard in the R medium density district of not less than ten feet from curb line.  

(Prior code § 15.204.2(D)). 

96



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 57 of 139 

18.24.050 Rear yard. 

There shall be a rear yard in the R medium density district of not less than twenty-five percent of the depth 
of the 1ot but such yard need not exceed fifteen feet.  

(Prior code § 15.204.2(F)). 

18.24.060 Side yard. 

A. There shall be a side yard in the R medium density district of not less than five feet. The minimum side yard 
on the street side of a corner shall be ten feet.  

B. The following additional requirements shall apply to two-family and multiple-family dwellings in the R 
medium density district:  

1. In case the building is so located on the lot that the rear thereof abuts one side yard and front abuts 
the other, the side yard along the rear of the building shall have a minimum width of twelve feet and 
the side yard along the front of the building shall have a minimum width of ten feet.  

2. For multiple-family dwellings the minimum side yards required shall be increased one foot for each 
dwelling unit over four.  

(Prior code § 15.204.2(E)). 

Chapter 18.25 R-3 HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 

18.25.010 Purpose. 

The R-3 district is intended to include urban multiple-family dwelling uses with medium to high residential 
densities. The regulations and restrictions in the R-3 district are intended to protect, preserve and enhance the 
primarily residential character of the district.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.020 Permitted principal uses and structures. 

Permitted uses and structures are as follows:  

A. Single-family dwellings;4 

B. Two-family dwellings;*  

C. Multiple-family dwellings;*  

D. Public, private or parochial academic elementary schools;  

E. Parks, playgrounds and playfields, municipal buildings and uses in keeping with the character and 
requirements of the district;  

 

4 More than one principal structure may be allowed on any lot or tract.  

97



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 58 of 139 

F. Rooming houses;  

G. Private clubs and lodges.5 

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.030 Permitted accessory uses and structures. 

Permitted accessory uses and structures are as follows:  

A. Home occupation, subject to provisions of the supplementary district regulations;  

B. Noncommercial greenhouses, gardens, garden sheds and tool sheds, private barbeque pits;  

C. Private garages;  

D. Private storage in yards of noncommercial equipment including noncommercial trucks, boats, aircraft, 
campers, or travel trailers, in a safe and orderly manner and separated by at least five feet from any 
property line.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.040 Conditional uses. 

Subject to the requirements of the conditional use standards and procedures of this title, the following uses 
may be permitted:  

A. Townhouses and row houses built to a common wall at side lot lines;  

B. Nursing homes, convalescent homes and similar institutional uses;  

C. Churches and synagogues, along with the customary accessory uses including parsonages, day 
nurseries, kindergartens and meeting rooms;  

D. Utilities substations;  

E. Off—street parking spaces or structures;  

F. Museums, historical and cultural exhibits, aquariums, and the like;  

G. Camper parks;  

H. Convenience establishments;  

I. Planned unit development;  

J. Privately owned neighborhood community recreation centers in keeping with the character and 
requirements of the district, provided the center is oriented to a particular residential subdivision or 
housing project and that the uses are delineated as conditions to approval;  

K. Quasi-institutional houses.  

(Ord. 579 (part) 1984). 

 

5* Any use involving sale of dispensing or service of alcoholic beverages may be permitted by conditional use only.  

98



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 59 of 139 

18.25.050 Prohibited uses and structures. 

Prohibited uses and structures are as follows:  

A. Any use or structure not of a character indicated under permitted uses and structures or permitted as a 
conditional use;  

B. Storage or use of mobile homes except as provided in this section;  

C. Portable or semi-permanent type structures;  

D. Any use which causes or may reasonably be expected to cause excessive noise, vibration, odor, smoke, 
dust, or other particulate matter, toxic or noxious matter, humidity, heat or glare at or beyond any lot 
line of the lot on which it is located. "Excessive" is defined for these purposes as a degree exceeding 
that generated by uses permitted in the district in their customary manner of operation, or to a degree 
injurious to the public health, safety, welfare or convenience.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.060 Minimum lot requirements. 

Minimum lot requirements are as follows:  

Use  Lot Area (Sq. Ft.)  Lot Width (In feet)  
A. Single—family dwelling  4,000  40  
B. Two-family dwelling  6,000  40  
C. 3-6 family dwelling  6,000  50  
D. 7-10 family dwelling  8,500  75  
 plus 750 sq. ft. for each dwelling unit in excess of 

7.  

 

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.070 Minimum yard requirements. 

Minimum yard requirements are as follows:  

A. Front yard: ten feet, except as provided in the supplementary district regulations;  

B. Side yard: five feet; provided, however, that where buildings exceed thirty-five feet in height, minimum 
side yards shall be increased one foot for each five feet in height exceeding thirty-five feet;  

C. Rear yard: ten feet;  

D. Multiple-family dwellings shall provide a usable yard area of one hundred square feet per dwelling unit.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.080 Maximum lot coverage by all buildings. 

Maximum lot coverage by all buildings shall be as follows: fifty percent.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

99



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 60 of 139 

18.25.090 Maximum height of structures. 

Maximum height of structures shall be as follows: Unrestricted subject to planning commission approval to 
determine that there are significant scenic obstructions and, except that structures shall not interfere with Federal 
Aviation Administration regulations on airport approaches.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.100 Signs. 

Signs may be allowed in connection with any permitted use, subject to the provisions of the supplementary 
district regulations.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.110 Parking. 

Adequate off-street parking shall be provided in connection with any permitted use, the minimum for each 
use to be:  

A. Residential uses: two vehicular parking spaces for each dwelling unit;  

B. All other permitted uses: as provided in the supplementary district regulations.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.120 Loading. 

Where applicable, off-street loading facilities shall be provided in accordance with the supplementary district 
regulations.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

18.25.130 Cover. 

All areas not devoted to buildings, structures, drives, walks, off-street parking facilities or other authorized 
installations shall be covered with one or more of the following: lawn grass, shrubbery, trees, or other suitable 
ground cover materials.  

(Ord. 579 (part), 1984). 

Chapter 18.26 R-MH PLANNED MOBILE HOME DISTRICT 

18.26.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of this district is to encourage a suitable environment for persons and families who choose to 
live in a mobile home rather than a conventional single-family structure. In keeping with the occupancy 
characteristics of contemporary mobile homes, this section establishes the density standards and permitted uses 
that reflect the needs of residents in the district. Development is limited to mobile homes when located in a 

100



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 61 of 139 

subdivision designed for that purpose or a mobile home park with recreation facilities, churches, schools, and 
necessary public utility buildings.  

(Ord. 580 (part), 1984). 

18.26.020 Principal permitted uses. 

The following provisions apply in all R-MH, planned mobile home districts. Any use not expressly permitted is 
prohibited.  

A. Mobile homes;  

B. Mobile home parks.  

1. Greenbelt. The park shall have a greenbelt ten feet in width at its rear and sides. The greenbelt 
shall be ten feet at the front of the mobile home park. The greenbelt shall be measured from the 
nearest edge of the road right-of-way to the line of the closest mobile home site,  

2. Recreation. The minimum of ten percent of the total park should be left in open space developed 
for recreation purposes. Such developed area shall not include roads, sidewalks, lands under 
water or having excessive grades and shall be so graded and developed as to have adequate 
drainage and usability by residents of the park,  

3. Site Dimensions. A mobile home shall have its own site which shall be at least fifty feet wide and 
a minimum of five thousand square feet in area,  

4. Mobile homes shall be at least fifteen feet from the rear of the nearest mobile home and fifteen 
feet from the side of the nearest mobile home,  

5. Mobile homes shall be placed at least ten feet from the pavement of the access drive;  

C. Mobile home subdivisions; provided, that minimum lot sizes and yard spaces shall be:  

1. Lot width: fifty feet;  

2. Lot area: five thousand square feet;  

3. Minimum front yard: ten feet;  

4. Minimum side yard: ten feet;  

5. Minimum rear yard: fifteen feet;  

D. Accessory uses and buildings customarily incidental to the above principal permitted uses;  

E. Off-street parking in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 18.48 for single-family dwellings.  

(Ord. 580 (part), 1984). 

18.26.030 Development standards. 

All mobile home parks or additions to the existing mobile home parks shall be developed in accordance with 
the following standards:  

A. Signs.  

1. One identification sign, approved in conjunction with the final site plan approved of the mobile 
home park. In no case shall such sign be larger than fifty square feet in surface area nor have any 

101



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 62 of 139 

moving parts, nor stand higher than fifteen feet from the ground to the top of the sign. Such 
signs shall be no closer to the public right-of-way line than twenty feet;  

2. Not more than one entry and one exit sign at each access drive onto the public right—of—way, 
approved in conjunction with the final site plan approval of the mobile home park. In no case 
shall the sign be larger than two square feet in surface area nor have any moving parts, nor stand 
higher than five feet from the ground to the top of the sign.  

B. Access. All mobile home parks shall have access to a paved major thoroughfare by directly abutting 
thereon.  

C. Vehicle Travel Lanes. All roadways and driveways shall be so constructed as to handle all anticipated 
peak loads adequately drained and lighted for safety and ease of movement of vehicles. Minimum road 
width shall be twenty-eight feet for all roads and ten feet for all driveways. The local roadway system 
should be so designed as to prevent the use of such roadways for through traffic. For parks containing 
twenty or more dwelling units, a minimum of two accesses shall be provided.  

D. Walkways. Walkways must meet the specifications of the city engineer and be provided on the street 
side of each mobile home site. Walks used in common by one to three units, connecting the units to a 
common area or primary walk, shall be at least forty-two inches in width.  

E. Utilities and Other Services.  

1. All sanitary sewage utilities and water facilities, including connections provided to individual 
sites, shall meet the requirements of the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation;  

2. The plumbing connections to each mobile home site shall be constructed so that all lines are 
protected from freezing, from accidental bumping or from creating any type of nuisance or 
health hazard;  

3. An adequate amount of running water to individual sites shall meet the requirements of the 
Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation;  

4. Storm drainage facilities, leaching basins, storm sewers, or any approved system shall be 
constructed as to protect those that will reside in the mobile home park, as well as the property 
owners adjacent to the park. Such park facilities shall be of such capacity to ensure rapid 
drainage and prevent the accumulation of stagnant pools of water in or adjacent to the park;  

5. All electric, telephone and other lines from supply poles to each mobile home site shall be 
underground. When meters are installed, they shall be uniformly located;  

6. Any fuel oil storage shall be centrally located in underground tanks, away from any mobile home 
lot, at a distance found to be safe. All fuel lines leading to mobile home lots shall be underground 
and so designed as to conform with the city building code and any state code that is found to be 
applicable. When separate meters are installed, each shall be located in a uniform manner;  

7. Facilities for the storage and disposal of trash and garbage in a sanitary manner shall be provided 
in each mobile home park. All refuse shall be stored in fly-tight, watertight, rodent-proof 
containers which shall be located not more than one hundred fifty feet from any mobile home 
lot. Containers shall be provided in sufficient number and capacity to properly store all refuse. 
Refuse collection. stands shall be provided for all refuse containers. Such container stands shall 
be so designed as to prevent containers from being tipped, to minimize spillage and container 
deterioration, and to facilitate cleaning around them;  

8. When exterior television antenna installation is necessary, a master antenna shall be installed 
and extended to individual stands by underground lines. Such master antenna shall be so placed 
as not to be a nuisance to park residents or surrounding areas;  

102



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 63 of 139 

9. Street and yard lights shall be provided in sufficient number and intensity to permit the safe 
movement of vehicles and pedestrians at night, and shall be effectively related to buildings, 
trees, walks, steps and ramps.  

F. Skirting, Canopies, and Awnings.  

1. Each mobile home shall be skirted within ninety days after placement;  

2. Such skirting shall be twenty-six gauge metal, aluminum, or other noncorrosive metal or material 
of equal strength, and so constructed and attached to the mobile home as to deter and prevent 
the entry of rodents, flies, bugs or other insects;  

3. Permits for the construction of skirting shall be required from the building inspector;  

4. Canopies and awnings may be attached to any mobile home but they shall not exceed twelve 
feet in width, or exceed the length or height of the mobile home.  

G. Pads, Mats or Platforms. Each mobile home site shall be provided with a concrete pad, mat, platform 
or pilings, not less than four inches in depth, or equal bearing strength if reinforced concrete is used.  

H. Anchoring. All mobile homes shall be anchored with frame ties at each corner and intermediate ties as 
required to withstand a wind force of ninety miles per hour.  

I. Fire Extinguishing Equipment. Every mobile home park shall be equipped at all times with fire 
extinguishing equipment in good working order, of such type, size, and number, and so located within 
the park as to satisfy applicable regulations of the state fire marshal. No open fires shall be permitted 
at any place which may endanger life or property. No fires shall be left unattended at any time.  

J. Utility Cabinets. Each mobile home may be provided with a metal utility cabinet, which shall be 
uniform in size and location throughout the mobile home park. All cabinets shall be kept clean and 
maintained in good condition, and shall contain a minimum of ninety cubic feet of storage area.  

(Ord. 580 (part), 1984). 

18.26.040 Site plan review. 

A mobile home park site plan shall be submitted, and no building permit shall be issued until the city council 
has approved the site plan after a recommendation from the planning commission.  

(Ord. 580 (part), 1984). 

18.26.050 Availability of standards. 

Development standards shall be made available to management personnel of mobile home parks located 
within the city.  

(Ord. 580 (part), 1984). 

18.26.060 Area, height, bulk and placement requirements. 

Area, height, bulk and placement requirements unless otherwise specified are provided in Chapter 18.40.  

(Ord. 580 (part), 1984). 

103



Title 18 - ZONING 
Chapter 18.28 B BUSINESS DISTRICT 

 

 

 

Cordova, Alaska, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 64 of 139 

Chapter 18.28 B BUSINESS DISTRICT 

18.28.010 Permitted uses. 

The following uses are permitted in the B district:  

A. All uses permitted in the R districts;  

B. Retail stores and retail service shops of all kinds, banks, offices, hotels and restaurants;  

C. Theaters, bowling alleys, assembly halls, funeral parlors;  

D. Gasoline service stations, automobile repair garages, printing, laundry and dry-cleaning establishments 
employing not more than ten persons for operations, other than clerical and delivery;  

E. Required off-street parking;  

F. Accessory buildings and uses;  

G. Other buildings, uses or services similar, as determined by the city planning commission, to the uses 
listed in this chapter in the type of services or goods sold, in the number of persons employed, in the 
number and types of vehicles attracted to the premises and in the effect upon adjacent areas.  

(Prior code § 15.205(A)). 

18.28.020 Building height limit. 

The maximum building height in the B district shall be three stories or fifty feet; provided, however, that a 
building or structure thereafter erected, added to or otherwise constructed may be increased in height, provided 
the gross cubical content of such building or structure does not exceed the sum total of the area of the lot upon 
which it is to be erected multiplied by fifty.  

(Prior code § 15.205(C)). 

18.28.030 Yards. 

A. Every building or portion thereof in the B district which is designed, intended or used for any purpose 
permitted in an R district for any other residential or dwelling purpose shall provide yards as required in the 
R district; provided, that when the ground floor of any such building is used for any commercial purpose, no 
side yard shall be required except that there shall be a side yard along the side of every lot which is not 
bounded by an alley and which is bordering on property in any R district.  

B. Yards shall not be required otherwise, except that no building shall be erected nor shall any use of land be 
conducted so that the same will be closer than thirty feet to the center line of any street adjoining the lot.  

(Prior code § 15.205(D)). 

18.28.040 General conditions. 

A. All selling, dealing in or displaying of goods or merchandise by shops, stores or businesses shall be entirely 
conducted and located within a permanent building unless otherwise specifically excepted.  

104



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 65 of 139 

B. No stores or businesses shall involve any kind of manufacture, compounding, processing or treatment of 
products except that which is clearly incidental and essential to the authorized use and provided that:  

1. No more than ten persons are engaged in the manufacture, compounding, processing or treatment of 
products or servicing and repairing appliances, equipment, etc.;  

2. Not more than twenty percent of the ground floor area of any building shall be used for such purposes;  

3. Such operations or products are not objectionable due to odor, dust, smoke, noise, vibrations or other 
similar nuisances.  

C. All exterior walls of buildings hereafter erected, extended or structurally altered which face a street or 
property in an R district shall be designed, treated and finished in a uniform and satisfactory manner 
approved by the planning commission.  

(Prior code § 15.205(B)). 

Chapter 18.29 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

18.29.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of this district is to permit a variety of commercial, administrative, financial, civic, culture, 
residential, entertainment, and recreational uses in an effort to provide the harmonious mix of activities necessary 
to further enhance the central business district as a commercial and service center.  

(Ord. 586 (part), 1984). 

18.29.020 Principal permitted uses. 

The following uses are permitted in the CBD zone: All limited uses in the B district, except that off-street 
parking shall not be required as specified in Chapter 18.48.  

(Ord. 586 (part), 1984). 

18.29.030 Building height limit. 

The maximum building height in the B district shall be three stories or fifty feet; however, a building or 
structure thereafter erected, added to or otherwise constructed may be increased in height, provided the gross 
cubical content of such building or structure does not exceed the sum total of the area of the lot upon which it is to 
be erected multiplied by fifty.  

(Ord. 586 (part), 1984). 

18.29.040 Yards. 

A. Every building or portion thereof in the B district which is designed, intended or used for any purpose 
permitted in an R district for any other residential or dwelling purpose shall provide yards as required in the 
R district; provided, that when the ground floor of any such building is used for any commercial purpose, no 
side yard shall be required except that there shall be a side yard along the side of every lot which is not 
bounded by an alley and which is bordering on property in an R district.  

105



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 66 of 139 

B. Yards shall not be required otherwise, except that no building shall be erected nor shall any use of land be 
conducted so that the same will be closer than thirty feet to the center line of any street adjoining the lot.  

(Ord. 586 (part), 1984). 

18.29.050 General conditions. 

A. All selling, dealing in or displaying of goods or merchandise by shops, stores or business shall be entirely 
conducted and located within a permanent building unless otherwise specifically excepted.  

B. No stores or businesses shall involve any kind of manufacturing, compounding, processing or treatment of 
products except that which is clearly incidental and essential to the authorized use and provided that:  

1. No more than ten persons are engaged in the manufacturing, compounding, processing or treatment 
of products or servicing and repairing of appliances, equipment, etc.;  

2. Not more than twenty percent of the ground floor area of any building shall be used for such purposes;  

3. Such operations or products are not objection— able due to odor, dust, smoke, noise, vibrations or 
other similar nuisances.  

C. All exterior walls of buildings hereafter erected, extended or structurally altered which face a street or 
property in an R district shall be designed, treated and finished in a uniform and satisfactory manner 
approved by the planning commission.  

(Ord. 586 (part), 1984). 

Chapter 18.32 I INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

18.32.010 Permitted uses. 

The following uses are permitted in the I district:  

All uses not otherwise prohibited by law, except any residential or commercial use, and any conditional use.  

(Prior code § 15.206(A)). 

(Ord. No. 1107, § 8, 3-20-2013) 

18.32.020 Prohibited uses. 

The following uses are prohibited in the I district:  

A. All residential uses, except dwelling for a watchman or caretaker employed on the premises or owner-
operator and members of his family;  

B. All uses that may be noxious or injurious by reason of the production or emission of dust, smoke, 
refuse matter, odor, gas, fumes, noise, vibration or similar substances or conditions; provided, 
however, that any use may be permitted if approved by the city planning commission and subject to 
the securing of a permit therefor and to such conditions, restrictions, and safeguards as may be 
deemed necessary by said commission of the purpose of protecting the health, safety, morals or the 
general welfare of the community.  

(Prior code § 15.206(B)). 

106



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 67 of 139 

18.32.025 Conditional uses. 

Subject to the requirements of the conditional use standards and procedures of this title, the following 
conditional uses may be permitted in the I district:  

A. Junkyards.  

(Ord. No. 1107, § 9, 3-20-2013) 

18.32.030 Special restrictions. 

No automobile wrecking, junk yard or similar use shall be permitted in the I district, either as a primary or an 
accessory use, within five hundred feet of any state highway.  

(Prior code § 15.206 (C)). 

18.32.040 Building height limit. 

There shall be no building height limit in the I district.  

(Prior code § 15.206(D)). 

18.32.050 Front yard. 

In the I district:  

A. There shall be a front yard of not less than twenty feet;  

B. The front yard along state highways shall be not less than fifty feet.  

(Ord. 647 § 1, 1988; prior code § 15.206(E)). 

18.32.055 Rear and side yard requirements. 

None, except as necessary to provide required off-street parking and loading as per Chapter 18.48 of this 
code and to comply with the Uniform Building Code as adopted by the city.  

(Ord. 647 § 4, 1988). 

18.32.080 Off-street loading. 

In the I district, there shall be at least one space, twelve by thirty feet accessible to a public street. This space 
shall be in addition to any yard space requirements.  

(Prior code § 15.206(H)). 

Chapter 18.33 WATERFRONT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

107



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 68 of 139 

18.33.010 Purpose. 

The following statement of intent and use regulations shall apply in the WI district:  

The waterfront Industrial district is intended to be applied to land with direct access or close proximity to 
navigable tidal waters within the city. Uses within the waterfront industrial district are intended to be marine-
dependent or marine-oriented, and primarily those uses which are particularly related to location or commercial 
enterprises that derive an economic benefit from a waterfront location.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.020 Permitted principal uses and structures. 

The following are the permitted principal uses and structures in the waterfront industrial district:  

A. Marine sales;  

B. Open wet moorage;  

C. Covered wet moorage;  

D. Passenger staging facility;  

E. Haulout facilities;  

F. Marine construction, repair and dismantling;  

G. Cargo terminal;  

H. Cargo handling and marine-oriented staging area;  

I. Fish and seafood processing;  

J. Warehousing and wholesaling;  

K. Open storage for marine-related facilities;  

L. Fuel storage and sales.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.030 Permitted accessory uses and structures. 

A. Bunkhouses in conjunction with permitted principal uses;  

B. Residential dwelling for watchman or caretaker employed on the premises, or owner-operator and members 
of his family, in conjunction with permitted principal uses;  

C. Retail business when accessory to a permitted principal use.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.040 Conditional uses and structures. 

Subject to the requirements of the conditional use standards and procedures of this title, the following uses 
and structures may be permitted in the WI district:  

A. Log storage and rafting;  

108



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:15 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 69 of 139 

B. Timber and mining manufacturing.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.050 Prohibited uses and structures. 

Any use or structure not of a character as indicated under permitted uses, accessory uses, or conditional 
uses.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.060 Setbacks. 

A. Minimum Setbacks.  

1. Front yard-Twenty feet.  

2. Side yard and rear yard: subject to Uniform Building Code regarding fire walls and separation of 
buildings.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.070 Lot coverage. 

A. Maximum lot coverage by all buildings and structures as regulated by the Uniform Building Code.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.080 Height. 

A. Maximum height of buildings and structures: subject to Uniform Building Code regarding building heights.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.090 Off-street parking and loading. 

A. Off- street Parking and Loading. The requirements for off-street parking and loading in the waterfront 
industrial district shall be as set forth in Chapter 18.48 of this code.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.100 Minimum lot requirements. 

A. Minimum Lot Requirements.  

1. Lot width: 100 feet;  

2. Lot size: 10,000 feet.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

109



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 70 of 139 

18.33.110 Signs. 

A. Signs. Signs may be allowed in the waterfront industrial district subject to the supplementary district 
regulations, the Uniform Sign Code, as set forth in Chapter 18.44 of this code.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.120 Floor elevations. 

A. Minimum Finished Floor Elevations. In the waterfront industrial district, the following minimum finished floor 
elevations for the ground floor shall be adhered to:  

North Fill Development Park  

Block 1  
Lot 1  27.00′  
Lot 2  26.50′  
Lot 3  27.25′  
Block 2  
Lot 4  27.25′  
Lot 1  26.50′  
Block 3  
Lot 2  26.25′  
Lot 1  26.50′  
Block 4  
Lot 1  27.25′  
Lot 2  27.25′  
Lot 3  27.25′  
Lot 4  27.25′  
Lot 5  26.25′  
Block 5  
Lot 1  27.25′  
Lot 2  27.25′  
Block 6  
Lot 2  26.50′  
Lot 1  26.25′  
Block 7  
Lot 2  26.50′  
Lot 3  26.25′  
Lot 1  26.75′  
Lot 3  27.25′  
Block 8  
Lot 1  27.00′  
Lot 2  26.75′  
Lot 3  26.50′  
Lot 4  26.25′  

 

Note: The elevation datum used is based on the following described bench mark:  

USC & GS Standard Brass Disk Located in Sidewalk Adjacent to Fish Game Building near Southwest Corner of 
Intersection Railroad Avenue and Breakwater Avenue. Elevation 40.40 Above M.L.L.W.  

110



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 71 of 139 

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

18.33.130 Site plan review. 

A. Prior to the issuance of a building for construction within the waterfront industrial district, the planning 
commission shall approve the development plan for the project. The site plan review shall be conducted in 
accordance with Chapter 18.42 of this code.  

B. The exterior siding and roof shall be finished in earthtone colors.  

(Ord. 634 (part), 1988). 

Chapter 18.34 WATERFRONT HISTORIC DISTRICT 

18.34.010 Purpose. 

The following statement of intent and purpose shall apply to the waterfront historic district. The waterfront 
historic district (WHD) is intended to be applied to land with direct access or close proximity to navigable tidal 
waters within the city. The district is designed specifically for historically significant fish processing complexes and 
waterfront railroad era structures. To the extent feasible and prudent, structures within the WHD are to be 
constructed and refurbished in such a manner as to be aesthetically consistent with, and reflect the community's 
marine oriented lifestyle and history. Uses within the WHD are intended to be water dependent or water-related 
enterprises that derive an economic or social benefit from a waterfront location as required by the Cordova coastal 
management plan.  

The waterfront historic district is created to reflect the fact that Cordova's economy is evolving and that new 
economic demands and land use pressures are being placed upon the waterfront. The intent of this zoning 
classification is to preserve and restore historically significant buildings and provide a mechanism by which the 
owners of these facilities can maximize and diversify the use and productivity of existing buildings and facilities in 
order to meet the demands of a changing economy.  

Fish processing complexes historically were self-contained units which provided a wide variety of services 
and facilities. This included, but was not limited to, housing, food service, marine cargo and docking facilities, fuel 
storage and sales, equipment storage and repair, machine shops, business offices, mess halls, equipment and 
supply sales and other fishing industry related services. The WHD is intended to be a unique zoning district in 
which a mixture of compatible waterfront uses are permitted to exist simultaneously and in close physical 
proximity to each other. This zoning classification specifically permits various land uses and activities that are 
categorized as accessory or conditional uses in the Development I Zone of the Cordova coastal management plan. 
It also specifically permits additional uses under the provisions of Section 3.3 (criteria for unlisted uses or activities) 
of the plan.  

(Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

18.34.020 Permitted principal uses and structures. 

A. The following are the permitted principal commercial uses and structures in the WHD:  

1. Boat charter services;  

2. Commercial and sport fishing supplies and services;  

3. Eating and drinking establishments;  

111



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 72 of 139 

4. Fish and seafood markets;  

5. Gift shops;  

6. Hotels, bunkhouses, boarding houses, bed and breakfasts, rental units, and condominiums;  

7. Marine related retail and wholesale stores;  

8. Marine education and science activities;  

9. Residences;  

10. Waterfront parks, access paths, and boardwalks and viewing areas.  

B. The following are the permitted principal light industrial uses and structures in the WHD:  

1. Docks and harbor facilities;  

2. Fueling piers, marine fuel sales, and associated facilities;  

3. Open wet moorage;  

4. Covered wet moorage;  

5. Passenger staging facilities;  

6. Haul-out facilities;  

7. Marine construction, repair, and dismantling;  

8. Cargo terminals and cargo handling;  

9. Fish and seafood processing;  

10. Warehousing and wholesaling;  

11. Open and covered storage for marine-related equipment.  

(Ord. 866 (part), 2000: Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

18.34.030 Permitted accessory uses and structures. 

The following are the accessory uses and structures in the WHD:  

A. Accessory buildings as defined in Section 18.08.030 of this title;  

B. Offices associated with permitted principal uses;  

C. Residential dwellings for watchman or caretaker employed on the premises and/or owner-operator 
and members of his family, in conjunction with permitted principal uses;  

D. Retail businesses when accessory to a permitted principal use;  

E. Parking in conjunction with permitted principal uses.  

(Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

18.34.040 Conditional uses and exceptions. 

The planning and zoning commission may grant conditional use permits subject to the requirements of 
Chapters 18.50 (coastal management plan) and 18.60 (conditional use permits) of this title, and exceptions subject 
to the requirements of Chapter 18.64 (exceptions) of this title and Section 3.3 of the coastal management plan for 

112



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 73 of 139 

additional uses, activities, and structures which are not specifically authorized herein. Additional activities and 
structures permitted must be consistent with the Cordova coastal management plan and the general intent of this 
zoning classification. The commission will require site development plans in order to adequately assess any 
proposed conditional use or exception.  

(Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

18.34.050 Prohibited uses and structures. 

Any land use or activity or structure that is not specifically permitted above.  

(Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

18.34.060 Minimum lot requirement. 

The following is the minimum lot requirement in WHD:  

Lot area: four thousand square feet.  

(Ord. 888, 2001: Ord. 866 (part), 2000: Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

18.34.070 Minimum setback requirements. 

The following are the minimum setback requirements in the WHD.  

A. Front yard, side yard, and rear yard setbacks subject to Uniform Building Code requirements regarding 
building construction type, occupancy, separation distance between buildings, access and egress. Zero 
lot line construction is not expressly prohibited.  

(Ord. 866 (part), 2000: Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

18.34.080 Maximum height of buildings and structures. 

The following are the maximum heights of buildings and structures in the WHD.  

A. Principal buildings and structures: Seventy-five (75) feet.  

B. Accessory buildings and structures: Fifty (50) feet.  

C. The planning and zoning commission may grant conditional use permits for taller buildings subject to 
requirements of the uniform building code and the policies in the Cordova coastal management plan 
regarding the maintenance of visual access to coastal waters.  

(Ord. 866 (part), 2000: Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

18.34.090 Required off-street parking. 

The requirements for off-street parking and loading are described in Chapter 18.48 of this title.  

(Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

113



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 74 of 139 

18.34.100 Signs. 

Signs are permitted subject to the Uniform Sign Code and Chapter 18.44 of this title.  

(Ord. 831 (part), 1999). 

Chapter 18.35 AVALANCHE DISTRICT 

18.35.010 Purpose. 

An avalanche district is hereby established as a zoning overlay district for the following purposes:  

A. To protect the citizens of Cordova and the general public from the extreme hazards associated with 
avalanche events;  

B. To identify those areas within the city where, after due investigation and study, avalanche potential is 
found to exist;  

C. To identify areas where historic avalanche events have impacted lands in a manner that indicates 
extreme or moderate hazards to human life and property;  

D. To give notice to the public of those areas within the city where avalanche potential has been found to 
exist;  

E. To allow for construction of single-family residences by persons informed of avalanche danger with 
regard to a specific parcel of real property located in moderate hazard areas, while providing 
regulations to protect lessees, renters and subtenants of property located within the avalanche district;  

F. To minimize health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and extraordinary public expenditures;  

G. To promote the general public health, safety and welfare; and  

H. To protect Eyak Lake, Eyak River and other watersheds within Cordova from pollution resulting from 
fuel, chemical, lubricant, paints, cleaners and other types of hazardous and harmful materials that 
might be stored within the avalanche district and be carried by avalanche events into waters and 
wetlands.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

(Ord. No. 1123, § 1, 4-15-2015) 

18.35.020 Definition and designation of avalanche district. 

A. The avalanche district shall be a district overlaying an existing zoning district. It shall designate those areas 
within the city found to be subject to potential avalanche danger. Additional requirements of the avalanche 
district shall be applied to uses otherwise permitted in the existing zoning district.  

B. The avalanche district shall consist of two sub-zone designations. The distinction between these subzones is 
defined according to the frequency and destructive force of potential avalanches. They include high hazard 
"red zones" and moderate hazard "blue zones."  

1. High Hazard Zones—Red Zones. High hazard red zones are used to define the greatest potential 
avalanche risk and are defined as areas subject to:  

114



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 75 of 139 

a. Avalanche return periods of less than thirty years; and/or  

b. Impact forces of greater than six hundred pounds per square foot, assuming a flat, normal, rigid 
surface.  

People living in or traveling through a high hazard zone should expect to be infrequently impacted by major 
avalanche events capable of severely damaging or destroying standard wood frame structures and severely 
injuring or killing people. This includes the following range of exposure: structures could be totally destroyed or 
severely damaged, roofs could be blown off or caved in, walls could be pushed in or sucked out, houses could be 
pushed from their foundations, vehicles could be severely damaged, mature trees could be broken off, and 
windows and doors could be ripped off, sucked out or pushed in, with considerable broken glass and debris carried 
by hurricane force winds. People outside or inside of structures could be severely injured or killed. Children or 
adults playing or working outside would be particularly susceptible to injury or death. The risk of fuel leaks and/or 
fire and explosion is high.  

2. Moderate Hazard Zones—Blue Zones. Moderate hazard blue zones are exposed to potential avalanche 
threat, but to a lesser degree. Mitigation will usually be feasible but requires site specific analysis. By 
definition, these areas are subject to:  

a. Return periods of greater than thirty years, but under three hundred years; and  

b. Impact pressures of less than six hundred pounds per square foot, assuming a flat, normal, rigid 
surface.  

People living in or traveling through a moderate hazard zone can expect to be less frequently exposed to potential 
threat from major avalanches and, because of the location, subjected to a lower degree of potential impact. This 
includes the following range of exposure: structures could be moderately damaged, houses could be pushed from 
their foundations, roofs could be blown off, walls could be pushed in, windows and doors could be pushed in, 
sucked out or ripped off, and broken glass and flying branches could be a hazard to people. The risk of fuel leaks 
and/or fire and explosion is high. People outside would be particularly vulnerable to flying debris. Although 
generally the avalanche exposure here is less frequent than in the red zone, serious damage, death or injuries are 
possible.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

(Ord. No. 1123, § 1, 4-15-2015) 

18.35.030 Principal uses—Uses permitted. 

All uses allowed in a district shall be subject to the additional restrictions of the avalanche district. If any of 
the regulations specified in this section differ from regulations specified for a district with which the avalanche 
district is combined, the regulations contained in this section shall apply and govern. Permitted principal uses are 
as follows:  

A. High Hazard Red Zone.  

1. Water conservation and flood control installations;  

2. Seasonal parks, campgrounds and parkways, greenbelts, land reserves and related facilities 
except between December 1st and May 1st or other times when the city has declared an 
avalanche hazard; and  

3. Installation of sewer, water and utilities.  

B. Moderate Hazard Blue Zone.  

115



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 76 of 139 

1. Single-family residences and associated structures. Proper mitigating measures are required for 
construction permits within the blue zone. Additional information and/or reports are required by 
the building official related to construction within the blue zone; and  

2. Seasonal bed and breakfast businesses except between December 1st and May 1st or other times 
when the city has declared an avalanche hazard;  

3. Any use permitted in the red zone.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

(Ord. No. 1123, § 1, 4-15-2015) 

18.35.035 Conditional uses in blue zone. 

Subject to the requirements of the conditional use standards and procedures of this title, the following uses 
may be permitted in the blue zone:  

A. Commercial occupancies.  

(Ord. No. 1123, § 1, 4-15-2015) 

18.35.040 Prohibited uses. 

Because of the high hazard to the health and safety of the general public, no uses that concentrate human 
activity during times of risk are allowed in the avalanche district. The following uses are prohibited in the:  

A. High Hazard Red Zone.  

1. All residential occupancies;  

2. All commercial occupancies;  

3. All storage facilities;  

4. All temporary structures, except those authorized by special permit issued by the city that might 
be required to serve temporary uses related to public services;  

5. Any use or structure open to the general public for use between December 1st and May 1st of 
any year, or other times when the city has declared an avalanche hazard;  

6. Open or closed storage of vehicles, boats or equipment;  

7. Fuel, or any other material rated as hazardous; or  

8. Junkyards.  

B. Moderate Hazard Blue Zone.  

1. All residential occupancies, except single-family residences;  

2. Seasonal bed and breakfast businesses between December 1st and May 1st or other times when 
the city has declared an avalanche hazard;  

3. Open or closed commercial storage of vehicles, boats or equipment, except items for personal 
use under the control of the owner of the property; or  

116



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 77 of 139 

4. Fuel or any other material rated as hazardous, when the quantity of material exceeds the 
minimum listed controlled quantities under HAZMAT guidelines adopted by the state of Alaska 
and/or the city of Cordova, Alaska.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

(Ord. No. 1123, § 1, 4-15-2015) 

18.35.050 Required permits. 

No person shall engage in the uses listed in subsections (A)—(F) within the avalanche district without an 
approved site development plan, building permit and/or a written conditional use permit issued by the city. Prior 
to issuance of a building permit for any habitable structure within the avalanche zone, the applicant shall submit to 
the city building official plans signed by an engineer licensed in the state of Alaska, certifying that the proposed 
construction as designed will withstand the avalanche forces designated for the zone, or the avalanche forces set 
forth in a study of the property in question prepared at the owner's expense and submitted to the city by a 
recognized expert in the field of avalanche occurrence, force and behavior.  

The avalanche forces setting standards for this chapter are to be considered minimum forces only, and the 
city does not represent, guarantee or warrant the ultimate safety of any construction, use or occupancy of 
structures constructed to meet those forces. Avalanches may occur with forces greater than the standards in this 
section, and areas of the city not designated as avalanche district may be subject to potential avalanche danger.  

A. Construction of avalanche protective, deflective and preventative structures, devices or earthwork that 
may deflect avalanches shall be permitted only as a conditional use. Prior to granting of a conditional 
use permit, the applicant shall submit to the city plans thereof signed by an engineer licensed in the 
state of Alaska, certifying that the proposed construction will withstand the designated avalanche 
forces within the zone or the avalanche forces set forth in a study of the property in question prepared 
at the owner's expense and submitted to the city by a recognized expert in the field of avalanche 
occurrence, force and behavior, and that the proposed construction will not deflect avalanches toward 
the property of others. Other information and engineering studies may be requested in consideration 
of an application for a conditional use permit. Appropriate landscaping may be required where such 
structures, devices or earthwork alter the natural slope or beauty of the land;  

B. Excavation or removal of soil, trees, shrubs or downed timber when the activity results in alterations of 
the landscape that could increase or create avalanche hazard;  

C. Construction of structures for, or installation of public services and utilities;  

D. Camping on public lands in the avalanche district;  

E. Mining; or  

F. Timber harvesting.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

(Ord. No. 1123, § 1, 4-15-2015) 

18.35.060 Use restrictions. 

The following restrictions are hereby imposed upon construction, development and use of all real property 
located within the avalanche district:  

117



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 78 of 139 

A. All public utilities installed after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter for 
development of a subdivision or providing utility services to a building or replacing existing utility 
services to a building or subdivision shall be installed underground in order to minimize possible 
avalanche damage to said utilities and injury to persons and property;  

B. There shall be no further subdivision of any real property, including lot splits, which would result in the 
creation of a lot or building site, in whole or part, within the avalanche district. A variance to this 
provision may be granted if a lot can be created in which the building site conforms to all other 
provisions of this chapter and is located entirely outside of the avalanche district.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

18.35.070 General notice requirements. 

In order to provide reasonable notice to the public of the avalanche potential within all areas designated 
avalanche district, the following notice regulations and requirements are hereby adopted for all real property and 
structures located within said zone:  

A. All subdivision plats shall identify and designate each lot and block, or portions thereof, located within 
the avalanche district together with applicable subzone designation by a stamp or writing in a manner 
providing reasonable notice to interested parties.  

B. All plans submitted with a building permit application for development of property, any part of which is 
within the avalanche district, must be stamped "Avalanche District," together with the applicable 
subzone designation.  

C. Prior to issuance of any building permit for construction within the avalanche district, the applicant 
shall appear before the planning and zoning commission for the purpose of receiving personal notice of 
the fact such building is within the avalanche zone and notice of the studies conducted to date with 
regard thereto.  

D. The city shall file with the office of the recorder such documents as necessary to provide record notice 
of each existing lot and/or parcel of real property within the avalanche district.  

E. The city shall post signs in the public right-of-way to reasonably identify the boundaries of the 
avalanche district.  

F. All owners or owner representatives who rent, lease or sublet any structure or premises within the 
avalanche district from December 1st through May 1st, or during times when an avalanche hazard has 
been declared by the city, shall provide the tenant, lessee or subtenant with written notice that such 
property is located within the avalanche district, including the subzone designation, prior to occupancy 
thereof. This notice shall be a part of the rental or lease document and shall require specific signed 
acknowledgement by the tenant, lessee or subtenant.  

G. Each and every real estate agent, sales person and broker, and each and every private party who offers 
for sale or shows a parcel of real property and/or structure for sale within the avalanche district shall 
provide the prospective purchaser written notice that said real property and/or structure is located 
within the avalanche district and identify the subzone designation. Furthermore, the written notice 
shall state that avalanche hazard studies are available for public inspection at the administrative offices 
of the city, and that such studies should be reviewed prior to any party entering any agreement or 
contract or lease with regard thereto.  

H. If, under the provisions of Section 18.35.090, any use continued within the avalanche district Red Zone 
includes living units available for casual/daily rentals or short-term lease (less than ninety days) the 
following shall apply. All brochures and other printed materials advertising and/or soliciting 

118



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 79 of 139 

reservations for rental or lease of living units within the avalanche district during the period between 
December 1st and May 1st shall contain a statement that the units are located within an avalanche 
district Red Zone, a high avalanche hazard area.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

18.35.080 Special restrictions. 

No person shall commit the following in the avalanche district:  

A. Tamper with or remove any sign, monument, or other boundary marker; or  

B. Place, store or dump waste, refuse and hazardous or toxic substances.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

18.35.090 Conditions for continuation. 

Any building or portion thereof in existence prior to the effective date of this chapter which is specifically 
designed or arranged to be lawfully occupied or used in a manner not conforming to the provisions of this title may 
thereafter be so occupied and used, subject to the limitations set forth in Section 18.52.010Chapter 18.52—
Nonconformities. Except that discontinued shall mean that a nonconforming use has ceased, and has not 
substantially resumed, for a period of three hundred sixty-five days or more, regardless of intent. The term "in 
existence" shall include, for the purposes of this section only, any building under actual permitted construction at 
such date; provided, that such building can be completed within one year thereof. In addition, should an owner-
occupied dwelling become vacant after the date of the ordinance codified in this chapter, that dwelling may be 
offered for lease or rent if all other requirements are met. Notwithstanding this provision, any required notice 
provisions contained in Section 18.35.070 shall be issued.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

(Ord. No. 1155, § 1, 9-6-2017) 

18.35.100 Damage or destruction. 

No building, use or occupancy continued in the avalanche district under the provisions of Section 18.35.090, 
which is damaged or destroyed to the extent of more than fifty percent of its assessed value by an avalanche 
event, shall be repaired, altered or occupied except in conformity with the provisions of this title.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

18.35.110 Suspension of city services. 

During periods of avalanche danger, city services, including emergency services, police, fire, rescue, and 
utility services, may be suspended, or otherwise not be provided to property within the avalanche district; nor 
shall the city accept responsibility for or guarantee that emergency services, rescue efforts, or other city services 
be provided during periods of extreme avalanche danger.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

119



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 80 of 139 

18.35.120 Warning and disclaimer of safety and liability. 

Avalanches occur naturally, suddenly and unpredictably based upon steepness of slope and run out area, 
exposure, snow pack composition, wind, temperature, rate of snowfall and other little understood interacting 
factors. The avalanche district designated in this chapter is considered for regulatory purposes and is based upon 
and limited by the engineering and scientific methods of study. This chapter does not represent or imply that areas 
outside the avalanche district are free from avalanches or avalanche danger. The fact that the city has not 
prohibited the continued use of property within the avalanche district (Section 18.35.090) does not constitute a 
representation, guarantee or warranty of any kind as to the safety of any construction, use or occupancy thereof. 
The granting of any permit or approval for any structure or use, or the declaration or failure to declare the 
existence of an avalanche hazard shall not constitute a representation, guarantee or warranty of any kind or 
nature by the city, or any official or employee of the practicality or safety of any construction, use or occupancy 
thereof, and shall create no liability upon or cause of action against such public body or its officials or employees 
for any injury, loss or damage that may result thereby. Avalanches occur naturally, suddenly and unpredictably, 
and persons who develop or occupy real property within the avalanche district do so at their own risk.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

18.35.130 Violations. 

Failure to obey or comply with any provision of the Chapter 18.35 is a violation and subject to enforcement 
action.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

18.35.140 Notice of avalanche studies. 

The city has avalanche studies for various areas within the city. Copies of studies are available for public 
inspection at the office of the Cordova city planner, City Hall. Persons interested in building, using or occupying 
real property within the avalanche zone are encouraged and should examine the studies. However, the city does 
not represent or warrant the completeness or accuracy of those studies.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

18.35.150 Amendment to zoning map. 

The official zoning map of the city is hereby amended to include the avalanche district, with subcategory 
designation of Red Zone "High Avalanche Hazard" and Blue Zone "Moderate Avalanche Hazard" as part of the 
avalanche district. The boundaries of such avalanche district are hereby adopted as set forth on such amended 
official zoning map hereby made a part of this chapter. The city council may from time to time amend the official 
zoning map of the city to include additional areas designated as "avalanche district," and to further refine district 
boundaries.  

(Ord. 853 (part), 2000). 

Chapter 18.36 IR INDUSTRIAL RESERVE DISTRICT 

120



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 81 of 139 

18.36.010 Permitted uses. 

The following uses are permitted in the IR district:  

Any use permitted and as regulated in the I district not otherwise prohibited by law, except residential, 
institutional and retail business or service uses.  

(Prior code § 15.207(A)). 

18.36.020 Prohibited uses. 

The following uses are prohibited in the IR district:  

A. All residential uses, except dwelling for a watchman or caretaker employed on the premises or 
owner—operator and members of his family;  

B. Automobile salvage yards and wrecking operations;  

C. Cemeteries;  

D. Any operation which will render the area unsatisfactory for functional sites for industrial structures and 
their use;  

E. Outdoor advertising signs;  

F. All uses that may be noxious or injurious by reason of the production or emission of dust, smoke, 
refuse matter, odor, gas, fumes, noise, vibration or similar substances or conditions; provided, 
however, that any uses may be permitted if approved by the city planning commission and subject to 
the securing of a permit therefor and to such conditions, restrictions and safeguards as may be 
deemed necessary by said commission for the purpose of protecting the health, safety, morals or the 
general welfare of the community.  

(Prior code § 15.207(B)). 

18.36.030 Special restrictions. 

No gravel excavation greater than five feet below grade of closest existing highway is permitted in the IR 
district.  

(Prior code § 15.207(C)). 

18.36.040 Building height limit. 

There is no building height limit in the IR district.  

(Prior code § 15.207(D)). 

18.36.050 Front yard. 

In the IR district:  

A. There sha11 be a front yard of not less than thirty feet.  

B. The front yard along state highways shall be not less than fifty feet.  

121



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 82 of 139 

(Prior code § 15.207(E)). 

18.36.060 Rear yard. 

There shall be a rear yard in the IR district of not less than twenty feet.  

(Prior code § 15.207(G)). 

18.36.070 Side yard. 

There shall be a side yard in the IR district of not less than twenty feet.  

(Prior code § 15.207(F)). 

Chapter 18.37 WATERSHED PROTECTION DISTRICT 

18.37.010 Purpose. 

The watershed protection (WP) district is intended to protect city watersheds from human activities that 
may harm the water supply.  

(Ord. 807 § 1(part), 1998). 

18.37.011 Principal uses. 

Permitted principal uses are as follows:  

A. Facilities that are necessary to administer and supply water to the city;  

B. Uses accessory to the principal use;  

C. Uses in keeping with the character and requirements of the watershed protection (WP) district.  

(Ord. 807 § 1(part), 1998). 

18.37.012 Prohibited uses. 

Prohibited uses are as follows:  

A. Timber harvesting;  

B. Agriculture;  

C. Mining.  

(Ord. 807 § 1(part), 1998). 

18.37.013 Required permits. 

No persons shall engage in the following uses without a written permit issued by the city:  

122



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 83 of 139 

A. Camping on lands in the watershed (an overnight emergency shall not constitute a violation of this 
requirement);  

B. Construction of structures or installation of public services and utilities;  

C. Excavation or removal of large quantities of soil, trees, shrubs, or downed timber.  

(Ord. 807 § 1(part), 1998). 

18.37.014 Special restrictions. 

No person shall commit the following in the watershed protection (WP) district:  

A. Tamper with, or remove, any building, sign, monument, or other boundary marker;  

B. Place any substance which may result in pollution of the water supply;  

C. Dump waste or refuse in the watershed (spills of oil or toxic substances shall be reported immediately 
to the city).  

(Ord. 807 § 1(part), 1998). 

18.37.015 Designation of watersheds. 

The natural boundaries of the Murcheson, Heney, Meals, and Orca Watersheds are designated herein as 
watershed protection (WP) districts.  

(Ord. 807 § 1(part), 1998). 

18.37.016 Violation. 

Failure to obey or comply with any provision of this or any rule, order or regulation issued thereunder is a 
violation. The minimum penalty upon conviction of a single violation of this title shall be a fine of three hundred 
dollars.  

(Ord. 807 § 1(part), 1998). 

Chapter 18.38 PUBLIC LANDS AND INSTITUTIONS DISTRICT 

18.38.010 Purpose. 

The following statement of intent and use regulations shall apply in the PLI district: The PLI district is 
intended to include major open lands and major public and quasi-public institutional uses, including government 
office buildings and existing land reserves for public and institutional use.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.020 Permitted principal uses and structures. 

The following are the permitted principal uses and structures in the PLI district:  

A. Parks, parkways, greenbelts, land reserves and related facilities;  

123



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 84 of 139 

B. Playgrounds, playfields, and recreational facilities;  

C. Museums, historic and cultural exhibits and the like;  

D. Water conservation and flood control installations;  

E. Educational institutions, including public, private or parochial academic schools, colleges and 
universities;  

F. Hospitals, sanitariums, children's home, nursing homes, convalescent homes, homes for the aged, and 
the like;  

G. Cemeteries;  

H. Sewer installations and water supply installations;  

I. Utilities installations;  

J. Off-street parking;  

K. Fire stations.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.030 Permitted accessory uses and structures. 

The following are the permitted accessory uses and structures in the PLI district:  

A. Crematoriums and mausoleums as accessory uses to permitted cemeteries;  

B. Uses and structures which are necessary or desirable adjuncts to permitted principal uses and 
structures, where such necessary uses and structures are under the management or control of the 
organization or agency responsible for the permitted principal use or structure.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.040 Conditional uses. 

Subject to the requirements of the conditional use standards and procedures of this title, the following uses 
may be permitted in the PLI district:  

A. Churches and synagogues, along with the customary accessory uses, including parsonages, day 
nurseries, kindergartens and meeting rooms;  

B. Natural resource extraction;  

C. Vocational schools, trade schools, manual training centers and the like;  

D. Correctional institutions, rehabilitation centers, reformatories and the like;  

E. Governmental service shops, maintenance and repair centers and equipment storage yards;  

F. Convents, monasteries and administrative offices of religious organizations;  

G. Headquarters or administrative offices for such charitable or eleemosynary organizations as Red Cross, 
Tuberculosis Society, Cancer Society, Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts, and similar quasi-public organizations of a 
noncommercial nature.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

124



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 85 of 139 

18.38.050 Prohibited uses and structures. 

Any use or structure not of a character indicated under permitted uses and structures or permitted as a 
conditional use if prohibited.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.060 Minimum lot requirements. 

The following are the minimum lot requirements:  

A. Lot width, one hundred feet;  

B. Lot area, fifteen thousand square feet.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.070 Minimum yard requirements. 

The following are the minimum yard requirements:  

A. Front yard, twenty-five feet;  

B. Side yard, ten feet;  

C. Rear yard, fifteen feet.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.080 Maximum lot coverage. 

The maximum lot coverage by all buildings: fifty percent.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.090 Maximum height of structures. 

The maximum height of structures is unrestricted, except that structures shall not interfere with Federal 
Aviation Administration Regulations on airport approaches and conform with the Uniform Building Code.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.100 Signs. 

Signs may be allowed in connection with any permitted use, subject to the supplementary district regulations 
and the Uniform Sign Code.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

125



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:16 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 86 of 139 

18.38.110 Parking. 

Adequate off-street parking shall be provided in connection with any permitted use, as required in Chapter 
18.48.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.120 Loading. 

Adequate off-street loading area shall be provided in connection with any permitted use, as required in 
Chapter 18.48.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

18.38.130 Ground cover. 

All areas not devoted to buildings, structures, drives, walks, off—street parking facilities or other authorized 
installations shall be covered with one or more of the following: lawn grass, shrubbery, trees, or other suitable 
ground cover materials.  

(Ord. 597 (part), 1985). 

Chapter 18.39 WATERFRONT COMMERCIAL PARK DISTRICT6 

18.39.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of the Waterfront Commercial Park (WCP) district is to provide a mix of services, businesses and 
recreational activities to benefit the community. Uses within the WCP district are intended to be water-dependent 
or water-related, and primarily those uses that are particularly related to location, recreation or commercial 
enterprises that derive an economic or social benefit from a waterfront location.  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

18.39.020 Permitted principal uses and structures. 

The following are the permitted principal uses and structures in the WCP district:  

A. Business services;  

B. Cultural centers;  

C. Docks and harbor facilities;  

D. Eating and drinking establishments;  

 

6Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 1134, § 1, adopted October 7, 2015, amended ch. 18.398, §§ 18.39.010—18.39.130, in 
its entirety, to read as set out herein. Former ch. 18.39 pertained to similar subject matter, and was derived 
from Ord. No. 612 (part), adopted 1986; Ord. No. 623 § 1, adopted 1987; Ord. No. 802 §§ 1—3, adopted 
1998; Ord. No. 1073, adopted July 7, 2010 and Ord. No. 1124, § 1, adopted May 6, 2015.  

126



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 87 of 139 

E. Hotels;  

F. Public service and municipal buildings;  

G. Retail services;  

H. Waterfront parks, access paths, and boardwalks.  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

18.39.030 Permitted accessory uses and structures. 

The following are the permitted accessory uses and structures in the WCP district:  

A. Accessory buildings;  

B. Office buildings associated with permitted principal uses;  

C. Watchman's quarters  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

18.39.040 Conditional uses. 

Subject to the requirements of the conditional use standards and procedures of this title, the following uses 
may be permitted in the WCP district:  

A. Commercial outside storage;  

B. Processing of seafood where no more than two thousand square feet of gross floor space of structure 
is used for processing;  

C. Fueling pier.  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

18.39.050 Reserved. 

18.39.060 Minimum lot requirements. 

The following are the minimum lot requirements in the WCP district:  

A. Lot width: Ninety feet  

B. Lot area: Nine thousand square feet.  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

18.39.070 Minimum yard requirements. 

The following are the minimum yard requirements in the WCP district:  

A. Front yard: Fifteen feet  

B. Side yard: Five feet  

C. Rear yard: Five feet.  

127



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 88 of 139 

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

18.39.080 Maximum height of buildings and structures. 

The following are the maximum heights of buildings and structures in the WCP district:  

A. Principal buildings and structures: Thirty feet  

B. Accessory buildings and structures: Twenty feet.  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

18.39.090 Required off-street parking and loading. 

The requirements for off-street parking and loading in the WCP district shall be as set forth in Chapter 18.48.  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

18.39.100 Signs. 

Signs may be allowed in the WCP district subject to the Uniform Sign Code and as set forth in Chapter 18.44.  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

18.39.110 Reserved. 

18.39.120 Reserved. 

18.39.130 Site plan review. 

The development plan of any proposed development in the WCP district shall be subject to a site plan review 
conducted in accordance with Chapter 18.42.  

(Ord. No. 1134, § 1, 10-7-2015) 

Chapter 18.40 GENERAL USE REGULATIONS 

18.40.010 Height of buildings. 

A. The permitted height of buildings shall be exclusive of roof structures as defined in the building code of the 
city.  

B. Penthouses or roof structures for the housing of elevators, stairways, tanks, ventilating fans or similar 
equipment required to operate and maintain the building; fire or parapet walls, skylights, towers, roof signs, 
flagpoles, chimneys, smokestacks, wireless masts or similar structures and necessary mechanical 
appurtenances, may be erected above the height limits prescribed; but no penthouses, roof structure or any 
space above the permitted height limit of buildings shall be for the purpose of providing additional floor 
space.  

128



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 89 of 139 

(Prior code § 15.209(C)). 

18.40.020 Distance between buildings. 

No detached dwelling or other main building shall be less than ten feet from any other detached dwelling or 
main building on the same building site.  

(Prior code § 15.209(F)). 

18.40.030 Accessory buildings. 

A. No accessory building shall exceed twenty feet in height, except agricultural buildings, which shall not exceed 
fifty feet in height.  

B. No accessory building shall be erected, constructed, or moved on any lot in any R district prior to the 
construction of the main building, except that this shall not be construed to prohibit the construction of an 
accessory building when a building permit has been issued for the concurrent construction of such buildings, 
or for an accessory building incidental to the use of the land.  

(Ord. 623 § 2, 1987; prior code § 15.209(G)). 

18.40.040 Fences and walls. 

A. Fences and walls not exceeding six feet in height may occupy any portion of a side or rear yard in any R 
district provided that where such fence or wall projects beyond the front yard line or setback line toward the 
front property line, the following further restrictions shall apply:  

1. Such fence or wall shall not exceed four feet in height, and shall be constructed so that not more than 
fifty percent of the vertical surface thereof above a height of two feet is solid wall;  

2. Planted hedges projecting beyond the front yard line shall not exceed the maximum heights permitted 
for fences or walls;  

3. No fence, wall or hedge shall be erected or maintained on the public property beyond the front 
property line of any lot or parcel of land, except masonry or concrete retaining walls, and then only to 
a height not to exceed six inches above the grade of the earth such wall is constructed to retain. A 
permit shall first be secured from the building official approving the necessity for and type of such 
retaining wall;  

4. A detached accessory building not exceeding twenty feet in height may be permitted to occupy a rear 
yard, provided that not more than one-third of the total area of such rear yard shall be so occupied.  

B. On any corner lot in any R district, there shall be no planting, structure, fence, shrubbery or other obstruction 
to vision more than three and one-half feet higher than the curb level within ten feet of the intersection of 
the adjacent street lines, except that shade trees or other plants or vegetation of sufficient height to permit 
sight distances from one street to the other under the lowest branches or foliage may be permitted.  

C. In any R district, no building shall be erected, reconstructed or altered nearer to the street line on which it 
faces than the average setback observed by seventy—five percent of the buildings on the same frontage. 
Where there are buildings on only one side of a street within the block, the setback line for the unoccupied 
side shall be the same as that established on the occupied side.  

(Ord. 623 § 3, 1987; prior code § 15.209(H)). 

129



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 90 of 139 

18.40.050 Antennas. 

A. Antennas Located on Existing Structures. Except for satellite and microwave dishes, which are governed by 
Subsection B of this section, and amateur radio antennas, which are governed by Subsection C of this 
section, antennas and accessory equipment are permitted in all zoning districts when located on an existing 
structure, including, without limitation, a building, water tank, utility pole, broadcast tower or other existing 
support structure, subject to the requirements of this subsection.  

1. The height of the antenna and accessory equipment may exceed the maximum building height for the 
zoning district, but shall conform to the following dimensional requirements.  

a. Omni-directional or whip antennas shall not exceed twenty feet in length and seven inches in 
diameter.  

b. Directional or panel antennas shall not exceed ten feet in length and two feet in width.  

c. Cylinder-type antennas shall not exceed ten feet in length and twelve inches in diameter.  

d. Antenna types other than those described above shall be permitted if they are not significantly 
larger and do not have a significantly greater visual impact than the antenna types described 
above. The purpose of this provision is to allow for future technological advances in the design of 
antennas.  

2. The antenna and accessory equipment shall be of a color that is identical to or similar to the color of 
the supporting structure in order to be visually unobtrusive.  

B. Satellite and Microwave Dishes. Satellite and microwave dishes are permitted in all zoning districts subject to 
the following requirements. The diameter of a satellite or microwave dish shall not exceed ten feet. A 
satellite or microwave dish having a diameter greater than three feet shall be screened with an appropriate 
architectural treatment that is compatible with or integral to the architecture of the building on which it is 
mounted to which it is an accessory structure.  

C. Amateur Radio Antennas. Amateur radio antennas are permitted in all zoning districts subject to the 
following requirements. An amateur radio antenna shall be designed and constructed in accordance with 
reasonable and customary engineering practices, shall conform to the height limitations in Alaska Statutes 
29.35.141(b), and otherwise shall conform to the requirements applicable to an amateur radio antenna in 
the zoning district where it is located. This subsection applies only to amateur radio antennas erected on or 
after July 26, 2001.  

(Ord. No. 1070, § 9, 7-21-2010) 

Chapter 18.42 SITE PLAN REVIEW 

18.42.010 Purpose. 

Whenever required by this code or the city council, a site plan review shall be completed by the planning 
commission with a recommendation to the city council. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the city council 
must approve the site plan for the project.  

(Ord. 636 (part), 1988). 

130



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 91 of 139 

18.42.020 Application procedure. 

The following procedures will govern the site plan review process when required by this code or the city 
council.  

A. The developer shall submit twenty copies of the site plan, including all items to be incorporated in such 
site plan, to the public works/planning director's office at least three weeks (twenty-one days) before a 
regularly scheduled planning commission meeting. The public works/planning director shall then 
transmit copies of the site plan to the planning commission and, as appropriate, to other bodies and/or 
agencies for review and comment. Bodies or individuals receiving plans for review shall forward 
written comments to the public works/planning director within fifteen days of the receipt of the plans. 
Upon receipt of comments and recommendations from the planning commission and appropriate 
bodies, the public works/planning director shall submit the same to the city council at its next regularly 
scheduled meeting for action, but in any event, no later than forty-five days of the initial receipt of the 
site plan.  

B. An approved site plan shall regulate the development on the site unless modified in the same manner 
as the plans were originally approved; provided, however, that incidental or minor variations of the 
approved site plan shall not invalidate prior site plan approval; provided, that the variations have first 
been revised and written approval received for the variations from the public works/planning director 
and city manager.  

(Ord. 984, 2006; Ord. 636 (part), 1988). 

18.42.030 Required information. 

A. The site plan to be submitted as required herein shall contain the following information. If any of the 
information requested herein is not applicable to a given project, the reasons for the non-applicability of the 
information requested shall be stated in the site plan:  

1. Name, address and phone number of owner/developer;  

2. Legal description of property;  

3. A scale of not less than 1″ = 20′;  

4. Date, north point and scale;  

5. The dimensions of all lot and property lines, showing the relationship of the subject property to 
abutting properties;  

6. The zoning and siting of all structures on the subject property and abutting properties;  

7. The location of each proposed structure in the development area, the use or uses to be contained 
therein, the number of stories, gross building area, distances between structures and lot lines, setback 
lines and approximate location of vehicular entrances and loading points;  

8. The location of all existing and proposed drives and parking areas with the number of parking and/or 
loading spaces provided and the location and right-of-way widths of all abutting streets;  

9. Location and height of all walls, fences and screen plantings, including a general plan for the 
landscaping of the development and the method by which landscaping is to be accomplished and be 
maintained;  

10. Types of surfacing, such as paving, turfing or gravel to be used at the various locations;  

131



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 92 of 139 

11. A grading plan of the area demonstrating the proposed method of storm drainage;  

12. Size and location of proposed sewer and water lines and connections;  

13. Front and side elevations of proposed structures;  

14. Exterior finish and color.  

B. Where phased or staged construction is contemplated for the development of a project, the site plan 
submitted must show the interrelationship of the proposed project to the future stages, including the 
following:  

1. Relationship and identification of future structures, roadways, drainage, water and sewer;  

2. Pedestrian and vehicular circulation;  

3. Time schedule for completion of various phases of the proposed construction;  

4. Temporary facilities or construction of same as required to facilitate the stage development.  

(Ord. 636 (part), 1988). 

Chapter 18.44 SIGNS 

18.44.010 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, certain terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall be construed as 
specified in either Chapter 2 of the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition, or the Uniform Building Code. Further, "sign" 
shall be construed as defined under Section 18.08.520 of this title.  

(Ord. 607 (part), 1986). 

18.44.020 General provisions. 

All signs shall conform in design and construction to Chapter 4 of the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition. 
Further, any sign, whether attached to a structure or freestanding, shall be so located as to conform to minimum 
yard requirements and maximum height requirements of the district in which the sign is located.  

(Ord. 607 (part), 1986). 

18.44.030 Permit required. 

A permit shall be obtained from the building official prior to the installation of any sign in any district, except 
for those signs exempted from the permit requirement by the terms of the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition, or 
those signs exempted from the permit requirement by the terms of this chapter. The procedure for obtaining a 
sign permit shall be as set forth in Chapter 3 of the Uniform Sign Code, 1985 Edition.  

(Ord. 607 (part), 1986). 

18.44.040 Sign size. 

The area of the display surface of a sign shall be computed as including the area comprising the entire 
display, but not including the forming parts of the display such as frames or standards. Only one side of a double-

132



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 93 of 139 

faced sign shall be included in the calculation. The standard area permitted is the total for all signs on the premises 
unless otherwise provided or excepted.  

(Ord. 607 (part), 1986). 

18.44.050 Type, size, and location of signs permitted in R districts. 

The following types, sizes, and locations of signs are permitted in an R district:  

A. One nonilluminated sign on a dwelling unit advertising the name of a home occupation and the name 
of the occupant. Such sign shall not exceed two square feet in area, and shall be located flat against the 
wall of the principal building;  

B. One sign for the purpose of advertising the sale or lease of a building or premises. Such sign shall not 
exceed six square feet in area.  

1. When a building or premises abuts on more than one street, one such sign may face each street, 
providing that no such sign at or near the intersection may obstruct free and clear vision of such 
involved streets. Further, no such sign shall be located within twenty-five feet of any street 
intersection;  

C. One sign to advertise or identify multiple dwellings, hotels, clubs, lodges, public and semipublic 
institutions, and similar uses. Such sign shall not exceed twenty square feet in area;  

D. One sign to identify nonconforming commercial uses. Such sign shall not exceed six square feet in area;  

E. The above signs shall be mounted flat against the building, or freestanding not less than twenty-five 
feet from any lot line;  

F. One sign for the advertisement of a tract development or a housing project of at least two acres in 
area. Such sign shall not exceed one hundred square feet in area. Such sign shall be located at least 
thirty feet from any street line and on the property being developed. Further, such sign shall not be 
maintained for more than one year;  

G. One announcement sign or bulletin board for a church, school, or public or charitable organization. 
Such sign shall not exceed twenty square feet and shall be located at least five feet back from the front 
property line and on the same lot as the principal building.  

(Ord. 607 (part), 1986). 

18.44.060 Signs prohibited in R districts. 

No sign illuminated with flashing or intermittent lighting shall be permitted in an R district.  

(Ord. 607 (part), 1986). 

18.44.070 Type, size, and location of signs permitted in B, I, CBD, WCP and PLI districts. 

The following types, sizes, and locations of signs are permitted in B, I, CBD, WCP and PLI districts:  

A. If there is only one business establishment in a building, that business may have three signs, the total 
area of which shall not exceed fifty square feet in area. No more than one of such signs shall be placed 
on any one face of the building;  

133



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 94 of 139 

B. If two or more business establishments are located in the same building, each business may have two 
signs, the total area of which shall not exceed fifty square feet. No more than one sign for any business 
shall be placed on any one face of the building;  

C. In addition to the above,.02 square feet of sign size per square foot of gross floor space, up to a 
maximum of two percent of total square footage of the building may be permitted by the planning 
commission;  

D. Signs guiding or directing traffic and parking on public or private parking are permitted providing such 
signs bear no advertising matter.  

(Ord. 607 (part), 1986). 

18.44.080 Notices and warning signs. 

Notices and warning signs, such as "vacancy," "no trespassing," "beware of dog," etc., shall be permitted in 
any zoning district. Such signs shall not exceed one square foot in area and shall be exempt from the permit 
requirement.  

(Ord. 607 (part), 1986). 

18.44.090 Political signs. 

For the purpose of this section, political signs shall be defined as any sign used for the purpose of advertising 
or promoting a political party, candidate, initiative, referendum, or proposition for voter consideration at a 
forthcoming election. Political signs shall be permitted in any zoning district in accordance with the terms of this 
section as follows:  

A. Political signs shall not exceed thirty-two square feet in area;  

B. Political signs shall not be placed on any public property or rights-of-way;  

C. Political signs shall not be placed more than ninety days prior to any primary or general election;  

D. All political signs shall be removed within one week following the relevant election, with the exception 
that political signs erected for any primary election that remain relevant to the following general 
election may be maintained for the period between the elections;  

E. Prior to placing political signs, a no-fee permit must be obtained from the building official;  

F. Pursuant to this subsection, political signs shall be exempt from the permit requirement.  

(Ord. 607 (part), 1986). 

18.44.100 Exemptions. 

Exemptions shall not be construed as relieving the owner of such signs from the responsibility of complying 
with certain applicable provisions of this chapter. The exemptions shall apply to the requirement for sign permit 
only, and no sign permit shall be required for the erection of the following signs:  

A. Building construction signs. One on-site building construction sign on each construction site in any 
zoning district provided that:  

1. Maximum display surface area:  

8 square feet in all R Districts  

134



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 95 of 139 

32 square feet in all other Districts;  

B. Real estate signs;  

C. Memorial signs or tablets, names of buildings and date of erection when cut into any masonry surface 
or when constructed of bronze or other noncombustible material;  

D. Municipal signs, as approved by the planning commission;  

E. Signs painted on, or affixed to glass surfaces of windows or doors and pertaining to the lawful business 
concluded therein;  

F. All signs located within a building that are not visible to the public outside said building.  

(Ord. 607 (part) 1986). 

Chapter 18.46 WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS 

18.46.010 Definitions. 

As used in this chapter:  

"Guyed tower" means a tower that is supported, in whole or in part, by wires and ground anchors.  

"Hub height" means the vertical distance between the grade and the center of the wind turbine hub.  

"Lattice tower" means a tower that is self-supporting and that consists of multiple legs and cross bracing of 
structural metal.  

"Monopole" means a tower that is self-supporting and that consists of a single vertical shaft usually 
constructed of wood, metal, or concrete.  

"Roof" means the uppermost surface of any part of a building.  

"Total height" means the vertical distance from the grade to the highest point on a wind energy system 
structure, including any moving part at the highest point in the course of its movement.  

"Vertical access wind turbine" means a wind energy system in which the main rotor shaft is arranged 
vertically.  

"Wind energy system" means a wind turbine and its supporting wind energy system tower.  

"Wind turbine" means a blade or other type of rotating mechanism that converts wind energy into electric 
energy.  

(Ord. No. 1077, § 1, 12-15-2010) 

18.46.020 Zoning requirements. 

A. In the LDR, MDR, HDR, URB and CB zoning districts, vertical access wind turbines, or wind energy systems 
mounted on a roof or monopole, are permitted as follows:  

1. One wind energy system with a hub height not exceeding eighty feet is permitted as an accessory use 
on a lot that has a minimum area of twenty thousand square feet.  

2. Except as provided in Subsection D. of this section, one or more wind energy systems of any height 
may be permitted on any lot as a conditional use.  

135



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 96 of 139 

B. In the in the POS, PLI, WID, WHD, WCP and C zoning districts, vertical access wind turbines, or wind energy 
systems mounted on a roof, monopole, guyed tower or lattice tower, are permitted as follows:  

1. No more than two wind energy systems with a hub height not exceeding one hundred fifty feet are 
permitted as an accessory use on a lot that has a minimum area of twenty thousand square feet.  

2. Except as provided in Subsection D. of this section, one or more wind energy systems of any height 
may be permitted on any lot as a conditional use.  

C. In the I zoning district, wind energy systems with a hub height not exceeding three hundred feet are 
permitted as an accessory use on a lot that has a minimum area of twenty thousand square feet. Except as 
provided in Subsection D. of this section, one or more wind energy systems of any height may be permitted 
on any lot as a conditional use.  

D. The maximum total height of a wind energy system in an aircraft-approach zone and within eight thousand 
feet of the main runway shall not exceed the maximum height that is determined on the basis of obstruction 
criteria shown on the current FAA-approved Cordova Airport Master Plan drawings which are on file at 
Cordova City Hall.  

E. No part of a wind energy system, including guy wires and other anchors, may be located within an area that 
is described in the minimum yard requirements for the applicable zoning district. No part of any wind energy 
system may be located in an access or utility easement.  

(Ord. No. 1077, § 1, 12-15-2010) 

18.46.030 Design and construction requirements. 

A. A wind energy system shall conform to the applicable code requirements that are adopted by reference in 
Section 16.05.010 and amended in Title 16 of this Code, and to the requirements in this section.  

B. The foundation for a ground-supported wind energy system shall be designed for the installation site by a 
professional engineer registered in Alaska, and the building permit application for the wind energy system 
shall include plans for the foundation stamped by the engineer. The building permit application for a roof-
mounted wind energy system shall include a certification by a professional engineer registered in Alaska that 
the roof structure will support the wind energy system.  

C. The building permit application [for] a wind energy system shall include documentation that the wind energy 
system meets the requirements of this chapter, or an approved conditional use permit authorizing any 
deviations from those requirements. In addition to review under Title 16 of this Code, the building permit 
application shall be reviewed by the Planning Department for compliance with the requirements of this 
chapter and any approved conditional use permit. Before a permit is issued it must be signed by the planning 
department.  

D. Each wind turbine that is a component of a wind energy system must be approved by the Small Wind 
Certification Program recognized by the American Wind Energy Association (AWEA) or another accredited 
organization such as the Small Wind Certification Council, National Wind Technology Certification Center, or 
the U.S. Department of Energy, National Renewable Energy Laboratory, or must be certified by a professional 
mechanical engineer registered in Alaska as a system that meets or exceeds industry safety standards for 
wind energy systems.  

E. No wind energy system may be installed until the owner of the lot where the wind energy system will be 
installed submits to the planning department the written approval from the Cordova Electric Cooperative of 
the wind energy system as an interconnected customer-owned generator, or certifies in writing that the 
wind energy system will not be interconnected with Cordova Electric Cooperative transmission or 
distribution system.  

136



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 97 of 139 

F. No wind energy system may be installed in a manner that allows less than fifteen feet of vertical distance 
from the grade to any moving wind turbine component at the lowest point in the course of its movement.  

G. All exposed surfaces of a wind energy system shall be a nonreflective, neutral, unobtrusive color approved by 
the city planner, and shall be maintained throughout the life of the wind energy system in accordance with 
Small Wind Certification Program recognized by the American Wind Energy Association (AWEA) or another 
accredited organization such as the Small Wind Certification Council, National Wind Technology Certification 
Center, or the U.S. Department of Energy, National Renewable Energy Laboratory, or must be certified by a 
professional mechanical engineer registered in Alaska as a system that meets or exceeds industry 
performance standards for wind energy systems. The turbines shall be maintained as per the manufacturer's 
requirements.  

H. No sign, flag or pennant may be attached to a wind energy system, except to identify the manufacturer or 
the installer of the wind energy system, or to warn of danger.  

I. No wind energy system may be artificially illuminated except as required by law or a state or federal agency.  

J. A wind energy system that is not roof-mounted shall be designed and constructed so no part that is less than 
fifteen feet above the grade can be climbed, or completely enclosed by a fence that is not less than six feet 
high.  

K. All electric transmission wires connected to a wind energy system must be underground, or within the 
building on which the wind energy system is mounted, except near substations or points of interconnection 
to the electric grid.  

L. A wind energy system shall be designed, installed and operated so that the noise generated by the wind 
energy system does not exceed fifty decibels, measured five feet above the grade at the property line closest 
to the wind energy system, except during short-term events such as utility outages and severe windstorms.  

(Ord. No. 1077, § 1, 12-15-2010) 

18.46.040 Violation and removal. 

A. A wind energy system shall be erected and maintained plumb, level, and true and shall be repaired, painted, 
and maintained in accordance with this chapter, any manufacturer's recommendations and instructions, and 
with industry standards for wind energy systems.  

B. A demolition permit is required to remove a wind energy system. The permit shall require the removal of the 
entire wind energy system, including foundations to below natural grade, collection, connection, and 
transmission equipment, at the owner's sole expense.  

C. The city planner or designee may order the repair or removal of a wind energy system that is not maintained 
in accordance with this section. A wind energy system that that is not maintained in accordance with this 
section, or is not operated for a period of one hundred eighty consecutive days, is a public nuisance subject 
to abatement under Chapter 8.08 of this Code.  

(Ord. No. 1077, § 1, 12-15-2010; Ord. No. 1144, § 8, 5-18-2016) 

Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 1144, § 8, adopted May 18, 2016 changed the title of § 18.46.040 from "Nuisances and 
removal" to read as herein set out.  

Chapter 18.48 OFF-STREET PARKING, LOADING AND UNLOADING 

137



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 98 of 139 

18.48.010 General regulations. 

A. Off-street parking, loading and unloading facilities shall be provided to lessen congestion in the streets. The 
facilities required herein shall be available throughout the hours of operation of the particular business for 
which the facility is provided. As used herein, the term "parking space" includes parking lot spaces located off 
the public right-of-way.  

B. Each parking space shall constitute a net land area of at least one hundred and eighty square feet. The total 
parking lot space, including access lanes, shall constitute at least three hundred square feet of land area per 
parking space.  

C. Surfacing: Any off-street parking area shall be graded for proper drainage and shall be surfaced so as to 
provide a durable and dustless surface, and shall be so arranged as to provide for orderly and safe parking 
and storage of vehicles.  

D. Parking spaces may be located on a lot other than containing the principal use with the approval of the 
planning commission.  

E. Detailed plans for all off-street parking shall be submitted with the building plans when the application for a 
building permit is made. Such plans shall show the following:  

1. Dimension of the parcel involved;  

2. Dimension and layout of each parking space;  

3. Entrance and exits to the parking area and direction of traffic; and  

4. Detailed dimensions of all curb cuts, entrances and exits.  

F. Plans for the layout of off-street parking facilities shall be in accordance with the following minimum 
requirements:  

Parking 
Pattern  

Maneuvering 
Lane Width  

Parking 
Space 
Width  

Parking 
Space 
Length  

Total Width 
of One Tier 
of Spaces 
Plus 
Maneuvering 
Lane  

Total Width 
of Two Tiers 
of Spaces 
Plus 
Maneuvering 
Lane  

0° (parallel 
parking)  

12 ft.  8 ft.  23 ft.  20 ft.  28 ft.  

30° to 53°  13 ft.  9 ft.  20 ft.  33 ft.  53 ft.  

54° to 74°  18 ft.  9 ft.  21 ft.  39 ft.  60 ft.  

75° to 90°  25 ft.  9 ft.  19 ft.  44 ft.  63 ft.  
 

Note: Detailed drawings of layout are on file at City Hall.  

(Ord. 598 (part), 1985). 

138



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 99 of 139 

18.48.020 Parking area—Development. 

Every lot or parcel of land used as a public parking area shall be developed as follows, subject to the approval 
of the plans by the planning commission:  

A. Such area shall be paved or otherwise adequately and satisfactorily surfaced and shall have 
appropriate bumper guards where needed.  

B. Where such area adjoins the side of a lot in a residential district, it shall be separated from such a lot by 
a fence or hedge not less than four feet nor more than six feet in height. Such fence or hedge shall be 
maintained in good condition and shall not exceed beyond the front yard line required in such 
residential district.  

C. Any lights provided to illuminate such parking area shall be so arranged as to reflect the light away 
from adjoining premises and streets.  

(Ord. 598 (part), 1985). 

18.48.030 Parking area—Entrance and exit provisions. 

Any land or premises used for public or semipublic automobile parking, storage, sales or service, public 
garage or any type of drive-in business or service or similar use where vehicles regularly and customarily require 
access to such premises from any public street or alley shall be so designed that entrance and exit drives, openings 
or approaches for such vehicles will provide the safest and most desirable ingress and egress with relation to 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic in the streets upon which such use abuts.  

Such entrance and exit openings and driveways shall not exceed thirty-two feet in width, and in no case shall 
any such driveway service be permitted to use the entire street frontage upon which such use abuts for entrance 
or exit facilities.  

(Ord. 598 (part), 1985). 

18.48.040 Parking area—Driveways and curb cuts. 

Detailed plans for driveways, openings or curb cuts shall be submitted to the planning commission for 
approval with regard to the location and relation of same to the public street or highway. All such lands or 
premises devoted to the uses described in this title, and existing at the effective date of the ordinance codified in 
this title, shall comply with these requirements within two years.  

(Ord. 598 (part), 1985). 

18.48.050 Driveway construction. 

A. Any driveway constructed so as to cross an existing sidewalk shall be constructed of a minimum six-inch 
concrete or compacted rock base with a minimum covering of two-inch asphaltic concrete from the edge of 
pavement or curbline to the property line.  

B. Any driveway exiting a paved street without a sidewalk shall have an apron extending from the edge of the 
pavement a minimum distance of three feet towards the property line. Such aprons shall be constructed in 
accordance with subsection A of this section.  

C. All driveways constructed after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section will be a minimum 
of twelve feet in width, but in no case, will driveways be wider than one-half the lot the driveway serves.  

139



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 100 of 139 

(Ord. 598 (part), 1985). 

18.48.060 Off-street parking requirements. 

Any structure or building hereafter erected, converted or enlarged for any of the following uses shall be 
provided with not less than the minimum spaces as set forth below unless otherwise permitted under this code. 
Fractional numbers of required parking spaces shall be increased to the next whole number.  

Dwellings and Lodgings  Minimum Number of  
Parking Spaces Required  

1. Hotels, rooming houses and other structures 
containing sleeping rooms other than or in addition to 
dwelling units.  

One parking space for each unit and one parking space 
for five guest rooms.  

2. Single-family dwellings, two-family dwellings, 
trailers, multifamily dwellings and other places 
containing dwelling units.  

Two parking spaces for each unit.  

Public and Semipublic 

3. Churches, theaters, and other places of public 
assembly.  

One parking space for each ten seats in the principal 
place of assembly.  

4. Nursery and elementary schools.  One parking space for each teacher or other 
employee.  

5. Municipal buildings.  One parking space for each employee, plus one space 
for each official vehicle, plus two spaces for visitor 
parking.  

6. Other semipublic and government building.  One space for each six hundred square feet of gross 
floor space.  

7. Hospitals.  One space for every three beds, plus one space for 
each employee of largest shift.  

Commercial 

8. General stores.  One space for each six hundred square feet of gross 
floor space.  

9. Eating and drinking establishment.  One space for each employee of largest shift, plus one 
space for each ten seats.  

10. Private clubs.  One space for every two hundred square feet of gross 
floor space.  

11. Home occupations.  One and one-half space per dwelling unit, plus one for 
each employee, plus two for visitor parking.  

Industrial 

12. Manufacturing uses.  One space for every two employees, plus as required 
if retail or warehouse uses on premises.  

13. Warehouse and storage uses.  One parking space for every one thousand square feet 
of gross building area.  

 

(Ord. 806 § 1, 1998: Ord. 598 (part), 1985). 

(Ord. No. 1125, § 1, 5-6-2015) 

140



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 101 of 139 

18.48.070 Off-street loading. 

Every building or structure used for business, trade or industry and normally requiring truck loading or 
unloading with respect to the use shall provide space as indicated in this section for the loading and unloading of 
vehicles off the street or public alley or, if there is no alley, to a street.  

Off-street loading and unloading space shall be in addition to and not considered as meeting part of the 
requirement for off-street parking. Off-street loading and unloading space shall not be used or designed, intended 
or constructed to be used in a manner to obstruct or interfere with the free use of any street or adjoining 
property. The minimum off-street loading and unloading space required for specific uses shall be as follows:  

A. Retail business and service establishments shall provide one off-street loading and unloading space at 
least ten feet wide and thirty-eight feet long with a fourteen foot height clearance per building.  

1. Businesses within the Central Business District shall be exempt from this requirement.  

B. Industrial plants shall provide one off-street loading space for each twenty thousand square feet of 
gross floor area. Each loading and unloading space shall be a minimum of twelve feet wide and fifty 
feet long with a fourteen-foot height clearance.  

C. Trucking terminals and ship terminals shall provide one off-street loading and unloading space for 
every five thousand square feet of gross floor area for storage, warehousing and shipping. Each loading 
space shall be a minimum of fourteen feet wide and sixty-five feet long with a fourteen-foot height 
clearance.  

(Ord. 598 (part), 1985). 

18.48.080 Commission reduction of parking spaces. 

The planning commission may reduce the required number of parking spaces if the commission determines 
that an unreasonable amount parking spaces is required or that the required number of spaces does not meet the 
city's development goals or its land use needs.  

(Ord. No. 1125, § 2, 5-6-2015) 

Chapter 18.50 PERMITTED USES AND ACTIVITIES IN THE CORDOVA COASTAL 

ZONE 

18.50.010 Requirements for approval. 

Lands and waters identified to be within the coastal zone shall be subject to the requirements and policies of 
this chapter. The table in Section 18.50.020 identifies those uses and activities which are proper or improper for 
each management classification.  

(Ord. 530 (part), 1981). 

18.50.020 Permitted uses and activities in the Cordova coastal zone—Table. 

Use  Preser-  
vation  

Conser-  
vation  

Development  
I  

Development  
II  

141



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 102 of 139 

Business and  
Commercial  

    

Offices  x  x  B  B  
Retail shops  x  x  B  x  
Restaurant  x  x  C  x  
Hotel, motel  x  x  C  x  
Visitor center  x  C  C  C  
     

Marine Services      

Marine sales  x  x  A  C  
Open wet moorage  x  x  A  C  
Covered wet moorage  x  x  A  C  
Stacked moorage  x  x  A  C  
Launching ramps  x  C  A  C  
Haulout facilities  x  x  A  C  
Marine construction, repair 
and dismantling  

x  x  A  C  

Marine facilities serv.  x  x  A  C  
Private yacht or boat clubs  x  x  C  C  
Marine education  x  C  A  C  
     

Transportation Facilities      

Accessory parking  x  C  A  C  
Principal use parking  x  x  x  x  
Cargo terminal  x  x  A  C  
Passenger and auto ferry 
terminal  

x  x  A  C  

Highways and arterials, local 
streets  

x  C  A  C  

Bicycle and pedestrian ways  x  A  A  A  
Scenic roads and auto-
oriented viewpoints  

x  A  A  A  

Land based aircraft facilities  x  x  x  x  
Water-based aircraft 
facilities  

x  x  B  B/C  

Trails-Nonvehicular  A  A  A  A  
     

Utilities      

Overhead and underground  x  C  A  C  

142



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 103 of 139 

Underwater  x  C  A  C  
Intakes and outfalls  x  C  A  C  
Sanitary and storm sewers  x  C  A  C  
Fossil fuel power generated 
facility  

x  x  x  x  

Sewage treatment plant  x  x  A  C  
Potable water use  A  A  A  A  
     

Port and Industrial      

Log storage and rafting  x  C  C  C  
Sand and gravel plants  x  x  C  x  
Concrete and cement plants  x  x  x  x  
Cargo handling and marine-
oriented staging areas  

x  x  A  C  

Oil/gas transfer  x  x  A  C  
Fish and seafood processing  x  x  A  C  
Timber and mining 
manufacturing  

x  x  C  C  

Warehousing and 
wholesaling (goods requiring 
marine transshipment)  

x  x  A  C  

Open storage for marine 
related facilities  

x  x  A  C  

     

Residential *      

Single-family  x  x  B  B/C  
Multifamily  x  x  B  B/C  
 

* Does not apply to existing residential developments in the Odiak Slough and Whiskey Ridge areas.  

Activities  Preservation  Conservation  Development I  Development II  
     
Clearing/grading  x  C  A  C  
Timber harvest  x  C  C  C  
Dredging/disposal  x  C  C  C  
Aquaculture/ fisheries  x  C  A  C  
Mining  x  C  C  C  
Recreation (based on marine involvement)  C  A  A  A  
Nonmarine-related recreation  x  C  A  C  
Hunting  x  A  x  x  
Landfill  x  C  A  C  
     
Piers/docks      

143



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 104 of 139 

Piling  x  C  A  C  
Floats  x  C  A  C  
Marine-residential  x  x  B  B/C  
Marine-related recreation  x  A  A  A  
Nonmarine-related recreation  x  C  A  C  
Commercial/ industrial  x  x  A  C  
     
Shore Defense Works      
Groins  x  C  A  C  
Breakwaters  x  C  A  C  
Bulkheads and shoreline protective structures  x  A  A  A  
     
Offshore Facilities      
Business signs on premises  x  x  A  C  

 

KEY TO SYMBOLS OF TABLE  

x =  Use is not permitted.  
A =  Use is permitted.  
*B =  Use is permitted as an accessory use only.  
**C =  Use is permitted, if the following conditions are satisfied:  

 

1. Demand conditions exist to justify growth in a particular area and can be documented by the proposed 
developer;  

2. No other reasonable alternative areas exist already zoned and with conditions to support such development 
(deep water, etc.);  

3. Proven efforts are made to eliminate dangers to people and property and to minimize environmental damage 
and protect resources to the greatest extent possible;  

4. The developer demonstrates he has sound financial backing, and a rational development program and plan and 
will enter into a performance contract.  

 *A use which occurs in conjunction with the generally permitted use. It is normally incidental and less in scale 
than the general use (e.g. a retail shop would be an accessory use within a hotel).  

 **Requires review by planning commission at a public hearing to establish if conditions are satisfied.  

Criteria for Unlisted Uses or Activities.  

Where specific uses or activities are not shown in the table or where no policy exists, the following test should be 
applied in making the determination:  

Test for Permissible Use or Activity.  

(Requires compliance with either Numbers 1 or 2 and always with Numbers 3 and 4)  

No. 1 - The use or activity can only be carried out on, in or adjacent to a water body because the use requires 
access to that water body;  

No. 2 - The use or activity, while not directly dependent upon access to a water body, provides goods, services, 
support or protection that are directly associated with a water-dependent use or activity and which if not 
located on, in or adjacent to water would result in a direct public loss in quality of the goods, services, 
support or protection offered or use or activity undertaken;  

144



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 105 of 139 

No. 3 - There is no possible alternative to the proposed use or activity which would accomplish the same goals but 
at less impact on the coastal resources of the city;  

No. 4 - The proposed use or activity is consistent with the intent and purpose of the underlying zoning and coastal 
management classification.  

(Ord. 558, 1983; Ord. 530 (part), 1981). 

18.50.030 Uses and activities—Review authority. 

Uses and activities that are allowed outright, without special review, shall be authorized by the planning 
director. Uses and activities identified to be permitted on the basis that certain conditions are satisfied shall be 
subject to a review by the planning commission. In such cases, the planning commission shall consider the 
proposed use or activity and make their decision in a public hearing. In all cases, the person or body making a 
determination shall consider the policies found in Sections 18.50.040 through l8.50.095 before rendering a 
decision.  

(Ord. 613 § 1, 1986; Ord. 530(part), 1981). 

18.50.040 Policies. 

The policies outlined in Sections 18.50.050 through 18.50.095 shall govern land and water uses and activities 
and shoreline structures in the Cordova coastal zone. All applicable policies shall be adhered to by each activity or 
use.  

(Ord. 613 § 2, 1986; Ord. 530 (part), 1981). 

18.50.050 Policies—Generally. 

A. The city has delineated certain policies pertaining to activities and uses within the coastal zone. These 
policies are to be used as a guide in preparing plans for conducting activities or developing uses within the 
coastal zone. When an application for a building permit is reviewed by the city staff or planning commission, 
these policies will be used to determine the acceptability of the proposal.  

B. Following are the policies incorporated into the coastal management program. There are two categories:  

1. General policies, applicable to all activities and uses; and  

2. Water-based policies applicable to uses or activities located in or over the water.  

Within each policy group, there may be individual policies which would not be applicable. For instance, 
a policy pertaining to dredging would not apply to a floating breakwater.  

C. Each of the policies found in Section 18.50.070 is to be preceded by the phrase "where feasible and 
prudent." Where the phrase "feasible and prudent" is included in a subsection of Sections 18.50.060 or 
18.50.070, the policy should be implemented consistent with sound engineering practices, and should not 
result in economic, social, or environmental problems that outweigh the public benefit to be derived from 
strict compliance with the policy.  

(Ord. 613 § 3, 1986; Ord. 530(part), 1981). 

145



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 106 of 139 

18.50.060 Policies—Generally applicable. 

A. New development, when compatible, shall be located near existing development, before committing 
undeveloped shoreline areas to development where feasible and prudent;  

B. Priority shall be given to water-dependent and water—related uses over other uses. Uses which are neither 
water—related nor water—dependent shall be permitted only where no feasible and prudent alternatives 
are available;  

C. Multiple use of the shoreline shall be encouraged where new uses or activities do not interfere with or 
inhibit existing uses or activities. Uses or activities which will interfere with the fishing industry shall be 
located in geographically separate sites where feasible and prudent;  

D. Development and activities allowed shall not significantly degrade the quality of the natural environment 
including water quality and air quality, nor contribute to erosion or other deleterious effects on adjacent 
environments;  

E. Recreational and visual access to coastal waters shall be maintained, and where appropriate, increased, in 
those management units designated for their recreational or scenic values;  

F. Only those uses which require an over-water location shall be permitted to locate seaward of this mean-high 
water line or the natural wetland boundary where feasible and prudent;  

G. New development shall be required to locate in areas already provided with requisite public services and 
facilities and adequate land where feasible and prudent;  

H. Development in the coastal zone shall be located and designed so facility users and watercraft are 
adequately protected from floods, extreme high tides, and/or destructive stone without provision of massive 
defense structures;  

I. Clearing and grading operations shall be conducted so as to expose the smallest practical area of soil to 
erosion for the least possible time during construction. Erosion control measures, where required, shall be 
undertaken from the time of beginning of clearing, and vegetation shall be restored or control measures 
instituted at the earliest possible date. All clearing and grading near to or involving flowing water courses 
shall be conducted in such a fashion so as to minimize material entering the flow of water.  

J. Maintenance and enhancement of fisheries shall be given priority consideration in reviewing shoreline use 
proposals which might adversely impact fisheries habitat, migratory routes and harvest of significant fish or 
shellfish species. Alternate designs shall be seriously considered for such proposals if such potential adverse 
impacts are significant. Shorelines having banks, beaches, and beds critical to the fisheries resource base 
shall be maintained in a productive natural condition whenever possible;  

K. Implementation of governmental services and facilities for public purpose shall be in conformance with 
applicable plans, policies, and programs of the city of Cordova where feasible and prudent;  

L. Approval to carry on activities or uses in the Cordova coastal zone shall be contingent upon conformance 
with all applicable federal and state regulations;  

M. Subsistence use of resources, where a predominant activity within the publicly-owned areas of the coastal 
zone, shall be considered equally with other uses in determining use allocations.  

(Ord. 613 § 4, 1986; Ord. 530 (part), 1981). 

18.50.070 Policies—-Water-based uses. 

Where feasible and prudent:  

146



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 107 of 139 

A. Only those uses or activities which require an in-water or over-water location shall be permitted to 
locate seaward of the mean high water line or the natural wetland boundary;  

B. Developments in or over the water, such as piers, docks, and protective structures shall be located, 
designed, and maintained in a manner which prevents adverse impact upon water quality, fish, wildlife 
and vegetative resources;  

C. Larger works, such as bulkheads, breakwaters or silt dams shall be located, designed and maintained so 
that natural water circulation patterns and essential geohydraulic processes of accretion, transport and 
erosion are not interrupted;  

D. Open pile or pier support structures shall be used where possible in lieu of filled areas for piers or 
docks which project into the water;  

E. Dredging shall be permitted only where it is essential to the activity or use proposed. Areas which will 
require frequent periodic maintenance dredging are less preferred than self-maintaining channels or 
basins;  

F. Dredging for the sole purpose of obtaining materials for landfill or construction shall not be permitted;  

G. Dredging shall not be permitted where valuable wetlands, estuaries, tide flats, or other scarce or 
valuable natural areas, would suffer significant harm;  

H. Disposal of dredge material shall be conducted in upland areas; except that dredge spoil may be 
utilized in shoreside landfills if permitted under applicable regulations for the purpose of creating 
usable waterfront land;  

I. Dredging or pile driving activities shall be conducted in a manner that prevents pollution to marine 
water; the use of containment devices shall be required. Dredging or pile driving activities will be timed 
so that they do not interfere with migrating aquatic life.  

(Ord. 613 § 5, 1986; Ord. 530(part), 1981). 

18.50.080 Policies within the Eyak Lake Area meriting special attention. 

A. There is established an area within the city which shall be defined as the Eyak Lake Area Meriting Special 
Attention. The boundary of the Eyak Lake Area Meriting Special Attention is as follows:  

 On the south, the Copper River Highway from approximately Mile 7 west to the Eyak River Bridge; thence 
upslope from the south side of the highway to the 500 foot contour line and westerly along the 500 foot 
contour line to the extended projection of LeFevre Road; thence north along the projection and LeFevre 
Road and its extended projection to the base of Tripod Hill which shall form the boundary on the west. The 
500 foot contour line beginning at the base of Tripod Hill to a point where it crosses Power Creek above 
Ohman Falls; thence southerly along the east shore of Eyak Lake to the intersection with the section line 
between Sections 32 and 33; thence south along the section line to its junction with the CRH (point of 
beginning) which shall form the north and east boundaries.  

B. The policies outlined in Sections 18.50.090 and 18.50.095 shall govern land and water uses and activities and 
shoreline structures within the Eyak Lake Area Meriting Special Attention. A copy of the Eyak Lake Area 
Meriting Special Attention Cooperative Management Plan as conceptually approved by the city on January 
16, 1986, is on file in the office of the city clerk, and is made a part of this title. The Eyak Lake Area Meriting 
Special Attention shall be referred to herein as the "AMSA." The Eyak Lake Area Meriting Special Attention 
Cooperative Management Plan shall be referred to herein as the "AMSA management plan," or the "AMSA 
plan."  

(Ord. 613 § 6, 1986). 

147



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 108 of 139 

18.50.090 AMSA enforceable policies. 

AMSA enforceable policies shall be enacted and shall provide as follows:  

A. General Policies.  

1. The city will utilize existing governmental structures, authorities and regulations to the maximum 
extent feasible to achieve the objectives of this Area Meriting Special Attention (AMSA) 
management plan. The city shall follow the procedures of the state's consistency review process 
as stated in 6 AAC 50, to achieve consistency with the AMSA plan and Alaska Coastal 
Management Program (ACMP) requirements when federal or state permits are necessary for the 
project.  

2. Federal and state permits issued within the AMSA shall be consistent with the policies of the 
approved AMSA plan. All consistency reviews conducted by the Division of Governmental 
Coordination (DGC) or other coordinating agency shall be consistent with the review procedures 
as outlined in 6 AAC 50. The city shall be considered an affected district for all projects occurring 
within the AMSA.  

B. Water Quality.  

1. In areas with poorly draining soils, development that has sewage or waste water associated with 
it shall not be allowed unless connected to a sewer line or connected to a self-contained holding-
type system.  

2. The natural water circulation patterns in the lake shall be maintained and essential geo—
hydraulic processes of accretion, transport, and erosion shall not be interrupted.  

3. Storm water runoff controls sufficient to prevent water quality degradation shall be imposed on 
development adjacent to Eyak Lake and adjoining tributaries.  

4. No development shall take place without providing adequate measures to provide for natural 
surface drainage runoff.  

5. Clearing and grading operations shall be conducted in a manner so as to prevent soil erosion and 
sediment runoff into Eyak Lake and adjoining tributaries. The developer is responsible for utilizing 
the best available erosion control measures to minimize erosion and sediment runoff during 
clearing and construction of a proposed project. The developer will be responsible for submitting 
a plan to permitting agencies stating how cleared land will be stabilized to prevent future erosion 
and sedimentation of the lake.  

6. Spreading oil or other pollution agents (as defined by the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA)) for dust control or surface stabilization is prohibited unless a permit for the activity has 
been issued by the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation.  

7. No contaminants shall be discharged into lake and stream waters which would degrade water 
quality below state or federal standards.  

8. Upland habitats shall be managed to retain natural drainage patterns and vegetation cover on 
steep slopes (seventy percent or greater), and along shorelines and stream banks to prevent 
excessive runoff and erosion, protect surface water quality and natural ground water recharge 
areas.  

C. Fishery Production.  

1. Maintenance and enhancement of spawning areas shall be given priority consideration for 
shorelines. Shorelines having banks, beaches, and beds critical to the preservation of the fisheries 

148



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 109 of 139 

resource base, indicated on Figure 10 of the AMSA plan as lake and stream spawning areas, shall 
be maintained in their productive natural condition.  

2. A coordinated review in accordance with 6 AAC 50 shall be required with Alaska Department of 
Fish and Game (ADF&G) and appropriate federal and state agencies before any activity in a water 
body is undertaken.  

3. Facilities for storing and distributing fuel shall not be located within the active floodplain of a 
stream.  

D. Wildlife Habitat.  

1. In freshwater marshes and wetlands, maintenance of the natural functions is the highest priority. 
Development is prohibited except where it will not alter the natural functions or fish and wildlife 
habitat and where it meets a greater long-term public need.  

2. All public works activities such as transportation projects, utilities, sewers, and drainage activities 
shall protect any freshwater marshes and wetlands from adverse impacts unless there is a 
significant public need for a proposed use or activity for which no feasible and prudent 
alternative exists and all feasible and prudent steps have been taken to maximize conformance 
with the AMSA plan policies.  

3. Wildlife habitat contained in the areas adjacent to the eastern shore of the lake from the mouth 
of Hatchery Creek to the ADF&G weir, including the wetland north of the Copper River Highway 
(CRH) and east to the AMSA boundary, shall be protected from adverse impacts. The resources 
principally using this habitat are the feeding and resting birdlife and nesting eagles, swans and 
loons particularly.  

4. Habitat of swans, eagles and loons shall be protected.  

E. Future. Development.  

1. Water-dependent and water-related uses and activities shall be given priority consideration for 
location on the lakeshore. Uses and activities other than residential uses that are neither water-
dependent nor water-related shall only be allowed if there is no feasible and prudent inland 
alternative to meet the public need for the use or activity.  

2. Only those uses which require an over-water location shall be permitted beyond the ordinary 
high-water mark of the lake or inside the natural wetland boundary.  

3. Where feasible and prudent, developments in or over the water, such as piers, docks, and 
protective structures shall be located, designed, and maintained in a manner which prevents 
adverse impacts upon air and water quality, fish, wildlife, scenic and vegetative resources.  

4. Floating or open pile or pier support structures shall be used in lieu of fill for piers or docks which 
project into the water.  

5. Development which would be a hazard to public health, safety, or the general welfare or would 
materially interfere with the natural processes shall not be allowed.  

6. Adequate building setbacks from lake and stream waters and wetlands shall be established and 
maintained. These setbacks shall be a minimum of twenty feet from any part of a structure to the 
ordinary high—water mark. Structures in existence at the time of adoption of this plan that are 
destroyed or damaged may be rebuilt within the existing foundation line.  

7. Structures or development of uses accessory to residential use (storage shed, well house, garage, 
etc.) shall retain shoreline open space, be visually and physically compatible with adjacent 
cultural and natural features, and be reasonable in size and purpose. Such development shall not 

149



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 110 of 139 

be permitted in required shore setback spaces, or permitted over water unless clearly water—
dependent, such as piers and floats.  

8. The design of structures near watercourses shall preserve stream bank and channel integrity, 
reduce the impact of flooding and allow for natural drainage.  

9. Historic landslide areas or areas prone to landslides, slumping, or other forms of mass wasting 
shall be subject to a geotechnical investigation to determine if development is allowable and, if 
so, what design measures shall be required to protect human life and property. The geotechnical 
study shall be submitted to permitting agencies and approved prior to development.  

10. All new mineral extraction operations shall employ buffers, erosion and sedimentation control 
measures and/or other suitable precautionary measures as necessary to protect adjoining lands 
and waters from adverse impacts resulting from the operations.  

11. Surface modification that would induce excessive erosion or undermine the support of nearby 
land shall be prohibited.  

12. Reclamation plans shall be submitted to permitting agencies and approved prior to mineral and 
gravel extraction activities. Reclamation plans shall be designed to ensure that projects are 
conducted and reclaimed in accordance with all applicable AMSA plan policies.  

13. Eyak Lake waters shall be kept free of hazardous or obstructive development which could create 
a hazard to users of the waters.  

F. Recreation and Scenic Values.  

1. Points of recreational and visual access to the shoreline and stream deltas shall be provided and 
protected, consistent with public safety and private property rights.  

2. Off—road vehicles such as snow machines, airboats, and three—wheelers are prohibited on the 
Power Creek Delta, the wetlands adjacent to Southeast Arm, and all lake tributary streambeds, 
except as necessary for public health and safety and maintenance and patrol of private lands by 
authorized persons.  

3. Off-road vehicles shall be limited to designated routes and/or areas to ensure protection of users 
and resource values, to minimize conflicts.  

4. Utilities shall be installed underground wherever feasible and prudent.  

5. Public beach designations, swimming areas, camping sites, toilets, and picnic facilities shall be 
established, and existing facilities improved where public need warrants, and public funding is 
available.  

6. The following areas and trails shall be retained, classified, and/or managed as recreation 
resources in accordance with applicable statutory requirements and private property rights. (See 
Figure 12 of the AMSA plan.) The current managing agency is shown for each area:  

a. Boat ramp (city)—East end of runway;  

b. North shore beach (Alaska Department of Natural Resources (DNR))—-Boat launch and 
picnic area;  

c. Nirvana Park (city)—Picnic and group use;  

d. The Spit (city)—Swimming, picnicking, viewing, floatplane moorage;  

e. Skater's Cabin (city)—Picnic, skating, swimming, trailhead and group use;  

150



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 111 of 139 

f. Hatchery Creek culvert crossing (Eyak Corporation and Alaska Department of 
Transportation/Public Facilities (DOTPF))—Spawning fish and bear viewing;  

g. Power Creek Road turnouts (DOTPF)—Wildlife and scenic viewing, informal picnicking;  

h. Power Creek Trail (United States Forest Service (USFS))—-Hiking and access;  

i. Crater Lake Trail (DNR)—Hiking and access;  

j. CRH turnouts (DOTPF)—Scenic viewing;  

k. Mavis Island and causeway (DNR)—Public recreation;  

l. Eyak River bridge turnout (DOTPF)—Swan viewing, trailhead for Eyak River Trail, scenic 
point.  

(Ord. 613 § 7, 1986). 

18.50.095 Recommended guidelines. 

Recommended guidelines shall be enacted and shall provide as follows:  

A. Wildlife Habitat.  

1. Birdlife shall be protected from disturbance, especially from discharge of firearms and motorized 
vehicles and equipment during freeze up conditions in the vicinity of open water near the ADF&G 
weir.  

B. Recreation and Scenic Values.  

1. The state DOTPF should maintain the identified highway pullouts for scenic and viewing 
purposes.  

2. All agencies shall strive to maintain the potential for high quality public recreation in the AMSA 
by their actions.  

3. Recreation and access developments shall preserve or enhance scenic views and vistas, as well as 
improve the aesthetic value of the area.  

4. The state should provide/increase the buffer area around existing highway turnouts by 
developing complementary uses such as picnic sites adjacent to the turnouts and/or restricting 
uses of adjacent state land so conflicting uses don't arise.  

5. Timber harvest activities should be managed so as to protect the AMSA from adverse visual 
impacts. A mitigation plan, describing how visual impacts will be minimized, should be developed 
and implemented by the land-managing agency or land owner for any harvesting activity 
regulated by the State Forest Resources and Practices Act.  

(Ord. 613 § 8, 1986). 

Chapter 18.52 NONCONFORMITIES7 

 

7Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 1148, § 2, adopted Dec. 7, 2016, repealed the former Ch. 18.52, §§ 18.52.010—
18.52.050, and enacted a new Ch. 18.52 as set out herein. The former Ch. 18.52 pertained to nonconforming 

151



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 112 of 139 

 

uses and derived from Prior code § 15.213(A)—(E); Ord. 695 § 2, 3, adopted 1992; Ord. No. 1070, § 10, 
adopted July 21, 2010; Ord. No. 1144, § 7, adopted May 18, 2016.  

152



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 113 of 139 

18.52.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of this chapter is to permit nonconforming lots, uses, and structures to protect property owners 
from undue hardship despite their compliance with past city laws, zoning codes, and regulations while moving 
towards conformity of lots, uses and structures.  

(Ord. No. 1148, § 2, 12-7-2016) 

18.52.020 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter the following words or phrases shall be interpreted or defined as set forth in 
this section, and such interpretations or definitions shall supersede any conflicting interpretations or definitions 
set forth elsewhere in this title:  

"Abandon" means the cessation of use for any length of time, combined with intent to indefinitely cease 
such use.  

"Aggravate" means the physical alteration of structures if such alteration results in a greater invasion in any 
dimension of setback or height requirements, or a further violation of density, parking, or other requirements of 
this title.  

"Discontinued" means that a nonconforming use has ceased, and has not substantially resumed, for a period 
of twenty-four consecutive months, regardless of intent.  

"Nonconforming lot, structure, or use" means a lot, structure, or use authorized by the city through the 
application of city administrative processes, laws, and/or regulations that existed at the time of authorization but 
which no longer apply under the current requirements of this title.  

(Ord. No. 1148, § 2, 12-7-2016) 

18.52.030 Nonconforming lots. 

If at any time a nonconforming lot is brought into conformity with this title, the lot shall thereafter conform 
to all the regulations of the zoning district in which it is located.  

A nonconforming lot may be developed in conformity with all other provisions of this title even though such 
lot fails to meet currently applicable minimum area or width requirements.  

(Ord. No. 1148, § 2, 12-7-2016) 

18.52.040 Nonconforming structures. 

If at any time a nonconforming structure is brought into conformity with this title, the structure shall 
thereafter conform to all the regulations of the zoning district in which it is located.  

A nonconforming structure may be continued so long as it remains otherwise lawful. The following provisions 
apply to nonconforming structures:  

1. A nonconforming structure may be enlarged or altered, provided that it does not aggravate the 
nonconformity, and that no portion of the nonconforming structure extends over any lot line into 
property not owned by the owner of the nonconforming structure.  

2. A nonconforming structure may be altered to decrease its nonconformity.  

153



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:17 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 114 of 139 

3. If a nonconforming structure is moved for any reason for any distance whatsoever it shall thereafter 
conform to the code provisions applicable in the zone in which it is located after it is moved.  

4. If a nonconforming structure or nonconforming portion of a structure is damaged, removed, or 
demolished by any means, including but not limited to acts of nature, acts of persons or animals, or 
lack of maintenance, to an extent of more than fifty percent of the nonconforming structure or 
nonconforming portion of a structure as determined by an inspection by the city, it shall not be 
reconstructed except in conformity with the provisions of Cordova Municipal Code.  

5. A nonconforming residential structure may be enlarged or altered without requiring additional parking, 
as long as the number of dwelling units in the structure is not increased and none of the existing 
parking is diminished.  

6. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent general maintenance on a nonconforming 
structure. General maintenance includes the repair or replacement of walls, doors, windows, roof, 
fixtures, wiring, and plumbing.  

(Ord. No. 1148, § 2, 12-7-2016) 

18.52.050 Nonconforming uses. 

If at any time a nonconforming use is brought into conformity with this title, the use shall thereafter conform 
to all the regulations of the zoning district in which it is located.  

A nonconforming use may be continued so long as it remains otherwise lawful. The following provisions 
apply to nonconforming uses:  

1. No nonconforming use shall be enlarged or increased, nor extended to occupy a greater area of land 
than was occupied as of the date it became nonconforming.  

2. No nonconforming use shall be moved in whole or in part to any other portion of the lot that was not 
occupied by the nonconforming use as of the date it became nonconforming.  

3. If at any time a nonconforming use is abandoned or discontinued, the use of that lot shall thereafter 
conform to the code provisions applicable in the zone in which the lot is located, and the 
nonconforming use shall not thereafter be resumed or allowed to continue.  

(Ord. No. 1148, § 2, 12-7-2016) 

18.52.060 Proof of nonconforming lot, structure, or use. 

A property owner shall bear the burden of proving that a lot, use, or structure is nonconforming for purposes 
of this chapter.  

(Ord. No. 1148, § 2, 12-7-2016) 

Chapter 18.56 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 

18.56.010 Lots and lot areas. 

A. The requirements as to minimum lot area shall not be construed to prevent the use for a one-family dwelling 
of any lot or parcel of land, other than in the I or IW district, in the event that such lot or parcel of land was, 

154



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 115 of 139 

on the effective date of the ordinance codified in this title, legally subdivided and separately owned, deeded 
by a deed or record, or subject to a recorded contract of sale in full force and effect.  

B. No portion of any lot or parcel of land which has been designated or used as any part of a required open area 
or yard for a building shall be included as a portion or yard for another building if such inclusion will reduce 
the lot area or yard required for the original lot or parcel of land to less than the minimum lot area or 
dimension of yard required for the land use district in which such property is located.  

C. No lot or parcel of land held under separate ownership at the time the ordinance codified in this title became 
effective shall be reduced in any manner below the required minimum lot area or width.  

D. No lot area shall be so reduced, diminished or maintained that the yards or other open spaces or total lot 
area shall be smaller than prescribed nor shall the density of population be increased in any manner except 
in conformity with these regulations.  

E. Every building hereafter erected shall be located on a lot as herein defined. If it is located on two or more 
lots, the building location must conform to the side yard requirements or it may straddle an interior lot line 
of such a parcel of lots. In no case shall there be more than one main residential building and its accessory 
buildings on one lot, unless specifically provided otherwise.  

F. No building permit shall be issued for a building or structure on a lot which abuts a street dedicated to a 
portion of its required width and located on that side thereof from which no dedication was secured, unless 
the yards provided on such lot include both that portion of the lot lying within the future street and required 
yards.  

(Prior code § 15.209(D)). 

18.56.020 Yards. 

Where yards are required they shall not be less in depth or width than the minimum dimensions in any part 
and they shall be at every point open and unobstructed from the ground to the sky, except as follows:  

A. Outside stairways, fire escapes, porches or landing places, if unroofed and unenclosed, may extend 
into a required side yard for a distance not to exceed three feet or into a required rear yard and a 
distance not to exceed four feet.  

B. Cornices, canopies, eaves or other similar architectural features not providing additional floor space 
within the building may extend into a required yard not to exceed two feet.  

C. One covered but unenclosed passenger landing or carport not more than one story in height may 
extend into either side yard, but such structure shall not be closer than three feet to an adjoining lot.  

(Prior code § 15.209 (E)). 

Chapter 18.60 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS8 

 

8Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 1162, § 2, adopted June 20, 2018, repealed the former Ch. 18.60, §§ 18.60.010—
18.60.030, and enacted a new Ch. 18.60 as set out herein. The former Ch. 18.60 pertained to similar subject 
matter and derived from Ord. 530 (part), 1981; Ord. 548, 1982; prior code § 15.210; Ord. 582 (part), 1984; 
Ord. No. 1041, § 2, March 4, 2009; Ord. No. 1070, §§ 11, 12, July 21, 2010; Ord. No. 1107, § 10, March 20, 
2013.  

155



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 116 of 139 

18.60.010 Purpose. 

It is recognized that there are some uses and associated structures which may be compatible with 
designated principal uses in specific zoning districts provided certain conditions are met. The conditional use 
permit procedure is intended to allow flexibility in the consideration of the proposed use on surrounding property 
if the proposed use is in harmony with the various elements or objectives of the comprehensive city plan and the 
zoning district. The conditional use permit process provides the opportunity to apply conditions of controls and 
safeguards to ensure that the proposed use will be compatible with the surroundings.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

18.60.020 Applications. 

Applications for a conditional use permit shall be filed with the city planner.  

A. The application shall include but is not limited to the following:  

1. Name and address of the applicant;  

2. If applicant is not the owner of the subject lot, the owner's signed authorization granting 
applicant the authority to (a) apply for the conditional use permit and (b) bind the owner to the 
terms of the conditional use permit, if granted;  

3. A legal description of the property involved;  

4. A narrative description of the proposed use;  

5. A proposed time frame for the new use and/or the period of construction;  

6. Dimensioned plot plans showing the location of all existing and proposed buildings or alterations, 
and their existing and proposed uses;  

7. The nonrefundable fee as established by city council resolution;  

8. Narrative evidence that the application meets all of the review criteria in Section 18.60.020B. 
Evidence shall be sufficient to enable meaningful review of the application;  

9. Any additional information required by the Municipal Code; and  

10. Any additional information the city planner may require to determine whether the application 
satisfies the criteria for issuance of a permit.  

B. Prior to granting a conditional use permit, the planning and zoning commission must determine that 
the proposed use meets all of the following review criteria:  

1. The use is consistent with the purpose of this chapter and is compatible with the zoning district 
and the comprehensive plan;  

2. The use will not permanently or substantially injure the lawful use of neighboring properties;  

3. Public services and facilities are adequate to serve the proposed use;  

4. The proposed use will not have a permanent negative impact on pedestrian and vehicular traffic 
circulation and safety substantially greater than that anticipated from permitted development; 
and  

5. The proposed use will not adversely affect to the public's safety, health, or general welfare.  

156



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 117 of 139 

C. The planning and zoning commission shall hold a public hearing upon each properly submitted 
application. Such hearing shall be held not less than ten days nor later than thirty days following the 
date of filing of such application and the applicant shall be notified of the date of such hearing.  

D. The commission shall cause to be sent to each owner of property within a distance of three hundred 
feet of the exterior boundary of the lot or parcel of land described in such application notice of the 
time and place of hearing and a description of the property involved. For the purposes of this section, 
"property owner" means that owner shown upon the latest tax assessment roll.  

E. The commission shall cause to be made by its own members, or its authorized agent, an investigation 
of facts bearing on any application sufficient to assure that the action taken is consistent with the 
intent and purpose of this section.  

F. The planning and zoning commission shall hear and consider evidence and facts from any person at any 
public hearing or written communication from any person relative to the matter. The right of any 
person to present evidence shall not be denied for the reason that any such person was not required to 
be informed of such public hearing.  

G. Within thirty days from the conclusion of the public hearing, the planning and zoning commission shall 
render its decision unless such time limit be extended by common consent and agreement signed by 
both applicant and the commission. If, in the opinion of the commission, the necessary facts and 
conditions set forth in this chapter apply in fact to the property or use referred to, it may grant the 
conditional use permit. If, however, such facts and conditions do not prevail nor apply the commission 
shall deny the application.  

H. The commission, in granting approval, may establish conditions under which a lot or parcel of land may 
be used or a building constructed or altered; make requirements as to architecture, height of building 
or structure open spaces or parking areas; require conditions of operation of any enterprise; or may 
make any other condition, requirements or safeguards that it may consider necessary to prevent 
damage or prejudice to adjacent properties or detriment to the city. When necessary, the commission 
may require guarantees in such form as deemed proper under the circumstances to ensure that the 
conditions designed will be complied with.  

I. The decision of the planning and zoning commission, either for the granting with or without conditions, 
or the denial of an application, shall become final and effective ten days following such decision.  

J. Any aggrieved person or party may appeal the planning and zoning commission decision following the 
protocol in 18.64.030.  

K. Any application approved by the planning and zoning commission shall be conditional upon the 
privilege granted being utilized within six months after the effective date of approval.  

L. Construction work must commence within the stated period and must be diligently prosecuted to 
completion, otherwise the approval is automatically voided.  

M. In the case of construction, the planning and zoning commission may extend the time of construction if 
satisfactory evidence of planning and/or construction progress is presented.  

N. A conditional use permit shall automatically expire if for any reason the conditioned use ceases for a 
period of twenty-four months or longer  

O. A permittee who disputes the administrative official's determination that the conditioned use has not 
been timely initiated or has ceased for a period of twenty-four months or longer may appeal the 
official's determination under 18.64.040.  

157



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 118 of 139 

P. A conditional use permit is not transferable from one parcel of land to another. Conditional use 
permits may be transferred from one owner to another for the same use, but if there is a change in use 
on the property, a new permit must be obtained.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

18.60.030 Conditional uses. 

The city planning and zoning commission may grant the following uses by conditional use permit in any 
district unless otherwise specified. Uses not listed may be permitted in any district subject to the requirements of 
this chapter and if the proposed use is in harmony with the various elements or objectives of the comprehensive 
city plan and the zoning district.  

A. Airports;  

B. Animal hospitals or boarding establishments and veterinary practices;  

C. Cemeteries;  

D. Concrete or cement products manufacture;  

E. Crematories if located within a cemetery containing at least five acres;  

F. Establishments or enterprises involving large assemblages of people or automobiles, including 
amusement parks, circuses, fairgrounds, open-air theaters, recreational centers and hospitals and 
sanitariums;  

G. Gas manufacture and storage; provided, that all manufacturing operations shall be subject to the 
approval of the building official;  

H. Government enterprise (federal, state or local);  

I. Commercial greenhouses or tree nurseries;  

J. Natural resources, development and extraction of, together with necessary buildings, apparatus or 
appurtenances incident thereto, including petroleum exploration and development;  

K. Off-street parking areas;  

L. Marijuana establishments subject to the regulations and limitations in this code and state law;  

M. Private clubs;  

N. Public libraries, cultural centers, museums, art galleries, research and education not operated for 
profit;  

O. Public or private child care facilities, public or nonprofit elementary and high schools, and institutions 
for higher education;  

P. Public utility or public service facilities, subject, in the case of a telecommunication tower, to the 
standards in Section 18.60.070;  

Q. Radio or television transmitters and satellite dishes;  

R. Hotel and motels.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

158



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 119 of 139 

18.60.040 Conditional use for group housing developments. 

In the case of a dwelling group consisting of two or more buildings, the contemplated arrangements of which 
makes it impracticable to apply the requirements of this title to the individual building units in the group, a permit 
for the construction of such dwelling group may be issued only if the plans of such dwelling group comply with the 
following conditions:  

A. That the proposed dwelling group will constitute a residential environment of sustained desirability 
and stability; that it will be in harmony with the character of the surrounding neighborhood, and it will 
result in intensity of land utilization no higher, and standard of open space at least as high, as 
permitted or specified in this chapter in the district in which the proposed dwelling group is to be 
located,  

B. That the tract of land on which the dwelling group is to be erected comprises at least seventy-five 
thousand square feet,  

C. That the buildings are to be used only for residential purposes and the customary accessory uses, such 
as garages, storage spaces and recreational and community activities,  

D. That the average lot area per dwelling unit on the site, exclusive of the area occupied by street, will not 
be less than the lot area required for each dwelling unit in the district in which the dwelling group is to 
be located,  

E. That there are provided, as part of the proposed development, adequate recreation areas to serve the 
needs of the anticipated population,  

F. That off-street parking is provided on the basis of one parking space for each dwelling unit within the 
development,  

G. That the development will not produce a volume of traffic in excess of the capacity, for which the 
access streets are designed,  

H. That property adjacent to the proposed dwelling group will not be adversely affected,  

I. That such dwelling group not be located in an industrial district,  

J. That the proposed group housing development will be consistent with the intent and purpose of this 
title to promote public health, safety and general welfare;  

K. That snow storage areas will be provided.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

18.60.050 Conditional use for townhouse and zero lot line developments. 

In the case of townhouse and zero lot line developments where one structure will contain two or more 
dwelling units, and the contemplated arrangement of the overall project makes the strict interpretation of this title 
impractical, the planning and zoning commission may, after a public hearing, permit such development provided 
the following guidelines are followed:  

A. That the proposed dwelling group will constitute a residential environment of sustained desirability 
and stability, that it will be in harmony with the character of the surrounding neighborhood, and it will 
result in an intensity of land utilization no higher, and standard of open space at least as high, as 
permitted or specified in this chapter in the district in which the proposed dwelling is to be located,  

159



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 120 of 139 

B. That the tract of land on which the dwelling group is to be erected comprises a minimum of sixteen 
hundred square feet per dwelling unit for each dwelling unit within the proposed development,  

C. That the buildings are to be used only for residential purposes and the customary accessory uses, such 
as garages, storage spaces and recreational and community activities,  

D. That these are provided, as part of the proposed development, adequate recreation areas to serve the 
needs of the anticipated population,  

E. That off-street parking be provided on the basis of two parking spaces for each dwelling unit within the 
development. This requirement may be fulfilled by either two parking spaces adjacent to the dwelling 
unit or a parking area adequate to accommodate the total development parking requirement at a 
location conveniently located to all the dwelling units within the development,  

F. That the developer furnish the planning and zoning commission with two copies of the homeowners 
agreement which will cover such areas as property maintenance, dwelling unit maintenance and 
upkeep, etc. Only copy will be forwarded to the city attorney for his review and comments,  

G. That the development will not produce a volume of traffic in excess of the capacity for which the 
access streets were designed,  

H. That the property adjacent to the proposed dwelling group will not be adversely affected,  

I. That such dwelling group shall only be located on a district which permits residential use,  

J. That the proposed town house development will be consistent with the intent and purpose of this title 
to promote public health, safety and general welfare.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

18.60.060 Conditional use for mobile homes or travel trailers. 

The planning and zoning commission may grant a conditional use permit to allow mobile homes or travel 
trailers to be placed outside of planned mobile home parks in any zone district for up to twelve months to allow 
the lot owner temporary living quarters while building a residence. The temporary living quarters must be 
removed from the lot or vacated upon expiration of the conditional use permit.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

18.60.070 Conditional use for telecommunication tower. 

A. The planning and zoning commission may grant a conditional use permit for a telecommunication tower in 
any zoning district subject to the conditions in this section.  

B. In addition to the requirements 18.60.020 the application for a conditional use permit for a 
telecommunication tower shall include the following information:  

1. A written narrative explaining why the proposed site has been chosen, why the telecommunication 
tower is necessary, why the requested height was chosen, and a full explanation regarding the 
telecommunication tower's ability to accommodate other providers; and  

2. Specifications for the telecommunication tower and all antennas to be located on it, including a 
description of design characteristics and material;  

160



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 121 of 139 

3. A site plan drawn to scale showing property boundaries, telecommunication tower location, 
telecommunication tower height, guy wires and anchors and existing structures and land uses on the 
site and on adjacent property;  

4. A map showing the locations of the applicant's existing telecommunication towers that serve 
customers in the city and of all telecommunication towers that the applicant proposes to construct to 
serve customers in the city;  

5. A report prepared by a person registered as a structural engineer in Alaska showing the capacity by 
type and number of the telecommunication tower and antennas, and that the telecommunication 
tower and antennas are designed to withstand winds in accordance with the latest revision of 
ASI/EIA/TIA/222 standards ("Structural standards for steel communications antenna towers and 
communications antenna supporting structures");  

6. Identification of the person or persons who own the telecommunication tower and the equipment that 
is to be located on it;  

7. Written authorization for the application from the owner of the site;  

8. Evidence that the applicant has a valid FCC license for the use of the telecommunication tower;  

9. A line of sight analysis showing the potential visual and aesthetic impacts of the telecommunication 
tower on adjacent residential districts through the use of photo simulations of the telecommunication 
tower, including all antennas, structures, and equipment, using the vantage points and number of 
photo simulations requested by the planning department;  

10. A written agreement, on a form approved by the city attorney, to remove the telecommunication 
tower and restore the site to its original condition within one hundred eighty days after the 
telecommunication tower is substantially unused for a period of twelve consecutive months, and 
providing that if the telecommunication tower is not removed within this one hundred eighty-day 
period, the city may remove the telecommunication tower at the cost of the owner;  

11. A cell phone coverage map showing the applicant's proposed cell phone coverage within the city;  

12. A certificate from an engineer licensed in Alaska that the telecommunication tower, and all antennas 
and other equipment located on it, are built and installed to approved specifications and will contain 
only equipment meeting Federal Communications Commission requirements;  

13. Any additional information required by the planning department during the application process.  

C. In addition to the requirements 18.60.020 the planning and zoning commission may approve an application 
under this section, with or without conditions, if the application meets the following criteria:  

1. Location and Visual Impact. The proposed location of the telecommunication tower will minimize the 
visual impact on the surrounding area while allowing the telecommunication tower to function in 
accordance with minimum standards imposed by the applicable telecommunications regulations and 
the applicant's technical design requirements. Telecommunication towers and attached antennas and 
equipment must be painted or coated in a color that blends with the surrounding environment. Muted 
colors, earth tones, and subdued hues, such as gray, shall be used. All associated structures such as 
equipment buildings, including the roofs, shall be painted with earth tone colors unless otherwise 
required under this code or other applicable law. Where necessary to make a telecommunication 
tower compatible with the historical, environmental or cultural character of its location, the planning 
and zoning commission may require that the telecommunication tower be disguised, hidden or 
screened, or integrated as an architectural feature of a structure, to reduce its visual impact.  

2. Inability to Collocate. It is not feasible to locate the applicant's telecommunication antenna and other 
equipment on any existing structure or tower under the control of the applicant.  

161



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 122 of 139 

3. Location in a Residential Zoning District. An applicant seeking to locate a telecommunication tower in a 
residential zoning district must show that the area cannot be adequately served by a 
telecommunication tower located in a nonresidential zoning district for valid technical reasons.  

4. Location on Public Property or Other Private Property. If the applicant proposes to acquire a site on 
private property for the telecommunication tower, the applicant must show that no available publicly 
owned site or available privately owned site occupied by a compatible use is suitable under applicable 
communications regulations and the applicant's technical design requirements.  

5. Design for Future Use. A new telecommunication tower shall be designed to allow collocation of 
telecommunication antennas equal in number to the applicant's present and reasonably foreseeable 
future requirements.  

6. Safety Code Met. The telecommunication tower meets all applicable laws and code requirements, 
including without limitation health, nuisance, noise, fire, building and safety code requirements.  

7. Distance from Existing Telecommunication Towers. A telecommunications tower shall not be approved 
if it is located within one-half mile (two thousand six hundred forty feet) of an existing 
telecommunication tower, unless the applicant certifies that the existing telecommunication tower 
does not meet the applicant's structural specifications and technical design requirements, or that a 
collocation agreement could not be obtained.  

8. Zoning Requirements. With the exception of requirements for setback and height, which are 
established in this section, the telecommunication tower must comply with all applicable zoning laws 
and regulations, including, without limitation, all laws governing land development, visibility, fencing, 
screening, landscaping, parking, access, lot size, exterior illumination, and sign, storage.  

9. Setback. In all zoning districts, a telecommunication tower must be located no less than a distance 
equal to the tower height from all lot lines.  

10. Signs. No signs may be located on a telecommunication tower except for identification signage.  

11. Lighting. No lighting may be located on a telecommunication tower except as reasonably required for 
safety purposes or as required by the Federal Communications Commission, Federal Aviation 
Administration or other government agency with jurisdiction.  

12. Fencing. A fence with a minimum height of eight feet must be placed on the perimeter of the site of a 
telecommunications tower site to limit access by the public.  

13. Height. The height of a telecommunications tower may not exceed the maximum tower height 
specified in the conditional use permit or in this section.  

D. No decision regulating the placement, construction or modification of a telecommunication tower may be 
made on the basis of environmental or health effects of radio frequency emission if the antennas and other 
equipment on the telecommunication tower comply with Federal Communications Commission regulations.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

18.60.080 Conditional use for marijuana establishments. 

A. In addition to other applicable requirements, an applicant for a marijuana establishment conditional use 
permit shall submit an application to the planning and zoning commission that contains the following:  

1. A copy of the lease for the property upon which the marijuana establishment will be located and a 
notarized written statement from the land owner stating that he, she or it has knowledge of and 
consent for the use of the property as a marijuana establishment.  

162



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 123 of 139 

2. Any additional information the city planner may require to determine whether the application satisfies 
the criteria for issuance of a permit.  

3. Verification from city clerk and finance department that no monies are owed the city by the applicant 
or the land owner if not the applicant.  

B. A buffer zone of one thousand feet shall be required between any marijuana establishment and building 
primarily being used as a public or private elementary or secondary education facility.  

C. This section does not void an existing marijuana establishment conditional use permit if the conditional use 
permit was issued prior to the requirements in 18.60.080B.  

D. Upon denial, expiration or revocation of a marijuana establishment license issued by the State of Alaska, any 
conditional use permit issued for that marijuana establishment shall be immediately voided and any use 
permitted under such permit revoked.  

E. Notwithstanding any other requirement to the contrary, a conditional use application approved by the 
planning and zoning commission under this section is conditional upon the applicant using the property as a 
marijuana establishment within six months after the effective date of the applicant's State Marijuana 
Establishment License.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

18.60.090 Conditional use for junkyards. 

In addition to other applicable requirements, a junkyard conditional use is subject to the following:  

A. An applicant for a junkyard conditional use shall submit a site development plan to the planning and 
zoning commission containing the information required by the city planner. The planning and zoning 
commission shall review the site development plan, taking into account the following:  

1. The nature and development of the surrounding property;  

2. The proximity of the proposed junkyard to churches, schools, hospitals, public buildings, 
recreation areas, or other places of public gathering;  

3. The sufficiency in number of other similar business establishments in the city;  

4. The adequacy of fences and other types of enclosures proposed to prevent the unsightly display 
of the salvage yard;  

5. The health, safety, and general welfare of the public; and  

6. The suitability of the applicant to establish, maintain or operate such a business.  

B. A conditional use permit for a junkyard shall require that the junkyard be screened from public view 
with a privacy fence not less than seven nor more than ten feet in height. Slats in the fence shall be 
spaced no greater than two inches apart.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

Chapter 18.64 EXCEPTIONS, VARIANCES AND APPEALS 

163



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 124 of 139 

18.64.010 Exceptions. 

A. The planning commission shall administer this title and in so doing may grant exceptions for additional uses 
in the various districts as specifically provided; shall hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an 
error in provision interpretation; and may vary the strict application of these regulations in the case of an 
exceptionally irregular, narrow, shallow or sloping lot or other exceptional physical condition where strict 
application would result in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship that would deprive the property 
concerned of rights possessed by other properties in the same district, but in no other case.  

B. An application for exceptions from the regulations of this title whenever the approval of the planning 
commission is required may be filed by any taxpayer, property owner, or party affected. The application 
must fully state any and all reason as justifying the granting of the exception.  

C. The planning commission shall cause to be made by its own members, or by its authorized representative, an 
investigation to determine that such uses will not be injurious to public health, safety or welfare or 
detrimental to other properties or uses in the vicinity.  

D. Within forty days after the receipt of an application, the planning commission shall render its decision. If it is 
the opinion of the commission, after consideration of the report of such investigation, that the use as 
proposed in the application, or under appropriate restrictions or conditions, will not endanger the public 
health, safety or general welfare, or be inconsistent with the general purposes and intent of this title, the 
commission shall approve the application either with or without conditions. If the proposed use will tend, in 
the opinion of the commission, to endanger in any way the public health, safety or general welfare or 
produce results inconsistent with the general purposes and intent of this title, the commission shall deny the 
application.  

E. When deemed necessary, the commission may hold a public hearing upon any application for an exception 
and if such public hearing is to be held, notice thereof shall be given in the manner prescribed in subsection B 
of Section 18.64.020, except that such procedure shall specifically refer to an exception and further, that the 
area considered by the commission to be affected by the intended use of land as described in such 
application may be extended in such application to a distance greater than three hundred feet of the exterior 
boundary of such land and the owners thereof notified of such hearing.  

(Prior code § 15.220(A)). 

18.64.020 Variances. 

A. An application for a variance shall be filed in writing and verified by the owner of the property concerned.  

1. The application shall contain the following data with respect to the property and the applicant:  

a. A legal description of the property involved,  

b. Plot plans showing the location of all existing and proposed buildings or alterations, elevations of 
such buildings or alterations, and such other data as may be required,  

c. Evidence of the ability and intention of the applicant to proceed in accordance with the plans 
within six months after the effective date of the variance;  

2. The application shall contain a statement and adequate evidence showing the following conditions, all 
four of which must exist before a variance may be granted.  

a. That there are exceptional physical circumstances or conditions applicable to the property or to 
its intended use or development which do not apply generally to the other properties in the 
same land use district,  

164



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 125 of 139 

b. That the strict application of the provisions of this title would result in practical difficulties or 
unnecessary hardship,  

c. That the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 
properties in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare,  

d. That the granting of the variance will not be contrary to the objectives of the comprehensive 
plan.  

B. The planning commission shall hold a public hearing upon each properly submitted application. Such hearing 
shall be held not less than ten days nor later than thirty days following the date of filing of such application 
and the applicant shall be notified of the date of such hearing. The commission shall cause to be sent to each 
owner of property within a distance of three hundred feet of the exterior boundary of the lot or parcel of 
land described in such application notice of the time and place of the hearing, a description of the property 
involved and the provisions of this title from which a variance is sought. For the purposes of this section, 
"property owner" means that owner shown upon the latest tax assessment roll.  

C. From the time of filing such application until the time of such hearing, the application, together with all plans 
and data submitted, shall be available for public inspection in the office of the city clerk.  

D. The commission shall cause to be made by its own members, or its authorized agent, an investigation of facts 
bearing on any application sufficient to assure that the action taken is consistent with the intent and purpose 
of this title.  

E. The planning commission shall hear and consider evidence and facts from any person at the public hearing or 
written communication from any person relative to the matter. The right of any person to present evidence 
shall not be denied for the reason that any such person was not required to be informed of such public 
hearing.  

F. Within thirty days from the conclusion of the public hearing, the planning commission shall render its 
decision unless such time limit be extended by common consent and agreement signed by both applicant 
and the commission. If, in the opinion of the commission, the necessary facts and conditions set forth in this 
section apply in fact to the property referred to, and that the same comes within the purview of the planning 
commission, it may grant the variance. If, however, such facts and conditions do not prevail nor apply, or if 
the granting of the variance will adversely affect the property of persons in the vicinity of the applicant's 
property, or for any other valid reason, the commission shall deny the application.  

G. The commission, in granting the variance, may establish conditions under which a lot or parcel of land may 
be used or a building constructed or altered; make requirements as to architecture, height of building, or 
structure, open spaces or parking. areas; require conditions of operation of any enterprise; or may make any 
other conditions, requirements or safeguards that it may consider necessary to prevent damage or prejudice 
to adjacent properties or detriment to the city. When necessary, the commission may require guarantees in 
such form as deemed proper under the circumstances to insure that the conditions designated will be 
complied with.  

H. The decision of the planning commission, either for the granting, with or without conditions, or the denial of 
an application for variance, shall become final and effective ten days following such decision.  

I. Any variance approved by the planning commission shall be conditional upon the privilege granted being 
utilized within six months after the effective date of the variance. In the event some construction work is 
involved, it must actually commence with the stated period and must be diligently prosecuted to completion, 
otherwise the variance is automatically voided. In such cases, the planning commission may extend the time 
of the construction. start if satisfactory evidence of planning progress is presented.  

J. In order to defray the expense of making maps, sending out notices, and incidental administration costs 
involved in any application for variances and appeals, the person filing such application shall pay a fee to the 

165



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 126 of 139 

city to cover the expenses incurred by the city in processing the application. Regardless of the action taken 
on the application, the fee will not be refunded.  

(Ord. 582 (part), 1984; prior code § 15.220(C)). 

18.64.030 Appeal from actions of the planning commission. 

A. An appeal from any action or decision of the planning commission may be taken by any person or party 
aggrieved. Such appeal shall be taken within ten days of the date of such action or decision by filing with the 
board of adjustment through the city clerk a written notice of appeal specifying the grounds thereof.  

B. A report concerning each case appealed to the board of adjustment shall be prepared by the planning 
commission and filed with the city clerk. Such report shall state the decision and recommendations of the 
commission together with the reasons for each decision and recommendation. All data pertaining to the case 
shall accompany the report.  

C. The filing of an appeal shall stay all proceedings in the matter until a determination is made by the board of 
adjustment.  

(Prior code § 15.220(D)). 

18.64.040 Appeals from interpretation of provisions. 

A. An appeal from any action of the building official or other administrative official in the enforcement of the 
regulations established by this ordinance may be taken by any person aggrieved or by any other officer, 
department, commission or board of the city. Such appeal shall be filed within ten days of such action by a 
notice in writing specifying the grounds thereof.  

B. The filing of an appeal shall stay all proceedings in the matter until ten days after a decision has been 
rendered by the planning commission.  

C. When an appeal has been filed, the building official or city clerk shall forthwith transmit to the planning 
commission all data pertaining to the application or action appealed from.  

D. The commission shall render a decision on the appeal within forty days after the filing thereof.  

(Prior code § 15.220(B)). 

Chapter 18.68 BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

18.68.010 Organization. 

A. The city council shall constitute a board of adjustment pursuant to AS 29.33.110.  

B. The chairman, or in his absence the acting chairman, may administer oaths and compel attendance of 
witnesses by subpoena.  

C. All meetings of the board shall be open to the public.  

(Prior code § 15.221(A)). 

166



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 127 of 139 

18.68.020 Powers and duties. 

A. The board of adjustment shall hear and decide appeals taken from the planning commission when it is 
alleged there is error in any order, requirement, decision or determination made by an administrative official 
in the enforcement of the regulations established by this title.  

B. The board of adjustment may, upon appeal taken from the planning commission and after due notice and 
public hearing, authorize such variance from the terms of this title as will not be contrary to the public 
interest where it is found that all four of the specified conditions exist.  

C. The board of adjustment may, upon appeal from the planning commission, grant a use permit whenever it is 
provided in this title that the approval of the planning commission is required.  

D. In exercising the above—mentioned powers, the board of adjustment may, in conformity with the provision 
of AS 29.33.110, reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may modify the order, requirement, decision or 
determination appealed from, and may make such order, requirement, decision or determination as ought 
to be made, and to that end shall have all the powers of the officer from whom the appeal is taken; 
provided, however, that the concurring vote of four members of the board shall be necessary to reverse any 
order, requirement, decision or determination of the planning commission.  

E. The board of adjustment shall hear and decide upon appeals pertaining to decisions by the planning 
commission regarding the coastal management program. Such appeals shall be conducted in the manner set 
forth in Section 18.68.030.  

F. Coastal Management. The board of adjustment may, upon appeal from the planning commission, grant 
approval to a request for permission to conduct a use or activity in the coastal zone. Such appeals shall be 
decided upon after a review of the hearing record, and the requirements of this section. Where it is 
determined that an error of any order has been made in a decision or determination in the enforcement of 
the coastal management program, the council shall be empowered to modify the decision in the manner that 
is in keeping with the requirements of this section.  

(Ord. 530 (part), 1981; prior code § 15.221(B)). 

18.68.030 Appeals—Procedure. 

A. The board of adjustment sha11 fix a reasonable time for hearing on any appeal taken from the planning 
commission if a public hearing is required or desirable.  

B. The board shall give public notice of such hearing by publishing notice thereof in a newspaper of general 
circulation within the city at least five days or not more than fifteen days prior to the date of hearing. The 
board shall also mail notices to the appellant and to the owners of all property affected by any appeal at 
least five days prior to the date of the hearing if such notice by mail was given to the planning commission. 
For the purpose of such notice, the affected property shall be deemed to be that area within three hundred 
feet from the exterior boundary of the area covered by the appeal. Notices may be sent to cover a greater 
area if it is deemed that the appeal affects a greater area.  

C. Upon the hearing, any party may appear in person or by agent or by the attorney.  

D. The board of adjustment shall decide appeals within a reasonable time and shall give due consideration to 
the findings and recommendations of the planning commission.  

(Prior code § 15.221(C)). 

167



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 128 of 139 

18.68.040 Appeals—-District court. 

An appeal from any action, decision, ruling, judgment or order of the board of adjustment may be taken by 
any person or persons, jointly or severally aggrieved, any taxpayer or any officer, department, board or bureau of 
the city to the district court by filing with the city clerk and with the board of adjustment, within thirty days from 
the action appealed from, a notice of appeal which shall specify the grounds of such appeal. Failure to file said 
notice of appeal in the manner and time specified shall forfeit any right to appeal.  

(Prior code § 15.221 (D)). 

Chapter 18.72 AMENDMENTS 

18.72.010 Allowed when. 

Whenever the public necessity, convenience, general welfare or good zoning practice requires, the city 
council may, by ordinance and after report thereon by the planning commission and public hearing as required by 
law, amend, supplement, modify, repeal or otherwise change these regulations and the boundaries of the districts.  

(Prior code § 15.223(A)). 

18.72.020 Planning commission report. 

The planning commissions shall report in writing to the city council on any proposed change or amendment 
regardless of the manner in which such change is initiated and such report shall include:  

A. Findings as to need and justification for a change or amendment;  

B. Findings as to the effect a change or amendment would have on the objectives of the comprehensive 
plan;  

C. Recommendations as to the approval or disapproval of the change or amendment.  

(Prior code § 15.223(B)), 

18.72.030 Methods of initiation. 

Changes in this title may be initiated in the following manner:  

A. The city council upon its own motion;  

B. The planning commission upon its own motion;  

C. By petition of one or more owners of property within an area proposed to be rezoned. A petition shall 
be in the form of an application for a change in the boundary of a district, shall be filed in the office of 
the planning commission, be accompanied by such data and information as may be necessary to assure 
the fullest practicable presentation of facts and shall set forth reasons and justification for proposing 
such change.  

(Prior code § 15. 223 (C)). 

168



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 129 of 139 

18.72.040 Application fee. 

In order to defray the expense of making maps, sending out notices, and incidental administration costs 
involved in any application for a change in land use classification initiated by a property owner, the person filing 
such application shall pay a fee to the city to cover the expenses incurred by the city in processing the application. 
Regardless of the action taken on the application, the fee will not be refunded.  

(Ord. 583, 1984). 

18.72.050 Public hearing. 

When deemed necessary, the planning commission may hold a public hearing before considering any change 
in the boundaries of a district. If such hearing is to be held, notice thereof shall be given in the manner prescribed 
in Chapter 18.64 for variances except that such procedure shall specifically refer to an application for change in the 
boundary of a district. Where property within an area proposed to be changed is not under the same ownership, 
all owners of property within the area shall be notified of such hearing. Within sixty days after the date of the 
meeting at which the planning commission set the time and place for the hearing or within sixty days after the 
filing of an application when no hearing is called, the planning commission shall report its findings to the city 
council. If such change was initiated by petition, the signers shall be notified by the commission of its 
recommendation, such notice sent by registered mail not more than five days after the commission has filed the 
report with the city council.  

(Prior code § 15.223(D)). 

18.72.060 Consideration of other property. 

When the planning commission deems it necessary or expedient, it may consider other property for change 
or amendment in addition to the property described in an application for change in the boundary of a district, and 
may include such additional property in the notices of hearing and consider amendments relating to such property 
at the public hearing.  

(Prior code § 15.223(E)). 

18.72.070 City council action. 

The city council shall consider in application or planning commission recommendation for change in the 
boundary of a district or any other planning commission recommendation proposing a change in this title, and the 
report of the planning commission at its next regular meeting after receipt of such report. If from the facts 
presented and by the findings of the report of the planning commission, it is determined that the public necessity, 
convenience, general welfare, or good zoning practice requires the change or amendment, or any portion thereof, 
the council by ordinance shall effect such amendment, supplement, change or reclassification.  

(Prior code § 15.223(F)). 

18.72.080 Effective date. 

No ordinance of the city council affecting an amendment, supplement, change or classification, repeal of 
regulations or restrictions, the boundaries of districts or classifications of property shall become effective until 
after a public hearing in relation thereto at which parties in interest and citizens shall have an opportunity to be 
heard. At least fifteen days' notice of the time and place of such hearing shall be published in a paper of general 

169



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 130 of 139 

circulation in the city. When the proposed amendment covers a change in the boundaries of a district, notice to 
owners of property shall be given in the manner above prescribed for variances.  

(Prior code § 15.223 (G)). 

18.72.090 Protests. 

In case of a protest against a change in zoning district classification signed by the owners of twenty percent 
or more, either of the area of the lots included in such proposed change, or of the area of the lots immediately 
abutting the area included in such proposed change, or separated therefrom only by an alley or street, such 
amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of five members of the council.  

(Prior code § 15.223(H)). 

18.72.100 Ordinance numbering and filing. 

All ordinances changing zoning district boundaries shall be numbered consecutively. All such changes of 
district boundaries shall be filed with and indexed in the office of the city clerk and shall be noted on the zoning 
map.  

(Prior code § 15.223(I)). 

Chapter 18.76 ADMINISTRATION 

18.76.010 Zoning compliance certificate—Required. 

A zoning compliance certificate shall be required for any of the following:  

A. Occupancy and use of a building or structure erected or structurally altered;  

B. Change in use of an existing building or structure to a use of a different classification;  

C. Occupancy and use of vacant land;  

D. Change in use of land to a use of a different classification;  

E. Any change in the use of a nonconforming use.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

18.76.020 Zoning compliance certificate-Application-When made. 

Written application for a zoning compliance certificate for a new building or structure, or for an existing 
building or structure to be altered, shall be made at the same time as the application for the building permit.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

18.76.030 Zoning compliance certificate-Application-Issuance. 

Written application for a zoning compliance certificate for the use of vacant land, a change in the use of land, 
building or structure, or for a change in a nonconforming use, shall be made to the building official. If the proposed 

170



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 131 of 139 

use is in conformity with the provisions of this title, the zoning compliance certificate therefor shall be issued 
within ten days after the application for same has been made.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

18.76.040 Zoning compliance certificate—Contents. 

Such certificate shall describe the lot or parcel of land, the present and proposed use of land, building or 
structure; the number, size and location of any new building or structure; and alterations proposed to be made on 
any existing building or structure.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

18.76.050 Zoning compliance certificate—Agricultural uses—Structural alterations. 

No vacant land in any district shall hereafter be occupied or used except as specified or for agricultural uses 
as permitted, and no building or structure hereafter erected or structurally altered in any district shall be occupied 
or used until a zoning compliance certificate has been issued.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

18.76.060 Zoning compliance certificate—Falsification declared violation. 

Falsification of a zoning compliance certificate a use of property or a building not in conformity with such 
certificate shall be deemed a violation of this title.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

18.76.070 Building permit. 

A building permit shall be required for the erection, construction, establishment, moving, alteration, 
enlargement, repair or conversion of any building or structure in any district established by this title, subject to the 
following provisions:  

A. Application for a building permit shall be filed with the building official on a form approved by him. If 
the application meets the requirements of this title and any other applicable regulations, the building 
official will issue a building permit.  

B. In all cases where the planning commission or the board of adjustment has allowed a variance or an 
exception, the building official shall issue a building permit sufficient to allow such building or work to 
be done in accordance with that decision; provided, that no permit shall be issued pursuant to any 
decision until the time for rehearing or for appeal shall have expired and then only in the event that no 
appeal or application for rehearing shall have been filed within such time.  

C. No building permit shall be issued by the building official unless it appears from the application and 
coincident application for zoning compliance certificate that the building for which such permit is 
granted conforms to all of the applicable regulations of this title and is to be occupied for a use in 
conformity with the provisions thereof. Any permit issued in conflict with this title shall be null and 
void.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

171



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 132 of 139 

18.76.080 Planning commission approval—Application. 

Whenever it is stated in this title that certain buildings, structures and uses are permitted subject to approval 
by the planning commission, application for such approval shall be made in writing and include the estimated cost 
and be accompanied by the required plans or data.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

18.76.090 Planning commission approval—Time limit for decision. 

The planning commission shall make its findings and determination within forty days from the date of filing 
an application and shall notify the applicant in writing of their decision. If approval is denied, the commission shall 
state their reasons therefor and under what condition, if any, the application will be approved.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

18.76.100 Planning commission approval—Effect of determination failure. 

Failure of the planning commission to make a determination within the time specified shall constitute 
approval of the application.  

(Ord. 590 (part), 1985). 

18.76.110 Violation. 

A. Any restriction or condition required by the planning commission or the board of adjustment in the granting 
of any use, variance or exception under the provisions of this title must be complied with.  

B. Failure to obey or comply with any restriction or condition required by the planning commission or the board 
of adjustment in the granting of any use, variance or exception under the provisions of this title is a violation. 
The minimum penalty upon conviction of a single violation of this chapter shall be a fine of three hundred 
dollars.  

C. Conviction of a violation under this title shall be grounds for revocation by the city of any permission or right 
granted by the planning commission or the board of adjustment granted pursuant to the provisions of this 
title.  

(Ord. 688 § 29, 1991). 

Chapter 18.80 ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTY 

18.80.010 Enforcement duty. 

It shall be the duty of the building official to enforce the provisions of this title pertaining to erection, 
construction, reconstruction, moving, conversion or alteration of buildings, or to the occupancy of land or any 
building or structure or any addition thereto. It shall be the duty of the city clerk to enforce the provisions of this 
title pertaining to the use of land or buildings or which any license is required by any other ordinance of the city.  

(Prior code § 15.219(A)). 

172



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 133 of 139 

18.80.020 Building permit—Scope and validity. 

The issuance or granting of a building permit or approval of plans or specifications under the authority of the 
Building Code shall not be deemed or construed to be a permit for or an approval of any violation of any of the 
provisions of this title or any amendment thereto. No permit presuming to give authority to violate or cancel any 
of the provisions of this title shall be valid except insofar as the work or use which is authorized is lawful and 
permitted.  

(Prior code § 15.219(F)). 

18.80.030 Violation—Complaint. 

Whenever a violation occurs, any person may file a complaint in regard thereto. All such complaints shall be 
brought to the attention of the building official who shall properly record such complaint and immediately 
investigate and report thereon.  

(Prior code § 15.219(B)). 

18.80.040 Unlawful building or structure. 

Any building or structure set up, erected, built, moved or maintained, or any use of property contrary to the 
provisions of this title shall be and the same is declared to be unlawful and a violation of this title and the city 
attorney shall, upon order of the city council, immediately commence action or actions, proceeding or 
proceedings, for the abatement, removal and enjoinment thereof, in the manner provided by law, and shall take 
such other steps and shall apply to such court or courts as may have jurisdiction to grant such relief as will abate or 
remove such building, structure or use, and restrain and enjoin any person from setting up, erecting, moving, or 
maintaining any such building or structure, or using any property contrary to the provisions of this title.  

(Prior code § 15.219(D); Ord. No. 1144, § 6, 5-18-2016; Ord. No. 1148, § 3, 12-7-2016) 

Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 1148, § 3, adopted Dec. 7, 2016, changed the title of § 18.80.040 from "Nonconforming 
building or structure" to read as herein set out.  

18.80.050 Violation—Remedies cumulative. 

All remedies provided for in this chapter shall be cumulative and not exclusive.  

(Prior code § 15.219(E)). 

18.80.060 Violation. 

Failure to obey or comply with any provision of this or any rule, order or regulation issued thereunder is a 
violation. The minimum penalty upon conviction of a single violation of this title shall be a fine of three hundred 
dollars.  

(Ord. 688 § 30, 1991). 

Chapter 18.85 RIGHT-OF-WAY ENCROACHMENT PERMITS 

173



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 134 of 139 

18.85.010 Purpose. 

It is the purpose of this chapter to both accommodate and balance the rights and needs of the public and 
affected property owners of certain structures that have a long history of encroachment into a public right-of-way, 
and to provide to such owners the minimum encroachment permit necessary to permit conventional financing of 
the purchase, rehabilitation and remodeling of such structures.  

(Ord. 929 (part), 2003). 

18.85.020 Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to 
them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

"Encroachment" means the projection of any part of a nonmunicipal structure beyond the property line into 
a street, pedestrian way, or other public way.  

"Pedestrian way" means any trail, path or other way reserved, designed or developed to provide public, 
pedestrian access whether such way is held by the municipality by way of an easement, permit, dedication, 
prescription, fee ownership or other form.  

"Structure" means a building in which is conducted the principal or main use of the lot on which the building 
is situated, but not including mobile homes.  

"Public way" includes pedestrian ways and streets and any other way held for or held open by the 
municipality for purposes of public access.  

"Street" includes the entire width between property lines describing the way of any street, road, highway or 
other way under the jurisdiction of the city held for or held open primarily for vehicular access, whether such 
street is held by the city by way of easement, dedication, fee ownership, prescription, permit or other form.  

(Ord. 929 (part), 2003). 

18.85.030 Encroachment permits authorized. 

The manager, or his designee, may issue an encroachment permit under the procedures set forth in this 
chapter.  

(Ord. 929 (part), 2003). 

18.85.040 Permit—Application. 

A. The owner of a structure occupying any portion of the area of a street, pedestrian way, or other public way 
may apply to the manager, or his designee, for an encroachment permit.  

B. The permit application shall include the following:  

1. A survey by a registered land surveyor showing the property, the full width of the public way upon 
which the encroachment exists, and the extent of the encroachment;  

2. Evidence that the part of the structure encroaching in the public way was constructed in its present 
location prior to January 1, 2003;  

174



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 135 of 139 

3. Evidence that removal of that part of the structure encroaching in the public way would both 
jeopardize the structural integrity of the structure and that the cost of removal of the encroachment 
and repair needed to restore the structural integrity of the remaining structure would exceed ten 
percent of the present assessed value of the entire property;  

4. A statement from a commercial lending institution that it has before it a bona fide application for a 
loan for the purchase or rehabilitation of the property and that the borrower is unable to provide a 
policy of title insurance insuring the location of the structure within the boundaries of the property;  

5. A nonrefundable two hundred dollars permit application fee, plus an additional fee of five dollars for 
each square foot of property for which a permit is granted; provided the manager may adjust this fee 
from time to time to reflect increases in the cost of municipal expenses and services.  

(Ord. 929 (part), 2003). 

18.85.050 Investigation and issuance of permit. 

Upon receipt of a complete application, the manager, or the manager's designee, shall investigate the 
matter. A permit may be issued upon a finding by the public works director and the city planner that all of the 
following conditions are met:  

A. The part of the structure that encroaches in the public way was constructed prior to January 1, 2003.  

B. Removal of that part of the structure encroaching in the public way would seriously affect the 
structural integrity of the remaining structure and removal of the encroachment and repair needed to 
restore the structural integrity of the remaining structure would exceed ten percent of the present 
assessed value of the entire property.  

C. A statement from a commercial lending institution that it has before it a bona fide application for a 
loan for the purchase or rehabilitation of the property and that the borrower is unable to provide a 
policy of title insurance insuring the location of the structure within the boundaries of the property.  

D. The public way is one owned by or under jurisdiction of the city.  

E. That the granting of an encroachment permit will not interfere with any future plans that the city may 
have in the comprehensive plan or the capital improvement plan.  

(Ord. 929 (part), 2003). 

18.85.060 Term of permit. 

A. The permit shall be irrevocable except:  

1. It shall be limited to a term not to exceed the term of the loan plus one year, or thirty years, whichever 
is less.  

2. If the structure is destroyed or damaged for any reason such that restoration to its prior condition 
would cost fifty percent or more than the value of the structure prior to its damage or destruction, the 
permit shall terminate.  

3. If the structure is damaged or destroyed to the extent that the value of the structure in its damaged or 
destroyed state is less than the value of the lot if vacant, as determined by the city assessor, the permit 
shall terminate.  

4. Upon payment of the loan the permit shall terminate; and  

175



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 136 of 139 

5. If the borrower fails within ninety days of the date of the permit to execute the loan upon which the 
permit application is based, the permit shall terminate. However, if the borrower demonstrates that 
the loan has not been executed because of circumstances beyond the borrower's control, then the 
manager, or the managers designee, may grant an additional ninety days to execute the loan.  

6. If the property owner fails to comply with the requirements of Section 18.85.080, the permit shall 
terminate.  

B. Upon termination of a permit for any reason, the city may execute and file in the office of the district 
recorder a notice of termination of the permit.  

(Ord. 929 (part), 2003). 

18.85.070 Form of permit. 

A. Permits issued under this chapter shall be in recordable form.  

B. Permits issued under this chapter shall contain a hold harmless provision as set out in Section 18.85.080. The 
owners of property subject to a permit issued under this section and their heirs, successors and assigns shall 
be bound by the requirements of Section 18.85.080 whether or not such a clause is contained in the permit.  

(Ord. 929 (part), 2003). 

18.85.080 Hold harmless. 

The holder of a permit issued under this chapter, the holder's successors, heirs and assigns shall forever save, 
hold harmless and defend the city against all claims and suits of any nature arising in any manner out of the 
issuance or existence of the permit, the existence of the structure in the public way, the failure of the city to cause 
the structure to be removed from the public way, or to take preventative or protective measures or for any other 
reason related to the existence of the encroachment.  

(Ord. 929 (part), 2003). 

18.85.090 Application to vacate. 

This chapter shall not be construed to restrict any property owner from applying for the city to vacate any 
property upon which there is an encroachment.  

(Ord. 929 (part), 2003). 

Chapter 18.90 CORDOVA HISTORICAL DISTRICT AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION 

COMMISSION9 

 

9Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 1181, § 1, adopted December 19, 2019, amended Chapter 18.90 in its entirety to read 
as herein set out. Former Chapter 18.90, §§ 18.90.010—18.90.050, pertained to similar subject matter, and 
derived from Ord. 751, 1995; Ord. 746 §§ 1—5, 1994; Ord. 691(part), 1992.  

176



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 137 of 139 

18.90.010 Cordova Historic Preservation Commission established. 

A. There is created a historic preservation commission. In this chapter, "the Commission" refers to the Cordova 
Historic Preservation Commission. The Commission shall have seven members which shall consist of a 
member of the Cordova Planning Commission, a member of the Cordova Historical Society, a member 
selected by the Native Village of Eyak and four additional members appointed by the Mayor and confirmed 
by City Council. At least one of the four additional members shall be a Cordova resident with a demonstrated 
interest or knowledge of historic preservation and three of the additional members shall be professionals, as 
defined by the National Park Service Regulations, from the disciplines of history, architecture or architectural 
history, and archaeology.  

B. Ex Officio Members. The Mayor and the City Manager shall be ex officio members of the Commission and 
shall be permitted to participate in discussions as members of the Commission, but shall not vote on matters 
before the Commission.  

C. Terms of Office. Members of the Commission shall be appointed for three-year terms, provided however, 
that in the first instance two members shall be appointed for one year, two members appointed for two 
years and three members appointed for three years.  

D. Filling of Vacancies. Appointments to fill vacancies shall be for the unexpired term of the vacated position.  

(Ord. No. 1181, § 1, 12-19-2019; Ord. No. 1195, § 2, 4-21-2021) 

18.90.020 Cordova Historic Preservation Commission—Officers. 

A. The Commission shall annually organize and elect a chair, vice-chair, and secretary at the first meeting of a 
new fiscal year.  

B. The chairperson shall preside over the meetings of the Commission and shall exercise all powers usually 
incident to the office and shall have the power to participate in discussions and vote on all matters before 
the Commission.  

C. The Vice-Chairperson shall assume the duties of the Chair in the Chairperson's absence. In case of the 
absence of both the Chair and the Vice-Chair, the members present may elect a temporary chair for the 
meeting who shall, during such meeting, have full powers of the Chair.  

D. The Secretary shall be responsible for taking and typing minutes of all meetings of the Commission, and for 
providing the minutes to the City Clerk for distribution and recordkeeping.  

(Ord. No. 1181, § 1, 12-19-2019; Ord. No. 1195, § 3, 4-21-2021) 

18.90.030 Cordova Historic Preservation Commission—Meetings. 

A. The Commission shall meet regularly at a time and place set by the Commission. The Commission will meet 
twice a year at a minimum. The commission shall conduct business in accordance with the Open Meeting 
Laws of Alaska. The Commission shall publish notice of the time, place, and agenda items for all meetings. 
Notice of postponement of any regular meeting must be given to each member and to the public at least 24 
hours in advance.  

B. Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson and at such times as the Commission may determine 
necessary provided that at least 24 hours' notice of a special meeting is given to the public and to 
Commission members at their established residences or businesses.  

177



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:18 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 138 of 139 

C. The Commission shall keep minutes of its proceedings showing the vote on each issue and the number 
absent or failing to vote. The Commission shall keep records of its official actions, all of which shall be filed in 
the office of the City Clerk and shall be kept as a public record.  

D. A majority of the membership of the Commission shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. A 
public hearing may be opened and comments received without a quorum of the Commission present, and 
action taken at the next meeting at which a quorum is present. Commission members may participate in and 
vote on a matter even if they were not present at the public hearing so long as they have been provided the 
minutes from the public hearing before voting on the matter.  

E. The Commission shall conduct business using the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order. All main motions 
shall be made in the affirmative.  

F. Any member of the Commission anticipating an absence from Commission meetings shall so advise the 
Commission. A member who misses three consecutive regular meetings without prior excuse shall 
automatically be recommended for replacement to the Mayor.  

G. All recommendations by the Commission to the Planning Commission or to City Council shall be made by 
resolution. Resolutions shall be numbered consecutively within each year according to the sequence of 
approval and shall be signed by the chair and secretary.  

H. Rules and procedures of the Commission may be amended at any regular or special meeting by a majority 
vote of the membership of the Commission.  

(Ord. No. 1181, § 1, 12-19-2019; Ord. No. 1195, § 4, 4-21-2021) 

18.90.040 Cordova Historic Preservation Commission—Powers and duties designated. 

A. Develop a local historic preservation plan providing for identification, protection, and interpretation of 
Cordova's significant cultural resources. This plan is to be compatible with the Alaska historic preservation 
plan.  

B. Review and make recommendations about local projects that might affect properties identified in the 
historic preservation plan.  

C. Review Proposed Nominations to the National Register of Historic Places. The commission shall review and 
comment to the State Historic Preservation Officer on all proposed National Register nominations for 
properties within the boundaries of the community. When the commission considers a National Register 
nomination which is normally evaluated by professionals in a commission, the commission will seek expertise 
in this area before rendering its decision.  

D. Provide Advice and Information. The commission shall act in an advisory role to the Cordova planning and 
zoning commission who will make recommendations to the Cordova city council. It shall also advise and 
assist other city officials and departments and the public regarding the identification, protection, and 
enhancement of local historic and archaeological resources. The commission shall work toward continuing 
education of citizens regarding historic preservation. It shall assist property owners in any way necessary 
including help with getting their property on the National Register and in identifying funding sources for 
specific projects.  

E. The commission shall support the enforcement of the Alaska Historic Preservation Act (AS 41.35).  

F. The commission shall support the enforcement of any local preservation laws that may be passed.  

G. The commission shall draft or make recommendations on local preservation ordinances, a preservation plan, 
or an overall development plan with a preservation or "building style" theme and make recommendations to 
the planning and zoning commission who, in turn, will make recommendations to the city council.  

178



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-07-16 14:03:19 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 80) 

 
Page 139 of 139 

(Ord. No. 1181, § 1, 12-19-2019) 

 

179



Conditional Use Permit & Variance - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres 
Page 1 of 7  

 
  

 
  
  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM # 10a 

Planning Commission Special Meeting Date: 6/14/22 
 

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
                      
 
FROM:   Kevin Johnson, City Planner 
 
DATE:   6/14/22 
 
ITEM:     Conditional Use Permit & Variance - Telecommunication Tower 
      – Lot 6, Eyak Acres 
   
NEXT STEP:  Decide Whether to Grant Conditional Use Permit & Variance 
                      
 
 _____ INFORMATION 
 __X__ MOTION 
 _____    RESOLUTION    
                      
                                                                                                     
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE:    
 
Requested Actions: Grant of Conditional Use Permit & Variance 
Applicant: Copper Valley Wireless, LLC 
Address:  6475 Copper River Highway 
Legal Description: Lot 6, Eyak Acres 
Zoning:  Unrestricted 
Lot Area:  65,777 sq. ft. 
 
The City of Cordova received an application requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the removal of 
an existing 80 foot tall telecommunication tower and replacing it with a new 80 foot tall telecommunication 
tower in a new location on the same lot, along with a variance from Cordova Municipal Code (CMC) 
18.60.070 (C) (9). 
 

180



Conditional Use Permit & Variance - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres 
Page 2 of 7  

The application specifically requests a variance from the requirement that a telecommunication tower be set 
back a distance equal to or greater than the height of the tower. The proposed location of the new tower 
would not meet this requirement along the north property line which abuts the State ROW for the Copper 
River Highway. 
  
II.  RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: 
 
A Commissioner should make the following motion followed by a second to open the item for discussion 
 
“I move that the Planning Commission grant the Conditional Use Permit and variance request by Copper 
Valley Wireless, LLC and to adopt and incorporate the findings and conditions within the staff report.” 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission grant the CUP and variance request.  
 
The CUP and variance can be granted with or without special conditions or denied. 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
N/A 
  
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Copper Valley Wireless, LLC currently owns and operates an existing 80 foot tall telecommunication tower 
located at 6475 Copper River Highway. The applicant granted a CUP for the existing tower by the Planning 
Commission on November 8, 2011. The existing tower which is made of wood is proposed to be replaced 
with a modern tower to ensure longevity of future service and reduce service interruptions. The new tower 
will also allow for the use of modern antennas which will increase the reliability of service as well as expand 
coverage. 
 
The new tower will be located on the same property as the existing, however its location is being shifted to 
the north by about 50 feet. The tower cannot be replaced in the same location as current construction 
techniques would cause damage to the foundation of the building that the existing tower is adjacent to. 
 
The new location places the tower greater than 80 feet from the east, west, and south property line. The tower 
would be located within 50 feet of the north property line. The north property line abuts the State ROW for 
the Copper river highway. The paved portion of the highway is greater than 80 feet from the proposed tower. 
Staff has reached out to the State and has asked them to review the proposal. The State responded that they 
have no concerns and do not protest the application (email from the State is attached to this memo).  
 
Below you will find the CUP approval criteria in italics and staff’s responses in normal font type. Staff has 
also provided suggested conditions of approval in section VIII. 

 
Suggested Findings: 
 
18.60.020 (B) – Generic Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria 
 

1. The use is consistent with the purpose of this chapter and is compatible with the zoning district and 
the comprehensive plan;  
 

181



Conditional Use Permit & Variance - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres 
Page 3 of 7  

 This criterion is met. The zoning district allows for all legal uses of property. The project is 
consistent with the comprehensive plan which discusses expansion of communication technology 
including cell service coverage (economic development strategy #4). 
 

2. The use will not permanently or substantially injure the lawful use of neighboring properties; 
 
 This criterion is met. The project does not impact adjacent residential properties. The possible 
impact to the Copper River Highway has been reviewed and determined that there is no impact to the 
improved portion of the ROW as if the tower was to fail it would not obstruct the paved portion of the 
highway. 
 

3. Public services and facilities are adequate to serve the proposed use; 
 
 This criterion is met. The use does not use water or sewer. Electricity is available on site. 
 

4. The proposed use will not have a permanent negative impact on pedestrian and vehicular traffic 
circulation and safety substantially greater than that anticipated from permitted development; and 
 
 This criterion is met. The use has no affect on pedestrians or traffic as the tower is not tall      
enough to reach the paved portion of the adjacent ROW. 
 

5. The proposed use will not adversely affect to the public's safety, health, or general welfare. 
 

This criterion has been met. By meeting the above criterion and being consistent with the 
comprehensive plan the use does not adversely affect the publics safety, health, and general welfare. 

 
18.60.070 (C) - Telecommunication Tower Specific Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria 
 

1. Location and Visual Impact. The proposed location of the telecommunication tower will minimize the 
visual impact on the surrounding area while allowing the telecommunication tower to function in 
accordance with minimum standards imposed by the applicable telecommunications regulations and 
the applicant's technical design requirements. Telecommunication towers and attached antennas and 
equipment must be painted or coated in a color that blends with the surrounding environment. Muted 
colors, earth tones, and subdued hues, such as gray, shall be used. All associated structures such as 
equipment buildings, including the roofs, shall be painted with earth tone colors unless otherwise 
required under this code or other applicable law. Where necessary to make a telecommunication 
tower compatible with the historical, environmental or cultural character of its location, the planning 
and zoning commission may require that the telecommunication tower be disguised, hidden or 
screened, or integrated as an architectural feature of a structure, to reduce its visual impact.  
  
 This criterion has been met. The location of the tower is near a grouping of trees, the tower will 
be painted brown to blend in. The antennas are grey hues to blend in with the sky. The ground 
equipment will be constructed out of metal roof and siding which is typical of other structures in the 
area so it will not stand out. 
 

2. Inability to Collocate. It is not feasible to locate the applicant's telecommunication antenna and other 
equipment on any existing structure or tower under the control of the applicant. 

 
  This criterion has been met. The applicant is unable to continue to utilize the existing tower as its 

182



Conditional Use Permit & Variance - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres 
Page 4 of 7  

construction is inadequate to support the newer style antennas. Additionally, the equipment room that 
is currently in the property owners building has no room for expansion. The existing tower is also 
constructed from wood which could lead to future failure and disruption of service.  
 

3. Location in a Residential Zoning District. An applicant seeking to locate a telecommunication tower 
in a residential zoning district must show that the area cannot be adequately served by a 
telecommunication tower located in a nonresidential zoning district for valid technical reasons. 
 
 This criterion has been met. The proposed location is zoned “Unrestricted”, which allows for 
residential uses, but is not a strictly residential zone. 

 
4. Location on Public Property or Other Private Property. If the applicant proposes to acquire a site on 

private property for the telecommunication tower, the applicant must show that no available publicly 
owned site or available privately owned site occupied by a compatible use is suitable under 
applicable communications regulations and the applicant's technical design requirements. 
 
 This criterion has been met. The proposed tower is replacing an existing tower on private 
property, there are no other nearby towers to collocate and the location chosen is to maintain existing 
coverage and expand that coverage with the newer antennas.  
 

5. Design for Future Use. A new telecommunication tower shall be designed to allow collocation of 
telecommunication antennas equal in number to the applicant's present and reasonably foreseeable 
future requirements. 
 
 This criterion has been met. The proposed tower has been designed to accommodate additional 
providers if needed in the future. 
 

6. Safety Code Met. The telecommunication tower meets all applicable laws and code requirements, 
including without limitation health, nuisance, noise, fire, building and safety code requirements. 
 
 This criterion has conditionally been met. The applicant has designed the tower to meet all 
applicable construction codes. The design has been submitted to the State Fire Marshal for their 
review. Staff has added a condition to this approval that no building permit shall be issued prior to the 
applicant providing the approval from the State Fire Marshal  
 

7. Distance from Existing Telecommunication Towers. A telecommunications tower shall not be 
approved if it is located within one-half mile (two thousand six hundred forty feet) of an existing 
telecommunication tower, unless the applicant certifies that the existing telecommunication tower 
does not meet the applicant's structural specifications and technical design requirements, or that a 
collocation agreement could not be obtained.  
 
 This criterion has been met. The applicant has provided a map of existing tower locations, all of 
which are greater than one-half mile. Staff knows of no other towers within one-half mile. 
 

8. Zoning Requirements. With the exception of requirements for setback and height, which are 
established in this section, the telecommunication tower must comply with all applicable zoning laws 
and regulations, including, without limitation, all laws governing land development, visibility, 
fencing, screening, landscaping, parking, access, lot size, exterior illumination, and sign, storage. 
  

183



Conditional Use Permit & Variance - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres 
Page 5 of 7  

 This criterion is met if the Planning Commission approves the variance for the setback from the 
ROW. The tower will be surrounded by an 8-foot fence, is screened by natural features along with 
earth tone painting, parking is provided on site, access is via the existing driveway, and no 
illumination is proposed. 
 

9. Setback. In all zoning districts, a telecommunication tower must be located no less than a distance 
equal to the tower height from all lot lines. 
 
 This criterion is met if the Planning Commission approves the variance for the setback from the 
ROW. The tower is proposed to be greater than 80 feet (the height of the tower) from all property 
lines with the exception of the north property line. The north property line abuts the State ROW for 
the Copper River Highway. The distance from the proposed tower to the paved portion of the ROW 
will be greater than 80 feet. The State has reviewed this application and has no issue with the 
approval of this tower. 
 

10. Signs. No signs may be located on a telecommunication tower except for identification signage. 
 
 This criterion has been met. The only signage will be to provide owner contact information.  
 

11. Lighting. No lighting may be located on a telecommunication tower except as reasonably required 
for safety purposes or as required by the Federal Communications Commission, Federal Aviation 
Administration or other government agency with jurisdiction.  
 
 This criterion has been met. The applicant proposes no lighting. No lighting is required for 
towers less than 200 feet in height. 
 

12. Fencing. A fence with a minimum height of eight feet must be placed on the perimeter of the site of a 
telecommunications tower site to limit access by the public.  

 
  This criterion has been met. The applicant proposes to install an 8-foot tall fence around the 

perimeter to limit access to the public. 
 

13. Height. The height of a telecommunications tower may not exceed the maximum tower height 
specified in the conditional use permit or in this section.  

 
  This criterion has conditionally been met. The applicant has requested a tower height of 80 feet. 
Staff has added a condition that upon completion of the tower installation the applicant must provide 
a height survey verifying that the tower height does not exceed 80 feet. 

 
18.64.020 (A) (2) - Variance Approval Criteria 
 

a. That there are exceptional physical circumstances or conditions applicable to the property or to its 
intended use or development which do not apply generally to the other properties in the same 
land use district. 
 
 This criterion has been met. The applicant’s replacement tower is being moved as it cannot 

be built in the location of the existing tower as construction techniques would damage the landowners 
building. The new location allows for the applicant to continue to provide service to the area while 
also not creating a further burden on the property owners use of their land. Other properties and 

184



Conditional Use Permit & Variance - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres 
Page 6 of 7  

locations are not feasible based on the applicants needs to provide the proper coverage in the area. 
 

b. That the strict application of the provisions of this title would result in practical difficulties or 
unnecessary hardship. 
 

  This criterion has been met. Strict adherence to the code would create a hardship on the 
property owner as the existing location would cause damage to their building foundations, and other 
locations on the property would limit their use of the property. The applicant can also not reduce the 
tower height as this would not provide for proper cell coverage in the surrounding area. 

 
c. That the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other properties 

in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare. 
 

This criterion has been met. The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to public 
health, safety, or welfare. The proposed tower is the same height as the existing tower and its 
placement is greater than 80 feet from all adjoining properties with the exception of the north 
property line which abuts the State ROW for the Copper River Highway. The distance from the 
proposed tower to the paved portion of the ROW will be greater than 80 feet. The State has reviewed 
this application and has no issue with the approval of this tower. 

 
d. That the granting of the variance will not be contrary to the objectives of the comprehensive plan. 

 
This criterion has been met. The granting of the variance will not be contrary to the 

Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan supports the expansion of cellular service through out 
the community which this tower will provide. 

 
    

V. LEGAL ISSUES: 
  
The public or applicant may appeal the decision of the Planning Commission to the City Council. 
  
VI.   ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
  
N/A 
 
VII.  SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 
The applicant has an existing 80 foot tall wooden telecommunication tower that they wish to replace with a 
modern tower of the same height. This will ensure that cell coverage is not at risk from the failure of the 
wooden tower and allows for modern antennas to be utilized which will expand coverage. The applicant 
requests a variance for the setback from the north property line as the tower height would not affect the paved 
portion of the highway of there was a failure. 
 
VIII.  CONDITIONS: 

1. The city shall not issue a building permit prior to the applicant providing the city with the State 
Fire Marshal’s approval ensuring it meets all structural requirements. 
 

2. Upon completion of the installation of the telecommunication tower that applicant shall provide 
the city with a height survey verifying the finished height. If the height of the tower exceeds 80 

185



Conditional Use Permit & Variance - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres 
Page 7 of 7  

feet from the base of the tower at ground level; to the highest point of the tower the applicant shall 
be required to apply for a new conditional use permit. If that Conditional Use Permit is denied the 
tower shall be modified or to be less than 80 feet in height or shall be removed. 

 
IX.  ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Conditional Use Permit & Variance Applicable Code Sections 
B. Conditional Use Permit Application and Attachments 
C. Variance Application and Attachments 
D. Additional attachments provide by the applicant 
E. State of Alaska review and approval regarding proximity to Copper River Highway 
F. City Attorney Approval of Tower Removal Agreement Memo 

 

186



Applicable Codes: 

18.60 - Conditional Use Permit 

CMC 18.60.020 – Applications 

Applications for a conditional use permit shall be filed with the city planner. 

A. The application shall include but is not limited to the following:  

1. Name and address of the applicant;

2. If applicant is not the owner of the subject lot, the owner's signed authorization granting
applicant the authority to (a) apply for the conditional use permit and (b) bind the owner to the
terms of the conditional use permit, if granted;

3. A legal description of the property involved;

4. A narrative description of the proposed use;

5. A proposed time frame for the new use and/or the period of construction;

6. Dimensioned plot plans showing the location of all existing and proposed buildings or alterations,
and their existing and proposed uses;

7. The nonrefundable fee as established by city council resolution;

8. Narrative evidence that the application meets all of the review criteria in Section 18.60.020B.
Evidence shall be sufficient to enable meaningful review of the application;

9. Any additional information required by the Municipal Code; and

10. Any additional information the city planner may require to determine whether the application
satisfies the criteria for issuance of a permit.

B. Prior to granting a conditional use permit, the planning and zoning commission must determine that 
the proposed use meets all of the following review criteria: 

1. The use is consistent with the purpose of this chapter and is compatible with the zoning district
and the comprehensive plan;

2. The use will not permanently or substantially injure the lawful use of neighboring properties;

3. Public services and facilities are adequate to serve the proposed use;

4. The proposed use will not have a permanent negative impact on pedestrian and vehicular traffic
circulation and safety substantially greater than that anticipated from permitted development;
and

5. The proposed use will not adversely affect to the public's safety, health, or general welfare.

C. The planning and zoning commission shall hold a public hearing upon each properly submitted 
application. Such hearing shall be held not less than ten days nor later than thirty days following the 
date of filing of such application and the applicant shall be notified of the date of such hearing.  

D. The commission shall cause to be sent to each owner of property within a distance of three hundred 
feet of the exterior boundary of the lot or parcel of land described in such application notice of the 
time and place of hearing and a description of the property involved. For the purposes of this section, 
"property owner" means that owner shown upon the latest tax assessment roll.  

E. The commission shall cause to be made by its own members, or its authorized agent, an investigation 
of facts bearing on any application sufficient to assure that the action taken is consistent with the 
intent and purpose of this section.  

ATTACHMENT A 187



F. The planning and zoning commission shall hear and consider evidence and facts from any person at any 
public hearing or written communication from any person relative to the matter. The right of any 
person to present evidence shall not be denied for the reason that any such person was not required to 
be informed of such public hearing.  

G. Within thirty days from the conclusion of the public hearing, the planning and zoning commission shall 
render its decision unless such time limit be extended by common consent and agreement signed by 
both applicant and the commission. If, in the opinion of the commission, the necessary facts and 
conditions set forth in this chapter apply in fact to the property or use referred to, it may grant the 
conditional use permit. If, however, such facts and conditions do not prevail nor apply the commission 
shall deny the application.  

H. The commission, in granting approval, may establish conditions under which a lot or parcel of land may 
be used or a building constructed or altered; make requirements as to architecture, height of building 
or structure open spaces or parking areas; require conditions of operation of any enterprise; or may 
make any other condition, requirements or safeguards that it may consider necessary to prevent 
damage or prejudice to adjacent properties or detriment to the city. When necessary, the commission 
may require guarantees in such form as deemed proper under the circumstances to ensure that the 
conditions designed will be complied with.  

I. The decision of the planning and zoning commission, either for the granting with or without conditions, 
or the denial of an application, shall become final and effective ten days following such decision. 

J. Any aggrieved person or party may appeal the planning and zoning commission decision following the 
protocol in 18.64.030. 

K. Any application approved by the planning and zoning commission shall be conditional upon the 
privilege granted being utilized within six months after the effective date of approval. 

L. Construction work must commence within the stated period and must be diligently prosecuted to 
completion, otherwise the approval is automatically voided. 

M. In the case of construction, the planning and zoning commission may extend the time of construction if 
satisfactory evidence of planning and/or construction progress is presented. 

N. A conditional use permit shall automatically expire if for any reason the conditioned use ceases for a 
period of twenty-four months or longer 

O. A permittee who disputes the administrative official's determination that the conditioned use has not 
been timely initiated or has ceased for a period of twenty-four months or longer may appeal the 
official's determination under 18.64.040.  

P. A conditional use permit is not transferable from one parcel of land to another. Conditional use 
permits may be transferred from one owner to another for the same use, but if there is a change in use 
on the property, a new permit must be obtained.  

(Ord. No. 1162, § 2, 6-20-2018) 

18.60.070 – Conditional Use for Telecommunication Tower 

A. The planning and zoning commission may grant a conditional use permit for a telecommunication tower in 
any zoning district subject to the conditions in this section. 

B. In addition to the requirements 18.60.020 the application for a conditional use permit for a 
telecommunication tower shall include the following information: 

1. A written narrative explaining why the proposed site has been chosen, why the telecommunication
tower is necessary, why the requested height was chosen, and a full explanation regarding the
telecommunication tower's ability to accommodate other providers; and

ATTACHMENT A 188



2. Specifications for the telecommunication tower and all antennas to be located on it, including a
description of design characteristics and material;

3. A site plan drawn to scale showing property boundaries, telecommunication tower location,
telecommunication tower height, guy wires and anchors and existing structures and land uses on the
site and on adjacent property;

4. A map showing the locations of the applicant's existing telecommunication towers that serve
customers in the city and of all telecommunication towers that the applicant proposes to construct to
serve customers in the city;

5. A report prepared by a person registered as a structural engineer in Alaska showing the capacity by
type and number of the telecommunication tower and antennas, and that the telecommunication
tower and antennas are designed to withstand winds in accordance with the latest revision of
ASI/EIA/TIA/222 standards ("Structural standards for steel communications antenna towers and
communications antenna supporting structures");

6. Identification of the person or persons who own the telecommunication tower and the equipment that
is to be located on it;

7. Written authorization for the application from the owner of the site;

8. Evidence that the applicant has a valid FCC license for the use of the telecommunication tower;

9. A line of sight analysis showing the potential visual and aesthetic impacts of the telecommunication
tower on adjacent residential districts through the use of photo simulations of the telecommunication
tower, including all antennas, structures, and equipment, using the vantage points and number of
photo simulations requested by the planning department;

10. A written agreement, on a form approved by the city attorney, to remove the telecommunication
tower and restore the site to its original condition within one hundred eighty days after the
telecommunication tower is substantially unused for a period of twelve consecutive months, and
providing that if the telecommunication tower is not removed within this one hundred eighty-day
period, the city may remove the telecommunication tower at the cost of the owner;

11. A cell phone coverage map showing the applicant's proposed cell phone coverage within the city;

12. A certificate from an engineer licensed in Alaska that the telecommunication tower, and all antennas
and other equipment located on it, are built and installed to approved specifications and will contain
only equipment meeting Federal Communications Commission requirements;

13. Any additional information required by the planning department during the application process.

C. In addition to the requirements 18.60.020 the planning and zoning commission may approve an application 
under this section, with or without conditions, if the application meets the following criteria: 

1. Location and Visual Impact. The proposed location of the telecommunication tower will minimize the
visual impact on the surrounding area while allowing the telecommunication tower to function in
accordance with minimum standards imposed by the applicable telecommunications regulations and
the applicant's technical design requirements. Telecommunication towers and attached antennas and
equipment must be painted or coated in a color that blends with the surrounding environment. Muted
colors, earth tones, and subdued hues, such as gray, shall be used. All associated structures such as
equipment buildings, including the roofs, shall be painted with earth tone colors unless otherwise
required under this code or other applicable law. Where necessary to make a telecommunication
tower compatible with the historical, environmental or cultural character of its location, the planning
and zoning commission may require that the telecommunication tower be disguised, hidden or
screened, or integrated as an architectural feature of a structure, to reduce its visual impact.

2. Inability to Collocate. It is not feasible to locate the applicant's telecommunication antenna and other
equipment on any existing structure or tower under the control of the applicant.

ATTACHMENT A 189



3. Location in a Residential Zoning District. An applicant seeking to locate a telecommunication tower in a 
residential zoning district must show that the area cannot be adequately served by a 
telecommunication tower located in a nonresidential zoning district for valid technical reasons.  

4. Location on Public Property or Other Private Property. If the applicant proposes to acquire a site on 
private property for the telecommunication tower, the applicant must show that no available publicly 
owned site or available privately owned site occupied by a compatible use is suitable under applicable 
communications regulations and the applicant's technical design requirements.  

5. Design for Future Use. A new telecommunication tower shall be designed to allow collocation of 
telecommunication antennas equal in number to the applicant's present and reasonably foreseeable 
future requirements.  

6. Safety Code Met. The telecommunication tower meets all applicable laws and code requirements, 
including without limitation health, nuisance, noise, fire, building and safety code requirements.  

7. Distance from Existing Telecommunication Towers. A telecommunications tower shall not be approved 
if it is located within one-half mile (two thousand six hundred forty feet) of an existing 
telecommunication tower, unless the applicant certifies that the existing telecommunication tower 
does not meet the applicant's structural specifications and technical design requirements, or that a 
collocation agreement could not be obtained.  

8. Zoning Requirements. With the exception of requirements for setback and height, which are 
established in this section, the telecommunication tower must comply with all applicable zoning laws 
and regulations, including, without limitation, all laws governing land development, visibility, fencing, 
screening, landscaping, parking, access, lot size, exterior illumination, and sign, storage.  

9. Setback. In all zoning districts, a telecommunication tower must be located no less than a distance 
equal to the tower height from all lot lines.  

10. Signs. No signs may be located on a telecommunication tower except for identification signage.  

11. Lighting. No lighting may be located on a telecommunication tower except as reasonably required for 
safety purposes or as required by the Federal Communications Commission, Federal Aviation 
Administration or other government agency with jurisdiction.  

12. Fencing. A fence with a minimum height of eight feet must be placed on the perimeter of the site of a 
telecommunications tower site to limit access by the public.  

13. Height. The height of a telecommunications tower may not exceed the maximum tower height 
specified in the conditional use permit or in this section.  

D. No decision regulating the placement, construction or modification of a telecommunication tower may be 
made on the basis of environmental or health effects of radio frequency emission if the antennas and other 
equipment on the telecommunication tower comply with Federal Communications Commission regulations.  

 

18.64 – Exceptions, Variances, and Appeals 

18.64.020 Variances. 

A. An application for a variance shall be filed in writing and verified by the owner of the property concerned.  

1. The application shall contain the following data with respect to the property and the applicant:  

a. A legal description of the property involved,  

b. Plot plans showing the location of all existing and proposed buildings or alterations, elevations of 
such buildings or alterations, and such other data as may be required,  

ATTACHMENT A 190



c. Evidence of the ability and intention of the applicant to proceed in accordance with the plans 
within six months after the effective date of the variance;  

2. The application shall contain a statement and adequate evidence showing the following conditions, all 
four of which must exist before a variance may be granted.  

a. That there are exceptional physical circumstances or conditions applicable to the property or to 
its intended use or development which do not apply generally to the other properties in the 
same land use district,  

b. That the strict application of the provisions of this title would result in practical difficulties or 
unnecessary hardship,  

c. That the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 
properties in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare,  

d. That the granting of the variance will not be contrary to the objectives of the comprehensive 
plan.  

B. The planning commission shall hold a public hearing upon each properly submitted application. Such hearing 
shall be held not less than ten days nor later than thirty days following the date of filing of such application 
and the applicant shall be notified of the date of such hearing. The commission shall cause to be sent to each 
owner of property within a distance of three hundred feet of the exterior boundary of the lot or parcel of 
land described in such application notice of the time and place of the hearing, a description of the property 
involved and the provisions of this title from which a variance is sought. For the purposes of this section, 
"property owner" means that owner shown upon the latest tax assessment roll.  

C. From the time of filing such application until the time of such hearing, the application, together with all plans 
and data submitted, shall be available for public inspection in the office of the city clerk.  

D. The commission shall cause to be made by its own members, or its authorized agent, an investigation of facts 
bearing on any application sufficient to assure that the action taken is consistent with the intent and purpose 
of this title.  

E. The planning commission shall hear and consider evidence and facts from any person at the public hearing or 
written communication from any person relative to the matter. The right of any person to present evidence 
shall not be denied for the reason that any such person was not required to be informed of such public 
hearing.  

F. Within thirty days from the conclusion of the public hearing, the planning commission shall render its 
decision unless such time limit be extended by common consent and agreement signed by both applicant 
and the commission. If, in the opinion of the commission, the necessary facts and conditions set forth in this 
section apply in fact to the property referred to, and that the same comes within the purview of the planning 
commission, it may grant the variance. If, however, such facts and conditions do not prevail nor apply, or if 
the granting of the variance will adversely affect the property of persons in the vicinity of the applicant's 
property, or for any other valid reason, the commission shall deny the application.  

G. The commission, in granting the variance, may establish conditions under which a lot or parcel of land may 
be used or a building constructed or altered; make requirements as to architecture, height of building, or 
structure, open spaces or parking. areas; require conditions of operation of any enterprise; or may make any 
other conditions, requirements or safeguards that it may consider necessary to prevent damage or prejudice 
to adjacent properties or detriment to the city. When necessary, the commission may require guarantees in 
such form as deemed proper under the circumstances to insure that the conditions designated will be 
complied with.  

H. The decision of the planning commission, either for the granting, with or without conditions, or the denial of 
an application for variance, shall become final and effective ten days following such decision.  

ATTACHMENT A 191



I. Any variance approved by the planning commission shall be conditional upon the privilege granted being 
utilized within six months after the effective date of the variance. In the event some construction work is 
involved, it must actually commence with the stated period and must be diligently prosecuted to completion, 
otherwise the variance is automatically voided. In such cases, the planning commission may extend the time 
of the construction. start if satisfactory evidence of planning progress is presented.  

J. In order to defray the expense of making maps, sending out notices, and incidental administration costs 
involved in any application for variances and appeals, the person filing such application shall pay a fee to the 
city to cover the expenses incurred by the city in processing the application. Regardless of the action taken 
on the application, the fee will not be refunded.  

(Ord. 582 (part), 1984; prior code § 15.220(C)). 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 192



ATTACHMENT B 193



ATTACHMENT B 194



ATTACHMENT B 195



Conditional Use Permit for Tower  (Eyak Tower) 

Site Plan: 
Please see attached site plan 

Project Address and Legal Description of Property: 
Legal Description: Lot 6, Plat 74-550 

Project Representatives:  
Chris Mishmash,  
Copper Valley Telephone Cooperative 
Director of Facilities & Wireless Operations 

Project Petitioner / Engineering 
Cindy Coughlin 
TempTel, LLC 
OSP Engineering 

Land Owner: 
J.E.J. Company, a general partnership 
PO Box 2272 
Cordova, AK 99574 

Narrative Description, Proposed Use and Time Frame: 

See below in blue:  

Information required per (Cordova Municipal Code 18.60.70 and 18.60.020) 

18.60.070 B 

1. A written narrative explaining why the proposed site has been chosen:

Why the telecommunication tower height is necessary; Why the requested height was 

chosen; Full explanation regarding the telecommunication tower’s ability to accommodate 

other  providers:  

Copper Valley Telephone Cooperative (CVTC) is proposing construction of a 

telecommunications facility at MP 6, Copper River Highway, Cordova Alaska 99574, per the 

attached Conditional Use Permit Application.  The parcel is in the Un-restricted zoning district 

where telecommunications towers are considered a conditional use. As part of the due diligence 

process of locating a telecommunications tower, the height is chosen to serve the cellular needs 

of the community, an in-depth determination of this work is completed leading up to a selection 

of the proposed site.  

The eighty (80 ft) steel monopole tower is a replacement of the existing eighty (80 ft) wood 

pole located on the same property.  The new tower will be constructed within a fenced leased 

area (see attached site plan) on Lot 6, Eyak Acres, Plat 74-550.  The construction of this tower 

will provide improved cellular communications to the surrounding area that will improve gaps in 

ATTACHMENT B 196



current voice and data coverage through the new panel antennas, and new 8 x 10 equipment 

shelter. The height of the tower requested is the same as the existing tower located on the 

property that will be removed once the new tower is operational.  The proposed height is 

necessary to continue communications for CVTC customers but also provide accommodations 

for other carries at various levels on the tower.   

Applications for the conditional use and required documentation are included and attached 

as an exhibit.   

 

2. Specifications for the telecommunications tower and all antennas to be located on it, 

including  description of design characteristics and material. 

See attached specifications list and design criteria (Exhibit Page) 

 

3. A site plan drawn to scale showing property boundaries,  

a. telecommunication tower location, telecommunication tower height, guy wires and 

anchors and existing structures and  

b. land uses on the site and on adjacent property. 

 See attached site plan (Exhibit Page) 

 

4. A map showing the locations of the applicant's existing telecommunication towers that 

serve customers in the city and of all telecommunication towers that the applicant proposes 

to construct to serve customers in the city.  

 

           See attached map showing locations of existing tower locations (Exhibit Page) 

 

5. A report prepared by a person registered as a structural engineer in Alaska showing the 

capacity by type and number of the telecommunication tower and antennas,  

The  structural design of tower and the antennas are designed to withstand winds in 

accordance with the latest revision of ASI/EIA/TIA/222 standards ("Structural standards 

for steel communications antenna towers and communications antenna supporting 

structures") (Exhibit Page) 

6. Identification of the person or persons who own the telecommunication tower and the 

equipment that it is to be located on:  

                             The owner of the telecommunication tower and equipment is: 

Copper Valley Telephone Cooperative   
Address:  

329 Fairbanks Street, Valdez Ak 99686. 1 (800) 235-5414 

ATTACHMENT B 197



7. Written authorization for the application from the owner of the site: 

Please see attached letter of Authorization (Exhibit Page) 

 

8. Evidence that the applicant has a valid FCC license for the use of the telecommunication 

tower 

    

   Please see attached FCC License (Exhibit Page) 

 

9. A line of sight analysis showing the potential visual and aesthetic impacts of the 

telecommunication tower on adjacent residential districts through the use of photo 

simulations of the telecommunication tower, including all antennas, structures, and 

equipment, using the vantage points and number of photo simulations requested by the 

planning department: 

Please see attached line of site analysis and photo simulations  
(Exhibit Page) 

 

10. A written agreement, on a form approved by the city attorney, to remove the 

telecommunication tower and restore the site to its original condition within one hundred 

eighty days after the telecommunication tower is substantially unused for a period of twelve 

consecutive months, and providing that if the telecommunication tower is not removed 

within this one hundred eighty-day period, the city may remove the telecommunication 

tower at the cost of the owner: 

Please see attached written letter (Exhibit Page) 

 

11. A cell phone coverage map showing the applicant's proposed cell phone coverage within the 

city 

Please see attached coverage map (Exhibit Page) 

 

12. A certificate from an engineer licensed in Alaska that the telecommunication tower, and all 

antennas and other equipment located on it, are built and installed to approved 

specifications and will contain only equipment meeting Federal Communications 

Commission requirements: 

 

   See attached letter from licensed engineer (Exhibit Page) 

 

13. Additional Items:     

ATTACHMENT B 198



18.60.070  C 

1. Location and Visual Impact 

The proposed location of the telecommunication tower will minimize the visual impact on the 

surrounding area while allowing the telecommunication tower to function in accordance with 

minimum standards imposed by the applicable telecommunications regulations and the 

applicant's technical design requirements. 

Telecommunication towers and attached antennas and equipment must be painted or coated in 

a color that blends with the surrounding environment. Muted colors, earth tones, and subdued 

hues, such as gray, shall be used. 

All associated structures such as equipment buildings, including the roofs, shall be painted with 

earth tone colors unless otherwise required under this code or other applicable law.  

Where necessary to make a telecommunication tower compatible with the historical, 

environmental or cultural character of its location, the planning and zoning commission may 

require that the telecommunication tower be disguised, hidden or screened, or integrated as an 

architectural feature of a structure, to reduce its visual impact. 

The telecommunication tower will be painted brown and attached antennas in grey hues; 

ground equipment shelter (8ft x 10ft) built with metal roof and siding.  Shelter will be surround 

by a 8ft fence (CMC 18.60.70 (C)) required for safety .  The tower location was carefully 

considered, and its location will reduce the visual impact from other properties with a natural 

environment such as trees and brush and will be painted brown.  The location is suitable to the 

property owner and the location will operate functionality in accordance with minimum 

standards imposed by the technical design requirements. 

2. Inability to Collocate  

It is not feasible to locate the applicant's telecommunication antenna and other equipment on 

any existing structure or tower under the control of the applicant. 

The existing structure located on the property is not a feasible or adequate for the new 

telecommunication antennas and the equipment room located in the owners building has no 

room for expansion. No existing structures are located nearby offer the ability to collocate on, 

and due to the terrain and contours of the ground, the technical design and height are specific 

to the requirements for coverage in the surrounding area; no structure is feasible for colocation.   

3. Location in a Residential Zoning District. 

The proposed location is not in a residential zone.   

 

  

ATTACHMENT B 199



4. Location on Public Property or Other Private Property 

There are no public locations near the proposed telecommunications facility.  The surrounding 

areas consist of privately owned parcels (Eyak Corporation, Native Village of Eyak, and various 

small private owners).  ( Exhibit Page) 

 

5. Design for Future Use 

A new telecommunication tower shall be designed to allow collocation of telecommunication 

antennas equal in number to the applicant's present and reasonably foreseeable future 

requirements. 

  The proposed telecommunications facility is designed to accommodate additional 

carriers at the same height or separated at different levels on the tower.   

6. Safety Code Met 

The telecommunication tower meets all applicable laws and code requirements, including 

without limitation health, nuisance, noise, fire, building and safety code requirements. 

   The proposed telecommunications facility is designed to meet the requirements set by 

the safety codes posed through the FCC standards in relations to telecommunication facilities to 

health, nuisance, noise, fire, building and safety code.  Additionally, the drawings for Fire 

Marshal review have been submitted (5/24/22), currently under review.  

 

7. Distance from Existing Telecommunication Towers 

A telecommunications tower shall not be approved if it is located within one‐half mile (two 

thousand six hundred forty feet) of an existing telecommunication tower, unless the applicant 

certifies that the existing telecommunication tower does not meet the applicant's structural 

specifications and technical design requirements, or that a collocation agreement could not be 

obtained. 

  The proposed telecommunications facility is not located near any other tower. (Exhibit 

Page) 

 

 

8. Zoning Requirements 

 With the exception of requirements for setback and height, which are established in this 

section, the telecommunication tower must comply with all applicable zoning laws and 

regulations, including, without limitation, all laws governing land development, visibility, 

fencing, screening, landscaping, parking, access, lot size, exterior illumination, and sign, storage. 

The proposed telecommunications facility is proposed at 80ft high with setbacks applied 

  through a variance.  The land development and visibility impact include in the following:  

ATTACHMENT B 200



Fencing: 8 ft fence 

Screening: Natural screening 

Parking: Parking in existing parking on lot for maintenance vehicles as needed. 

Access:  Access is through the east entrance of the property  

Lot size:  The proposed facility is located on Tax Lot 03-070-585, known as lot 6, Eyak 

Acres, 65,780 sq ft. 

Exterior Illuminations:  No illuminations are proposed     

9. Setbacks  

In all zoning districts, a telecommunication tower must be located no less than a distance equal to 
the tower height from all lot lines. 

The proposed telecommunications facility is proposed as an 80ft tower.  CVTC is asking 
for a variance to allow a shorter separation distance from the proposed tower site to the north 
property line, where the Copper River highway ROW and Lot 6 share a property line.   The 80ft 
tower is proposed to fit 50ft from the north property line.  (See attached exhibit X)   

10. Signs 

The proposed facility will include signage with owner contact information. No storage at 

the facility is proposed.  

11. Lighting 

No lighting may be located on a telecommunication tower except as reasonably required for safety 
purposes or as required by the Federal Communications Commission, Federal Aviation 
Administration or other government agency with jurisdiction. 

 The proposed tower height is 80ft with no light required.  No light is required for towers 
less than 200 ft in height per the FCC requirements.     

 

 

 

10. Fencing 

A fence with a minimum height of eight feet must be placed on the perimeter of the site of a 

telecommunications tower site to limit access by the public. 

 The telecommunications facility will be fenced around the perimeter of the site with a 8 

ft fence to limit access by the public.  

               

 

ATTACHMENT B 201



18.60.070   D 

 Compliance with FCC 

No decision regulating the placement, construction or modification of a telecommunication 

tower may be made on the basis of environmental or health effects of radio frequency emission  

if the antennas and other equipment on the telecommunication tower comply with Federal 

Communications Commission regulations. 

 The telecommunications facility will comply with all FCC regulations on the basis of 

environmental or health effects of radio frequency emission for the antennas and other 

equipment proposed.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 202



Exhibit Pages 

 

Table of Contents:    

18.60.70 B 2: Specifications to include tower and antenna design characteristics and materials 

18.60.070 B 3: Site plan drawing to scale  

18.60.070 B 4: Map showing location of applicants existing telecom towers 

18.60.070 B 5: Report from registered structural engineer * 

18.60.070 B 7: Written authorization from property owner  

18.60.070 B 8: Applicants FCC licensure authorizing use of tower  

18.60.070 B 9: Line of site photos and simulation photos 

18.60.070 B 10: Written agreement from CVTC  

18.60.070 B 11: Cell phone coverage map 

18.60.070 B 12: Certificate from licensed engineer for equipment installed meet FCC 

requirements  

18.60.070 C 4: Map showing property (public or private) 

18.60.070 C 7: Map showing existing telecommunication towers within in a one-half mile 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

ATTACHMENT B 203



Eyak 

18.60.070 B 2  

Specifications for the telecommunications tower and all antennas to be located on it, including  

description of design characteristics and material. 

*see next page* 

ATTACHMENT B 204



3/1/22

ATTACHMENT B 205

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGR

AutoCAD SHX Text
538507

AutoCAD SHX Text
538507-P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/01/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR71

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ITEM  ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. REQD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEATURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
  UNIT WEIGHT(LBS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (LBS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION A VALMONT S-22 0.313" THK (A572 GR65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
  5,041

AutoCAD SHX Text
  5,041

AutoCAD SHX Text
 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION B VALMONT S-22 0.250" THK (A572 GR65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1,859

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1,859

AutoCAD SHX Text
 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM CAGE PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
     95

AutoCAD SHX Text
     95

AutoCAD SHX Text
 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.75" ANCHOR BOLT, LENGTH=5.50' A615 GR75

AutoCAD SHX Text
     64

AutoCAD SHX Text
    888

AutoCAD SHX Text
 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE PLATE VALMONT S-56 2.250" THK (A572  GR50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
    927

AutoCAD SHX Text
    927

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP CAGE PLATE (REMOVE BEFORE SETTING POLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
    125

AutoCAD SHX Text
    125

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFETY CLIMBING CABLE (LENGTH = 69.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
     72

AutoCAD SHX Text
     72

AutoCAD SHX Text
  3

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDING LUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
      2

AutoCAD SHX Text
      6

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
    169

AutoCAD SHX Text
    169

AutoCAD SHX Text
 76

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEP AND CLIP (VALMONT STANDARD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
      1

AutoCAD SHX Text
     76

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND HOLE HVY (9" x 24")

AutoCAD SHX Text
     52

AutoCAD SHX Text
    104

AutoCAD SHX Text
 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND HOLE STD (6" x 12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
     11

AutoCAD SHX Text
     22

AutoCAD SHX Text
 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND HOLE STD (6" x 12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
     11

AutoCAD SHX Text
     22

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
     11

AutoCAD SHX Text
     11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ITEM ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE OD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OD

AutoCAD SHX Text
THK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
47'- 0.00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.50"

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.99"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.313"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A572 65 KSI

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'-11.00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.87"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.25"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.250"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A572 65 KSI

AutoCAD SHX Text
 30.38"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
 2.13" HOLE(14 REQD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0,0

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLE COORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(INCHES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
X-COORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y-COORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  BASE PLATE THICKNESS = 2.250"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.  BASE PLATE ALLOWABLE STRESS (KSI) = 50

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.  ANGLES ARE MEASURED CLOCKWISE FROM 0 DEGREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.  BOLT CIRCLE DIAMETER = 46.75"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.  CAGE TEMPLATE DIAMETER = 50.25"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE PLATE / ANCHORAGE CHARACTERISTICS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  FACTORED BASE REACTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
    MOMENT   =    26,761 IN-KIPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
    SHEAR    =    34,736 #

AutoCAD SHX Text
    VERTICAL =    19,621 #

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.  GALVANIZED PER ASTM A-123.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.  DESIGN CRITERIA:   TIA-222-H

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.  THIS STRUCTURE HAS BEEN DESIGNED FOR THE FOLLOWING LOADING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
    EXPOSURE CATEGORY = C

AutoCAD SHX Text
    TOPOGRAPHY CATEGORY = 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
    RISK CATEGORY = II

AutoCAD SHX Text
    SITE ELEVATION = 32 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
    EARTHQUAKE SPECTRAL RESPONSE ACCELERATION AT SHORT PERIODS SS = 1.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
    EARTHQUAKE SPECTRAL RESPONSE ACCELERATION AT ONE SECOND S1 = 0.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
    EARTHQUAKE SITE CLASS = D

AutoCAD SHX Text
    WIND LOAD CASES ARE BASED ON 3 SECOND GUST AND 700 YEAR MRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
    A. CASE 1: WIND = 158 MPH WIND SPEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
    B. CASE 2: WIND = 50 MPH ICE AND WIND SPEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
       DESIGN ICE THICKNESS = 0.50 IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
    C. CASE 3: WIND = 60 MPH WIND SPEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
    D. CASE 4: SEISMIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
    E. CASE 5: SEISMIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
    F. EQUIPMENT                      ABP    ABP

AutoCAD SHX Text
                                      MTG  CENTROID  WITHOUT ICE     WITH ICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
                                      HT.     HT.     EPA     WT     EPA    WT

AutoCAD SHX Text
             DESCRIPTION             (FT)    (FT)   (FT**2) (LBS)  (FT**2) (LBS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
    ------------------------------- ------  ------  ------- -----  ------- -----

AutoCAD SHX Text
    12-QUAD658C0000X (W/PM)          77.50   79.00   146.68  1323   161.26  2590

AutoCAD SHX Text
     1-RMQP-496-HK                   77.50   79.00    23.14  1945    28.17  2335

AutoCAD SHX Text
    12-QUAD658C0000X (W/PM)          57.50   59.00   122.23  1323   134.27  2584

AutoCAD SHX Text
     1-RMQP-496-HK                   57.50   59.00    23.14  1945    28.17  2335

AutoCAD SHX Text
     1-1/2" X 4' LIGHTNING ROD LIGH  79.00   81.00     0.20    14     0.63    17

AutoCAD SHX Text
    12-ERICSSON 4449 (15" X 13.2" X  77.50   79.00    15.19   840    16.76  1051

AutoCAD SHX Text
     2-RAYCAP RC3DC-3315-PF-48 OVP   77.50   79.00     5.96    52     6.37   120

AutoCAD SHX Text
    12-ERICSSON 4449 (15" X 13.2" X  57.50   59.00    12.66   840    13.93  1044

AutoCAD SHX Text
     2-RAYCAP RC3DC-3315-PF-48 OVP   57.50   59.00     4.97    52     5.30   118

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.  FEEDLINES ARE PLACED INTERIOR TO THE POLE SHAFT (UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.  TOTAL POLE HEIGHT IS 80 FT AGL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.  ELEVATIONS ARE MEASURED FROM TOP OF BASE PLATE (APPROX. 1 FT AGL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.  18 SIDED SHAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.  ACCEPTANCE OF ANSI/TIA-222-H IS CUSTOMER'S RESPONSIBILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
10. DESIGNED PER CUSTOMER SPECIFIED DESIGN CRITERIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
11. ALTHOUGH RARE, VIBRATIONS SEVERE ENOUGH TO CAUSE DAMAGE CAN OCCASIONALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
    OCCUR IN STRUCTURES OF ALL TYPES.  BECAUSE THEY ARE INFLUENCED BY MANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
    INTERACTING VARIABLES, VIBRATIONS ARE GENERALLY UNPREDICTABLE. THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
    USER'S MAINTENANCE PROGRAM SHOULD INCLUDE OBSERVATION FOR EXCESSIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
    VIBRATION AND EXAMINATION FOR ANY STRUCTURAL DAMAGE OR BOLT LOOSENING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
    THE VALMONT WARRANTY SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDES FATIGUE FAILURE OR SIMILAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
    PHENOMENA RESULTING FROM INDUCED VIBRATION, HARMONIC OSCILLATION OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
    RESONANCE ASSOCIATED WITH MOVEMENT OF AIR CURRENTS AROUND THE PRODUCT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'- 0.00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TOP OF BASE PLATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN LAP SPLICE = 47.00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
79'- 0.00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'- 0.00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
55'- 0.00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
75'- 0.00"

JEG1
AK



DETAIL  A

DETAIL  B

DETAIL  C

DETAIL  D

DESCRIPTION

DRAWING USAGE CHECKED BY

ENG. APPROVALDRAWN BY

DWG. NO.

CPD NO.

CEK

1
  O

F
  3

 BMC 7/14/2014

7/14/2014 RMQP-496-HK

12' 6" LOW PROFILE PLATFORM
WITH TWELVE 2-3/8" ANTENNA MOUNTING

PIPES, AND SUPPORT RAIL

4488

CUSTOMER RMQP-496-HK
CLASS SUB

PART NO.

81 02

P
A

G
E

TOLERANCES ON DIMENSIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ARE:

SAWED, SHEARED AND GAS CUT EDGES (± 0.030")
DRILLED AND GAS CUT HOLES (± 0.030")  - NO CONING OF HOLES

LASER CUT EDGES AND HOLES (± 0.010")  - NO CONING OF HOLES
BENDS ARE ± 1/2 DEGREE
ALL OTHER MACHINING (± 0.030")
ALL OTHER ASSEMBLY (± 0.060")

TOLERANCE NOTES

PROPRIETARY NOTE:
THE DATA AND TECHNIQUES CONTAINED IN THIS DRAWING ARE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION OF VALMONT
INDUSTRIES AND CONSIDERED A TRADE SECRET.  ANY USE OR DISCLOSURE WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF
VALMONT INDUSTRIES IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

Engineering 
Support Team:

 1-888-753-7446

valmont

Locations:
New York, NY
Atlanta, GA
Los Angeles, CA

Plymouth, IN
Salem, OR
Dallas, TX

A

X2
 

X2
 

X2

X2

 
X2

 
X2

X2
 

X2

 
X2

X2

 
X2
 

X2

B

PARTS LIST

NET WT.UNIT WT.LENGTHPART DESCRIPTIONPART NO.QTYITEM

412.8568.81 RING MOUNT WELDMENTX-LWRM61

1.720.03 5/8" HDG LOCKWASHERG58LW662

7.790.13 5/8'' HDG A325 HEX NUTA58NUT603

37.632.09 5/8" x 24" THREADED ROD (HDG.)G58R-24184

75.274.18 5/8" x 48" THREADED ROD (HDG.)G58R-48184

8.540.362 3/4 in5/8'' x 2-3/4" HDG A325 HEX BOLTA58234245

0.820.03 5/8" HDG A325 FLATWASHERA58FW246

29.820.83 1/2" X 3-5/8" X 6" X 3" U-BOLT (HDG.)X-UB1306367

9.000.033/32 in1/2" HDG USS FLATWASHERG12FW2648

3.500.011/8 in1/2" HDG LOCKWASHERG12LW2529

18.050.07 1/2'' HDG HEAVY 2H HEX NUTG12NUT25210

369.0830.7696 in2-3/8" X 96" SCH. 40 GALVANIZED PIPEP2961211

52.510.63 1/2" X 2-1/2" X 4-1/2" X 2" U-BOLT (HDG.)X-UB12128412

284.4094.80150 in3-1/2" X 150" (3" SCH 40) GALVANIZED PIPEP3150313

636.31212.10 LOW PROFILE PLATFORM CORNERX-SV196314

137.3145.77150 in2-3/8" O.D. X 150" SCH 40 GALVANIZED PIPEP2150315

57.564.807 inCROSSOVER PLATESCX21216

90.326.028 1/2 inCROSSOVER PLATESCX41517

0.780.13 5/8'' HDG HEAVY 2H HEX NUTG58NUT618

85.9914.3352 25/32 inPLATFORM REINFORCEMENT KIT ANGLEX-253993619

81.6013.60 T-BRACKET  WELDMENTX-TBW620

1.620.27 5/8" x 2" HDG HEX BOLT GR5 G5802621

4.910.415 1/2 in1/2'' x 6-1/2" HDG HEX BOLT GR5 FULL THREADG120651222

38.7612.92 ANGLE HANDRAIL CORNER PLATEX-AHCP323

X2
 

X2

C

X2
 

X2

 
X2

X2D

11

15

14

13

1

16

12

8

9

10

12

8

9

10

17

7

8

9

10

12

8

9

10

11

4

2

3

5

6

2

3

23

12

8

9

10

17

22

8

9

10

1

14

21

2

18

20

21

2

18

5

6

2

3

TOTAL WT. # 2445.81

B RELOCATED MOUNT PIPE POSITIONS 4488 JET 5/23/2021

A CHANGED X-253992 TO X-TBW 4488 CEK 9/20/2018

REVISION HISTORY

REV DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONS CPD BY DATE

ATTACHMENT B 206



DETAIL  E

DESCRIPTION

DRAWING USAGE CHECKED BY

ENG. APPROVALDRAWN BY

DWG. NO.

CPD NO.

CEK

2
  O

F
  3

 BMC 7/14/2014

7/14/2014 RMQP-496-HK

12' 6" LOW PROFILE PLATFORM
WITH TWELVE 2-3/8" ANTENNA MOUNTING

PIPES, AND SUPPORT RAIL

4488

CUSTOMER RMQP-496-HK
CLASS SUB

PART NO.

81 02

P
A

G
E

TOLERANCES ON DIMENSIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ARE:

SAWED, SHEARED AND GAS CUT EDGES (± 0.030")
DRILLED AND GAS CUT HOLES (± 0.030")  - NO CONING OF HOLES

LASER CUT EDGES AND HOLES (± 0.010")  - NO CONING OF HOLES
BENDS ARE ± 1/2 DEGREE
ALL OTHER MACHINING (± 0.030")
ALL OTHER ASSEMBLY (± 0.060")

TOLERANCE NOTES

PROPRIETARY NOTE:
THE DATA AND TECHNIQUES CONTAINED IN THIS DRAWING ARE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION OF VALMONT
INDUSTRIES AND CONSIDERED A TRADE SECRET.  ANY USE OR DISCLOSURE WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF
VALMONT INDUSTRIES IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

Engineering 
Support Team:

 1-888-753-7446

valmont

Locations:
New York, NY
Atlanta, GA
Los Angeles, CA

Plymouth, IN
Salem, OR
Dallas, TX

E

X2

42"

Y

Y

Y/2

Y/2

12'-6"

TRIM OR OFFEST AS REQUIRED.

MAX. 12"

30"
APPROX.

17

22

8

9

10

12" TO 38"
POLE DIAMETER

B RELOCATED MOUNT PIPE POSITIONS 4488 JET 5/23/2021

A CHANGED X-253992 TO X-TBW 4488 CEK 9/20/2018

REVISION HISTORY

REV DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONS CPD BY DATE

48"

48"

ATTACHMENT B 207



DESCRIPTION

DRAWING USAGE CHECKED BY

ENG. APPROVALDRAWN BY

DWG. NO.

CPD NO.

CEK

3
  O

F
  3

 BMC 7/14/2014

7/14/2014 RMQP-496-HK

12' 6" LOW PROFILE PLATFORM
WITH TWELVE 2-3/8" ANTENNA MOUNTING

PIPES, AND SUPPORT RAIL

4488

CUSTOMER RMQP-496-HK
CLASS SUB

PART NO.

81 02

P
A

G
E

TOLERANCES ON DIMENSIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ARE:

SAWED, SHEARED AND GAS CUT EDGES (± 0.030")
DRILLED AND GAS CUT HOLES (± 0.030")  - NO CONING OF HOLES

LASER CUT EDGES AND HOLES (± 0.010")  - NO CONING OF HOLES
BENDS ARE ± 1/2 DEGREE
ALL OTHER MACHINING (± 0.030")
ALL OTHER ASSEMBLY (± 0.060")

TOLERANCE NOTES

PROPRIETARY NOTE:
THE DATA AND TECHNIQUES CONTAINED IN THIS DRAWING ARE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION OF VALMONT
INDUSTRIES AND CONSIDERED A TRADE SECRET.  ANY USE OR DISCLOSURE WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF
VALMONT INDUSTRIES IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

Engineering 
Support Team:

 1-888-753-7446

valmont

Locations:
New York, NY
Atlanta, GA
Los Angeles, CA

Plymouth, IN
Salem, OR
Dallas, TX

F

X2

DETAIL F

20

19

22

8

9

10

21

2

18

B RELOCATED MOUNT PIPE POSITIONS 4488 JET 5/23/2021

A CHANGED X-253992 TO X-TBW 4488 CEK 9/20/2018

REVISION HISTORY

REV DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONS CPD BY DATE

ATTACHMENT B 208



696-900 / 696-900 MHz

QUAD658C0000x
Twin Band  |  Quad Port  |  Panel Antenna  |   (2x) X-Pol  |  65° / 65°  |  16.0 / 16.0 dBi  |  Variable Tilt

Quoted performance parameters are provided to offer typical, peak or range values only and may vary as a result of normal testing, manufacturing and operational conditions.  Extreme 
operational conditions and/or stress on structural supports is beyond our control.  Such conditions may result in damage to this product.  Improvements to products may be made without notice.

REV030519NA www.amphenol-antennas.com 1 of 4

Ordering Options Model Number

When ordering, replace “x” in the model number with one of the options listed below.

Manual Electrical Tilt QUAD658C0000M

Remote Electrical Tilt AISG v2.0 / 3GPP with an MDCU RET Actuator QUAD658C0000G

Remote Electrical Tilt AISG v2.0 / 3GPP with an MDDU RET Actuator QUAD658C0000L

Mounting bracket kits and other accessories are ordered separately.  

Electrical Characteristics (2x) 696-900 MHz

Frequency Bands 696-806 MHz 806-900 MHz

Polarization (2x) ±45° (Quad-Pol)

Horizontal Beamwidth 65° 63°

Vertical Beamwidth 9.2° 7.9°

Gain 15.5 dBi 16.0 dBi

Electrical Downtilt 0-10°

Impedance 50Ω

VSWR ≤ 1.5:1

Upper Sidelobe Suppression 18 dB 18 dB

Front-to-Back Ratio > 25 dB > 25 dB

Inband Isolation 25 dB

Isolation Between Bands 28 dB

IM3 (2x20W carrier) < -153 dBc

Input Power (4x) 500 W

Total Number of Connectors Antennas has 4 connectors located at the bottom

Connectors Per Band
696-900 MHz (2x) 7/16-DIN Female

696-900 MHz (2x) 7/16-DIN Female

Diplexed No

Lightning Protection Direct Ground

Operating Temperature -40° to +60° C (-40° to +140° F)

Mechanical Characteristics

Dimensions (Length x Width x Depth) 2410 x 525 x 183 mm 94.9 x 20.7 x 7.2 in

Depth with Z-Brackets 227 mm 8.9 in

Weight without Mounting Brackets: MET 36.3 kg 80 lbs

Weight without Mounting Brackets: RET 36.7 kg 81 lbs

Survival Wind Speed > 241 km/hr > 150 mph

Wind Area
Front 1.25 m2 13.5 ft2

Side 0.44 m2 4.7 ft2

Wind Loads 
(160 km/hr or 100 mph)

Front 1530 N 344 lbf

Side 536 N 120 lbf

•  Twin band, quad-port panel antenna with variable electrical tilt

•  4x4 MIMO

•  Patented internal RET actuator adds no additional length to the antenna

ATTACHMENT B 209



Electrical Downtilt Control

Electrical downtilt for each band can be controlled separately.  Tilt indicator(s) are covered by removable transparent cap(s).  

Manual Electrical Tilt (MET) Control A colored knob at the end of the tilt indicator allows change of the tilt without need of a tool.  The knob color is 
identical to the corresponding connector ring color.  To access the knob, remove the cap by turning it counter-
clockwise.  It is re-installed by opposite rotation.  Do not remove the transparent cap(s) from the antenna.  

Remote Electrical Tilt (RET) Control The remote control of the electrical tilt is managed by either a Multi-Device Control Unit (MDCU) or a Multi-Device 
Dual Unit (MDDU) inserted in the bottom of the antenna. A single actuator individually controls the tilt of each band (no 
need for daisy chain cables between the bands). This module does not add any additional length to the antenna. For 
RET control, the transparent caps must be in place and locked. The tilt angle indicators always remain visible and the 
antenna still has manual tilt control (manual override).

RET Actuator Select one of the following RET actuators when ordering this antenna.  

Multi-Device Control Unit (MCDU)
The MDCU is an electronic module that allows the remote control of the 
electrical downtilt (RET) in Amphenol antennas with factory embedded 
motors.  The MDCU is factory installed.  Refer to ordering options.

Multi-Device Dual Unit (MDDU)

The MDDU allows two separate RET Controllers to independently 
drive the RETs in Amphenol antennas with factory installed motors (for 
antenna sharing). The MDDU is factory installed.  Refer to ordering 
options.

Important Installation Instructions In order to operate RET control, the transparent caps covering the tilt adjustment indicators must be engaged and 
locked.  Do not cut them from the antenna.

Do not install the antenna with the connectors facing upward.

Mounting Options Part Number Image Fits Pipe Diameter Weight

All mounting bracket kits are ordered separately unless otherwise indicated.  Select from the options listed below.

3-Point Mounting and Downtilt Bracket Kit 36210008 40-115 mm   1.6-4.5 in 6.9 kg     15.2 lbs

696-900 / 696-900 MHz

Quoted performance parameters are provided to offer typical, peak or range values only and may vary as a result of normal testing, manufacturing and operational conditions.  Extreme 
operational conditions and/or stress on structural supports is beyond our control.  Such conditions may result in damage to this product.  Improvements to products may be made without notice.

REV030519NA www.amphenol-antennas.com 2 of 4

s

QUAD658C0000x
Twin Band  |  Quad Port  |  Panel Antenna  |   (2x) X-Pol  |  65° / 65°  |  16.0 / 16.0 dBi  |  Variable Tilt

ATTACHMENT B 210



Bottom View of Antenna Dimensions

696-900 / 696-900 MHz

Quoted performance parameters are provided to offer typical, peak or range values only and may vary as a result of normal testing, manufacturing and operational conditions.  Extreme 
operational conditions and/or stress on structural supports is beyond our control.  Such conditions may result in damage to this product.  Improvements to products may be made without notice.

REV030519NA www.amphenol-antennas.com 3 of 4

4018
2.

50

525

18
0

10
6

88
5

10
15

.8
0

24
10

14

In order to operate RET control, the transparent caps covering 
the tilt adjustment indicators must be engaged and locked.  Do 
not cut them from the antenna.

Location of the MDCU or MDDU
for RET Control (MDCU shown)

Tilt indicators covered by transparent caps.
Manual adjustment is accessed by removing the caps.
Knob colors are the same as the connectors.

QUAD658C0000x
Twin Band  |  Quad Port  |  Panel Antenna  |   (2x) X-Pol  |  65° / 65°  |  16.0 / 16.0 dBi  |  Variable Tilt

ATTACHMENT B 211



696-900 MHz

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180 0

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

Horizontal  |  750 MHz 0°  |  Vertical  |  750 MHz 2°  |  Vertical  |  750 MHz 4°  |  Vertical  |  750 MHz 6°  |  Vertical  |  750 MHz

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

Horizontal  |  850 MHz 0°  |  Vertical  |  850 MHz 2°  |  Vertical  |  850 MHz 4°  |  Vertical  |  850 MHz 6°  |  Vertical  |  850 MHz

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

8°  |  Vertical  |  750 MHz 10°  |  Vertical  |  750 MHz

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

30 25 20 15 51035

-90

-60-120

-150 -30

180

150

120

90

60

30

8°  |  Vertical  |  850 MHz 10°  |  Vertical  |  850 MHz

696-900 / 696-900 MHz

Quoted performance parameters are provided to offer typical, peak or range values only and may vary as a result of normal testing, manufacturing and operational conditions.  Extreme 
operational conditions and/or stress on structural supports is beyond our control.  Such conditions may result in damage to this product.  Improvements to products may be made without notice.

REV030519NA www.amphenol-antennas.com 4 of 4

QUAD658C0000x
Twin Band  |  Quad Port  |  Panel Antenna  |   (2x) X-Pol  |  65° / 65°  |  16.0 / 16.0 dBi  |  Variable Tilt

ATTACHMENT B 212



18.60.070 B 3: Site plan drawing to scale and Land Use:  Current land is zoned as  

Un-restricted.  The Land Use for un-restricted zone is intended to allow any legal use with 

compliance under the Conditional Use for telecommunications tower.  

  

*see next page* 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 213



CONTACT INFORMATION

Palmer

Anchorage

Juneau

Kodiak

Kenai

Bethel

Utqiagvik

Nome

Ward Cove

DRAWING INDEX
SHEET # TITLE REV #

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER
DALE R. BROWNING, PE, SE
PHONE - (907) 761-6069

Fairbanks

T1.0

COPPER VALLEY TELECOM
EYAK LAKE

(907) 278-3121

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROJECT LOCATION: CORDOVA, AK
NHTI PROJECT NUMBER: 22-0076-20-01

NEW HORIZONS TELECOM, INC.

PHONE - (907) 761-6000

901 COPE INDUSTRIAL WAY
PALMER, ALASKA 99645

LICENSE # AECC610

2204180 ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

COVER
SHEET

DATEDESCRIPTIONREV

FI
L

E
: X

:\2
2 

JO
B

S\
22

-0
07

6-
20

 C
V

T
 -

 E
R

N
E

ST
IN

E
, E

Y
A

K
 L

A
K

E
, W

H
IT

SH
E

D
, M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 &
M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 P
A

SS
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S\
05

-E
N

G
R

\C
A

D
\0

1 
- 

E
Y

A
K

 L
A

K
E

\T
1.

0 
C

O
V

E
R

 S
H

E
E

T
.D

W
G

 | 
PL

O
T

 D
A

T
E

: 2
20

52
3

IFC

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER

Valdez

Glennallen

NOLAN J. WILLIS, PE
PHONE - (907) 761-6068

Cordova

PROJECT AREA

T1.0 COVER SHEET 1

C1.0 SITE PLAN 1

C2.0 MONOPOLE ELEVATION 0

S1.0 NOTES AND ICE BRIDGE DETAILS 1

S2.0 TOWER FOUNDATION AND DETAILS 0

E1.0 GROUNDING PLAN 1

E1.1 GROUNDING NOTES AND DETAILS 0

E1.2 GROUNDING SECTION AND DETAILS 0

2205231 NEW MONOPOLE LOCATION

ATTACHMENT B 214



JAA DRB

SITE
PLAN

C1.0

DRBDWN: 

JOB #:

DATEDESCRIPTIONREV

DSN:  APP:  

DATE:

CVT
EYAK LAKE

SITE

REV

FI
L

E
: X

:\2
2 

JO
B

S\
22

-0
07

6-
20

 C
V

T
 -

 E
R

N
E

ST
IN

E
, E

Y
A

K
 L

A
K

E
, W

H
IT

SH
E

D
, M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 &
M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 P
A

SS
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S\
05

-E
N

G
R

\C
A

D
\0

1 
- 

E
Y

A
K

 L
A

K
E

\C
1.

0 
SI

T
E

 P
L

A
N

.D
W

G
 | 

PL
O

T
 D

A
T

E
: 2

20
52

3

Dale R. Browning
CE 10029

REGISTERED PROFESSIONA L ENGINEER

22-0076-20-01

2204180 ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

220418

IFC

0

5/23/2022

2205231 NEW MONOPOLE LOCATION

1

ATTACHMENT B 215



JAA DRB

MONOPOLE
ELEVATION

C2.0

DRBDWN: 

JOB #:

DATEDESCRIPTIONREV

DSN:  APP:  

DATE:

CVT
EYAK LAKE

SITE

REV

FI
L

E
: X

:\2
2 

JO
B

S\
22

-0
07

6-
20

 C
V

T
 -

 E
R

N
E

ST
IN

E
, E

Y
A

K
 L

A
K

E
, W

H
IT

SH
E

D
, M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 &
M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 P
A

SS
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S\
05

-E
N

G
R

\C
A

D
\0

1 
- 

E
Y

A
K

 L
A

K
E

\C
2.

0 
M

O
N

O
PO

L
E

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

.D
W

G
 | 

PL
O

T
 D

A
T

E
: 2

20
52

3

Dale R. Browning
CE 10029

REGISTERED PROFESSIONA L ENGINEER

22-0076-20-01

2204180 ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

220418

IFC

0

5/23/2022

220523

ATTACHMENT B 216



JAA DRB

NOTES AND
ICE BRIDGE

DETAILS

S1.0

DRBDWN: 

JOB #:

DATEDESCRIPTIONREV

DSN:  APP:  

DATE:

CVT
EYAK LAKE

SITE

REV

FI
L

E
: X

:\2
2 

JO
B

S\
22

-0
07

6-
20

 C
V

T
 -

 E
R

N
E

ST
IN

E
, E

Y
A

K
 L

A
K

E
, W

H
IT

SH
E

D
, M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 &
M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 P
A

SS
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S\
05

-E
N

G
R

\C
A

D
\0

1 
- 

E
Y

A
K

 L
A

K
E

\S
1.

0 
N

O
T

E
S 

A
N

D
 I

C
E

 B
R

ID
G

E
 D

E
T

A
IL

S.
D

W
G

 | 
PL

O
T

 D
A

T
E

: 2
20

52
3

22-0076-20-01

2204180 ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

220418

IFC

0

Dale R. Browning
SE 14186

REGISTERED PROFESSIONA L ENGINEER

5/23/2022

2205231 ADDED CERTIFICATION NOTE

1

ATTACHMENT B 217



TOWER
FOUNDATION AND

DETAILS

JAA

S2.0

DRB DRBDWN: 

JOB #:

DATEDESCRIPTIONREV

DSN:  APP:  

DATE:

CVT
EYAK LAKE

SITE

REV

FI
L

E
: X

:\2
2 

JO
B

S\
22

-0
07

6-
20

 C
V

T
 -

 E
R

N
E

ST
IN

E
, E

Y
A

K
 L

A
K

E
, W

H
IT

SH
E

D
, M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 &
M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 P
A

SS
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S\
05

-E
N

G
R

\C
A

D
\0

1 
- 

E
Y

A
K

 L
A

K
E

\S
2.

0 
T

O
W

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 D
E

T
A

IL
S.

D
W

G
 | 

PL
O

T
 D

A
T

E
: 

22-0076-20-01

2204180 ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

220418

IFC

0

Dale R. Browning
SE 14186

REGISTERED PROFESSIONA L ENGINEER

4/18/2022

ATTACHMENT B 218



JAA NJW

GROUNDING
PLAN

E1.0

NJWDWN: 

JOB #:

DATEDESCRIPTIONREV

DSN:  APP:  

DATE:

CVT
EYAK LAKE

SITE

REV

FI
L

E
: X

:\2
2 

JO
B

S\
22

-0
07

6-
20

 C
V

T
 -

 E
R

N
E

ST
IN

E
, E

Y
A

K
 L

A
K

E
, W

H
IT

SH
E

D
, M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 &
M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 P
A

SS
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S\
05

-E
N

G
R

\C
A

D
\0

1 
- 

E
Y

A
K

 L
A

K
E

\E
1.

0 
G

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 P

L
A

N
.D

W
G

 | 
PL

O
T

 D
A

T
E

: 2
20

52
3

22-0076-20-01

2204180 ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

220418

IFC

0

Nolan J. Willis
EE 102501

REGISTERED PROFESSIONA L ENGINEER

5/23/2022

2205231 NEW MONOPOLE LOCATION

1

ATTACHMENT B 219



JAA PTG

GROUNDING
NOTES AND

DETAILS

E1.1

PTGDWN: 

JOB #:

DATEDESCRIPTIONREV

DSN:  APP:  

DATE:

CVT
EYAK LAKE

SITE

REV

FI
L

E
: X

:\2
2 

JO
B

S\
22

-0
07

6-
20

 C
V

T
 -

 E
R

N
E

ST
IN

E
, E

Y
A

K
 L

A
K

E
, W

H
IT

SH
E

D
, M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 &
M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 P
A

SS
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S\
05

-E
N

G
R

\C
A

D
\0

1 
- 

E
Y

A
K

 L
A

K
E

\E
1.

1 
G

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 N

O
T

E
S 

A
N

D
 D

E
T

A
IL

S.
D

W
G

 | 
PL

O
T

 D
A

T
E

: 

22-0076-20-01

2204180 ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

220418

IFC

0

Nolan J. Willis
EE 102501

REGISTERED PROFESSIONA L ENGINEER

4/18/2022

ATTACHMENT B 220



JAA NJWNJW

GROUNDING
SECTION AND

DETAILS

E1.2

DWN: 

JOB #:

DATEDESCRIPTIONREV

DSN:  APP:  

DATE:

CVT
EYAK LAKE

SITE

REV

FI
L

E
: X

:\2
2 

JO
B

S\
22

-0
07

6-
20

 C
V

T
 -

 E
R

N
E

ST
IN

E
, E

Y
A

K
 L

A
K

E
, W

H
IT

SH
E

D
, M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 &
M

E
N

T
A

ST
A

 P
A

SS
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S\
05

-E
N

G
R

\C
A

D
\0

1 
- 

E
Y

A
K

 L
A

K
E

\E
1.

2 
G

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 D
E

T
A

IL
S.

D
W

G
 | 

PL
O

T
 D

A
T

E
: 2

20
41

8

22-0076-20-01

2204180 ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

220418

IFC

0

Nolan J. Willis
EE 102501

REGISTERED PROFESSIONA L ENGINEER

4/18/2022

ATTACHMENT B 221



 

18.60.070 B 4: Map showing location of applicants existing telecom towers 

 

A map showing the locations of the applicant's existing telecommunication towers that serve 

customers in the city and of all telecommunication towers that the applicant proposes to 

construct to serve customers in the city; 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 222



18.60.070 B 5: Report from registered structural engineer                            *see next page* 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 223



 

 

May 23, 2022 

 

City of Cordova  

 

 

Copper Valley Telephone is installing a 80 ft tall monopole at their communications site 

known as Eyak Lake.  Valmont Structures designed the monopole; see 538507-P1 Pole Formal 

Calcs Stamped 3/1/22 and 538507-P1 Pole Drawing Stamped 3/1/22.  New Horizons designed 

the pile foundation for the monopole; see CVT 80 Monopole Eyak Lake, P.E. stamped May 23, 

2022 and 220523 CVT Eyak Lake Const Dwgs IFC Rev 1, P.E. stamped and dated 5/23/2022.  

Foundation design per Shannon & Wilson Geotechnical Engineering Report ‘Eyak Lake’ 

Communications Tower Cordova, Alaska, P.E. stamped and dated 1-4-22. 

The design documents show the tower and foundation have capacity to support the 

required type and number of antennas, antenna supports, and appurtenances.  The design 

wind loads are developed in accordance with ANSI/TIA-222-H. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dale Browning, P.E., S.E. 

Sr. Engineer 5/23/2022 

(907) 232-2573 

 

ATTACHMENT B 224



JOB # 22-0076-20-01
DESC. 80' Monopole

CVT Eyak Lake
Pile Foundation
Cordova, Alaska

DATE: 220414          
REV.: 0   

Page 1 of 5

CVT

EYAK LAKE SITE

PILE FOUNDATION DESIGN

FOR 80 FOOT MONOPOLE

Mile 6 Copper River Highway

Cordova, Alaska

5/23/2022

ATTACHMENT B 225



JOB # 22-0076-20-01
DESC. 80' Monopole

CVT Eyak Lake
Pile Foundation
Cordova, Alaska

DATE: 220414          
REV.: 0   

Page 2 of 5

SUBJECT :
Driven pile foundation design for 80 ft monopole.

REFERENCES:
A. "Pile Design and Construction Practice", third edition, M. J. Tomlinson
B. TIA/EIA-222-H, "Structural Standards for Antenna Supporting Structures, Antennas and 
Small Wind Turbines Support Structures"
C. AISC 360-10, "Specification for Structural Steel Buildings"

DESIGN CRITERIA:

Geotechnical Engineering Report, Eyak Lake Communications Tower - Cordova, Alaska, 
dated 1-4-22, by Shannon & Wilson, Inc.

Reactions from Valmont, 80' Pole, Valdez, AK (# 538507-P1) dated 03/01/2022:
TIA-222-H, 158 mph wind, exposure C, topography 1, risk category II

≔Mf ⋅⋅27000 in kip =Mf 2250 ⋅ft kip Factored Moment at Monopole Base

≔Hf ⋅35000 lbf Factored Horizontal Shear at Base

≔Vf ⋅19650 lbf Vertical Load at Base

≔dmonopole ⋅40.5 in Diameter of Monopole at base

≔tbp ⋅2.25 in Thickness of Monopole Base Plate

≔dBC ⋅46.75 in Diameter of Anchor Bolt Circle

≔dBP ⋅51.92 in Diameter of Base Plate

≔AB ⋅1.75 in Diameter of Anchor Bolts

≔NAB 14 Number of Anchor Bolts

ANALYSIS: 

≔ld ―
Mf

Hf
=ld 64.3 ft Locate distance to resultant horizontal 

force that is equivalent to base moment

Try 42" � pile with 1.0" wall thickness, buried 60 feet min, API5L X70, Fy = 70.3 ksi, Fu = 83.7 ksi

≔E ⋅29000 ksi

≔Fy ⋅70.3 ksi Yield strength of pile steel

≔OD ⋅42 in Outside Diameter of Pile

ATTACHMENT B 226



JOB # 22-0076-20-01
DESC. 80' Monopole

CVT Eyak Lake
Pile Foundation
Cordova, Alaska

DATE: 220414          
REV.: 0   

Page 3 of 5

≔t ⋅1.0 in Wall thickness of Pile

≔ID =-OD ⋅2 t 40.00 in Inside diameter of pile

≔depth ⋅60 ft Bury depth of Pile, geotech report

≔drag ⋅30 ton Down drag force during seismic 
event

≔DR ⋅75 ton Unfactored resistance (seismic), 
geotech report

≔FSdrag =――
DR

drag
2.5 >  1.25    OK Factor of Safety

Depth of Maximum Moment, base 
1 ft AGL (Geotech)≔lf ⋅10 ft

≔Mp ⋅⎛⎝ +lf ld⎞⎠ Hf =Mp 2600 ⋅ft kip Maximum Moment in Pile

Verified Mp is smaller than Moment used in Geotech report for conservative design

Design Members for Flexure AISC Sec F8

≔DtRatio =――
OD

t
42 ≔λRatio =―――

⋅0.45 E

Fy
186 Round section in bending 

(Ref. C, F8)

=if ⎛⎝ ,,<DtRatio λRatio “F8 Applies” “F8 does not apply”⎞⎠ “F8 Applies”

Compact/Noncompact & 
Noncompact/Slender Ref. 
C,Table B4.1b

≔λp =―――
⋅0.07 E

Fy
29 ≔λr =―――

⋅0.31 E

Fy
128

Check if Yielding or Local Buckling Controls

≔Chk1 =if ⎛⎝ ,,<DtRatio λp “Compact F8-1” if ⎛⎝ ,,<DtRatio λr “Noncompact F8-2” “Slender F8-3”⎞⎠⎞⎠ “Noncompact F8-2”

≔ro =――
OD

2
21.0 in ≔ri =-ro t 20.00 in Outside and inside radius of pile

≔S ―――――
⋅π ⎛⎝ -OD

4
ID

4 ⎞⎠

⋅32 OD
=S 1290 in

3 Section modulus of pile 

Flexural strength factor 
(Ref. C, F1.(1))≔ϕb 0.9

≔ϕMnLocalBuckling =⋅⋅ϕb
⎛
⎜
⎜
⎜⎝

+―――
⋅0.021 E

⎛
⎜
⎝
――
OD

t

⎞
⎟
⎠

Fy
⎞
⎟
⎟
⎟⎠

S 8202 ⋅ft kip Nominal flexural strength of pile 
(Ref. C, F8-1) if noncompact and 
not slender

≔ϕMn =ϕMnLocalBuckling 8202 ⋅ft kip

Ref A, eq. 6.16
=if ⎛⎝ ,,≤Mp ϕMn “OK” “No Good”⎞⎠ “OK”

ATTACHMENT B 227



JOB # 22-0076-20-01
DESC. 80' Monopole

CVT Eyak Lake
Pile Foundation
Cordova, Alaska

DATE: 220414          
REV.: 0   

Page 4 of 5

Bevel weld under base plate

≔tw =-t ⋅―
1

8
in 0.88 in Size of bevel weld (Ref. C, Table 

J2.1)

≔ODw =OD 42 in Outside diameter of weld

≔IDw =-ODw ⋅2 tw 40.3 in Inside diameter of weld

≔Aw ⋅―
π

4
⎛⎝ -ODw

2
IDw

2 ⎞⎠ =Aw 113 in
2

Effective area of bevel weld

≔Tlf ―
Vf

Aw
=Tlf 174 psi Stress in weld from vertical load

≔Hlf ―
Hf

Aw
=Hlf 310 psi Stress in weld from horizontal load

≔Sw ⋅―――
π

⋅32 ODw

⎛⎝ -ODw
4
IDw

4 ⎞⎠ =Sw 1139 in
3 Elastic Section modulus of weld

≔fmSw ―
Mf

Sw
=fmSw 23.7 ksi Bending stress in weld

≔ϕWMten 0.80 LRFD Design Factors, Weld Metal 
(Ref. C, Table J2.5)

≔FEXX 70 ksi ≔ϕFnWM =⋅ϕWMten 0.60 FEXX 34 ksi LRFD Nominal Stress 
(Ref. C, Table J2.5)

ATTACHMENT B 228



JOB # 22-0076-20-01
DESC. 80' Monopole

CVT Eyak Lake
Pile Foundation
Cordova, Alaska

DATE: 220414          
REV.: 0   

Page 5 of 5

ATTACHMENT B 229



18.60.070 B 7: Written authorization from property owner                       *see next page 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 230



ATTACHMENT B 231



18.60.070 B 8: Applicants FCC licensure authorizing use of tower                 *see next page 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 232



R
eference C

opyConditions:
Pursuant to §309(h) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. §309(h), this license is subject to the 
following conditions:  This license shall not vest in the licensee any right to operate the station nor any right in the use of the 
frequencies designated in the license beyond the term thereof nor in any other manner than authorized herein.  Neither the 
license nor the right granted thereunder shall be assigned or otherwise transferred in violation of the Communications Act of 
1934, as amended.  See 47 U.S.C. § 310(d).  This license is subject in terms to the right of use or control conferred by §706 of 
the Communications Act of 1934, as amended.  See 47 U.S.C. §606.

Page 1 of 10

LICENSEE: 

ATTN: CHRIS MISHMASH
COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC
329 FAIRBANKS STREET
PO BOX 3329
VALDEZ, AK 99686-3329

COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

FCC Registration Number (FRN): 0022505283

Site Information:

  Call Sign File Number

Radio Service

Market Numer

KNKQ401    0008747299    

CL - Cellular

CMA316

Sub-Market Designator
0

Channel Block
B   

Market Name
Alaska 2 - Bethel

Grant Date
09-24-2019

Effective Date
09-24-2019

Expiration Date
10-01-2029

Print Date
09-24-2019

Five Yr Build-Out Date

Wireless Telecommunications Bureau

RADIO STATION AUTHORIZATION 

Federal Communications Commission

1

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-06-29.3 N 146-10-32.9 W 914.1 52.7
Address: TOLSONA RIDGE SITE, APPROX. 20 MI. W. OF GLENNALLEN ON NORTHSIDE OF 
HIGHWAY 1
City: GLENNALLEN     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

266.700

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

306.900 326.400 340.500 331.900 310.900 110.600 108.800
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

110.000 110.000 110.000 110.000 110.000 110.000 110.000 110.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

REFERENCE COPY
This is not an official FCC license. It is a record of public information contained in the FCC's licensing database on the date that this reference 
copy was generated. In cases where FCC rules require the presentation, posting, or display of an FCC license, this document may not be used in 
place of an official FCC license.

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 233



R
eference C

opy

Page 2 of 10

2

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-46-20.3 N 145-12-07.6 W 990.6 36.6
Address: WILLOW MTN. SITE, APPROXIMATELY 3 MILES SOUTH OF WILLOW CREEK
City: WILLOW CREEK     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

629.700

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

628.800 645.900 520.300 395.000 140.500 193.500 456.900
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

124.000 124.000 124.000 124.000 124.000 124.000 124.000 124.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

3

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

60-38-42.8 N 147-20-55.1 W 22.9
Address: 28 miles W by SW of Ellamar
City: NAKED ISLAND     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

396.200

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

395.900 396.200 396.200 393.500 396.200 381.900 378.500
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

54.000 54.000 54.000 54.000 54.000 54.000 54.000 54.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  54.000
Azimuth(from true north)

4

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-58-03.5 N 145-28-14.0 W 96.0
Address: PAXSON CELL ISTE 59.6 MILES N OF GLENALLEN
City: PAXSON     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

254.500

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

237.500 235.600 352.700 309.100 366.100 246.600 24.100
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

218.800 218.800 218.800 218.800 218.800 218.800 218.800 218.800

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  218.800
Azimuth(from true north)

5

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

60-31-28.1 N 145-41-43.2 W 24.4
Address: HENEY RIDGE CELL SITE HENEY MOUNTAIN, TWO MILE SE OF
City: CORDOVA     County:      State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

571.500

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

262.200 733.400 769.700 769.000 446.600 712.700 739.500
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

31.400 31.400 31.400 31.400 31.400 31.400 31.400 31.400

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  31.400
Azimuth(from true north)

Licensee Name:  COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Call Sign: KNKQ401   File Number:  0008747299    Print Date: 09-24-2019

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 234



R
eference C

opy

Page 3 of 10

6

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-43-15.6 N 144-02-24.9 W 806.2
Address: 38.6  KILOMETERS EAST BY NORTHEAST OF CHISTOCHINA, AK
City: SLANA     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-432.500

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-265.400 136.900 166.500 167.700 176.500 -147.500 -278.800
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

143.200 143.200 143.200 143.200 143.200 143.200 143.200 143.200

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  143.200
Azimuth(from true north)

8

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-11-01.3 N 146-31-13.9 W 919.0 40.2
Address: MILE TWELVE ON LAKE LOUISE ROAD
City: LAKE LOUISE     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

176.500

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

181.700 118.600 52.700 124.100 218.000 217.000 199.400
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

121.600 121.600 121.600 121.600 121.600 121.600 121.600 121.600

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

9

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-25-57.1 N 142-54-58.2 W 441.9 22.3
Address: McCarthy Cell Site; at the corner of Regal Street and Chitty Avenue
City: McCarthy     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-294.700

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-888.800 -636.400 -86.900 -29.300 39.100 -483.100 -624.800
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

135.000 135.000 135.000 135.000 135.000 135.000 135.000 135.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

10

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-07-33.1 N 146-18-23.3 W 10.4 42.7
Address: Valdez Cell Site; Valdez Grain Terminal, N. Elevation - 64 - Utility Plan - CE
City: Old Valdez     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-743.400

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-694.900 -600.800 -243.800 -539.200 -301.100 -11.000 -871.400
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

Licensee Name:  COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Call Sign: KNKQ401   File Number:  0008747299    Print Date: 09-24-2019

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 235



R
eference C

opy

Page 4 of 10

12

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-06-30.0 N 145-29-21.0 W 460.0 50.0 1004217   
Address: GLENNALLEN CELL SITE; MILE 188.5 GLENN HWY
City: GLENNALLEN     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-7.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

15.000 -11.000 81.000 44.000 12.000 -9.000 -13.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000 106.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

13

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

60-46-35.9 N 148-42-11.7 W 9.1 19.2
Address: Whittier Cell Site; Billings Street Lot 10
City: Whittier     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 01-22-2003

-692.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-329.000 -106.000 -343.000 -415.000 -734.000 -312.000 -637.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

500.000 500.000 500.000 500.000 500.000 500.000 500.000 500.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

14

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-05-30.0 N 146-12-04.0 W 12.0 21.3
Address: Robe River Site; MP 6, Richardson Highway
City: Valdez     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 10-02-2008

-675.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-1012.000 -933.000 -427.000 -1103.000 -681.000 30.000 -473.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

16

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-35-47.0 N 144-38-56.0 W 586.8 66.0 1034327   
Address: Chistochina Site; Approx. 1 Mi. N. of Chistochina on W. Side of TOK Highway
City: Chistochina     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 10-02-2008

-29.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-2.000 2.000 -46.000 13.000 75.000 3.000 -32.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

72.400 72.400 72.400 72.400 72.400 72.400 72.400 72.400

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

Licensee Name:  COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Call Sign: KNKQ401   File Number:  0008747299    Print Date: 09-24-2019

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 236



R
eference C

opy

Page 5 of 10

17

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-00-20.5 N 145-20-34.0 W 368.0 21.3
Address: Silver Springs Cell Site; 13.8 KM SSE of Glennallen
City: Glennallen     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-59.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-179.000 -168.000 -31.000 -37.000 -97.000 -76.000 -10.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300 90.300

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

18

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-24-45.0 N 145-06-30.0 W 576.1 96.0 1005553   
Address: Aurora Cell Site;  40.7 KM NNE of Glennallen
City: Glennallen     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

50.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

91.000 132.000 57.000 108.000 133.000 107.000 68.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

61.800 61.800 61.800 61.800 61.800 61.800 61.800 61.800

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

19

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-17-20.0 N 145-21-16.5 W 497.1 30.0
Address: Glennrich Cell Site; MP 129, Richardson Hwy
City: Glennallen     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-24.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-22.000 -68.000 -72.000 36.000 21.000 -25.000 -57.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

20

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-03-50.8 N 145-25-52.6 W 360.0 21.3
Address: Tazlina Cell Site, MP 111.5, Richardson Hwy.
City: Tazlina     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-76.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-113.000 -145.000 6.000 -60.000 -100.000 -95.000 -66.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

91.200 91.200 91.200 91.200 91.200 91.200 91.200 91.200

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

Licensee Name:  COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Call Sign: KNKQ401   File Number:  0008747299    Print Date: 09-24-2019

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 237



R
eference C

opy

Page 6 of 10

22

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

60-25-02.0 N 146-09-15.0 W 233.0 18.3
Address: Boswell Bay Cell Site; Hinchinbrook Island, 27.36 KM (17 MI) SW of Town
City: Cordova     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 12-17-2011

148.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

228.000 229.000 231.000 232.000 204.000 185.000 187.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

23

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-59-23.2 N 146-47-05.9 W 732.6 30.0
Address: Nelchina Cell Site; KM 230 Glenn Highway
City: Glennallen     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-167.000

Antenna: 4 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

46.000 100.000 35.000 -192.000 68.000 -57.000 -203.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

24

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-06-44.8 N 145-48-17.0 W 193.0 30.0
Address: Heidenview Cell Site; KM 30.6/MI 19, Richardson Hwy
City: Valdez     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-1126.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-494.000 -220.000 -993.000 -1078.000 -228.000 -689.000 -884.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

25

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-26-29.7 N 145-06-37.6 W 552.0 30.0
Address: Ernestine Cell Site; KM99/MI62 Richardson Hwy.
City: Valdez     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-444.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-714.000 -855.000 -765.000 -703.000 126.000 -751.000 -167.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

Licensee Name:  COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Call Sign: KNKQ401   File Number:  0008747299    Print Date: 09-24-2019

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 238



R
eference C

opy

Page 7 of 10

26

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

60-33-12.0 N 145-44-01.0 W 330.4 18.3 1274207   
Address: Tripod Hill; Top of ski lift off Ski Lift Road, approx. 1 MI. NE of Cordova
City: Cordova     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

112.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-300.000 109.000 247.000 173.000 275.000 240.000 302.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

170.000 127.000 30.000 4.000 2.000 4.000 26.000 120.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

112.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-300.000 109.000 247.000 173.000 275.000 240.000 302.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

8.000 48.000 145.000 166.000 87.000 16.000 2.000 1.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

112.000

Antenna: 3 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-300.000 109.000 247.000 173.000 275.000 240.000 302.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

9.000 2.000 1.000 14.000 81.000 159.000 151.000 55.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

27

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

60-32-53.6 N 145-45-58.0 W 16.8 10.6
Address: Seafood Lane Cell Site: 313 Seafood Lane
City: Cordova     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-164.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-433.000 -149.000 -135.000 -112.000 13.000 -90.000 -75.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000 50.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

28

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-07-43.1 N 146-32-51.1 W 316.6 18.0
Address: Shoup Cell Site; 10 KM West of Valdez
City: Valdez     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 04-26-2012

-627.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-653.000 323.000 -62.000 40.000 336.000 -338.000 -374.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

Licensee Name:  COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Call Sign: KNKQ401   File Number:  0008747299    Print Date: 09-24-2019

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 239



R
eference C

opy

Page 8 of 10

29

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-54-28.0 N 143-39-54.7 W 746.2 30.0
Address: Mentasta Pass Cell Site; KM 128 / MP 79.5 Tok Cutoff Highway
City: Lake Mentasta     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 04-26-2012

-416.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-449.000 -189.000 -390.000 -13.000 -321.000 -109.000 -196.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

30

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

62-55-51.1 N 143-47-33.4 W 698.0 30.0
Address: Mentasta Village Cell Site; KM 7.8 / MP 4.8 Mentasta Road
City: Lake Mentasta     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 04-26-2012

-572.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-603.000 -2.000 -71.000 -212.000 -533.000 -317.000 -354.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

31

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

60-52-09.5 N 146-40-47.6 W 76.0 18.0 1267088   
Address: Tatitlek Cell Site; 0.1 KM North of Tatitlek
City: Tatitlek     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 04-26-2012

-31.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-120.000 -446.000 -86.000 82.000 -22.000 91.000 39.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900 125.900

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

32

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-23-42.4 N 142-47-42.3 W 1068.0 12.2
Address: Sourdough Ridge Cell Site: T5S R15E S23, 2 Mi (3.22 Km) N of Nizina River
City: McCarthy     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 10-19-2012

80.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-218.000 317.000 498.000 479.000 600.000 603.000 494.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

Licensee Name:  COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Call Sign: KNKQ401   File Number:  0008747299    Print Date: 09-24-2019

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 240



R
eference C

opy

Page 9 of 10

33

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-26-30.5 N 143-48-44.2 W 830.0 12.2
Address: Gilahina Butte Cell Site; T5S R9E 1 Mile (1.61 km) South of Chokosna Lake
City: Chitina     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

43.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-192.000 157.000 458.000 131.000 451.000 380.000 350.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

34

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-31-17.0 N 144-25-55.0 W 330.1 18.3
Address: Cannon Hill Cell Site; 1 Mile (1.61 km) NW of Chitina
City: Chitina     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

63.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-108.000 30.000 -609.000 -84.000 -579.000 -1180.000 -721.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

35

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-07-48.0 N 146-21-49.0 W 5.0 42.7
Address: Valdez B2 Cell Site: 500 Egan Avenue
City: Valdez     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-967.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-915.000 -265.000 -394.000 -533.000 -132.000 -120.000 -944.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

1.300 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.400 7.200 23.500 13.400

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

-967.000

Antenna: 3 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-915.000 -265.000 -394.000 -533.000 -132.000 -120.000 -944.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

1.700 15.000 22.700 6.300 0.200 0.000 0.000 0.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

Licensee Name:  COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Call Sign: KNKQ401   File Number:  0008747299    Print Date: 09-24-2019

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 241



R
eference C

opy

Page 10 of 10

36

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

60-31-38.4 N 145-37-46.6 W 4.0 27.4
Address: Eyak Cell Site; Eyak Road, MP7, Copper River Highway
City: Cordova     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-183.000

Antenna: 1 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-428.000 -14.000 24.000 25.000 24.000 -108.000 -76.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

112.000 112.000 112.000 112.000 112.000 112.000 112.000 112.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

37

Location Latitude Longitude Ground Elevation
(meters)

Structure Hgt to Tip
(meters)

Antenna Structure 
Registration No.

61-04-13.3 N 146-03-52.8 W 144.0 18.3
Address: 7-Mile Cell Site, MP 7, Richardson Highway
City: Valdez     County: VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK     Construction Deadline: 

-953.000

Antenna: 2 

Antenna Height AAT (meters)
Transmitting ERP (watts)

-1065.000 -406.000 -545.000 -561.000 -751.000 -105.000 -301.000
0               45               90                135               180             225              270              315

100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000

Maximum Transmitting ERP in Watts:  140.820
Azimuth(from true north)

Control Points:

Control Pt. No. 1

Address: 329 Fairbanks Drive

City: Valdez     County:  VALDEZ-CORDOVA     State: AK      Telephone Number: (907)835-8008

Waivers/Conditions:

THIS AUTHORIZATION IS SUBJECT TO THE CONDITION THAT, IN THE EVENT THAT CELLULAR SYSTEMS 
USING THE SAME FREQUENCY BLOCK AS GRANTED HEREIN ARE AUTHORIZED IN ADJACENT TERRITORY IN 
CANADA, COORDINATION OF ANY OF THE LICENSEE'S TRANSMITTER INSTALLATIONS WHICHARE WITHIN 
45 MILES OF THE U.S. CANADA BORDER SHALL BE REQUIRED TO ELIMINATE ANY HARMFUL 
INTERFERENCE THAT MIGHT OTHERWISE EXIST AND TO INSURE CONTINUANCE OF EQUAL ACCESS TO THE 
FREQUENCY BLOCK BY BOTH COUNTRIES. 

Licensee Name:  COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Call Sign: KNKQ401   File Number:  0008747299    Print Date: 09-24-2019

FCC 601-C
March 2018

ATTACHMENT B 242



Eyak 

18.60.070  B. 9         Conditional Use 

A line-of-sight analysis showing the potential visual and aesthetic impacts of the telecommunication 

tower on adjacent residential districts through the use of photo simulations of the telecommunication 

tower, including all antennas, structures, and equipment, using the vantage points and number of photo 

simulations requested by the planning department; 

  South View  

  

Photo taken from Northwest side of 

Copper River Highway looking 

southeast. Proposed tower within 

grove of trees pictured to the left of 

photo.  

ATTACHMENT B 243



West View 

 

 

 

Photo taken from east side of 

property at the access driveway, 

looking west toward existing tower. 

Proposed tower within grove of trees 

pictured to the right of photo.  

ATTACHMENT B 244



East View 

 

 

 

  

Existing 80ft tower  

Photo taken from the neighboring 

property along Copper River Hwy  

looking east. Proposed tower within 

grove of trees pictured below in the 

photo.  

ATTACHMENT B 245



North view 

 

  

Existing 80ft tower  

Proposed 80ft tower  

ATTACHMENT B 246



West View looking at Neighboring property, standing at Proposed tower site. 

 

 

 

 

  

ATTACHMENT B 247



West view at Copper River Highway (standing at access driveway into property to the left of picture) 

Proposed 80ft tower 

ATTACHMENT B 248



South view looking directly at property from North side of Copper River Hwy 

 

 

 

 

  

Proposed 80ft tower  

ATTACHMENT B 249



ATTACHMENT B 250



18.60.070 B 10: Written agreement from CVTC  *see next page*

ATTACHMENT B 251



TOWER REMOVAL AGREEMENT

This Tower Removal Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by COPPER
VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC, ("CVW"), an Alaska Limited Liability Company and wholly owned
subsidiary of Copper Valley Telephone Cooperative, Incorporated, whose mailing address is PO
Box 3329, Valdez, Alaska 99686 and the CITY OF CORDOVA, a municipal corporation organized
and existing under the laws of the State of Alaska (the “City”), whose mailing address is PO Box
1210, Cordova, Alaska 99574 (together the “Parties” and separately each a “Party”).

1 Recitals.

1.1 WHEREAS, CVW wishes to construct a monopole tower (the "Tower") with a height of
eighty (80) feet on real property (the "Property") owned by CVW and more fully described
in the legal description attached as Exhibit A. CVW has applied for a conditional use
permit (CUP Application# ____________) in order to construct the Tower.

1.2 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Cordova Municipal Code (“CMC”), CVW is required to obtain
a conditional use permit ("CUP") prior to construction or operation of the Tower. The
application for the CUP must contain the necessary criteria set forth in the CMC.

1.3 WHEREAS, as a necessary and integrated provision of the CUP, CVW must enter into
a contract with the City whereby CVW agrees to remove the Tower and restore the
Property to its original condition prior to the construction of the Tower within one hundred
eighty (180) days after the Tower is substantially unused for a period of twelve (12)
consecutive months.

1.4 WHEREAS, if CVW fails to remove the Tower within the aforementioned time period, the
City may remove the Tower at the cost of CVW.

1.5 The Parties make this Agreement to satisfy the Tower Removal provisions of the CUP,
per the CMC.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows:

2 Integration with Conditional Use Permit

2.1 This agreement is entered as a necessary and mandatory provision of the CUP and the
issuance by the City and acceptance by CVW of the CUP is acknowledged as full and
sufficient consideration by the Parties.

3 Term

3.1 This Agreement shall be in effect until the Tower is removed and the Property restored
to its prior condition. The duties set forth herein shall run with the land and shall inure to
any subsequent owner of the Property.

4 Removal Upon Discontinuation of Use

4.1 In the event that CVW shall discontinue use of the Tower for the purposes set forth in its
CUP for a period of twelve (12) consecutive months, CVW agrees to remove the Tower

ATTACHMENT B 252



and to substantially restore the Property to its original condition within one hundred 
eighty (180) days of the end of the twelve (12) month period of disuse. Such removal 
and restoration of the Property shall be directed by and paid for by CVW or its successor 
in interest. 

5 Remedies for Breach  

5.1 In the event that the CVW, or its successor in interest, fail to remove the Tower during 
the time allotted in Section 4, such failure shall be deemed a violation of the CUP entitling 
the City to all remedies provided for in the Cordova Municipal Code and under Alaska 
law. Additionally, in the event of a breach, the City may elect, at its own and sole 
discretion, to enter onto the Property and to remove the Tower and substantially restore 
the Property to its original condition. CVW, or its successor in interest, shall be 
responsible for any and all expenses associated with such removal by the City. 

6 Indemnification 

6.1 The City shall not be responsible to CVW, or any subsequent owner of the Property of 
the Tower for damages to any structures or other property caused by the removal of the 
Tower under the provisions of Section 5. CVW or its successors in interest shall defend, 
save and hold the City harmless from any and all claims, demands, suits or liability, 
including all attorneys’ fees, arising from any and all loss, damage to property or death 
or injury to persons occurring in connection with the removal of the Tower under the 
provisions of Section 5. This indemnification agreement includes claims alleging acts or 
omissions by the Lessor or its agents, which are claimed to have contributed to the loss 
or damage. However, CMV shall not be responsible for any damage or claim arising from 
the negligence or willful misconduct of the City or its agents. 

7 Notices 

7.1 All notices and other communications required or set forth in this Agreement shall be 
made pursuant to the Notice provisions set forth in the CUP. 

8 Recordation 

8.1 This Agreement shall be recorded with the offices of the Cordova Recording District and 
the duties and obligations set forth herein shall run with the land and be binding on any 
successors or assigns of CVW. 

9 Miscellaneous Provisions 

9.1 Survival. If any term of this Agreement is found to be void or invalid, such invalidity will 
not affect the remaining terms of this Agreement, which will continue in full force and 
effect. 

9.2 Non-waiver. Failure of a Party to insist on strict performance of any of the conditions or 
provisions of this Agreement, or failure to exercise any of a Party's rights hereunder, will 
not waive such rights. 

ATTACHMENT B 253



9.3 Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement will be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Alaska. The Superior Court of the 
Third Judicial District located in Valdez shall have sole and exclusive jurisdiction over 
any disputes or other legal proceedings arising out of or under this Agreement. The 
Parties agree to venue within the Superior Court located in Valdez. 

9.4 Bind and Benefit. This Agreement is binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives. successors and assigns. 

9.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and exhibits, appendices or incorporated 
attachments hereto, constitute the entire agreement and will supersede all prior offers, 
negotiations and agreements with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date (date last signed by a Party hereto). 

 

COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS 

By: _____________________________________ 

Print Name: ______________________________ 

Date: ___________________________________ 

 

CITY OF CORDOVA 

By: _____________________________________ 

Print Name: ______________________________ 

Its: _____________________________________ 

Date: ___________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 254



CITY OF CORDOVA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 
STATE OF ALASKA   ) 

) ss: 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT  ) 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me  

this ______ day of ________________________, 2022,  

by ____________________   ____________________, 
      (name)          (title) 

for and on behalf of the City of Cordova. 

 

 

 

 

Notary Public: ____________________ 

My Commission Expires: ____________________ 

 

ATTACHMENT B 255



ATTACHMENT B 256



18.60.070.B.11          

A cell phone coverage map showing the applicant’s proposed cell phone coverage within the city 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 257



18.60.070 B 12: Certificate from licensed engineer for equipment installed meet FCC 

requirements 

         *see next page* 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 258



 

 

May 23, 2022 

 

City of Cordova  

 

 

Copper Valley Telephone is installing an 80 ft tall monopole at their communications site 

known as Eyak Lake. 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

The telecommunications pole, antennas, antenna mounts and other appurtenances are 

designed and will be built and installed to approved specifications and will contain only 

equipment meeting applicable FCC requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dale Browning, P.E., S.E. 

Sr. Engineer 5/23/2022 

(907) 761-6069 

 

ATTACHMENT B 259

dbrowning
Image



 

 

18.60.070 C 4           

If the applicant proposes to acquire a site on private property for the telecommunication tower, the 

applicant must show that no available publicly owned site or available privately owned site occupied by 

a compatible use is suitable under applicable communications regulations and the applicant's technical 

design requirements. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 260



 

CMC 18.60.070 C. 7    

Distance from Existing Telecommunication Towers. A telecommunications tower shall not be approved 

if it is located within one-half mile (two thousand six hundred forty feet) of an existing 

telecommunication tower, unless the applicant certifies that the existing telecommunication tower does 

not meet the applicant's structural specifications and technical design requirements, or that a 

collocation agreement could not be obtained.  

Half Mile Radius (2640ft) noted below. No other tower is located within that range.  

 

CVTC Existing towers 

 

ATTACHMENT B 261



ATTACHMENT C 262



ATTACHMENT C 263



ATTACHMENT C 264



ATTACHMENT C 265



ATTACHMENT C 266



ATTACHMENT C 267



ATTACHMENT C 268



ATTACHMENT C 269



ATTACHMENT C 270



ATTACHMENT C 271



ATTACHMENT C 272



ATTACHMENT C 273



ATTACHMENT C 274



140 feet from the West Property line 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 275



Eyak  

          

A cell phone coverage map showing the applicant’s proposed cell phone coverage within the city 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 276



ATTACHMENT C 277



Statement from TempTel, LLC           Date: May 12, 2022 

 

TempTel conferred with ADOT&PF, and it was determined that DOT has no authority over structures 

constructed outside of their ROW but indicated that they would not object to this installation if asked 

about it.” (Telephone conversation between Steve Wells of TempTel and Rex Young of ADOT&PF 

northern region, approximately May 12, 2022)”. 

ATTACHMENT C 278



State of Alaska
Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 

Development

Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing

Alaska Entity #52523D

The undersigned, as Commissioner of Commerce, Community, and Economic 

Development of the State of Alaska, and custodian of corporation records for 

said state, hereby issues a Certificate of Compliance for:

COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Certificate of Compliance

Chris Hladick

Commissioner

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I execute the certificate 

and affix the Great Seal of the State of Alaska 

effective July 14, 2017.

This entity was formed on October 25, 1993 and is in good standing.  This 

entity has filed all biennial reports and fees due at this time.

No information is available in this office on the financial condition, business 

activity or practices of this corporation.

ATTACHMENT D 279



Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development
CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS & PROFESSIONAL LICENSING

State of Alaska / Commerce / Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing / Search & Database Download / Corporations / Entity Details

ENTITY DETAILS
Name(s)

Entity Type:  Limited Liability Company

Entity #:  52523D

Status:  Good Standing

AK Formed Date:  10/25/1993

Duration/Expiration:  Perpetual

Home State:  ALASKA

Next Biennial Report Due:  1/2/2023  

Entity Mailing Address:  PO BOX 3329, VALDEZ, AK 99686

Entity Physical Address:  329 FAIRBANKS STREET, VALDEZ, AK 99686

Registered Agent

Type Name
Legal Name COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, LLC

Previous Legal Name COPPER VALLEY WIRELESS, INC.

ATTACHMENT D 280

http://www.alaska.gov/
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl
http://www.alaska.gov/
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/
http://commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Search/Entities


Show Former

Agent Name:  K, H & G SERVICE COMPANY, INCORPORATED

Registered Mailing Address:  255 E FIREWEED LN STE 200, ANCHORAGE, AK 99503

Registered Physical Address:  255 E FIREWEED LN STE 200, ANCHORAGE, AK 99503

Officials

Filed Documents

AK Entity # Name Titles Owned
Copper Valley Telephone Cooperative, Inc. Member 100.00

Date Filed Type Filing Certificate
10/25/1993 Creation Filing Click to View

11/12/1993 Biennial Report

12/27/1994 Biennial Report Click to View

3/02/1995 Amendment Click to View

3/02/1995 Amendment Click to View

12/30/1996 Amendment Click to View

12/30/1996 Biennial Report Click to View

12/28/1998 Biennial Report Click to View

8/09/1999 Amendment Click to View

12/11/2000 Biennial Report Click to View

12/23/2002 Biennial Report Click to View

7/18/2005 Biennial Report Click to View

10/24/2006 Biennial Report Click to View

3/15/2010 Biennial Report Click to View

1/03/2011 Biennial Report Click to View

12/19/2012 Biennial Report Click to View

2/07/2013 Conversion Click to View Click to View

ATTACHMENT D 281

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204288&d=1378607
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204286&d=39129
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=908281&d=1378609
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=908283&d=1378613
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=908282&d=1378619
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204287&d=52362
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204295&d=67925
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=1097646&d=2088449
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204291&d=84112
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204292&d=103807
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204297&d=173804
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204289&d=214073
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204294&d=327117
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=204298&d=354703
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=670993&d=907123
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=708265&d=936463
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=708265&d=957292


COPYRIGHT © STATE OF ALASKA · DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ·

Date Filed Type Filing Certificate
12/19/2014 Biennial Report Click to View

10/15/2015 Certificate of Compliance Click to View

12/22/2016 Biennial Report Click to View

7/14/2017 Certificate of Compliance Click to View

12/18/2018 Biennial Report Click to View

12/28/2020 Biennial Report Click to View

ATTACHMENT D 282

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=855666&d=1194079
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=906024&d=1367784
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=997197&d=1854020
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=1039586&d=1998483
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=1153664&d=2171772
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Document/Corp/?r=32468&v=1343909&d=2455612


Valmont Microflect 

3575 25th St. SE 

Salem, Oregon 97302 USA 

1-800-547-2151

Proprietary Information 

These documents, drawings and/or calculations and all information related to them are the exclusive property and the proprietary information of Valmont 

Industries, Inc. and are furnished solely upon the conditions that they will be retained in strictest confidence and shall not be duplicated, used or disclosed in 

whole or in part for any purpose, in any way, without the prior written permission of Valmont Industries, Inc. 

Communication Structure Calculations 

for 

New Horizons  

Eyak Lake, AK 

538507-P1  

Tuesday, 01 March 2022 

Prepared By: 

Chandra Rao 

Reviewed By: 

CR 

3/1/22

ATTACHMENT D 283

JEG1
AK



 

 

Valmont Microflect 

3575 25th St. SE 

Salem, Oregon 97302 USA 

1-800-547-2151 

 

Proprietary Information 

These documents, drawings and/or calculations and all information related to them are the exclusive property and the proprietary information of Valmont 

Industries, Inc. and are furnished solely upon the conditions that they will be retained in strictest confidence and shall not be duplicated, used or disclosed in 

whole or in part for any purpose, in any way, without the prior written permission of Valmont Industries, Inc. 

 

 

 

Table Of Contents 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY…………………………………………………………………………………....S1-S3 

 

NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK .........................................................................1 
  

 

ATTACHMENT D 284



 

S1 

Valmont Industries, Inc. 

Project Summary 
New Horizons  

538507  

 

 
 Anchor Bolts Shaft Diameters Weight (lb) Global Base Reactions For Pole Shaft 

Governing Load Case 

Structure Identifier Pole 
Height 

Emb. 
Length 

Max 
Bolt  

Circle 

Anchor 
Bolt 

Length 

Qty Base Ground 
Line 

 Top Sect A Sect B  Sect C  Sect D  Sect E Sect F  Base 
Plate 

Anchor 
Bolts 

Load 
Case 

Identifier 

Moment Shear Axial Max 
Defl 

 (ft) (ft) (in) (in)  (in) (in) (in)          (in-kip) (kips) (kips) (in) 

538507-P1   79.00 ---- 46.75 66 14 40.50 40.50 13.25 5041 1859 ---- ---- ---- ---- 927 888 WIND 26761 34.7 18.7 66 

                      

 

ATTACHMENT D 285



 

S2 

Valmont Industries, Inc. 

Project Summary 
New Horizons  

538507  

 

 
 Length (ft) Thickness (in) 

Structure Identifier Shaft 

Yield 
Stress 

Shaft 

Taper 

Shaft 

Shape 

Anchor 

Bolt 
Diameter 

Base Plate 

Width/ 
Length 

Base Plate 

Thickness 

Camber Sect A Sect B  Sect C  Sect D  Sect E Sect F  Sect A Sect B Sect C Sect D Sect E Sect F 

 (ksi) (in/ft)  (in) (in) (in) (in)             

538507-P1 65 0.351 18 1.75 51.13 2.25 0.0 47.00 35.92 ---- ---- ---- ---- 0.313 0.250 ---- ---- ---- ---- 

                    

 

 

ATTACHMENT D 286



S3 

  Valmont Industries, Inc. 

Project Summary 
New Horizons  

538507  

 

 
 Section Data 

Structure Identifier “A”  

Base 
Diameter 

“A”   

Top 
Diameter 

“B”  

Base 
Diameter 

“B”   

Top 
Diameter 

“C”  

Base 
Diameter 

“C”   

Top 
Diameter 

“D”  

Base 
Diameter 

“D”   

Top 
Diameter 

“E”  

Base 
Diameter 

“E”   

Top 
Diameter  

“F”  

Base 
Diameter  

“F”    

Top 
Diameter  

“A”-“B” 

Joint 
Type 

“B”-“C”  

Joint 
Type  

“C”-“D”  

Joint 
Type 

“D”-“E” 

Joint 
Type 

“E”-“F” 

Joint 
Type 

 (in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in)      

538507-P1 40.50 23.99 25.87 13.25 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- Slip Joint  ---- ---- ---- 

                  

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT D 287



 

1 

Valmont Industries, Inc. 

Engineering Data 
  

                                    ***  OVERVIEW  *** 
1. Structure design conforms to TIA-222-H including: 

    158 mph Wind Speed (3 second gust, 700 year mean recurrence interval) 

    50 mph Ice Wind (500 year mean recurrence interval) 

    0.50 in ice thickness 

    60.0 mph Basic Wind Speed with no ice for twist and sway 

    Exposure Category C 

    Risk Category II 

    Topographic Category 1 

    Site Elevation = 32 (ft) above mean sea level 

    Spectral response acceleration at short periods and 1 sec.: Ss = 1.51 & S1 = 0.80 

    Site class = D 

2.  Feedlines are assumed to be placed interior to the pole 

3.  Total pole height is 80.0 ft agl 

4.  Elevations are measured from top of base plate (approximately 1.0 ft agl) 

5.  Acceptance of ANSI/TIA-222-H is Customer's responsibility 

6.  Designed per customer specified Design Criteria 

 

                     *** Structure Anchorage Information *** 

Pole Height (ft):                 79.0           Number of Anchor Bolts:           14 

Bolt Circle (in):                 46.75          Diameter of Anchor Bolts (in):    1.75 

Base Shear (lbs):                 34736          Length of Anchor Bolts (in):      66.00 

Base Vertical (lbs):              19621          Projection Length (in):           9.50 

Base Moment (in-kips):            26761          Template OD (in):                 50.25 

 

                                         *** Loading Data*** 

 

                                                                        Without Ice                          With Ice 

Qty Description                            ABP Height (ft)   EPA (ft^2)        Weight (lbs)       EPA (ft^2)       Weight (lbs) 

 12 QUAD658C0000X (W/PM)                         77.50            146.64            1320               161.28           2592              

  1 RMQP-496-HK                                  77.50            23.14             1945               28.17            2335              

 12 QUAD658C0000X (W/PM)                         57.50            122.28            1320               134.28           2580              

  1 RMQP-496-HK                                  57.50            23.14             1945               28.17            2335              

  1 1/2" X 4' LIGHTNING ROD                      79.00            0.20              14                 0.63             17                

 12 ERICSSON 4449 (15" X 13.2" X 9.3")           77.50            15.24             840                16.80            1056              

  2 RAYCAP RC3DC-3315-PF-48 OVP (28.93"X15.73"X1 77.50            5.96              52                 6.38             120               

 12 ERICSSON 4449 (15" X 13.2" X 9.3")           57.50            12.60             840                13.92            1044              

  2 RAYCAP RC3DC-3315-PF-48 OVP (28.93"X15.73"X1 57.50            4.96              52                 5.30             118               

  

  

ATTACHMENT D 288



 

2 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

                                                       ***  SUMMARY  *** 

Design Code: TIA-222-H 

----------------------------------------------------  DESIGN SUMMARY  ---------------------------------------------------- 

 

Height Above Base Plate          79'- 0.00"   Dia. at Top of Baseplate (in)  40.500   Pole Shaft Weight (lbs)         6899    

 

                                              Top Diameter (in)              13.250                                           

 

                                              Pole Taper (in/ft)            0.35127   Shape:     18 Sides                     

 

Connections Between Sections        /First/   

 

      Height Above Ground          47'- 0.00" 

      Type                        Slip Joint 

      Overlap Length (in)                  47 

Maximum Axial Force  (lbs)              16926 

 

Section Characteristics             /First/       /Second/                                                             

 

      Base Diameter (in)               40.500        25.866                                                            

      Top Diameter (in)                23.991        13.250                                                            

      Thickness (in)                  0.31250       0.25000                                                            

      Length                       47'- 0.00"    35'-11.00"                                                            

      Weight (lbs)                       5041          1859                                                            

      Yield Strength (ksi)              65.00         65.00                                                            

      Section Shape                   18 Sides      18 Sides                                                           

 

-------------------------------------------  ANALYSIS SUMMARY ------------------------------------------- 

 

                                    Pt. of       Governing     Governing       Pole                                   

                                    Fixity     Level Sec.1   Level Sec.2       Top                                    

 

Governing Load Case                  WIND          WIND          WIND          WIND                                   

Height (ft)                              0.00          0.00         47.00         79.00                               

Resultant Moment (in-kips)              26761         26761          8326             0                               

Shear Force (lbs)                       34788         34788         30766            18                               

Axial Force (lbs)                       18597         18597          9587            14                               

Effective Yield Strength (ksi)          76.60         76.60         82.55         82.55                               

Combined Interaction Value               0.99          0.99          0.99          0.00                               

Total Deflection (in)                    0.00          0.00         21.43         65.85                               

 

           Note: Diameters are outside, measured across the flats 

                 Forces and moments are reported in the local element coordinate system 

 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 289



 

3 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

                                             *** POLE SHAFT POINT OF FIXITY REACTIONS *** 

 

  Loading      Moments      Moments      Moments      Moments                    Shear        Shear        Shear     Notes  

   Case         About        About      Resultant                  Vertical       In           In        Resultant          

Identifier     X-Axis       Y-Axis       (X & Y)     Torsional      Force     X-Direction  Y-Direction    (X & Y)           

              (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)            

 

WIND               20500       -17202        26761            0        18694        22328        26609        34736   

ICE + WIND          2520        -2114         3289            0        24257         2853         3401         4439   

T+S                 2643        -2218         3450            0        15262         2884         3437         4487   

Seismic             4189        -3515         5469            0        21378         4292         5115         6677   

Seismic 2           4130        -3465         5391            0        10659         4292         5115         6677   

 

 

Note: Positive vertical force is downward. 

      Reactions are considered in the global coordinate system. 

  

ATTACHMENT D 290



 

4 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

                                                      *** INPUT LOADS *** 

 

     Design Code     TIA-222-H 

     Loading Case    WIND ( 1.2 D + 1.0 Wo ) 

                                                                                                   Orientation of System 

        Basic Wind Velocity is   158.00  mph  Ice Thickness   0.00                                           +******* +X-Axis 

        Wind Orientation is    50.0 Degrees Clockwise From +X  Axis                                        * *       (Transverse) 

        Structure Weight Overload Factor is  1.200                                                        *  * 

        Exposure C,  Gust Factor 1.10                                                                    *   * 

        Risk Category II, Topographic Category 1, Crest Height 0.00 ft                   (Longitudinal) *    * (Vertical) 

        Orientations are Measured Clockwise From +X  Axis                                     +Y-Axis  *     * +Z-Axis 

        Positive  Y  Axis is 90 Degrees  Clockwise From +X  Axis                          

        Foundation Rotation of 0.00 Degrees                                               

        Elevation of structure base above surrounding terrain = 1.00 ft                   

                                                                                          

                                                                                          

 Load     Mounting      Load         Load      Orientation                                                              

Number     Height      Height    Eccentricity  in XY Plane      Force-X       Force-Y       Force-Z         EPA         

                                                (Degrees)         (lbs)         (lbs)         (lbs)        (ft^2)       

 

  1           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00            7592          9048          1584        146.64     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  2           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00            1198          1428          2334         23.14     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  3           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00            5959          7102          1584        122.28     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  4           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00            1128          1344          2334         23.14     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  5           79.00       81.00          0.00        50.00              10            12            17          0.20     1-1/2" x 4' l 

 

  6           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00             789           940          1008         15.24     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  7           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00             309           368            62          5.96     2-Raycap RC3D 

 

  8           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00             614           732          1008         12.60     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  9           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00             242           288            62          4.96     2-Raycap RC3D 

  

ATTACHMENT D 291



 

5 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

                                                      *** INPUT LOADS *** 

 

     Design Code     TIA-222-H 

     Loading Case    ICE + WIND ( 1.2 D + 1.0 Wi + 1.0 Di ) 

                                                                                                   Orientation of System 

        Basic Wind Velocity is    50.00  mph  Ice Thickness   0.50                                           +******* +X-Axis 

        Wind Orientation is    50.0 Degrees Clockwise From +X  Axis                                        * *       (Transverse) 

        Structure Weight Overload Factor is  1.200                                                        *  * 

        Exposure C,  Gust Factor 1.10                                                                    *   * 

        Risk Category II, Topographic Category 1, Crest Height 0.00 ft                   (Longitudinal) *    * (Vertical) 

        Orientations are Measured Clockwise From +X  Axis                                     +Y-Axis  *     * +Z-Axis 

        Positive  Y  Axis is 90 Degrees  Clockwise From +X  Axis                          

        Foundation Rotation of 0.00 Degrees                                               

        Elevation of structure base above surrounding terrain = 1.00 ft                   

                                                                                          

                                                                                          

 Load     Mounting      Load         Load      Orientation                                                                           

Number     Height      Height    Eccentricity  in XY Plane      Force-X       Force-Y       Force-Z         EPA                      

                                                (Degrees)         (lbs)         (lbs)         (lbs)        (ft^2)                    

 

  1           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00             836           997          3110        161.28     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  2           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00             146           174          2802         28.17     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  3           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00             655           781          3096        134.28     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  4           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00             137           164          2802         28.17     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  5           79.00       81.00          0.00        50.00               3             4            20          0.63     1-1/2" x 4' l 

 

  6           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00              87           104          1267         16.80     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  7           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00              33            39           144          6.38     2-Raycap RC3D 

 

  8           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00              68            81          1253         13.92     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  9           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00              26            31           142          5.30     2-Raycap RC3D 

  

ATTACHMENT D 292



 

6 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

                                                      *** INPUT LOADS *** 

 

     Design Code     TIA-222-H 

     Loading Case    T+S ( 1.0 D + 1.0 Wo ) 

                                                                                                   Orientation of System 

        Basic Wind Velocity is    60.00  mph  Ice Thickness   0.00                                           +******* +X-Axis 

        Wind Orientation is    50.0 Degrees Clockwise From +X  Axis                                        * *       (Transverse) 

        Structure Weight Overload Factor is  1.000                                                        *  * 

        Exposure C,  Gust Factor 1.10                                                                    *   * 

        Risk Category II, Topographic Category 1, Crest Height 0.00 ft                   (Longitudinal) *    * (Vertical) 

        Orientations are Measured Clockwise From +X  Axis                                     +Y-Axis  *     * +Z-Axis 

        Positive  Y  Axis is 90 Degrees  Clockwise From +X  Axis                          

        Foundation Rotation of 0.00 Degrees                                               

        Elevation of structure base above surrounding terrain = 1.00 ft                   

                                                                                          

                                                                                          

 Load     Mounting      Load         Load      Orientation                                                                           

Number     Height      Height    Eccentricity  in XY Plane      Force-X       Force-Y       Force-Z         EPA                      

                                                (Degrees)         (lbs)         (lbs)         (lbs)        (ft^2)                    

 

  1           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00             980          1168          1320        146.64     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  2           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00             155           184          1945         23.14     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  3           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00             769           916          1320        122.28     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  4           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00             146           173          1945         23.14     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  5           79.00       81.00          0.00        50.00               1             2            14          0.20     1-1/2" x 4' l 

 

  6           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00             102           121           840         15.24     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  7           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00              40            47            52          5.96     2-Raycap RC3D 

 

  8           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00              79            94           840         12.60     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  9           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00              31            37            52          4.96     2-Raycap RC3D 

  

ATTACHMENT D 293



 

7 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

                                                      *** INPUT LOADS *** 

 

     Design Code     TIA-222-H 

     Loading Case    Seismic (1.2 D + 1.0 Ev + 1.0 Eh) 

        Seismic analysis following the Equivalent Lateral Force Procedure 

        Risk Category: II 

        Site Class: D 

        Response Acceleration at short periods: 1.51 

        Response Acceleration at one second:    0.80 

        The above are used to obtain the acceleration and velocity based site coefficients Fa and Fv 

        Foundation Rotation of 0.00 Degrees 

        Elevation of structure base above surrounding terrain = 1.00 ft 

 

 

 Load     Mounting      Load         Load      Orientation                                                                           

Number     Height      Height    Eccentricity  in XY Plane      Force-X       Force-Y       Force-Z         EPA                      

                                                (Degrees)         (lbs)         (lbs)         (lbs)        (ft^2)                    

 

  1           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          1584        146.64     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  2           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          2334         23.14     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  3           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          1584        122.28     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  4           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          2334         23.14     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  5           79.00       81.00          0.00        50.00               0             0            17          0.20     1-1/2" x 4' l 

 

  6           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          1008         15.24     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  7           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00               0             0            62          5.96     2-Raycap RC3D 

 

  8           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          1008         12.60     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  9           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00               0             0            62          4.96     2-Raycap RC3D 

  

ATTACHMENT D 294



 

8 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

                                                      *** INPUT LOADS *** 

 

     Design Code     TIA-222-H 

     Loading Case    Seismic 2 (0.9 D - 1.0 Ev + 1.0 Eh) 

        Seismic analysis following the Equivalent Lateral Force Procedure 

        Risk Category: II 

        Site Class: D 

        Response Acceleration at short periods: 1.51 

        Response Acceleration at one second:    0.80 

        The above are used to obtain the acceleration and velocity based site coefficients Fa and Fv 

        Foundation Rotation of 0.00 Degrees 

        Elevation of structure base above surrounding terrain = 1.00 ft 

 

 

 Load     Mounting      Load         Load      Orientation                                                                           

Number     Height      Height    Eccentricity  in XY Plane      Force-X       Force-Y       Force-Z         EPA                      

                                                (Degrees)         (lbs)         (lbs)         (lbs)        (ft^2)                    

 

  1           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          1188        146.64     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  2           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          1750         23.14     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  3           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          1188        122.28     12-QUAD658C000 

 

  4           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00               0             0          1750         23.14     1-RMQP-496-HK 

 

  5           79.00       81.00          0.00        50.00               0             0            13          0.20     1-1/2" x 4' l 

 

  6           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00               0             0           756         15.24     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  7           77.50       79.00          0.00        50.00               0             0            47          5.96     2-Raycap RC3D 

 

  8           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00               0             0           756         12.60     12-Ericsson 44 

 

  9           57.50       59.00          0.00        50.00               0             0            47          4.96     2-Raycap RC3D 

  

ATTACHMENT D 295



 

9 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Equivalent Lateral Force Values for Pole 

 

W   = 15,255 lbs 

Cs  = 0.43 

Vs  = 6,509 lbs 

Sds = 1.01 

Ev  = 3,071 lbs 

Fa  = 1.00 

Fv  = 1.70 

k   = 1.52 

f1  = 0.65 Hz 

 

  Distance                                                  Load         Lateral    

From Fixity   Weight                                    Distribution  Seismic Force 

     H          Wx          H^k          H^k * Wx          Factor           Fx      

    (ft)      (lbs)                                                       (lbs)     

      79.00         14      776.98              10,878        0.0016             11 

      78.25         53      765.77              40,701        0.0061             39 

      77.50      4,157      754.62           3,136,951        0.4674          3,042 

      76.17        100      734.93              73,316        0.0109             71 

      74.83          2      715.43               1,431        0.0002              1 

      74.42         33      709.37              23,095        0.0034             22 

      71.50        209      667.46             139,617        0.0208            135 

      68.79         19      629.33              11,644        0.0017             11 

      68.58          4      626.43               2,506        0.0004              2 

      66.29        214      594.83             127,523        0.0190            124 

      63.17         83      552.65              45,814        0.0068             44 

      62.33          2      541.58               1,083        0.0002              1 

      60.67        174      519.68              90,269        0.0134             88 

      58.25         82      488.48              39,861        0.0059             39 

      57.50      4,157      478.93           1,990,918        0.2966          1,931 

      56.79         79      469.97              37,142        0.0055             36 

      56.08          2      461.07                 922        0.0001              1 

      55.04        120      448.09              53,626        0.0080             52 

      51.92        252      409.92             103,179        0.0154            100 

      49.83          4      385.13               1,541        0.0002              1 

      49.42         52      380.24              19,893        0.0030             19 

      48.00        128      363.76              46,651        0.0070             45 

      45.50        443      335.30             148,532        0.0221            144 

      43.79         63      316.31              19,942        0.0030             19 

      43.58          2      314.02                 628        0.0001              1 

      43.33         76      311.29              23,702        0.0035             23 

      41.04        353      286.56             101,159        0.0151             98 

      38.00        180      254.85              45,902        0.0068             45 

      37.00          2      244.70                 489        0.0001              0 

      35.50        279      229.75              64,116        0.0096             62 

      32.38        314      199.67              62,767        0.0094             61 

      30.75          4      184.60                 738        0.0001              1 

      29.88        174      176.66              30,820        0.0046             30 

  

ATTACHMENT D 296



 

10 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Equivalent Lateral Force Values for Pole 

 

  Distance                                                  Load         Lateral    

From Fixity   Weight                                    Distribution  Seismic Force 

     H          Wx          H^k          H^k * Wx          Factor           Fx      

    (ft)      (lbs)                                                       (lbs)     

      26.75        465      149.30              69,465        0.0104             67 

      24.50          2      130.60                 261        0.0000              0 

      24.25         53      128.57               6,837        0.0010              7 

      21.50        548      107.04              58,666        0.0087             57 

      18.63         85       86.01               7,292        0.0011              7 

      18.25          2       83.39                 167        0.0000              0 

      16.13        493       69.06              34,044        0.0051             33 

      13.00        239       49.74              11,908        0.0018             12 

      12.00          2       44.03                  88        0.0000              0 

      10.50        368       35.93              13,221        0.0020             13 

       6.50        637       17.31              11,024        0.0016             11 

       2.00        531        2.87               1,526        0.0002              1 

  

ATTACHMENT D 297



 

11 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

 

 

                                                 ***   Properties  *** 

 

                 Distance    Diameter                                                                

                   From       Across       Wall         D/t         w/t      Moments of              

  Connection       Base       Flats     Thickness     Across      Across       Inertia       Area    

   Locations       (ft)        (in)        (in)       Flats        Flats       (in^4)       (in^2)   

 

Top of Sect 2        79.00      13.250      0.2500       53.00         7.58           220        10.32 

                     77.50      13.777      0.2500       55.11         7.95           248        10.73 

                     74.83      14.714      0.2500       58.85         8.61           303        11.48 

                     74.00      15.006      0.2500       60.03         8.82           322        11.71 

                     69.00      16.763      0.2500       67.05        10.06           451        13.10 

                     68.58      16.909      0.2500       67.64        10.16           463        13.22 

                     64.00      18.519      0.2500       74.08        11.30           611        14.50 

                     62.33      19.104      0.2500       76.42        11.71           672        14.96 

                     59.00      20.275      0.2500       81.10        12.54           805        15.89 

                     57.50      20.802      0.2500       83.21        12.91           870        16.31 

                     56.08      21.300      0.2500       85.20        13.26           935        16.70 

                     54.00      22.032      0.2500       88.13        13.78          1036        17.28 

                     49.83      23.495      0.2500       93.98        14.81          1259        18.44 

                     49.00      23.788      0.2500       95.15        15.01          1307        18.68 

                     47.00      24.491      0.2500       97.96        15.51          1427        19.23 

 

Top of Sect 1        47.00      23.991      0.3125       76.77        11.77          1663        23.48 

                     44.00      25.044      0.3125       80.14        12.37          1895        24.53 

                     43.58      25.191      0.3125       80.61        12.45          1929        24.68 

Base of Sect 2       43.08      25.366      0.3125       81.17        12.55          1970        24.85 

                     39.00      26.801      0.3125       85.76        13.36          2328        26.27 

                     37.00      27.503      0.3125       88.01        13.76          2518        26.97 

                     34.00      28.557      0.3125       91.38        14.35          2823        28.01 

                     30.75      29.699      0.3125       95.04        14.99          3179        29.15 

                     29.00      30.313      0.3125       97.00        15.34          3383        29.76 

                     24.50      31.894      0.3125      102.06        16.23          3946        31.32 

                     24.00      32.070      0.3125      102.62        16.33          4012        31.50 

                     19.00      33.826      0.3125      108.24        17.32          4715        33.24 

                     18.25      34.089      0.3125      109.09        17.47          4827        33.50 

                     14.00      35.582      0.3125      113.86        18.31          5496        34.98 

                     12.00      36.285      0.3125      116.11        18.71          5831        35.68 

                      9.00      37.339      0.3125      119.48        19.30          6359        36.72 

                      4.00      39.095      0.3125      125.10        20.30          7307        38.47 

Pt of Fixity          0.00      40.500      0.3125      129.60        21.09          8130        39.86 

  

ATTACHMENT D 298



 

12 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case WIND                                           

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     79.00           0            0            0            0           12           14           18           14 

     77.50           1           -1            1            0           56           67           88           78 

     77.50         221         -185          288            0        10293        12267        16013         2889 

     74.83         615         -516          803            0        10376        12366        16142         3007 

     74.83         615         -516          803            0        10390        12382        16164         3032 

     74.00         739         -620          964            0        10408        12404        16192         3141 

     69.00        1489        -1250         1944            0        10576        12604        16453         3460 

     68.58        1552        -1303         2027            0        10592        12623        16478         3482 

     68.58        1552        -1303         2027            0        10604        12637        16497         3561 

     64.00        2254        -1891         2942            0        10775        12842        16764         3918 

     62.33        2511        -2107         3278            0        10848        12929        16877         4017 

     62.33        2511        -2107         3278            0        10853        12934        16884         4101 

     59.00        3032        -2544         3958            0        10993        13100        17101         4392 

     57.50        3269        -2743         4267            0        11065        13187        17214         4489 

     57.50        3446        -2891         4498            0        19291        22990        30011         8211 

     56.08        3837        -3220         5009            0        19361        23073        30120         8305 

     56.08        3837        -3220         5009            0        19357        23068        30114         8422 

     54.00        4415        -3705         5764            0        19423        23147        30216         8784 

     49.83        5579        -4682         7283            0        19646        23414        30564         9085 

     49.83        5579        -4682         7283            0        19637        23402        30549         9267 

     49.00        5814        -4878         7589            0        19663        23433        30590         9434 

     47.00        6378        -5352         8326            0        19776        23568        30766         9587 

 

     47.00        6378        -5352         8326            0        19742        23527        30713         9756 

     44.00        7229        -6066         9437            0        19908        23725        30971        10395 

     43.58        7348        -6165         9592            0        19935        23757        31013        10471 

     43.58        7348        -6165         9592            0        19946        23770        31030        10501 

     43.08        7490        -6285         9778            0        19946        23771        31031        10736 

     39.00        8662        -7269        11308            0        20150        24013        31347        11352 

     37.00        9240        -7754        12062            0        20275        24163        31542        11567 

     37.00        9240        -7754        12062            0        20255        24139        31511        11724 

     34.00       10114        -8486        13202            0        20400        24311        31736        12250 

     30.75       11067        -9286        14446            0        20612        24565        32067        12626 

     30.75       11067        -9286        14446            0        20597        24547        32044        12781 

     29.00       11584        -9720        15121            0        20666        24629        32150        13173 

     24.50       12923       -10844        16870            0        20970        24991        32624        13731 

     24.50       12923       -10844        16870            0        20945        24961        32584        13879 

     24.00       13073       -10970        17066            0        20936        24951        32571        14097 

     19.00       14583       -12236        19036            0        21234        25305        33034        14917 

     18.25       14811       -12428        19334            0        21285        25367        33114        15018 

     18.25       14811       -12428        19334            0        21260        25336        33074        15155 

  

ATTACHMENT D 299



 

13 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case WIND                                           

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     14.00       16112       -13519        21032            0        21501        25624        33450        15914 

     12.00       16729       -14037        21838            0        21640        25789        33666        16201 

     12.00       16729       -14037        21838            0        21613        25758        33625        16332 

      9.00       17660       -14819        23054            0        21762        25935        33855        16975 

      4.00       19230       -16136        25102            0        22056        26285        34312        17960 

      0.00       20500       -17202        26761            0        22361        26649        34788        18597 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 300



 

14 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case WIND 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   79.00      42.3        50.4       65.9         3.2         8.02    

   77.50      40.7        48.5       63.3         3.0         8.02    

   77.50      40.7        48.5       63.3         3.0         8.02    

   74.83      37.9        45.1       58.9         2.7         7.89    

   74.83      37.9        45.1       58.9         2.7         7.89    

   74.00      37.0        44.1       57.5         2.6         7.84    

   69.00      31.9        38.0       49.6         2.1         7.39    

   68.58      31.4        37.5       48.9         2.1         7.35    

   68.58      31.4        37.5       48.9         2.1         7.35    

   64.00      27.1        32.3       42.1         1.6         6.85    

   62.33      25.6        30.5       39.8         1.5         6.66    

   62.33      25.6        30.5       39.8         1.5         6.66    

   59.00      22.7        27.0       35.3         1.2         6.27    

   57.50      21.4        25.5       33.3         1.1         6.09    

   57.50      21.4        25.5       33.3         1.1         6.09    

   56.08      20.3        24.2       31.5         1.0         5.92    

   56.08      20.3        24.2       31.5         1.0         5.92    

   54.00      18.7        22.2       29.0         0.9         5.65    

   49.83      15.6        18.6       24.3         0.7         5.09    

   49.83      15.6        18.6       24.3         0.7         5.09    

   49.00      15.1        18.0       23.5         0.7         4.97    

   47.00      13.8        16.4       21.4         0.6         4.69    

 

   47.00      13.8        16.4       21.4         0.6         4.69    

   44.00      12.0        14.2       18.6         0.5         4.34    

   43.58      11.7        14.0       18.2         0.4         4.29    

   43.58      11.7        14.0       18.2         0.4         4.29    

   43.08      11.4        13.6       17.8         0.4         4.23    

   39.00       9.2        11.0       14.4         0.3         3.76    

   37.00       8.2         9.8       12.8         0.3         3.53    

   37.00       8.2         9.8       12.8         0.3         3.53    

   34.00       6.9         8.2       10.7         0.2         3.19    

   30.75       5.6         6.6        8.7         0.1         2.84    

   30.75       5.6         6.6        8.7         0.1         2.84    

   29.00       4.9         5.9        7.7         0.1         2.65    

   24.50       3.5         4.1        5.4         0.1         2.18    

   24.50       3.5         4.1        5.4         0.1         2.18    

   24.00       3.3         3.9        5.2         0.1         2.13    

   19.00       2.0         2.4        3.2         0.0         1.64    

   18.25       1.9         2.2        2.9         0.0         1.57    

   18.25       1.9         2.2        2.9         0.0         1.57    

   14.00       1.1         1.3        1.7         0.0         1.18    

   12.00       0.8         0.9        1.2         0.0         1.00    

  

ATTACHMENT D 301



 

15 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case WIND 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   12.00       0.8         0.9        1.2         0.0         1.00    

    9.00       0.4         0.5        0.7         0.0         0.74    

    4.00       0.1         0.1        0.1         0.0         0.32    

    0.00       0.0         0.0        0.0         0.0         0.00    

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 302



 

16 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Stresses for Pole 

 

Loading Case WIND 

 

Distance   Nominal     Nominal     Nominal     Nominal      Axial       Flexural      Shear       Torsion      Combined  

  From     Axial      Flexural     Shear     Torsional   Interaction  Interaction  Interaction  Interaction    Stress    

  Base    Strength    Strength    Strength    Strength       Term         Term         Term         Term     Interaction 

  (ft)     (lbs)     (in-kips)     (lbs)     (in-kips)                                                                   

   79.00    670,483       2,702     201,145       2,603         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.01 

   77.50    697,658       2,928     209,298       2,819         0.00         0.11         0.09         0.00         0.12 

   74.83    745,970       3,351     223,791       3,223         0.00         0.27         0.08         0.00         0.28 

   74.00    761,067       3,489     228,320       3,354         0.00         0.31         0.08         0.00         0.32 

   69.00    851,651       4,377     255,495       4,200         0.00         0.49         0.07         0.00         0.50 

   68.58    859,200       4,455     257,760       4,275         0.00         0.51         0.07         0.00         0.52 

   64.00    942,235       5,365     282,670       5,142         0.00         0.61         0.07         0.00         0.62 

   62.33    972,429       5,717     291,729       5,476         0.00         0.64         0.06         0.00         0.65 

   59.00  1,032,819       6,454     309,846       6,178         0.00         0.68         0.06         0.00         0.69 

   57.50  1,059,994       6,800     317,998       6,507         0.01         0.73         0.10         0.00         0.75 

   56.08  1,085,659       7,135     325,698       6,826         0.01         0.78         0.10         0.00         0.80 

   54.00  1,123,402       7,643     337,021       7,309         0.01         0.84         0.10         0.00         0.86 

   49.83  1,198,889       8,711     359,667       8,324         0.01         0.93         0.09         0.00         0.95 

   49.00  1,213,986       8,933     364,196       8,535         0.01         0.94         0.09         0.00         0.96 

   47.00  1,250,220       9,477     375,066       9,052         0.01         0.98         0.09         0.00         0.99 

 

   47.00  1,526,510      11,271     457,953      10,796         0.01         0.82         0.07         0.00         0.83 

   44.00  1,594,448      12,303     478,334      11,778         0.01         0.85         0.07         0.00         0.86 

   43.58  1,603,884      12,450     481,165      11,918         0.01         0.86         0.07         0.00         0.87 

   43.08  1,615,207      12,627     484,562      12,087         0.01         0.86         0.07         0.00         0.87 

   39.00  1,707,678      14,124     512,303      13,511         0.01         0.89         0.07         0.00         0.90 

   37.00  1,752,970      14,888     525,891      14,237         0.01         0.90         0.07         0.00         0.91 

   34.00  1,820,908      16,071     546,272      15,362         0.01         0.91         0.06         0.00         0.92 

   30.75  1,894,507      17,403     568,352      16,629         0.01         0.92         0.06         0.00         0.93 

   29.00  1,934,138      18,143     580,241      17,332         0.01         0.93         0.06         0.00         0.94 

   24.50  2,036,044      20,056     610,813      19,206         0.01         0.93         0.06         0.00         0.95 

   24.00  2,047,367      20,253     614,210      19,420         0.01         0.94         0.06         0.00         0.95 

   19.00  2,160,597      22,246     648,179      21,628         0.01         0.95         0.06         0.00         0.96 

   18.25  2,177,581      22,550     653,274      21,969         0.01         0.95         0.06         0.00         0.96 

   14.00  2,273,827      24,296     682,148      23,954         0.01         0.96         0.05         0.00         0.97 

   12.00  2,319,119      25,130     695,736      24,918         0.01         0.97         0.05         0.00         0.98 

    9.00  2,387,056      26,396     716,117      26,399         0.01         0.97         0.05         0.00         0.98 

    4.00  2,500,286      28,541     750,086      28,963         0.01         0.98         0.05         0.00         0.99 

    0.00  2,590,870      30,286     777,261      31,100         0.01         0.98         0.05         0.00         0.99 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 303



 

17 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case ICE + WIND                                     

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     79.00           0            0            0            0            4            4            5           20 

     77.50           0            0            0            0           15           18           23           97 

     77.50          26          -22           33            0         1196         1425         1860         7391 

     74.83          72          -60           94            0         1216         1450         1892         7536 

     74.83          72          -60           94            0         1215         1449         1891         7539 

     74.00          86          -72          112            0         1220         1454         1898         7587 

     69.00         175         -147          228            0         1260         1501         1960         7890 

     68.58         182         -153          238            0         1264         1506         1966         7917 

     68.58         182         -153          238            0         1261         1502         1961         7923 

     64.00         266         -224          348            0         1299         1549         2021         8234 

     62.33         298         -250          388            0         1315         1568         2047         8354 

     62.33         298         -250          388            0         1312         1564         2042         8357 

     59.00         361         -303          471            0         1342         1600         2088         8609 

     57.50         390         -327          509            0         1358         1618         2112         8727 

     57.50         410         -344          536            0         2302         2743         3581        16002 

     56.08         457         -383          597            0         2316         2761         3604        16116 

     56.08         457         -383          597            0         2312         2755         3596        16120 

     54.00         526         -442          687            0         2325         2771         3617        16296 

     49.83         666         -559          870            0         2371         2825         3688        16658 

     49.83         666         -559          870            0         2363         2816         3676        16665 

     49.00         694         -583          906            0         2368         2822         3684        16742 

     47.00         762         -640          995            0         2391         2849         3720        16926 

 

     47.00         762         -640          995            0         2384         2841         3708        16929 

     44.00         865         -726         1130            0         2416         2879         3759        17545 

     43.58         880         -738         1149            0         2421         2885         3767        17633 

     43.58         880         -738         1149            0         2420         2884         3765        17636 

     43.08         897         -753         1171            0         2420         2884         3764        17744 

     39.00        1040         -873         1357            0         2460         2931         3827        18236 

     37.00        1111         -932         1450            0         2484         2960         3864        18486 

     37.00        1111         -932         1450            0         2477         2952         3853        18490 

     34.00        1218        -1022         1590            0         2505         2985         3897        18879 

     30.75        1335        -1120         1743            0         2545         3034         3960        19314 

     30.75        1335        -1120         1743            0         2538         3025         3949        19321 

     29.00        1399        -1174         1826            0         2552         3041         3970        19565 

     24.50        1565        -1313         2043            0         2609         3109         4059        20206 

     24.50        1565        -1313         2043            0         2602         3101         4048        20211 

     24.00        1583        -1329         2067            0         2601         3099         4046        20286 

     19.00        1772        -1487         2313            0         2656         3166         4132        21043 

     18.25        1800        -1511         2350            0         2666         3177         4147        21159 

     18.25        1800        -1511         2350            0         2659         3169         4137        21163 

  

ATTACHMENT D 304



 

18 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case ICE + WIND                                     

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     14.00        1964        -1648         2563            0         2704         3222         4207        21841 

     12.00        2041        -1713         2665            0         2729         3252         4246        22169 

     12.00        2041        -1713         2665            0         2722         3244         4235        22173 

      9.00        2159        -1811         2818            0         2750         3278         4279        22678 

      4.00        2358        -1978         3078            0         2804         3342         4363        23545 

      0.00        2520        -2114         3289            0         2859         3407         4447        24255 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 305



 

19 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case ICE + WIND 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   79.00       5.1         6.1        8.0         0.1         0.96    

   77.50       4.9         5.9        7.7         0.1         0.96    

   77.50       4.9         5.9        7.7         0.1         0.96    

   74.83       4.6         5.5        7.1         0.1         0.95    

   74.83       4.6         5.5        7.1         0.1         0.95    

   74.00       4.5         5.3        7.0         0.1         0.94    

   69.00       3.9         4.6        6.0         0.0         0.89    

   68.58       3.8         4.5        5.9         0.0         0.88    

   68.58       3.8         4.5        5.9         0.0         0.88    

   64.00       3.3         3.9        5.1         0.0         0.82    

   62.33       3.1         3.7        4.8         0.0         0.80    

   62.33       3.1         3.7        4.8         0.0         0.80    

   59.00       2.8         3.3        4.3         0.0         0.76    

   57.50       2.6         3.1        4.0         0.0         0.74    

   57.50       2.6         3.1        4.0         0.0         0.74    

   56.08       2.5         2.9        3.8         0.0         0.71    

   56.08       2.5         2.9        3.8         0.0         0.71    

   54.00       2.3         2.7        3.5         0.0         0.68    

   49.83       1.9         2.3        3.0         0.0         0.61    

   49.83       1.9         2.3        3.0         0.0         0.61    

   49.00       1.8         2.2        2.9         0.0         0.60    

   47.00       1.7         2.0        2.6         0.0         0.57    

 

   47.00       1.7         2.0        2.6         0.0         0.57    

   44.00       1.5         1.7        2.3         0.0         0.53    

   43.58       1.4         1.7        2.2         0.0         0.52    

   43.58       1.4         1.7        2.2         0.0         0.52    

   43.08       1.4         1.7        2.2         0.0         0.51    

   39.00       1.1         1.3        1.7         0.0         0.46    

   37.00       1.0         1.2        1.6         0.0         0.43    

   37.00       1.0         1.2        1.6         0.0         0.43    

   34.00       0.8         1.0        1.3         0.0         0.39    

   30.75       0.7         0.8        1.1         0.0         0.35    

   30.75       0.7         0.8        1.1         0.0         0.35    

   29.00       0.6         0.7        0.9         0.0         0.32    

   24.50       0.4         0.5        0.7         0.0         0.27    

   24.50       0.4         0.5        0.7         0.0         0.27    

   24.00       0.4         0.5        0.6         0.0         0.26    

   19.00       0.2         0.3        0.4         0.0         0.20    

   18.25       0.2         0.3        0.4         0.0         0.19    

   18.25       0.2         0.3        0.4         0.0         0.19    

   14.00       0.1         0.2        0.2         0.0         0.14    

   12.00       0.1         0.1        0.2         0.0         0.12    

  

ATTACHMENT D 306



 

20 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case ICE + WIND 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   12.00       0.1         0.1        0.2         0.0         0.12    

    9.00       0.1         0.1        0.1         0.0         0.09    

    4.00       0.0         0.0        0.0         0.0         0.04    

    0.00       0.0         0.0        0.0         0.0         0.00    

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 307



 

21 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Stresses for Pole 

 

Loading Case ICE + WIND 

 

Distance   Nominal     Nominal     Nominal     Nominal      Axial       Flexural      Shear       Torsion      Combined  

  From     Axial      Flexural     Shear     Torsional   Interaction  Interaction  Interaction  Interaction    Stress    

  Base    Strength    Strength    Strength    Strength       Term         Term         Term         Term     Interaction 

  (ft)     (lbs)     (in-kips)     (lbs)     (in-kips)                                                                   

   79.00    670,483       2,702     201,145       2,603         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.01 

   77.50    697,658       2,928     209,298       2,819         0.01         0.01         0.01         0.00         0.02 

   74.83    745,970       3,351     223,791       3,223         0.01         0.03         0.01         0.00         0.04 

   74.00    761,067       3,489     228,320       3,354         0.01         0.04         0.01         0.00         0.05 

   69.00    851,651       4,377     255,495       4,200         0.01         0.06         0.01         0.00         0.07 

   68.58    859,200       4,455     257,760       4,275         0.01         0.06         0.01         0.00         0.07 

   64.00    942,235       5,365     282,670       5,142         0.01         0.07         0.01         0.00         0.08 

   62.33    972,429       5,717     291,729       5,476         0.01         0.08         0.01         0.00         0.09 

   59.00  1,032,819       6,454     309,846       6,178         0.01         0.08         0.01         0.00         0.09 

   57.50  1,059,994       6,800     317,998       6,507         0.02         0.09         0.01         0.00         0.10 

   56.08  1,085,659       7,135     325,698       6,826         0.02         0.09         0.01         0.00         0.11 

   54.00  1,123,402       7,643     337,021       7,309         0.02         0.10         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   49.83  1,198,889       8,711     359,667       8,324         0.02         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   49.00  1,213,986       8,933     364,196       8,535         0.02         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   47.00  1,250,220       9,477     375,066       9,052         0.02         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

 

   47.00  1,526,510      11,271     457,953      10,796         0.01         0.10         0.01         0.00         0.11 

   44.00  1,594,448      12,303     478,334      11,778         0.01         0.10         0.01         0.00         0.11 

   43.58  1,603,884      12,450     481,165      11,918         0.01         0.10         0.01         0.00         0.11 

   43.08  1,615,207      12,627     484,562      12,087         0.01         0.10         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   39.00  1,707,678      14,124     512,303      13,511         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   37.00  1,752,970      14,888     525,891      14,237         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   34.00  1,820,908      16,071     546,272      15,362         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   30.75  1,894,507      17,403     568,352      16,629         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   29.00  1,934,138      18,143     580,241      17,332         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   24.50  2,036,044      20,056     610,813      19,206         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   24.00  2,047,367      20,253     614,210      19,420         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   19.00  2,160,597      22,246     648,179      21,628         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   18.25  2,177,581      22,550     653,274      21,969         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   14.00  2,273,827      24,296     682,148      23,954         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   12.00  2,319,119      25,130     695,736      24,918         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

    9.00  2,387,056      26,396     716,117      26,399         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

    4.00  2,500,286      28,541     750,086      28,963         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

    0.00  2,590,870      30,286     777,261      31,100         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 308



 

22 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case T+S                                            

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     79.00           0            0            0            0            2            2            2           14 

     77.50           0            0            0            0            7            9           12           67 

     77.50          29          -24           37            0         1331         1586         2071         4188 

     74.83          79          -67          104            0         1342         1599         2087         4288 

     74.83          79          -67          104            0         1343         1601         2090         4290 

     74.00          96          -80          125            0         1345         1603         2093         4324 

     69.00         193         -162          251            0         1366         1628         2125         4534 

     68.58         201         -168          262            0         1368         1630         2128         4553 

     68.58         201         -168          262            0         1369         1632         2130         4558 

     64.00         291         -244          380            0         1391         1657         2163         4774 

     62.33         324         -272          424            0         1400         1668         2178         4857 

     62.33         324         -272          424            0         1400         1669         2178         4860 

     59.00         392         -329          511            0         1418         1690         2206         5035 

     57.50         422         -354          551            0         1427         1701         2220         5117 

     57.50         445         -373          581            0         2487         2963         3868         9253 

     56.08         495         -416          647            0         2495         2974         3882         9332 

     56.08         495         -416          647            0         2495         2973         3881         9336 

     54.00         570         -478          744            0         2503         2982         3893         9459 

     49.83         720         -604          940            0         2531         3017         3938         9711 

     49.83         720         -604          940            0         2530         3015         3935         9718 

     49.00         750         -629          979            0         2533         3018         3940         9772 

     47.00         823         -690         1074            0         2547         3036         3963         9900 

 

     47.00         823         -690         1074            0         2543         3030         3956         9903 

     44.00         932         -782         1217            0         2564         3055         3988        10347 

     43.58         948         -795         1237            0         2567         3059         3994        10411 

     43.58         948         -795         1237            0         2569         3061         3996        10413 

     43.08         966         -811         1261            0         2569         3061         3996        10491 

     39.00        1117         -937         1458            0         2595         3092         4037        10848 

     37.00        1191        -1000         1555            0         2611         3111         4062        11028 

     37.00        1191        -1000         1555            0         2608         3109         4058        11032 

     34.00        1304        -1094         1702            0         2627         3131         4087        11315 

     30.75        1427        -1197         1862            0         2654         3163         4130        11629 

     30.75        1427        -1197         1862            0         2653         3162         4127        11635 

     29.00        1493        -1253         1949            0         2662         3173         4142        11813 

     24.50        1666        -1398         2174            0         2701         3219         4202        12278 

     24.50        1666        -1398         2174            0         2699         3216         4198        12283 

     24.00        1685        -1414         2200            0         2698         3215         4197        12338 

     19.00        1880        -1577         2454            0         2737         3262         4258        12889 

     18.25        1909        -1602         2492            0         2744         3270         4268        12974 

     18.25        1909        -1602         2492            0         2741         3267         4264        12978 

  

ATTACHMENT D 309



 

23 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case T+S                                            

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     14.00        2077        -1743         2711            0         2773         3305         4314        13474 

     12.00        2156        -1809         2815            0         2791         3326         4342        13713 

     12.00        2156        -1809         2815            0         2788         3323         4338        13717 

      9.00        2276        -1910         2972            0         2809         3347         4369        14089 

      4.00        2479        -2080         3236            0         2848         3394         4431        14729 

      0.00        2643        -2218         3450            0         2888         3441         4492        15260 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 310



 

24 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case T+S 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   79.00       5.5         6.5        8.5         0.1         1.03    

   77.50       5.3         6.3        8.2         0.1         1.03    

   77.50       5.3         6.3        8.2         0.1         1.03    

   74.83       4.9         5.8        7.6         0.1         1.02    

   74.83       4.9         5.8        7.6         0.1         1.02    

   74.00       4.8         5.7        7.4         0.1         1.01    

   69.00       4.1         4.9        6.4         0.0         0.95    

   68.58       4.1         4.8        6.3         0.0         0.95    

   68.58       4.1         4.8        6.3         0.0         0.95    

   64.00       3.5         4.2        5.4         0.0         0.88    

   62.33       3.3         3.9        5.1         0.0         0.86    

   62.33       3.3         3.9        5.1         0.0         0.86    

   59.00       2.9         3.5        4.5         0.0         0.81    

   57.50       2.8         3.3        4.3         0.0         0.79    

   57.50       2.8         3.3        4.3         0.0         0.79    

   56.08       2.6         3.1        4.1         0.0         0.76    

   56.08       2.6         3.1        4.1         0.0         0.76    

   54.00       2.4         2.9        3.7         0.0         0.73    

   49.83       2.0         2.4        3.1         0.0         0.66    

   49.83       2.0         2.4        3.1         0.0         0.66    

   49.00       1.9         2.3        3.0         0.0         0.64    

   47.00       1.8         2.1        2.8         0.0         0.61    

 

   47.00       1.8         2.1        2.8         0.0         0.61    

   44.00       1.5         1.8        2.4         0.0         0.56    

   43.58       1.5         1.8        2.3         0.0         0.55    

   43.58       1.5         1.8        2.3         0.0         0.55    

   43.08       1.5         1.8        2.3         0.0         0.55    

   39.00       1.2         1.4        1.9         0.0         0.48    

   37.00       1.1         1.3        1.7         0.0         0.45    

   37.00       1.1         1.3        1.7         0.0         0.45    

   34.00       0.9         1.1        1.4         0.0         0.41    

   30.75       0.7         0.9        1.1         0.0         0.37    

   30.75       0.7         0.9        1.1         0.0         0.37    

   29.00       0.6         0.8        1.0         0.0         0.34    

   24.50       0.4         0.5        0.7         0.0         0.28    

   24.50       0.4         0.5        0.7         0.0         0.28    

   24.00       0.4         0.5        0.7         0.0         0.27    

   19.00       0.3         0.3        0.4         0.0         0.21    

   18.25       0.2         0.3        0.4         0.0         0.20    

   18.25       0.2         0.3        0.4         0.0         0.20    

   14.00       0.1         0.2        0.2         0.0         0.15    

   12.00       0.1         0.1        0.2         0.0         0.13    

  

ATTACHMENT D 311



 

25 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case T+S 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   12.00       0.1         0.1        0.2         0.0         0.13    

    9.00       0.1         0.1        0.1         0.0         0.09    

    4.00       0.0         0.0        0.0         0.0         0.04    

    0.00       0.0         0.0        0.0         0.0         0.00    

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 312



 

26 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Stresses for Pole 

 

Loading Case T+S 

 

Distance   Nominal     Nominal     Nominal     Nominal      Axial       Flexural      Shear       Torsion      Combined  

  From     Axial      Flexural     Shear     Torsional   Interaction  Interaction  Interaction  Interaction    Stress    

  Base    Strength    Strength    Strength    Strength       Term         Term         Term         Term     Interaction 

  (ft)     (lbs)     (in-kips)     (lbs)     (in-kips)                                                                   

   79.00    670,483       2,702     201,145       2,603         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.01 

   77.50    697,658       2,928     209,298       2,819         0.01         0.01         0.01         0.00         0.02 

   74.83    745,970       3,351     223,791       3,223         0.01         0.03         0.01         0.00         0.04 

   74.00    761,067       3,489     228,320       3,354         0.01         0.04         0.01         0.00         0.05 

   69.00    851,651       4,377     255,495       4,200         0.01         0.06         0.01         0.00         0.07 

   68.58    859,200       4,455     257,760       4,275         0.01         0.07         0.01         0.00         0.07 

   64.00    942,235       5,365     282,670       5,142         0.01         0.08         0.01         0.00         0.08 

   62.33    972,429       5,717     291,729       5,476         0.01         0.08         0.01         0.00         0.09 

   59.00  1,032,819       6,454     309,846       6,178         0.01         0.09         0.01         0.00         0.09 

   57.50  1,059,994       6,800     317,998       6,507         0.01         0.09         0.01         0.00         0.10 

   56.08  1,085,659       7,135     325,698       6,826         0.01         0.10         0.01         0.00         0.11 

   54.00  1,123,402       7,643     337,021       7,309         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   49.83  1,198,889       8,711     359,667       8,324         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   49.00  1,213,986       8,933     364,196       8,535         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   47.00  1,250,220       9,477     375,066       9,052         0.01         0.13         0.01         0.00         0.13 

 

   47.00  1,526,510      11,271     457,953      10,796         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.11 

   44.00  1,594,448      12,303     478,334      11,778         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   43.58  1,603,884      12,450     481,165      11,918         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   43.08  1,615,207      12,627     484,562      12,087         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   39.00  1,707,678      14,124     512,303      13,511         0.01         0.11         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   37.00  1,752,970      14,888     525,891      14,237         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   34.00  1,820,908      16,071     546,272      15,362         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.12 

   30.75  1,894,507      17,403     568,352      16,629         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   29.00  1,934,138      18,143     580,241      17,332         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   24.50  2,036,044      20,056     610,813      19,206         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   24.00  2,047,367      20,253     614,210      19,420         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   19.00  2,160,597      22,246     648,179      21,628         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   18.25  2,177,581      22,550     653,274      21,969         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   14.00  2,273,827      24,296     682,148      23,954         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   12.00  2,319,119      25,130     695,736      24,918         0.01         0.12         0.01         0.00         0.13 

    9.00  2,387,056      26,396     716,117      26,399         0.01         0.13         0.01         0.00         0.13 

    4.00  2,500,286      28,541     750,086      28,963         0.01         0.13         0.01         0.00         0.13 

    0.00  2,590,870      30,286     777,261      31,100         0.01         0.13         0.01         0.00         0.13 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 313



 

27 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case Seismic                                        

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     79.00           0            0            0            0            7            9           12           19 

     77.50           1           -1            1            0           34           41           53           93 

     77.50          46          -39           60            0         2156         2569         3354         5824 

     74.83         129         -109          169            0         2204         2627         3429         5962 

     74.83         129         -109          169            0         2204         2626         3428         5966 

     74.00         156         -131          203            0         2215         2640         3446         6014 

     69.00         317         -266          414            0         2304         2746         3584         6307 

     68.58         331         -278          432            0         2312         2755         3596         6332 

     68.58         331         -278          432            0         2309         2752         3592         6341 

     64.00         485         -407          633            0         2388         2846         3715         6643 

     62.33         543         -455          708            0         2418         2882         3762         6758 

     62.33         543         -455          708            0         2414         2877         3756         6765 

     59.00         659         -553          860            0         2469         2943         3842         7011 

     57.50         712         -598          930            0         2496         2975         3883         7124 

     57.50         742         -622          968            0         3865         4606         6013        12907 

     56.08         820         -688         1071            0         3890         4635         6051        13017 

     56.08         820         -688         1071            0         3883         4628         6041        13025 

     54.00         937         -786         1223            0         3906         4655         6077        13201 

     49.83        1171         -983         1529            0         3975         4737         6183        13551 

     49.83        1171         -983         1529            0         3965         4725         6168        13564 

     49.00        1219        -1023         1591            0         3972         4733         6179        13642 

     47.00        1333        -1118         1740            0         4003         4770         6227        13821 

 

     47.00        1333        -1118         1740            0         3993         4758         6212        13828 

     44.00        1506        -1264         1966            0         4085         4868         6355        14451 

     43.58        1531        -1284         1998            0         4098         4884         6376        14539 

     43.58        1531        -1284         1998            0         4097         4882         6374        14543 

     43.08        1560        -1309         2036            0         4104         4890         6384        14656 

     39.00        1801        -1512         2352            0         4159         4956         6470        15157 

     37.00        1921        -1612         2507            0         4189         4993         6518        15409 

     37.00        1921        -1612         2507            0         4180         4981         6502        15418 

     34.00        2101        -1763         2743            0         4210         5017         6549        15817 

     30.75        2298        -1928         2999            0         4252         5067         6615        16257 

     30.75        2298        -1928         2999            0         4242         5056         6600        16269 

     29.00        2404        -2017         3138            0         4251         5066         6613        16521 

     24.50        2679        -2248         3497            0         4298         5122         6686        17172 

     24.50        2679        -2248         3497            0         4287         5110         6670        17181 

     24.00        2710        -2274         3538            0         4281         5102         6660        17262 

     19.00        3017        -2532         3939            0         4309         5136         6704        18037 

     18.25        3064        -2571         3999            0         4314         5142         6712        18155 

     18.25        3064        -2571         3999            0         4305         5130         6697        18164 

  

ATTACHMENT D 314



 

28 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case Seismic                                        

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     14.00        3326        -2791         4342            0         4316         5143         6714        18861 

     12.00        3450        -2895         4503            0         4324         5153         6727        19197 

     12.00        3450        -2895         4503            0         4314         5141         6711        19205 

      9.00        3635        -3050         4745            0         4308         5134         6702        19729 

      4.00        3943        -3309         5147            0         4298         5123         6687        20630 

      0.00        4189        -3515         5469            0         4300         5124         6689        21374 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 315



 

29 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case Seismic 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   79.00       8.8        10.5       13.7         0.2         1.68    

   77.50       8.5        10.1       13.2         0.1         1.68    

   77.50       8.5        10.1       13.2         0.1         1.68    

   74.83       7.9         9.4       12.3         0.1         1.65    

   74.83       7.9         9.4       12.3         0.1         1.65    

   74.00       7.7         9.2       12.0         0.1         1.64    

   69.00       6.6         7.9       10.3         0.1         1.55    

   68.58       6.5         7.8       10.2         0.1         1.54    

   68.58       6.5         7.8       10.2         0.1         1.54    

   64.00       5.6         6.7        8.7         0.1         1.43    

   62.33       5.3         6.3        8.2         0.1         1.39    

   62.33       5.3         6.3        8.2         0.1         1.39    

   59.00       4.7         5.6        7.3         0.1         1.31    

   57.50       4.4         5.3        6.9         0.1         1.27    

   57.50       4.4         5.3        6.9         0.1         1.27    

   56.08       4.2         5.0        6.5         0.1         1.23    

   56.08       4.2         5.0        6.5         0.1         1.23    

   54.00       3.9         4.6        6.0         0.1         1.17    

   49.83       3.2         3.9        5.0         0.0         1.05    

   49.83       3.2         3.9        5.0         0.0         1.05    

   49.00       3.1         3.7        4.8         0.0         1.03    

   47.00       2.8         3.4        4.4         0.0         0.97    

 

   47.00       2.8         3.4        4.4         0.0         0.97    

   44.00       2.5         2.9        3.8         0.0         0.90    

   43.58       2.4         2.9        3.8         0.0         0.89    

   43.58       2.4         2.9        3.8         0.0         0.89    

   43.08       2.4         2.8        3.7         0.0         0.88    

   39.00       1.9         2.3        3.0         0.0         0.78    

   37.00       1.7         2.0        2.6         0.0         0.73    

   37.00       1.7         2.0        2.6         0.0         0.73    

   34.00       1.4         1.7        2.2         0.0         0.66    

   30.75       1.1         1.4        1.8         0.0         0.59    

   30.75       1.1         1.4        1.8         0.0         0.59    

   29.00       1.0         1.2        1.6         0.0         0.55    

   24.50       0.7         0.8        1.1         0.0         0.45    

   24.50       0.7         0.8        1.1         0.0         0.45    

   24.00       0.7         0.8        1.1         0.0         0.44    

   19.00       0.4         0.5        0.7         0.0         0.34    

   18.25       0.4         0.5        0.6         0.0         0.32    

   18.25       0.4         0.5        0.6         0.0         0.32    

   14.00       0.2         0.3        0.3         0.0         0.24    

   12.00       0.2         0.2        0.3         0.0         0.20    

  

ATTACHMENT D 316



 

30 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case Seismic 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   12.00       0.2         0.2        0.3         0.0         0.20    

    9.00       0.1         0.1        0.1         0.0         0.15    

    4.00       0.0         0.0        0.0         0.0         0.07    

    0.00       0.0         0.0        0.0         0.0         0.00    

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 317



 

31 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Stresses for Pole 

 

Loading Case Seismic 

 

Distance   Nominal     Nominal     Nominal     Nominal      Axial       Flexural      Shear       Torsion      Combined  

  From     Axial      Flexural     Shear     Torsional   Interaction  Interaction  Interaction  Interaction    Stress    

  Base    Strength    Strength    Strength    Strength       Term         Term         Term         Term     Interaction 

  (ft)     (lbs)     (in-kips)     (lbs)     (in-kips)                                                                   

   79.00    670,483       2,702     201,145       2,603         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.01 

   77.50    697,658       2,928     209,298       2,819         0.01         0.02         0.02         0.00         0.03 

   74.83    745,970       3,351     223,791       3,223         0.01         0.06         0.02         0.00         0.07 

   74.00    761,067       3,489     228,320       3,354         0.01         0.06         0.02         0.00         0.07 

   69.00    851,651       4,377     255,495       4,200         0.01         0.11         0.02         0.00         0.11 

   68.58    859,200       4,455     257,760       4,275         0.01         0.11         0.02         0.00         0.12 

   64.00    942,235       5,365     282,670       5,142         0.01         0.13         0.01         0.00         0.14 

   62.33    972,429       5,717     291,729       5,476         0.01         0.14         0.01         0.00         0.15 

   59.00  1,032,819       6,454     309,846       6,178         0.01         0.15         0.01         0.00         0.16 

   57.50  1,059,994       6,800     317,998       6,507         0.01         0.16         0.02         0.00         0.17 

   56.08  1,085,659       7,135     325,698       6,826         0.01         0.17         0.02         0.00         0.18 

   54.00  1,123,402       7,643     337,021       7,309         0.01         0.18         0.02         0.00         0.19 

   49.83  1,198,889       8,711     359,667       8,324         0.01         0.20         0.02         0.00         0.21 

   49.00  1,213,986       8,933     364,196       8,535         0.01         0.20         0.02         0.00         0.21 

   47.00  1,250,220       9,477     375,066       9,052         0.01         0.20         0.02         0.00         0.22 

 

   47.00  1,526,510      11,271     457,953      10,796         0.01         0.17         0.02         0.00         0.18 

   44.00  1,594,448      12,303     478,334      11,778         0.01         0.18         0.01         0.00         0.19 

   43.58  1,603,884      12,450     481,165      11,918         0.01         0.18         0.01         0.00         0.19 

   43.08  1,615,207      12,627     484,562      12,087         0.01         0.18         0.01         0.00         0.19 

   39.00  1,707,678      14,124     512,303      13,511         0.01         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   37.00  1,752,970      14,888     525,891      14,237         0.01         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   34.00  1,820,908      16,071     546,272      15,362         0.01         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   30.75  1,894,507      17,403     568,352      16,629         0.01         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   29.00  1,934,138      18,143     580,241      17,332         0.01         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   24.50  2,036,044      20,056     610,813      19,206         0.01         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   24.00  2,047,367      20,253     614,210      19,420         0.01         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   19.00  2,160,597      22,246     648,179      21,628         0.01         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.21 

   18.25  2,177,581      22,550     653,274      21,969         0.01         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.21 

   14.00  2,273,827      24,296     682,148      23,954         0.01         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.21 

   12.00  2,319,119      25,130     695,736      24,918         0.01         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.21 

    9.00  2,387,056      26,396     716,117      26,399         0.01         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.21 

    4.00  2,500,286      28,541     750,086      28,963         0.01         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.21 

    0.00  2,590,870      30,286     777,261      31,100         0.01         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.21 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 318



 

32 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case Seismic 2                                      

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     79.00           0            0            0            0            7            9           11            9 

     77.50           1           -1            1            0           33           40           52           45 

     77.50          45          -38           59            0         2099         2501         3265         2859 

     74.83         126         -106          164            0         2146         2557         3338         2927 

     74.83         126         -106          164            0         2146         2558         3339         2930 

     74.00         152         -127          198            0         2159         2573         3359         2955 

     69.00         309         -259          404            0         2247         2678         3496         3100 

     68.58         323         -271          421            0         2255         2687         3508         3113 

     68.58         323         -271          421            0         2254         2686         3507         3119 

     64.00         473         -397          617            0         2333         2781         3630         3270 

     62.33         529         -444          691            0         2363         2816         3676         3327 

     62.33         529         -444          691            0         2361         2814         3674         3332 

     59.00         643         -539          839            0         2417         2881         3760         3456 

     57.50         695         -583          907            0         2443         2911         3800         3512 

     57.50         724         -607          945            0         3772         4495         5867         6375 

     56.08         800         -672         1045            0         3795         4523         5905         6429 

     56.08         800         -672         1045            0         3793         4520         5900         6436 

     54.00         914         -767         1193            0         3821         4554         5944         6527 

     49.83        1143         -959         1493            0         3887         4633         6048         6701 

     49.83        1143         -959         1493            0         3883         4628         6041         6711 

     49.00        1190         -998         1553            0         3893         4639         6056         6751 

     47.00        1302        -1092         1699            0         3923         4675         6103         6840 

 

     47.00        1302        -1092         1699            0         3918         4669         6095         6847 

     44.00        1472        -1235         1921            0         4011         4780         6239         7159 

     43.58        1496        -1255         1952            0         4023         4795         6259         7203 

     43.58        1496        -1255         1952            0         4023         4794         6259         7205 

     43.08        1524        -1279         1990            0         4034         4807         6275         7264 

     39.00        1762        -1478         2300            0         4093         4878         6368         7517 

     37.00        1879        -1577         2453            0         4123         4913         6414         7642 

     37.00        1879        -1577         2453            0         4118         4908         6407         7650 

     34.00        2057        -1726         2685            0         4153         4950         6461         7852 

     30.75        2251        -1889         2938            0         4194         4998         6525         8071 

     30.75        2251        -1889         2938            0         4189         4993         6518         8080 

     29.00        2356        -1977         3076            0         4203         5009         6539         8210 

     24.50        2628        -2205         3431            0         4248         5063         6609         8534 

     24.50        2628        -2205         3431            0         4244         5057         6602         8541 

     24.00        2658        -2231         3470            0         4243         5056         6600         8585 

     19.00        2963        -2486         3868            0         4275         5095         6651         8974 

     18.25        3009        -2525         3928            0         4280         5101         6658         9033 

     18.25        3009        -2525         3928            0         4275         5095         6651         9040 

  

ATTACHMENT D 319



 

33 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Forces and Moments for Pole in the Local Element Coordinate System 

 

 

Loading Case Seismic 2                                      

Dist. From                            Resultant                   Shear        Shear      Resultant               

   Base         Mx           My         Mx & My      Torsion      X-Dir.       Y-Dir.       Shear        Axial    

   (ft)     (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)    (in-kips)      (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)        (lbs)    

 

     14.00        3270        -2743         4268            0         4291         5114         6676         9391 

     12.00        3392        -2847         4428            0         4299         5124         6688         9558 

     12.00        3392        -2847         4428            0         4294         5118         6681         9565 

      9.00        3577        -3001         4669            0         4296         5119         6683         9830 

      4.00        3884        -3259         5071            0         4294         5118         6681        10284 

      0.00        4130        -3465         5391            0         4296         5119         6683        10655 

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 320



 

34 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case Seismic 2 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   79.00       8.6        10.3       13.5         0.1         1.64    

   77.50       8.3         9.9       12.9         0.1         1.64    

   77.50       8.3         9.9       12.9         0.1         1.64    

   74.83       7.7         9.2       12.0         0.1         1.62    

   74.83       7.7         9.2       12.0         0.1         1.62    

   74.00       7.5         9.0       11.7         0.1         1.61    

   69.00       6.5         7.7       10.1         0.1         1.52    

   68.58       6.4         7.6       10.0         0.1         1.51    

   68.58       6.4         7.6       10.0         0.1         1.51    

   64.00       5.5         6.6        8.6         0.1         1.40    

   62.33       5.2         6.2        8.1         0.1         1.36    

   62.33       5.2         6.2        8.1         0.1         1.36    

   59.00       4.6         5.5        7.2         0.1         1.28    

   57.50       4.4         5.2        6.8         0.1         1.24    

   57.50       4.4         5.2        6.8         0.1         1.24    

   56.08       4.1         4.9        6.4         0.0         1.21    

   56.08       4.1         4.9        6.4         0.0         1.21    

   54.00       3.8         4.5        5.9         0.0         1.15    

   49.83       3.2         3.8        4.9         0.0         1.03    

   49.83       3.2         3.8        4.9         0.0         1.03    

   49.00       3.1         3.6        4.8         0.0         1.01    

   47.00       2.8         3.3        4.3         0.0         0.95    

 

   47.00       2.8         3.3        4.3         0.0         0.95    

   44.00       2.4         2.9        3.8         0.0         0.88    

   43.58       2.4         2.8        3.7         0.0         0.87    

   43.58       2.4         2.8        3.7         0.0         0.87    

   43.08       2.3         2.8        3.6         0.0         0.86    

   39.00       1.9         2.2        2.9         0.0         0.76    

   37.00       1.7         2.0        2.6         0.0         0.72    

   37.00       1.7         2.0        2.6         0.0         0.72    

   34.00       1.4         1.7        2.2         0.0         0.65    

   30.75       1.1         1.3        1.8         0.0         0.58    

   30.75       1.1         1.3        1.8         0.0         0.58    

   29.00       1.0         1.2        1.6         0.0         0.54    

   24.50       0.7         0.8        1.1         0.0         0.44    

   24.50       0.7         0.8        1.1         0.0         0.44    

   24.00       0.7         0.8        1.0         0.0         0.43    

   19.00       0.4         0.5        0.6         0.0         0.33    

   18.25       0.4         0.5        0.6         0.0         0.32    

   18.25       0.4         0.5        0.6         0.0         0.32    

   14.00       0.2         0.3        0.3         0.0         0.24    

   12.00       0.2         0.2        0.2         0.0         0.20    

  

ATTACHMENT D 321



 

35 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Deflections for Pole 

 

Loading Case Seismic 2 

 

 Distance                            Defl.                            

   From      Defl.       Defl.     Resultant     Defl.                

   Base      X-Dir       Y-Dir       X & Y       Z-Dir      Rotation  

   (ft)       (in)        (in)        (in)        (in)       (deg.)   

   12.00       0.2         0.2        0.2         0.0         0.20    

    9.00       0.1         0.1        0.1         0.0         0.15    

    4.00       0.0         0.0        0.0         0.0         0.06    

    0.00       0.0         0.0        0.0         0.0         0.00    

 

  

ATTACHMENT D 322



 

36 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

Stresses for Pole 

 

Loading Case Seismic 2 

 

Distance   Nominal     Nominal     Nominal     Nominal      Axial       Flexural      Shear       Torsion      Combined  

  From     Axial      Flexural     Shear     Torsional   Interaction  Interaction  Interaction  Interaction    Stress    

  Base    Strength    Strength    Strength    Strength       Term         Term         Term         Term     Interaction 

  (ft)     (lbs)     (in-kips)     (lbs)     (in-kips)                                                                   

   79.00    670,483       2,702     201,145       2,603         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.01 

   77.50    697,658       2,928     209,298       2,819         0.00         0.02         0.02         0.00         0.03 

   74.83    745,970       3,351     223,791       3,223         0.00         0.05         0.02         0.00         0.06 

   74.00    761,067       3,489     228,320       3,354         0.00         0.06         0.02         0.00         0.07 

   69.00    851,651       4,377     255,495       4,200         0.00         0.10         0.02         0.00         0.11 

   68.58    859,200       4,455     257,760       4,275         0.00         0.11         0.02         0.00         0.11 

   64.00    942,235       5,365     282,670       5,142         0.00         0.13         0.01         0.00         0.13 

   62.33    972,429       5,717     291,729       5,476         0.00         0.13         0.01         0.00         0.14 

   59.00  1,032,819       6,454     309,846       6,178         0.00         0.14         0.01         0.00         0.15 

   57.50  1,059,994       6,800     317,998       6,507         0.01         0.15         0.02         0.00         0.16 

   56.08  1,085,659       7,135     325,698       6,826         0.01         0.16         0.02         0.00         0.17 

   54.00  1,123,402       7,643     337,021       7,309         0.01         0.17         0.02         0.00         0.18 

   49.83  1,198,889       8,711     359,667       8,324         0.01         0.19         0.02         0.00         0.20 

   49.00  1,213,986       8,933     364,196       8,535         0.01         0.19         0.02         0.00         0.20 

   47.00  1,250,220       9,477     375,066       9,052         0.01         0.20         0.02         0.00         0.21 

 

   47.00  1,526,510      11,271     457,953      10,796         0.00         0.17         0.01         0.00         0.17 

   44.00  1,594,448      12,303     478,334      11,778         0.00         0.17         0.01         0.00         0.18 

   43.58  1,603,884      12,450     481,165      11,918         0.00         0.17         0.01         0.00         0.18 

   43.08  1,615,207      12,627     484,562      12,087         0.00         0.18         0.01         0.00         0.18 

   39.00  1,707,678      14,124     512,303      13,511         0.00         0.18         0.01         0.00         0.19 

   37.00  1,752,970      14,888     525,891      14,237         0.00         0.18         0.01         0.00         0.19 

   34.00  1,820,908      16,071     546,272      15,362         0.00         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.19 

   30.75  1,894,507      17,403     568,352      16,629         0.00         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.19 

   29.00  1,934,138      18,143     580,241      17,332         0.00         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.19 

   24.50  2,036,044      20,056     610,813      19,206         0.00         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.19 

   24.00  2,047,367      20,253     614,210      19,420         0.00         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   19.00  2,160,597      22,246     648,179      21,628         0.00         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   18.25  2,177,581      22,550     653,274      21,969         0.00         0.19         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   14.00  2,273,827      24,296     682,148      23,954         0.00         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.20 

   12.00  2,319,119      25,130     695,736      24,918         0.00         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.20 

    9.00  2,387,056      26,396     716,117      26,399         0.00         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.20 

    4.00  2,500,286      28,541     750,086      28,963         0.00         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.20 

    0.00  2,590,870      30,286     777,261      31,100         0.00         0.20         0.01         0.00         0.20 

 

MINIMUM DEFLECTION RATIO //  DEFLECTION LIMIT / DEFLECTION  // IS 

  

ATTACHMENT D 323



 

37 

 

     BY VALMONT INDUSTRIES    FOR:        NEW HORIZONS 79.0' POLE, SITE: EYAK LAKE, AK                             DATE 03/01/2022 

     Design Id: 538507-P1                                                                                          IMPAX 24.5.25.6 

                                                                                                                                        

          NUMBER                                                   SHIPPED        PROJECTION    GALVANIZED       THREAD                 

         OF BOLTS      DIAMETER        LENGTH       WEIGHT           AS             LENGTH        LENGTH          SIZE                  

                        (IN.)          (IN.)        (KIPS)                          (IN.)         (IN.)                                 

                                                                                                                                        

            14          1.750          66.00         0.89     BOLTS, TEMPLATES       9.50         66.00         5-UNC-2A                

                                                                                                                                        

          STEEL       STEEL     MAXIMUM BOLT  MAXIMUM BOLT   NOMINAL         STRESS       INTERACTION      CONFIGURATION OF             

          SPEC.      SPECIF.       FORCE      SHEAR FORCE    STRENGTH         AREA          VALUE             BOTTOM END                

         VALMONT                   (KIPS)        (KIPS)       (KIPS)        (SQ. IN.)                                                   

                                                                                                                                        

           S23         A615        132.42         2.48        142.50          1.90           0.93   THREADED WITH HEAVY HEX HEAD NUT    

                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                        

                                                           *** BOLT COORDINATES (IN.) ***                                               

                                                                                                                                        

                                        BOLT NO.  X-COORD   Y-COORD  *   BOLT NO.  X-COORD   Y-COORD                                    

                                           1       23.375    0.000   *      2       21.060    10.142                                    

                                           3       14.574    18.275  *      4       5.201     22.789                                    

                                                                                                                                        

       MAX. BOLT CIRCLE =    46.75 IN.                                    TEMPLATE DIAMETER =    50.25 IN.                              

                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                        

                                          *** BASE PLATE CHARACTERISTICS GOVERNED BY LOADING CASE WIND ***                              

                                                                                                                                        

                             BASE PLATE        BASE PLATE          ACTUAL         RAW MATERIAL       POLE DIAM.                         

                              DIAMETER         THICKNESS           WEIGHT            WEIGHT        (MAJOR DIAM.)                        

                               (IN.)             (IN.)             (KIPS)            (KIPS)            (IN.)                            

                                                                                                                                        

                               51.13              2.25              0.93              1.69             40.50                            

                                                                                                                                        

                             EFFECTIVE          PLASTIC          MOMENT IN          PLASTIC           FACTORED                          

                            PLATE WIDTH       SECTION MOD.       BASE PLATE          MOMENT        RESISTING MOM.                       

                               (IN.)           (CU. IN.)          (IN. -K)          (IN. -K)          (IN. -K)                          

                                                                                                                                        

                                9.09             11.50             413.80            575.11            517.60                           

                                                                                                                                        

                               STEEL             STEEL           EFFECTIVE           STRESS                                             

                              SPECIF.           SPECIF.         YIELD STRESS         RATIO                                              

                              VALMONT            OTHER             (KSI)                                                                

                                                                                                                                        

                                S56               A572               50               0.80                                              

                                                                                                                                        

          ** LOADS AT POLE BASE IN THE GLOBAL COORDINATE SYSTEM ************************** LOADING CASES *************************      

       LOADING CASE IDENTIFICATION        WIND ICE + WIND        T+S    Seismic  Seismic 2              ]MAX CRITERION- LOAD CASE       

       MOMENT ABT. X-AXIS (IN-KIP)       20500       2519       2643       4189       4129              ]MOMENT ABT. X    WIND          

       MOMENT ABT. Y-AXIS (IN-KIP)      -17201      -2114      -2217      -3515      -3465              ]MOMENT ABT. Y    WIND          

       SHEAR FORCE (LB.)                 34736       4439       4486       6676       6676              ]RES. MOMENT      WIND          

       VERTICAL FORCE (LB.)              18693      24256      15261      21378      10658              ]SHEAR FORCE      WIND          

                                                                                                        ]BOLT FORCE       WIND          

                                                                                                        ]BOLT TENSION     WIND  

 

ATTACHMENT D 324



1

Kevin Johnson

From: Carter, Garrett D (DOT) <garrett.carter@alaska.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2022 11:07 AM
To: Kevin Johnson
Cc: Young, Rex E (DOT)
Subject: RE: Cordova Cell Tower Variance Request

Hello Kevin, 

Thanks for giving us the opportunity to comment on this.  After reviewing and discussing this with my Permit Officer we 
have no objections of the placement of the cell tower adjacent to DOT&PF right of way at this location. 

Thank you, 
Garrett Carter,  PE 
Northern Region Utility Engineer and Property Management Lead 
Alaska State Department of Transportation and Public Facilities  
907‐451‐5408 
garrett.carter@alaska.gov  

From: Kevin Johnson <planning@cityofcordova.net>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2022 10:48 AM 
To: Young, Rex E (DOT) <rex.young3@alaska.gov> 
Cc: Carter, Garrett D (DOT) <garrett.carter@alaska.gov> 
Subject: RE: Cordova Cell Tower Variance Request 

Thanks for getting me in touch with the correct person Rex. 

Garrett, 

Attached is a notice of application for the below described project. I have also attached the variance application packet. I 
will also get a physical copy of the notice in the mail to you if you would like a hard copy. If not, please let me know. 

Let me know if you have any questions. 

Thanks, 

Kevin Johnson 
City Planner 
City of Cordova 
907‐424‐6220 

You don't often get email from planning@cityofcordova.net. Learn why this is important 

ATTACHMENT E 325



2

 
 

From: Young, Rex E (DOT) <rex.young3@alaska.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2022 9:12 AM 
To: Kevin Johnson <planning@cityofcordova.net> 
Cc: Carter, Garrett D (DOT) <garrett.carter@alaska.gov> 
Subject: RE: Cordova Cell Tower Variance Request 
 
Carter, Garrett D (DOT) garrett.carter@alaska.gov 
 
‐rex 
 
 

From: Kevin Johnson <planning@cityofcordova.net>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2022 8:27 AM 
To: Young, Rex E (DOT) <rex.young3@alaska.gov> 
Subject: Cordova Cell Tower Variance Request 
 

Good morning Rex, 
 
I have received an application from Copper Valley Telecom for a variance from a minimum setback along DOT ROW. The 
applicant says that they have spoken with you and that you had said that the DOT would not object to the variance 
request. I wanted to confirm this information. I have attached their application packet for reference. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Kevin Johnson 
City Planner 
City of Cordova 
907‐424‐6220 

 

  You don't often get email from planning@cityofcordova.net. Learn why this is important 

  CAUTION: This email originated from outside the State of Alaska mail system. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

ATTACHMENT E 326



3

 

ATTACHMENT E 327



M E M O R A N D U M

TO: KEVIN JOHNSON, PLANNING DIRECTOR 

FROM: JESSICA J. SPUHLER 
HOLLY C. WELLS 

RE: CITY ATTORNEY APPROVAL  
CVW TOWER REMOVAL AGREEMENT 

CLIENT: CITY OF CORDOVA 

FILE NO.: 401777.276 

DATE: JUNE 6, 2022 

The Copper Valley Telephone Cooperative, Inc. (CTVC) has submitted to the City 
of Cordova (“City”) an application for a conditional use permit (“CUP”) for construction of 
a telecommunication tower at MP 6 of the Copper River Highway. Per Cordova Municipal 
Code (“CMC”) Subsection 18.60.070(B)(10), CTVC’s application must include a Tower 
Removal Agreement (“Agreement”), on a form approved by the Cordova City Attorney.    

This memorandum documents the City Attorney’s review and approval of the 
Agreement. The Agreement binds CVTC’s wholly owned subsidiary, Copper Valley 
Wireless, LLC (CVW), to remove the tower and reclaim the property after a period of 
discontinued use, or be responsible for the City’s costs for removal and reclamation if 
CVW does not fulfill its obligations within the period provided at CMC 18.60.070(B)(10).  

We reviewed the Agreement on June 2, 2022 and provided CVTC revisions to 
bring the Agreement into accord with the CMC. Those revisions have been accepted by 
CVTC.  The Agreement, as revised, is approved as to form and substance by the Cordova 
City Attorney, satisfying the requirement of CMC 18.60.070(B)(10).  

JJS/ajl 

ATTACHMENT F 328


	6-14-22 Regular Meeting Agenda
	6-14-22 P&Z Regular Meeting Full Packet
	6-14-22 Planners Report
	9a - Title 16 Building Code Update and Associated References COMBINED
	Memo -Resloution 22-04 Title 16 Building Code Update
	Attachment A - Resolution 22-04 DRAFT
	Attachment B - Ordinance 1201 Repeal and Enact New Title 16 Buildings and Construction
	1. R101.1, Title, is amended to read as follows:

	Attachment C - Existing TITLE 16 & 18

	10a -  Conditional Use Permit - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres COMBINED
	Memo - Conditional Use Permit - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres
	10a -  Conditional Use Permit - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres COMBINED
	10a -  Conditional Use Permit - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres COMBINED
	9a -  Conditional Use Permit - Telecommunication Tower – Lot 6, Eyak Acres COMBINED
	Attachment A - Applicable Codes
	18.64.020 Variances.

	Attachment B - Conditional Use Permit Application and Attachments
	Eyak 538507-P1 Pole Drawing_Stamped.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Drawing


	220523 CVT EYAK LAKE CONST DWGS IFC REV 1.pdf
	S2.0 TOWER FOUNDATION AND DETAILS
	Sheets and Views
	S1.0


	E1.1 GROUNDING NOTES AND DETAILS
	Sheets and Views
	E1.0


	E1.2 GROUNDING SECTION AND DETAILS
	Sheets and Views
	E1.0


	T1.0 COVER SHEET.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	C2.0 MONOPOLE ELEVATION.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	S1.0


	C1.0 SITE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	S1.0


	S1.0 NOTES AND ICE BRIDGE DETAILS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	S1.0


	E1.0 GROUNDING PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	E1.0




	Attachment C - Variance Application and Attachments
	Attachment D - Additional attachments provide by the applicant
	Copper Valley Wireless LLC, Cert of Compliance
	Copper Valley Wireless LLC, License
	Eyak 538507-P1 Pole Formal Calculations_Stamped

	Attachment E - State of Alaska review and approval regarding proximity to Copper River Highway
	Attachment F - City Attorney Approval of Tower Removal Agreement Memo
	UMemorandum









